
Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       1                                                                                                             April 9, 2019 

           

County of Inyo 
Board of Supervisors 

Board of Supervisors Room 
County Administrative Center 

224 North Edwards 
Independence, California 

All members of the public are encouraged to participate in the discussion of any items on the Agenda.  Anyone wishing to speak, please obtain a card from the Board Clerk and 
indicate each item you would like to discuss.  Return the completed card to the Board Clerk before the Board considers the item (s) upon which you wish to speak. You will be 
allowed to speak about each item before the Board takes action on it.  
 
Any member of the public may also make comments during the scheduled “Public Comment” period on this agenda concerning any subject related to the Board of Supervisors or 
County Government.  No card needs to be submitted in order to speak during the “Public Comment” period. 

Public Notices: (1)  In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please contact the Clerk of the Board at 
(760) 878-0373.  (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require appropriate alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting to 
enable the County to make the agenda available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).  (2) If a writing, that is a public record relating to an 
agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, is distributed fewer than 72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be available for public 
inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1).               

Note: Historically the Board does break for lunch; the timing of a lunch break is made at the discretion of the Chairperson and at the Board’s convenience. 

 
April 9, 2019                  

  
8:30 a.m. 1.   PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
CLOSED SESSION 
 

2. 
 
 

3. 
 
 

4. 

 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION – Significant exposure to 
potential litigation pursuant to (2) of subdivision (d) of Government Code §54956.9 (one case).  
 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION – Initiation of litigation pursuant 
to paragraph (4) of subdivision (d) of Government Code §54956.9 (one case). 
 
CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS [Pursuant to Government Code §54957.6] – 
Regarding employee organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s Association (DSA); Elected Officials Assistant 
Association (EOAA); Inyo County Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); Inyo County Employees 
Association (ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers Association (ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; Law 
Enforcement Administrators’ Association (LEAA). Unrepresented employees: all. County designated 
representatives – Administrative Officer Clint Quilter, Assistant County Administrator Rick Benson, Deputy 
Personnel Director Sue Dishion, County Counsel Marshall Rudolph, Health and Human Services Director 
Marilyn Mann, and Chief Probation Officer Jeff Thomson. 
 

OPEN SESSION  (With the exception of timed items, all open-session items may be considered at any time and in any order 
during the meeting in the Board’s discretion.) 
  
10:00 a.m. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
 5. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION  

 
 6. PUBLIC COMMENT  

 
 7. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two minutes)  

 
 8. EMPLOYEE SERVICE RECOGNITION – The Board of Supervisors will recognize employee 

service milestones reached during the 2019 First Quarter. 
 

DEPARTMENTAL – PERSONNEL ACTIONS 
  

9. ASSESSOR – Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) 
the availability of funding for one (1) Auditor-Appraiser I-II exists in the Assessor budget, as certified by the 
Assessor and concurred with by the County Administrator and Auditor-Controller; B) where internal 
candidates may meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be filled through an 
internal recruitment, but an open recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified candidates apply; and C) 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       2                                                                                                             April 9, 2019 

approve the hiring of one (1) Auditor-Appraiser I, Range 70 ($4,569 - $5,557) or Auditor-Appraiser II, Range 
72 ($4,787 - $5,815), depending upon qualifications. 
 

10. COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR – Recycling and Waste Management – Request Board find that, consistent 
with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of funding for one (1) Recycling and 
Waste Management Gate Attendant exists, as certified by the Assistant County Administrator and concurred 
with by the County Administrator and Auditor-Controller; and B) authorize the hiring of one (1) Gate 
Attendant, Range 48 ($2,740 - $3,320) from the recently established eligibility list. 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA (Approval recommended by the County Administrator) 
  
  

 
11. 

 
 

12. 
 
 
 
 
 

13. 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
 
Motor Pool – Request Board approve the repair of a Motor Pool vehicle in the amount of 
$3,211.37 at Inyo-Mono Body Shop in Bishop.  
 
Personnel – Request Board approve: A) the licensing agreement with GovInvest for Actuarial 
Services and Technology and approve the purchase of the module and annual fees in the 
amount of $55,800; B) the licensing agreement with AdastraGov for Labor Negotiation 
Services and Technology and approve the purchase of the module and annual fees in the 
amount of $15,810; and C) authorize the County Administrator to sign the license agreements. 
 
Recycling and Waste Management – Request Board: A) award the bid for maintenance of 
the Olancha Transfer Station to Chuck Stewart of Olancha; B) approve the contract between 
the County of Inyo and Chuck Stewart of Olancha for Olancha Transfer Station maintenance in 
an amount not to exceed $16,766 for the period of July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2022, 
contingent upon the Board’s adoption of future County budgets; and C) authorize the 
Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 
 

  
 

14. 
 
 
 
 
 

15. 
 

COUNTY COUNSEL 
 
Request Board: A) receive and approve the revised 2018 Conflict of Interest Code Biennial 
Report from the Inyo County Sheriff’s Department (Exhibit A); and B) receive and approve the 
department’s Conflict of Interest Code (Exhibit B). 
 
COUNTY COUNSEL/WATER DEPARTMENT 
 
Request Board approve Amendment No. 1 to the agreement between the County of Inyo and 
Gregory L. James, Attorney at Law, for the provision of Water/Environmental Attorney services 
to the Water Department, to increase the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 contract limit by $26,000 from 
$100,000, for a total amount not to exceed $126,000 contingent upon the Board’s adoption of 
the Third Quarter Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 
 

  
 

16. 
 
 
 
 
 

17. 

HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES 
 
Health – Request Board authorize HHS’ participation in the Medi-Cal County Inmate Program 
and authorize the HHS Director to sign the county participation forms for Fiscal Year 2019-
2020. 
 
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES/COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR – Emergency Services 
 
Request Board: A) approve a Memorandum of Understanding between the American Red 
Cross and the County of Inyo for the period of April 9, 2019 through April 9, 2024; and B) 
authorize the County Administrator, as the appointed Director of Emergency Services, to sign 
the MOU. 

  
 
 

18. 
 
 
 
 

 
PUBLIC WORKS 
 
Request Board: A) award the five-year contract for semi-annual Kitchen Hood Fire 
Suppression System Inspection Services to Blizzard Fire Protection of Mammoth Lakes, CA in 
an amount not to exceed $11,200, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets; B) 
authorize the Chairperson to sign the contract, contingent upon all appropriate signatures 
being obtained; and C) authorize the Public Works Director to sign all other contract 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       3                                                                                                             April 9, 2019 

 
 
 

19. 
 
 
 
 
 

20. 

documents, including contract change orders, to the extent permitted pursuant to Section 
20142 of the Public Contract Code and other applicable law. 
 
Request Board: A) declare Etchemendy Engineering, Inc. a sole-source provider for the design 
of the Annex HVAC Retrofit Project; B) approve the contract between the County of Inyo and 
Etchemendy Engineering, Inc. of Reno, NV for engineering services for a lump sum amount of 
$80,050; and C) authorize the Chairperson to sign the contract, contingent upon all appropriate 
signatures being obtained. 
 
Road Department – Request Board approve the purchase of 120 linear feet of corrugated 
metal pipe culvert and the associated hardware from Western Nevada Supply of Bishop, CA in 
an amount not to exceed $11,278.90. 
 

  
 

21. 

SHERIFF 
 
Request Board: A) request Board approve Amendment No. 1 to the agreement between the 
County of Inyo and CalOES for the provision of radio maintenance, extending the term of 
service for three years from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2022 at the rate of $21,667 for 
Fiscal Year 2019-2020, $21,667 for Fiscal Year 2020-2021, and $21,666 for Fiscal Year 2021-
2022, increasing the total not-to-exceed amount by $65,000 for a total amount not to exceed 
$125,000, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets; and B) authorize the Sheriff 
or designee to sign.  
 

DEPARTMENTAL  (To be considered at the Board’s convenience) 
 

22. 
 
WATER DEPARTMENT – Request Board:  

A) Provide direction to the County’s representatives on the Owens Valley Groundwater Authority Board 
of Directors in advance of the OVGA meeting scheduled for April 18, 2019 in Bishop; and  

B) Provide direction to the County’s representatives on the Inyo-L.A. Standing Committee in advance of 
the Standing Committee meeting scheduled for May 6, 2019 in Independence.  

 
23. HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES – Aging & Social Services – Request Board ratify approve the agreement 

between the County of Inyo and RTZ Associates, Inc. for the provision of an online web portal for the GetCare 
program, in the amount of $14,930 for the period of April 1, 2019 through June 30, 2019 and $18,120 for 
Fiscal Year 2019-2020 and $18,120 for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 for a total amount of $51,170, contingent upon 
the Board’s adoption of future budgets, and authorize the HHS Director to sign. 
 

24. 
 
 
 
 
 

25. 

PUBLIC WORKS – Request Board: A) ratify and approve the contract between the County of Inyo and 
Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. for the provision of Water Rate Study Services for the Lone Pine, 
Independence, and Laws Town Water Systems in an amount not to exceed $34,691 for the period of January 
1, 2019 to December 31, 2019; and B) authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate 
signatures being obtained. 
 
PUBLIC WORKS – Road Department – Request Board: A) approve Resolution No. 2019-16, titled, “A 
Resolution of the Board of Supervisors, of the County of Inyo, State of California, Identifying Projects to Be 
Funded by Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Funds Pursuant to SB 1: the Road Repair and 
Accountability Act;” B) approve the recommended project lists attached to satisfy the documentation 
requirements to receive SB 1 Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 funding from the Road Maintenance 
and Rehabilitation Account; C) authorize the Public Works Department to apply for and submit all required 
documentation to receive the Inyo County allotment of SB 1 Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 
funding; and D) authorize the Public Works Director, or his designee, to sign for the RMRA funding and all 
associated supporting documents. 
 

26. 
 
 
 

27. 
 
 
 
 
 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR – Request Board approve Resolution No. 2019-17, titled, “A Resolution of the 
Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, Changing the Location of the Board’s April 16, 
2019 Regular Meeting,” and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 
 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR – Recycling and Waste Management – Request Board approve the Franchise 
Agreements with the County's waste haulers, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all 
appropriate signatures being obtained. 
 
 
 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       4                                                                                                             April 9, 2019 

28. 
 
 

29. 
 
 
 
 

30. 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR – Recycling and Waste Management – Request Board approve a floor rate 
increase for residential, commercial, and roll-off service for Permit Areas A & B in Inyo County. 
 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR – Emergency Services – Request Board discuss and consider staff’s 
recommendation regarding continuation of the local emergency known as the “Here It Comes Emergency” 
that was proclaimed in anticipation of run-off conditions from near-record snowpack posing extreme peril to 
the safety of property and persons in Inyo County. 
 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR – Emergency Services – Request Board discuss and consider staff’s 
recommendation regarding continuation of the local emergency known as the “Rocky Road Emergency” that 
was proclaimed as the result of flooding, mud, and rock landslides and deep snow drifts over portions of Inyo 
County caused by an atmospheric river weather phenomena that began January 3, 2017 and continued 
throughout February. 
 

TIMED ITEMS (Items will not be considered before scheduled time but may be considered any time after the 
scheduled time) 

 
11 a.m. 

 
 
 
 

 
11 a.m. 

 
 
 

 
1 p.m. 

 

 
31. 

 
 
 
 
 

32. 
 
 
 
 

33. 

 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR – Recycling and Waste Management – Request Board: A) 
conduct a hearing to consider adding a late fee in the amount of 1.5% per month to gate fee 
accounts over 30 days delinquent; B) approve the proposed late fee effective June 1, 2019; C) 
approve Resolution No. 2019-18 authorizing late fees; and D) approve the attached Gate Fee 
Account Policy. 
 
PLANNING – Request Board: A) receive a presentation from staff regarding the status of short-
term rentals in Inyo County, approximately one year after the Planning Department began 
accepting applications; and B) provide direction to the Planning Department on Short-Term Rental 
policy, and any elements that may require review or revision. 
 
PRESENTATION – Request Board receive a presentation that includes: 

A) An overview from Southern California Edison on its Ivanpah-Control Project; and  
B) A report from the California Public Utilities Commission on its procedure for review of 

SCE’s project, including the CEQA process, and the CPUC proceeding in the decision-
making process. 

 

 
Note: The agenda items listed below may be considered by the Board at any time during the meeting in the 
Board’s discretion, including before scheduled timed items. 
 
COMMENT  (Portion of the Agenda when the Board takes comment from the public and County staff) 
 

34. PUBLIC COMMENT  
 

BOARD MEMBER AND STAFF REPORTS 
  
  

CORRESPONDENCE – INFORMATIONAL 
 

35. 
 
 
 

36. 

 
California Highway Patrol – Report submitted pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 25180.7 
(Proposition 65), documenting information regarding the illegal discharge (or threatened illegal discharge) of 
hazardous waste on State Route 168 east of Wyman Canyon Road. 
 
State of California Fish and Game Commission – Notice that proposed regulatory actions relative to 
bighorn sheep and elk may be continued to the Commission’s teleconference meeting on May 16, 2019. 
 

 



#B
COUNTY OF INYO

To

From:

Date

Pnnsonxel DEPARTMENT
P. O. Box 249,Independence, California 93526
760-878-0377
760-878-0465 (Fax)

MEMORANDUM

Department Heads

Sue Dishion, Deputy Personnel Director

April2,2019

Employee Service Awards for 1't Quarter 2019Re

The following employees will be recognized for their service to the County of Inyo, at the
Board of Supervisors Meeting on Tuesday, April 9 , 2019 at 1 0:00 am. Please invite your
employees to attend and be recognized.

Name Hire Date Years of
Service

Department Head

Alisha McMurtrie 03/ 16leg 20 Elected
Nate Girardin 01/0rl09 10 Jeff Hollowell
Kelvin Johnston 03/0 t /ee 20 Jeff Hollowell
Lars Erickson 02lor/99 20 Jeff Thomson
Bernadette Warner 03l20lee 20 Jeff Thomson
Evelen Nunez orl02l14 5 Marilyn Mann
Darcia Blackdeer-Lent otl20lt4 5 Marilyn Mann
Michelle Howell ot/30l14 5 Marilyn Mann
Sharon Wilson orl30/14 5 Marilyn Mann
Jacob Arnal 02l13/14 5 Marilyn Mann
Ralph Cataldo Jr. 02l13l14 5 Marilyn Mann
Valerie Behrendt 02lorl99 20 Marilyn Mann
Keller Tiernaeel 03/30/8 1 38 Mike Errante
Nancy Masters 03/26/84 35 Rick Benson



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO
D Consent [t Departmental lConespondence Action

E Scheduled Time for E Closed Session

Clerk's llsa
AGENDA

?
D Public Hearing

E lnformational

FRoM: Dave Stotflemyre, Assessor

FOR THE BOARD MEETTNG OF Aprit 9, Z0i9

SUBJECT: Auditor-Appraiser I or ll

D
Kequest your tJoard tind that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review policy: a) The availability of funding for tlrisrequested position is budeeted in the Assessor's budgit, as certified by the Assessor and concurred with by the county Administratorand Auditor-controller; and where internal candidates may meet the qualifications for the position, the vacincy could be 1illed throughan internal recruitment, but an open recruitment would be more .il.p;iil a;;isure qualifie.d candidares apply, and c) Request Boardfind consistent with the Fiscal Year 2018'2019 t"T9 

f-pg"_iio t"ot i .oorove the hiring of an Auiitor-Appraiser I Range 70(S4,569-$5,557) or an Auditor-Appraiser II Range 22 ($4,7tii-$5,tisl 
--'-- -"'

CAO RECOMMENDATION:

SAMIUaRY ?IscassroB
I nls person perfbrms Audits. of the accounting records and other relevant records of indushial, commercial, and agicultural businessesin connection with the appraisal process. eddltional[, this penon p;tf"*;;;;isals using the guidelines established by the Board ofEqualization' They must research appraisal techniques and assessment tui tu* to support their work, and prepares reports andconespondence related to audits and appraisals. They answer public inquiries, represent the Assessor in the assessment appealsprocess' and conduct field inspections at various locations within the county.'

ALTERNATIWS:
Your Board could choose
Assessor's office.

not to approve the hiring of this position, but this would negatively impact the daily operations of &e

OTHER AGENCY IWOLWMENT:

FINANCING:
Funding for this position is ftom the General Fund. This position is cunently budgeted for in the Assessor,s budget 010600, in theSalaries and Benefrts object code,

DEPARTUENT HEAD SIGNA

AUOTTOR/CONTnOIt_e*
(Musl rcview6d approved

lo the boad clafu,)
AND

PERSONNEL OIRECTOF-
end approvedITEMS be of tobord

7

..\ 1'l)l{( ) v,\ l.s

(Tho Originat plus 14 copies ot this document
{-{



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COTINTY OF INYO
E Consent X Departmental lConespondence Action

E ScneOuled Time for fl Ctosed Session

Clerk's Use
AGENDA

\O

D Pubtic Hearing

! lnformational

FROM: lntegrated Waste Management
q

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: npritd,Z}tO

SUBJECT: Request to fill vacant Recycling Waste Management Gate Attendant position.

lrp/n\nrlt nrcouue Request Board find that consistent with the adopted Authorized posirion
Review Policy:

l) The availability of funding for the requested position exists as certified by the Department Head with concurrence bythe County Administrator and Auditor_-Controlier; and2) Authorize the filling of the Gate Attendant, Range 4g ($2,740-$3,320) from the recenrly established eligibility list.

SuMMAfrv DIScussIoN: The FY 2018-19 Y*pgy"t Report (approved.by your.Board as parr of rhe Fy 2018-19 countyBudget) identifies the landfill Gate Attendant positions (Range +:j 
^'u'.,'itrg 

assignei to. the county;s Recycting waste Managementprogram to provide necessary landfill waste Ioad inspectioni and repordn!. This position is critical to the operation ofthe counrylandfills' The gate attendants perform high volume waste disposal monitoiing and reporfing including load checking, to delerminecharges and to inspect for unacceptablJhazmdou: wasle items. The gate attendant-will iollect disposal fees, issue receipts andmaintain accurate records on the fees collected and the volume oi*aste airp"r.o.

The cunent gate attendant position became vacant with the recent resignation of an incumbent.

ALTERNATIVES: Your Board could choose not to authorize filling the vacant position, however, tbis is not recommended, as thefunctionalify of the Recycling waste Management programs will suffer, w.hen'a.gate attenda;position is vacant the other gateaftendants and equipment operators backfill the position iesulting in increasea oveftifie u"a r"qJi"!-the gate attendant to work theirscheduled days off.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: personnel

FINANCIN: Funding for this position is included in rhe Fy Z}lg-2llgSotid Waste Budget.

D E PARTM ENT H EA D SIG N ATIJ RE.
(Not to be signed
(The Original ptus

until all approvals are
20 copies of this document

COUNW
REIATED ITEMS (Musf be

AND CLOSEDAND
andreviewed byapproved counsel tocounty prior tosubml'ssion boardthe cled<.)

Approved: Dale

be reviewed and approved by the auditor-controller pior toto the board clerk)
AND REI-ATED ITEMS

RECTOR:

C* J
AND RELATED ITEMS prior to

7

reviewed and approved by the director of personnel
to

Alrlrl{0\/,,\LS

arf gate attendant position (2).doc

are



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COTINTY OF INYO
X Consent ! Departmental lCorrespondence Action

n ScneOuteO Time for n Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

/l
! eubtic Hearing

! lnformational

FROM: Motor Pool

FORTHE BOARD MEETING OF: April g,20tg

SUBJECT: Body Repair to Motor pool Vehicle

DEPARTMENTAL RECOMMENDATI0N: Recommend that your Board approve the repair of a Motor pool
vehicle in the amount of $3,21 1.37 atthe Inyo Mono Body Shop of Bishop.

SUMMARY DISCUSSION: Motor Pool vehicle number 9423, a2013 Toyota Rav 4, was recently rear ended.

Inyo Mono Body Shop provided a quote in the amount of $3,21 1.37 for repairs. The other parly,s insurance company
has approved the repair.

Motor Pool has spent $7,400.41 for Fiscal Year l8/19 with Inyo Mono Body Shop. With this current request, the amount
spent with this vendor will be over $10,000 which then requires Board approval. 

^

ALTERNATIVES: Your Board could choose not to approve the repair of this vehicle; however, it is not safe to
operate and the vehicle is of sufficient value to warrant the repair.

FINANCING: State Farm has issued a check in the amount of $321 7.37 madepayable to Inyo County Motor
Pool. This check will be deposited into the Motor Pool budget as a reimbursed expense. Motor pool will then pay this
expense out of the Motor Pool Budget 200100 Object Code 5171.

DEPARTM ENT H EAD SI G NATTJ RE :
(Not to be signed until all approvals are

COUNry COUNSEL: RELATEDAG ANDCONTRACTSREEMENTS, ANDORDINANCES SESSCLOSED ON AND ITEMS be(Must
andreviewed counsel tobyapproved county tosubmission boardtheprior clerk.)

Approved: Date_
AUDITORYCONTROLLER:

n
be reviewed and approved by the auditor-controller prior toAND RELATED

to theiboard clerk.)

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR: reviewed

Approved:_Date_

by the director of personnel services prior to
submission to the board

PERSONNEL AND

APPROVALS

(The Original plus 14 copies of this document a re



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO
XConsent lDepartmental lCorrespondenceAction

E ScneduteO Time for fl CtoseO Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

t>
n Putrtic Hearing

E lnformational

FROM: County Administrative Officer - Personnel

FOR THE BOARD MEETTNG; April 9, 2019

SUBJECT: Approval of Licensing Agreements with Govlnvest for Actuarial Services and Technology and AdastraGov for
Labor Negotiations Services and Technology

D EPARTMENTAL RE C OMMENDATI ON :
Request Board 1) Apprgve the Licensing Agreement with Govlnvest for Actuarial Services and Technology and
approve the purchase of the module and annual fees in the amount of $55,800; and 2) Approve the Liclnsing
Agreement with AdastraGov for Labor Negotiation Services and Technology and approve tne purbnase of the module
and annual fees in the amount of $15,810; and 3) Authorize County-Adminisirative Ofiicer to sign Licensing
Agreements.

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:
Recently, the CAO, Auditor-Controller and Budget Analyst had the opportunity to receive an overview of actuarial
serviced and technology options provided by Govinvest and Adastracov. tnese iompanies provide tools to government
agencies to assist in befter understanding liabilities and manage those costs in the future. The actuaries o-n their staff
provide real-time information, instant actuarial and financial inalysis, and insights into how to pay down unfunded
liabilities.

There are three modules that would be purchased along with annual rates. The Pension and OPEB modules help make
GASB 68 simple and intuitive, while helping decision makers and constituents get a clear picture of the outsianding
liabilities and the impact that economic and demographic variables have on the reiults. Currenly the information that we
receive from CaIPERS actuarials are typically one to two years behind. This software will allow staff to provide more
current information and also allows staff to provide different analysis if things were to change, such as, lowering of the
discount rate, which is currently being discussed. Additionallythe softwareiould help anal'lze increases related-to any
labor negotiation discussions. This type of actuarial analysis typically takes months ior a traditional actuarial consulting
firm to provide, but with the software could be provided 

'instanily. 
The Labor Costing Module is an innovative

technological solution to assist in effectively providing total transpareniy around the fiscal im[act of costs associated with
proposals during negotiations.

The request before you is for the purchase of all three modules, and for the payment of five years of annual fees for the
Pension module, one year of annual fees for the OPEB module and one year 6f annual fees for the Labor module, with
the ability to extend years out for both OPEB and Labor.

ALTERNATIWS:
Your Board could choose not to approve the purchase and staff would continue to provide information that is available.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLWMENT:
Auditor-Controller

FINANCING:
This purchasewill be paid forfrom the Perso'nnel Budget(010800) in Professional Services (5265). Thechanges in the
Personnel Budget will occur during the Third euarter Financial Review process.



Agenda Request
Page 2

DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE:
(Not
(The ale

COUNWCOUNSEL:
toviwed and apprcved by Mhty aounsel prtorto submission to the board c!atk.)

AGREEMENTS. CONTRACTS AND ORDIMNCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Must De

Approved:

AUDITOR/CONTROLLER: be reviewed and approvad by lhe audltorcontroller prior toAND
board

ITEMS (Must

Al,t',lt()\/.\l (



Inyo County

SaaS Licensing Agreement

Attention: Clint Quilter, CAO

Prepared by: Ted Price, CEO

April9,2019

Actuarial Services and Technology
Licensing Agreement Govlnvest

Page I
$ lnsights to your financial luture



Inyo County

Summary of Services and Implementation

Customer:

Clint Quilter, CAO
PO DrawerN
Independence, CA93526

Services:

Service Capacity: Use of the Standard Pension Module and Other Post-Employment Benefits Module of
the Total Liability Calculator; Bi-annual GASB 75 Actuarial Valuation; Roll-forward GASB 75 Actuarial
Valuation; Actuarially Determined Contribution Funding (ADC) Report (collectively, the "service(s)").

Service Fees: Fees are payable annually, subject to the terms of Section 4 herein.

Total Contract Value Invoiced Annuallv.

OPTION - OPEB Module: $12,500 total contract value. $7,500 annual licensing fee. Option to extend for
additional four-years starting at $7,725 (+) the greater of the US CPI or 3%o each consecutive year (+)
$5,000 onboarding fee. $47,318 total contract value for five-years.

Total Contract Value Invoiced Up-front.

Pension Module: $45,000 total contract value. $8,000 annual licensing fee for five-years (+) $5,000
onboarding fee.

OPTION - OPEB Module: $15,000 total contract value. $7,500 annual licensing fee. Option to pay
upfront for four additional years at $6,500 annual licensing fee (+) $7,500 onboarding fee. $41,000 total
contract value.

Initial Term: Five-years from Effective Date for Pension Module.

Initial Term: One-years from Effective Date for OPEB Module

Implementation Services:

Company will use commercially reasonable efforts to provide Customer the services described in
accordance with the terms herein, and Customer shall pay Company the Implementation Fee in
accordance with the terms herein.

Pension Implementation Fee (One-Time): $5,000
OPEB Implementation Fee (One-Time): $7,500.

Additional 7% discount off total contract value if either Govlnvest software (Pension or OPEB)
purchased with Labor Costing Module.

Actuarial Services and Technology
Licensing Agreement Govlnvest

Page2

lnsights to yourfinancial luture



Inyo County

SERVICE AGREEMENT
This SaaS Services Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into on this 9a day ofu!g!l-2019 (the "Effective
Date") between Govlnvest, Inc. ("Company"), and the Customer listed above ("Customer"). This
Agreement includes and incorporates the above Summary of Services and Implementation, as well as the
attached Terms and Conditions and contains, among other things, warranty disclaimers, liability
limitations and use limitations. There shall be no force or effect to any different or additional terms of any
purchase order, confirmation or similar form, even if signed by the parties before or after the date hereof.

Govlnvest Inc. Inyo County

By:

1.2

By:

Name: Ted Price

Title: CEO and Co-founder

;,ilg' 4-2-19

Name:

Title

Date

2.
2.1

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

SAAS SERVICES AND SUPPORT
Subject to the terms of this Agreement, Company will use commercially reasonable efforts to
provide Customer the Services in accordance with the Service Level Terms attached hereto as
Exhibit A. As part of the registration process, Customer will identifu an administrative user name
and password for Customer's account. Company reserves the right to refuse registration or cancel
passwords it deems inappropriate.
Subject to the terms hereof; Company will provide Customer with reasonable technical support
services in accordance with the terms set forth in Exhibit B.

2.2

RESTRICTIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES
Customer will not, directly or indirectly; reverse engineer, decompile, disassemble or otherwise
attempt to discover the source code, object code or underlying structure, ideas, know-how or
algorithms relevant to the Services or any software, documentation or data related to or used to
provide the Services ("Software"); modify, translate, or create derivative works based on the
Services or any Software (except to the extent expressly permified in writing by Company or
authorized within the Services); use the Services or any Software for timesharing or service
bureau purposes or otherwise for the benefit of a third party; or remove any proprietary notices or
labels.
Further, Customer shall not export or re-export, either directly or indirectly, the Software or any
copies thereof in such manner as to violate the export laws and regulations of the United States or
any other applicable jurisdiction in effect from time to time (including, without limitation, when
such export or re-export requires an export license or other governmental approval without first
obtaining such license or approval). Without limiting the foregoing, Customer shall not permit
any third parties to access or use the Services in violation of any United States export embargo,
prohibition, or restriction.
Customer hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Company against any damages, losses,
liabilities, settlements and expenses (including without limitation costs and attomey's fees) in
connection with any claim or action that arises from Customer's failure to comply with the terms
of this Agreement or otherwise from Customer's use of Services. Although Company has no

2.5

Actuarial Services and Technology
Licensing Agreement Govlnvest

Page 3

lnsights to yourfinancial futur€



Inyo County

2.4

obligation to monitor Customer's use of the Services, Company may do so. Company reserves the
right, in its sole discretion, to prohibit or suspend Customer's use of the Services at any time
Company believes such use to be in violation of this Agreement or otherwise harmful to the
Service.
Customer shall be responsible for obtaining and maintaining any equipment and ancillary services
needed to connect to, access or otherwise use the Services, including, without limitation,
modems, hardware, servers, software, operating systems, networking, web servers and the like
(collectively, "Equipment"). Customer shall also be responsible for maintaining the security of
the Equipment, Customer account, passwords (including but not limited to administrative and
user passwords) and files, and for all uses of Customer account or the Equipment with or without
Customer's knowledge or consent.

3, CONFIDENTIALITY;PROPRIETARYRIGHTS
3. 1 One party (the "Receiving Party") understands that the other party (the "Disclosing Party") has

disclosed or may disclose business, technical or financial information relating to the Disclosing
Party's business (hereinafter referred to as ooProprietary Information" of the Disclosing Parfy).
Proprietary Information of Company includes non-public information regarding features,
functionality and performance of the Service. Proprietary Information of Customer includes non-
public data ("Customer Data") provided by Customer to Company to enable the provision of the
Services. The ReceivingParty agrees: (i) to take reasonable precautions to protect such
Proprietary Information, and (ii) not to use (except in performance of the Services or as otherwise
permitted herein) or divulge to any third party any such Proprietary Information. The Disclosing
Party agrees that the foregoing shall not apply with respect to any information after five (5) years
following the disclosure thereof or any information that the Receiving Party can document (a) is
or becomes generally available to the public, without any action by, or involvement of, the
Receiving Party or (b) was in its possession or known by it prior to receipt from the Disclosing
Party, or (c) was rightfully disclosed to it without restriction by a third party, or (d) was
independently developed without use of any Proprietary Information of the Disclosing Party or
(e) is required to be disclosed by law. The Receiving Party acknowledges that in the event of a
breach of Section 3.1 by the Receiving Party, substantial injury could result to the Disclosing
Party and money damages will not be a sufficient remedy for such breach. Therefore, in the event
that the Receiving Party engages in, or threatens to engage in, any act which violates Section 3. 1,
the Disclosing Party will be entitled, in addition to all other remedies which may be available to it
under law, to seek injunctive relief (including, without limitation, temporary restraining orders, or
preliminary or permanent injunctions) and specific enforcement of the terms of Section 3.1. The
Disclosing Parry will not be required to post a bond or other security in connection with the
granting ofany such relief.

3.2 Company shall own and retain all rights, title and interest in and to: (i) the Services and Software,
together with all improvements, enhancements, modifications, changes, translations, compilation,
and derivative works thereto, (ii) any software, applications, inventions or other technology
developed in connection with Implementation Services or support, (iii) any analytics generated
through Customer's use of the Services, including but not limited to, any data, materials,
information, and reports ("Analytics") and (iv) all intellectual property rights related to any of the
foregoing. Company hereby grants Customer a non-exclusive, non-transferable and non-
sublicensable license to access and use the Analytics.

3 '3 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, Company shall have the right to collect and analyze
data and other information relating to the provision, use and performance of various aspects of the
Services and related systems and technologies (including, without limitation, information
concerning Customer Data and data derived therefrom), and Company will be free (during and
after the term hereof) to: (i) use such information and data to improve and enhance the Services

Actuarial Services and Technology
Licensing Agreement Govlnvest

Page 4

lnsights to your financial tuture



Inyo County

4.

4.1

and for other development, diagnostic and corrective purposes in connection with the Services
and other Company offerings, (ii) disclose such data solely in aggregate or other de-identified
form in connection with its business, and (iii) disclose, share, license, or resell Analytics to third
parties for consideration. No rights or licenses are granted except as expressly set forth herein.

PAYMENT OF FEES
Customer will pay Company the then applicable fees described in the Summary of Services and
Implementation in accordance with the terms therein (the "Fees"). If Customer's use of the
Services exceeds the Service Capacity set forth in the Summary of Services and Implementation
or otherwise requires the payment of additional fees (per the terms of this Agreement), Customer
shall be billed for such usage and Customer agrees to pay the additional fees in the manner
provided herein. Company reserves the right to change the Fees or applicable charges and to
institute new charges and Fees at the end of the Initial Term or then current Renewal Term, upon
thirfy (30) days prior notice to Customer (which may be sent by email). If Customer believes that
Company has billed Customer incorrectly, Customer must contact Company no later than 60 days
after the closing date on the first billing statement in which the error or problem appeared, in
order to receive an adjustment or credit. Inquiries should be directed to Company's customer
support department.
Company may choose to bill through an invoice, in which case, full payment for invoices issued
in any given month must be received by Company thirfy (30) days after the mailing date of the
invoice. Unpaid amounts are subject to a finance charge of 5Yo per month on any outstanding
balance, or the maximum permitted by law, whichever is lower, plus all expenses of collection
and may result in immediate termination of Service. Customer shall be responsible for all taxes
associated with Services other than u.S. taxes based on company's net income.
Services may be provided outside the scope encompassed within the 'oSummary of Services and
Implementation". Said services may be subject to additional fees, which are set at $600/hour for
executive-level work, $425lhour for FSA-level work, $300/hour for ASA-level work, $200/hour
for analyst work, and reasonable travel expenses. Said services Ihat are subject to additional fees
will not be performed without explicit advance consent from Customer.
Company may incur business license fees that are mandated by Customer. Customer agrees to
reimburse Company for said fees.
Company may incur costs for adding Customer as additional insured to Company's existing
insurance policies in order to comply with Customer's insurance requirements. Customer agrees to
reimburse Company for said costs.
Company may incur costs for providing a waiver of subrogation in relation to Company's existing
insurance policies in order to comply with Customer's insurance requirements. Customer agrees to
reimburse Company for said costs.

TERM AND TERMINATION
Subject to earlier termination as provided below, the Initial Term of this Agreement shall be for a
period specified in the Summary of Services and Implementation (the "Initial Term"). Upon the
expiration of the Initial Term, this agreement shall automatically renew for additional periods of
the same duration as the Initial Term (each a "Renewal Term"). The Initial Term and lhe Renewal
Term are collectively referred to herein as the ,,Term.,'

In addition to any other remedies it may have, either party may terminate this Agreement upon
thirty (30) days written notice (or without notice in the case of nonpayment), if the other party
materially breaches any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement. Customer will pay in full
for the Services up to and including the last day on which the Services are provided. Ali sections
of this Agreement which by their nature should survive termination will survive termination,

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

5.2

4.6

5

5

Actuarial Services and Technology
Licensing Agreement Govlnvest

Page 5

lnsights to yourfinsncial f!ture



Inyo County

6

including, without limitation, accrued rights to payment, confidentiality obligations, warranty
disclaimers, and limitations of liability.

WARRANTY AND DISCLAIMER
Company shall use reasonable efforts consistent with prevailing industry standards to maintain
the Services in a manner which minimizes errors and interruptions in the Services and shall
perform the Implementation Services in a professional and workmanlike manner as expressed in
Exhibit C. Services may be temporarily unavailable for scheduled maintenance or for
unscheduled emergency maintenance, either by Company or by third-party providers, or because
of other causes beyond Company's reasonable control, but Company shall use reasonable efforts
to provide advance notice in writing or by e-mail of any scheduled service disruption. However,
Company does not warrant that the Services will be uninterrupted or effor free; nor does it make
any warranty as to the results that may be obtained from use of the Services. EXCEPT AS
EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS SECTION, THE SERVICES, THE ANALYTICS, AND
IMPLEMENTATION SERVICES ARE PROVIDED "AS IS'' AND COMPANY DISCLAIMS
ALL WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO,
IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR
PURPOSE AND NON-INFRINGEMENT.

INDEMNITY
Company shall hold Customer harmless from liability to third parties resulting from infringement
by the Service of any United States patent or any copyright or misappropriation of any trade
secret, provided Company is promptly notified of any and all threats, claims and proceedings
related thereto and given reasonable assistance and the opportunity to assume sole control over
defense and settlement; Company will not be responsible for any settlement it does not approve in
writing. The foregoing obligations do not apply with respect to portions or components of the
Service (i) not supplied by Company, (ii) made in whole or in part in accordance with Customer
specifications, (iii) that are modified after delivery by company, (iv) combined with other
products, processes or materials where the alleged infringement relates to such combination, (v)
where Customer continues allegedly infringing activity after being notified thereof or after being
informed of modifications that would have avoided the alleged infringement, or (vi) where
Customer's use of the Service is not strictly in accordance with this Agreement. If, due to a claim
of infringement, the Services are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be or are believed by
company to be infringing, company may, at its option and expense (a) replace or modi$, the
Service to be non-infringing provided that such modification or replacement contains
substantially similar features and functionality, (b) obtain for Customer a license to continue
using the Service, or (c) if neither of the foregoing is commercially practicable, terminate this
Agreement and Customer's rights hereunder and provide Customer a refund of any prepaid,
unused fees for the Service.

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY
FOR ANY VALUATION SERVICES PROVIDED HERELINDER, COMPANY IS A PASSIVE
CONDUIT THAT CONNECTS CUSTOMER WITH SUBCONTRACTERS WHO PERFORM
THE SERVICES AND PROVIDE THE WORK PRODUCT HEREIN. ACCORDINGLY,
UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES WILL COMPANY HAVE ANY LIABILITY FOR THE
ACTIONS AND/OR INACTIONS OF THIRD PARTIES THAT PROVIDE THE VALUATIONS
AND THE SOLE LIABILITY SHALL REST WITH SUCH THIRD PARTIES.IN NO EVENT
SHALL COMPANY, BE LIABLE ON ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY, WHETHER IN AN
EQUITABLE, LEGAL, OR COMMON LAW ACTION ARISING HEREUNDER FOR
CONTRACT, STRICT LIABILITY, TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE), OR OTHERWISE,

7

8.

8.1

Actuarial Services and Technology
Licensing Agreement Govlnvest

Page 6

lnsights to yourfin6ncial futur€



Inyo County

9.

FOR DAMAGES WHICH, IN THE AGGREGATE, EXCEED THE AMOUNT OF CHARGES
PAID BY CUSTOMER FOR THE SERVICES AND/OR DELIVERABLES WHICH GAVE RISE
TO SUCH DAMAGES AND NOTWITHSTANDING THE FAILURE OF ESSENTIAL
PURPOSE OF ANY REMEDY. IN ADDITION, IN NO EVENT SHALL COMPANY BE
LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, EXEMPLARY, PUNITIVE, OR
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OF ANY KIND AND HOWEVER CAUSED, INCLUDING
BUT NOT LIMITED TO BUSINESS INTERRUPTION OR LOSS OF PROFITS, BUSINESS
OPPORTUNITIES, OR GOOD WILL EVEN IF NOTIFIED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH
DAMAGE, AND NOTWITHSTANDING THE FAILURE OF ESSENTIAL PURPOSE OF ANY
REMEDY.

MISCELLANEOUS
If any provision of this Agreement is found to be unenforceable or invalid, that provision will be
limited or eliminated to the minimum extent necessary so that this Agreement will otherwise
remain in full force and effect and enforceable. This Agreement is not assignable, transferable or
sublicensable by Customer except with Company's prior written consent. Company may not
transfer or assign any of its rights and obligations under this Agreement without Customer's prior
written consent. This Agreement is the complete and exclusive statement of the mutual
understanding ofthe parties and supersedes and cancels all previous written and oral agreements,
communications and other understandings relating to the subject matter of this Agreement, and all
waivers and modifications in this Agreement must be in a writing signed by both parties, except
as otherwise provided herein. No agency, partnership, joint venture, or employment is created as

a result of this Agreement and Customer does not have any authority of any kind to bind
Company in any respect whatsoever. In any action or proceeding to enforce rights under this
Agreement, the prevailingparty will be entitled to recover costs and attomeys' fees. All notices
under this Agreement will be in writing and will be deemed to have been duly given when
received, if personally delivered; when receipt is electronically confirmed, if transmitted by
facsimile or e-mail; the day after it is sent, if sent for next day delivery by recognized overnight
delivery service; and upon receipt, ifsent by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested.
This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California without regard to its
conflict of laws provisions. The parties shall work together in good faith to issue at least one
mutually agreed upon press release within 90 days of the Effective Date, and Customer otherwise
agrees to reasonably cooperate with Company to serve as a reference account upon request.

Actuarial Services and Technology
Licensing Agreement Govlnvest

PageT

lnsights to yourflnancial luture



Inyo County

EXHIBIT A
Service Level Terms

The Services shall be available 99o/o of the time, measured monthly, excluding holidays and weekends
and scheduled maintenance. If Customer requests maintenance during these hours, any uptime or
downtime calculation will exclude periods affected by such maintenance. Further, any downtime resulting
from outages of third party connections or utilities or other reasons beyond Company's control will also
be excluded from any such calculation. Customer's sole and exclusive remedy, and Company's entire
liability, in connection with Service availability shall be that for each period of downtime lasting longer
than 12 hours, Company will credit Customer 1olo of Service Fees for each period of 30 or more
consecutive minutes of downtime; provided that no more than one such credit will accrue per day.
Downtime shall begin to accrue as soon as Customer (with notice to Company) recognizes that downtime
is taking place, and continues until the availability ofthe Services is restored. In order to receive
downtime credit, Customer must notifu Company in writing within 12 hours from the time of downtime,
and failure to provide such notice will forfeit the right to receive downtime credit. Such credits may not
be redeemed for cash and shall not be cumulative beyond a total of credits for one ( I ) week of Service
Fees in any one (l) calendar month in any event. Company will only apply a credit to the month in which
the incident occurred. Company's blocking of data communications or other Service in accordance with
its policies shall not be deemed to be a failure of Company to provide adequate service levels under this
Agreement.

Actuarial Services and Technology
Licensing Agreement Govlnvest

Page 8

lnsights to yourlinancial future



Inyo County

EXHIBIT B
Support Terms

Company will provide Technical Support to Customer via both telephone and electronic mail on
weekdays during the hours of 9:00 a.m. through 5:00 p.m. Pacific Standard Time, with the exclusion of
Federal Holidays ("Support Hours").

Customer may initiate a help desk ticket during Support Hours by calling 310-371-7106 or any time by
emailing support@govinvest.com.

Company will use commercially reasonable efforts to respond to all help desk tickets within one (1)
business day.

Actuarial Services and Technology
Licensing Agreement Govlnvest

Page 9
I lnsights to yourlinancial {ut!re



Inyo County

EXHIBIT C
Disclaimer of Software Analysis

Company will use census data, plan provisions, and actuarial assumptions provided by Customer and/or
Customer's actuary to develop the software for Customer. Company will rely on this information without
audit. Company does not set actuarial assumptions.

Company will provide software with financially sound projections and analysis, but does not guarantee

compliance with actuarial standards for funding and accounting purposes under Government Accounting
Standards Board or Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

The software will not be prepared in accordance with the actuarial standards of practice or actuarial
compliance guidelines as promulgated by the American Academy of Actuaries nor will outputs constitute
a Statement of Actuarial Opinion. Software results are not suitable for financial reporting purposes.

While the software is tested against actuarial valuation results, the software results will not match, nor are
intended to match actuarial valuation results.

Actuarial Services and Technology
Licensing Agreement Govlnvest

Page 10
$ lnsights to yourfin6ncial future



Inyo County

SaaS Licensing Agreement

Attention: Clint Quilter, CAO

Prepared by: Ted Price, CEO

April9,2019

Labor Negotiation Services and Technology
Licensing Agreement

Page I

AdostroGov



Inyo County

Summary of Services and Implementation

Customer:
Clint Quilter, CAO
PO DrawerN
Independence, CA93526

Services:
Service Capacity: Use of the Labor Costing Module (the "service(s)").

Initial Term: One year from the Effective Date.

Resular Annual Pricing: Total Contract Value Invoiced Annuallv.

Labor Costing Module: $17,00 total contract value. $9,000 annual licensing fee. Option to extend for four
additional years starting at$9,270 annual license fee (+; the greater of the US CPI or 3%o each
consecutive year. $ 5 5,7 8 2 total contract value.

Discounted Annual Pricing: Total Contract Value Invoiced Up-front.

Labor Costing Module: $17,000 total contract value. $9,000 annual licensing fee. Option to pay upfront
for four additional years for $32,000. $8,000 annual licensing fee. $49,000 total contract value

Implementation Services:
Company will use commercially reasonable efforts to provide Customer the services described in
accordance with the terms herein, and Customer shall pay Company the Implementation Fee in
accordance with the terms herein.

Implementation Fee (One-Time): $8,000

Total Contract Value:
Regular Total Contract Value:
Discounted Total Contract Value Up-front:

$55.782

Savings $6,782

Additional 7% discount off total contract value if either Govlnvest software (Pension or OPEB)
purchased with Labor Costing Module.

Labor Negotiation Services and Technology
Licensing Agreement

Page2

AdostroGov'



Inyo County

SERVICE AGREEMENT

This SaaS Services Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into on this 9th day of April, 2019 (the "Effective
Date") between AdastraGov, Inc. ("Company"), and the Customer listed above ("Customer"). This
Agreement includes and incorporates the above Summary of Services and Implementation, as well as the
attached Terms and Conditions and contains, among other things, warranty disclaimers, liability
limitations and use limitations. There shall be no force or effect to any different or additional terms of any
purchase order, confirmation or similar form, even if signed by the parties before or after the date hereof.

AdastraGov Inc. Inyo County

By: By:
Name:fsfl N Price lll Name:
Title; (]tr() Tirle:

Date:Date: 4-2-19

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1.2

)
2.1

2.2

2.3

SAAS SERVICES AND SUPPORT
Subject to the terms of this Agreement, Company will use commercially reasonable efforts to
provide Customer the Services in accordance with the Service Level Terms attached hereto as
Exhibit A. As part of the registration process, Customer will identi$, an administrative user name
and password for Customer's account. Company reserves the right to refuse registration or cancel
passwords it deems inappropriate.
Subject to the terms hereof, Company will provide Customer with reasonable technical support
services in accordance with the terms set forth in Exhibit B.

RESTRICTIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES
Customer will not, directly or indirectly; reverse engineer, decompile, disassemble or otherwise
attempt to discover the source code, object code or underlying structure, ideas, know-how or
algorithms relevant to the Services or any software, documentation or data related to or used to
provide the Services ("Software"); modiff, translate, or create derivative works based on the
Services or any Software (except to the extent expressly permitted in writing by Company or
authorized within the Services); use the Services or any Software for timesharing or service
bureau purposes or otherwise for the benefit of a third party; or remove any proprietary notices or
labels.
Further, Customer shall not export or re-export, either directly or indirectly, the Software or any
copies thereof in such manner as to violate the export laws and regulations of the United States or
any other applicable jurisdiction in effect from time to time (including, without limitation, when
such export or re-export requires an export license or other governmental approval without first
obtaining such license or approval). Without limiting the foregoing, Customer shall not permit
any third parties to access or use the Services in violation of any United States export embargo,
prohibition, or restriction.
Customer hereby agrees to indemni$r and hold harmless Company against any damages, losses,
liabilities, settlements and expenses (including without limitation costs and attorney's fees) in
connection with any claim or action that arises from Customer's failure to comply with the terms
of this Agreement or otherwise from Customer's use of Services. Although Company has no
obligation to monitor Customer's use of the Services, Company may do so. Company reserves the
right, in its sole discretion, to prohibit or suspend Customer's use of the Services at any time

Labor Negotiation Services and Technology
Licensing Agreement

Page 3

AdostroGov



Inyo County

J

J

2.4

3.2

J.J

Company believes such use to be in violation of this Agreement or otherwise harmful to the
Service.
Customer shall be responsible for obtaining and maintaining any equipment and ancillary services
needed to connect to, access or otherwise use the Services, including, without limitation,
modems, hardware, servers, software, operating systems, networking, web servers and the like
(collectively, "Equipment"). Customer shall also be responsible for maintaining the security of
the Equipment, Customer account, passwords (including but not limited to administrative and
user passwords) and files, and for all uses of Customer account or the Equipment with or without
Customer's knowledge or consent.

CONFIDENTIALITY; PROPRIETARY zuGHTS
One party (the "Receiving Party") understands that the other party (the "Disclosing Party") has
disclosed or may disclose business, technical or financial information relating to the Disclosing
Patty's business (hereinafter referued to as "Proprietary Information" of the Disclosing Parry).
Proprietary Information of Company includes non-public information regarding features,
functionality and performance of the Service. Proprietary Information of Customer includes non-
public data ("Customer Data") provided by Customer to Company to enable the provision of the
Services. The Receiving Party agrees: (i) to take reasonable precautions to protect such
Proprietary Information, and (ii) not to use (except in performance of the Services or as otherwise
permitted herein) or divulge to any third party any such Proprietary Information. The Disclosing
Parfy agrees that the foregoing shall not apply with respect to any information after five (5) years
following the disclosure thereof or any information that the Receiving Party can document (a) is
or becomes generally available to the public, without any action by, or involvement of; the
Receiving Party or (b) was in its possession or known by it prior to receipt from the Disclosing
Party, or (c) was rightfully disclosed to it without restriction by a third party, or (d) was
independently developed without use of any Proprietary Information of the Disclosing Party or
(e) is required to be disclosed by law. The Receiving Parfy acknowledges that in the event of a
breach of Section 3.1 by the Receiving Party, substantial injury could result to the Disclosing
Party and money damages will not be a sufficient remedy for such breach. Therefore, in the event
that the Receiving Party engages in, or threatens to engage in, any act which violates Section 3. 1,
the Disclosing Party will be entitled, in addition to all other remedies which may be available to it
under law, to seek injunctive relief (including, without limitation, temporary restraining orders, or
preliminary or permanent injunctions) and specific enforcement of the terms of Section 3.1. The
Disclosing Party will not be required to post a bond or other security in connection with the
granting ofany such relief.
Company shall own and retain all rights, title and interest in and to: (i) the Services and Software,
together with all improvements, enhancements, modifications, changes, translations, compilation,
and derivative works thereto, (ii) any software, applications, inventions or other technology
developed in connection with Implementation Services or support, (iii) any analytics generated
through Customer's use of the Services, including but not limited to, any data, materials,
information, and reports ("Analytics") and (iv) all intellectual properfy rights related to any of the
foregoing. Company hereby grants Customer a non-exclusive, non-transferable and non-
sublicensable license to access and use the Analytics.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, Company shall have the right to collect and analyze
data and other information relating to the provision, use and performance of various aspects of the
Services and related systems and technologies (including, without limitation, information
concerning Customer Data and data derived therefrom), and Company will be free (during and
after the term hereof) to: (i) use such information and datato improve and enhance the Services
and for other development, diagnostic and corrective purposes in connection with the Services
and other Company offerings, (ii) disclose such data solely in aggregate or other de-identified

Labor Negotiation Services and Technology
Licensing Agreement

Page 4

AdostroGov



Inyo County

4
4.1

4.2

5.2

6.

5

5

form in connection with its business, and (iii) disclose, share, license, or resell Analytics to third
parties for consideration. No rights or licenses are granted except as expressly set forth herein.

PAYMENT OF FEES
Customer will pay Company the then applicable fees described in the Summary of Services and
Implementation in accordance with the terms therein (the "Fees"). If Customer's use of the
Services exceeds the Service Capacity set forth in the Summary of Services and Implementation
or otherwise requires the payment of additional fees (per the terms of this Agreement), Customer
shall be billed for such usage and Customer agrees to pay the additional fees in the manner
provided herein. Company reserves the right to change the Fees or applicable charges and to
institute new charges and Fees at the end of the Initial Term or then cunent Renewal Term, upon
thirty (30) days prior notice to Customer (which may be sent by email). If Customer believes that
Company has billed Customer incorrectly, Customer must contact Company no later than 60 days
after the closing date on the first billing statement in which the eror or problem appeared, in
order to receive an adjustment or credit. Inquiries should be directed to Company's customer
support department.
Company may choose to bill through an invoice, in which case, full payment for invoices issued
in any given month must be received by Company thirfy (30) days after the mailing date of the
invoice. Unpaid amounts are subject to a finance charge of 5o/o per month on any outstanding
balance, or the maximum permitted by law, whichever is lower, plus all expenses of collection
and may result in immediate termination of Service. Customer shall be responsible for all taxes
associated with Services other than U.S. taxes based on Company's net income.

TERM AND TERMINATION
Subject to earlier termination as provided below, the Initial Term of this Agreement shall be for a
period specified in the Summary of Services and Implementation (the "Initial Term"). Upon the
expiration of the Initial Term, this agreement shall automatically renew for additional periods of
the same duration as the Initial Term (each a "Renewal Term"). The Initial Term and the Renewal
Term are collectively referred to herein as the "Term."
In addition to any other remedies it may have, either pafi may terminate this Agreement upon
thirly (30) days written notice (or without notice in the case of nonpayment), if the other party
materially breaches any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement. Customer will pay in full
for the Services up to and including the last day on which the Services are provided. All sections
of this Agreement which by their nature should survive termination will survive termination,
including, without limitation, accrued rights to payment, confidentiality obligations, warranty
disclaimers, and limitations of liability.

WARRANTY AND DISCLAIMER
Company shall use reasonable efforts consistent with prevailing industry standards to maintain
the Services in a manner which minimizes errors and intenuptions in the Services and shall
perform the Implementation Services in a professional and workmanlike manner. Services may
be temporarily unavailable for scheduled maintenance or for unscheduled emergency
maintenance, either by Company or by third-party providers, or because of other causes beyond
Company's reasonable control, but Company shall use reasonable efforts to provide advance
notice in writing or by e-mail of any scheduled service disruption. However, Company does not
warrant that the Services will be uninterrupted or effor free; nor does it make any warranty as to
the results that may be obtained from use of the Services. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET
FORTH IN THIS SECTION, THE SERVICES, THE ANALYTICS, AND IMPLEMENTATION
SERVICES ARE PROVIDED "AS IS'' AND COMPANY DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES,
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, IMPLIED WARRANTIES

Labor Negotiation Services and Technology
Licensing Agreement

Page 5

AdostroGov



Inyo County

7

OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND NON.
INFRINGEMENT.

INDEMNITY
Company shall hold Customer harmless from liability to third parties resulting from infringement
by the Service of any United States patent or any copyright or misappropriation of any trade
secret, provided Company is promptly notified of any and all threats, claims and proceedings
related thereto and given reasonable assistance and the opportunity to assume sole control over
defense and settlement; Company will not be responsible for any settlement it does not approve in
writing. The foregoing obligations do not apply with respect to portions or components of the
Service (i) not supplied by Company, (ii) made in whole or in part in accordance with Customer
specifications, (iii) that are modified after delivery by Company, (iv) combined with other
products, processes or materials where the alleged infringement relates to such combination, (v)
where Customer continues allegedly infringing activity after being notified thereof or after being
informed of modifications that would have avoided the alleged infringement, or (vi) where
Customer's use of the Service is not strictly in accordance with this Agreement. If, due to a claim
of infringement, the Services are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be or are believed by
Company to be infringing, Company may, at its option and expense (a) replace or modifu the
Service to be non-infringing provided that such modification or replacement contains
substantially similar features and functionality, (b) obtain for Customer a license to continue
using the Service, or (c) if neither of the foregoing is commercially practicable, terminate this
Agreement and Customer's rights hereunder and provide Customer a refund of any prepaid,
unused fees for the Service.

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY
NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY, EXCEPT FOR BODILY INruRY
OF A PERSON, COMPANY AND ITS SUPPLIERS (INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO
ALL EQUIPMENT AND TECHNOLOGY SUPPLIERS), OFFICERS, AFFILIATES,
REPRESENTATIVES, CONTRACTORS AND EMPLOYEES SHALL NOT BE
RESPONSIBLE OR LIABLE WITH RESPECT TO ANY SUBJECT MATTER OF THIS
AGREEMENT ORTERMS AND CONDITIONS RELATED THERETO LINDERANY
CONTRACT, NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY OR OTHER THEORY: (A) FOR ERROR
OR INTERRUPTION OF USE OR FOR LOSS OR INACCURACY OR CORRUPTION OF
DATA OR COST OF PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS, SERVICES OR
TECHNOLOGY ORLOSS OF BUSINESS;(B) FORANY TNDIRECT, EXEMPLARY,
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES; (C) FOR ANY MATTER
BEYOND COMPANY'S REASONABLE CONTROL; OR (D) FORANYAMOLINTS THAT,
TOGETHER WITH AMOUNTS ASSOCIATED WITH ALL OTHER CLAIMS, EXCEED THE
FEES PAID BY CUSTOMERTO COMPANY FORTHE SERVICES UNDERTHIS
AGREEMENT IN THE 12 MONTHS PRIOR TO THE ACT THAT GAVE RISE TO THE
LIABILITY, IN EACH CASE, WHETHER OR NOT COMPANY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF
THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.

MISCELLANEOUS
If any provision of this Agreement is found to be unenforceable or invalid, that provision will be
limited or eliminated to the minimum extent necessary so that this Agreement will otherwise
remain in full force and effect and enforceable. This Agreement is not assignable, transferable or
sublicensable by Customer except with Company's prior written consent. Company may not
transfer or assign any of its rights and obligations under this Agreement without Customer's prior
written consent. This Agreement is the complete and exclusive statement of the mutual

8

9

Labor Negotiation Services and Technology
Licensing Agreement

Page 6

AdostroGov



Inyo County

understanding ofthe parties and supersedes and cancels all previous written and oral agreements,
communications and other understandings relating to the subject matter of this Agreement, and all
waivers and modifications in this Agreement must be in a writing signed by both parties, except
as otherwise provided herein. No agency, partnership, joint venture, or employment is created as
a result of this Agreement and Customer does not have any authority of any kind to bind
Company in any respect whatsoever. In any action or proceeding to enforce rights under this
Agreement, the prevailingparfy will be entitled to recover costs and attomeys' fees. All notices
under this Agreement will be in writing and will be deemed to have been duly given when
received, if personally delivered; when receipt is electronically confirmed, if transmified by
facsimile or e-mail; the day after it is sent, if sent for next day delivery by recognized overnight
delivery service; and upon receipt, ifsent by certified or registered mail, retum receipt requested.
This Agreement shall be govemed by the laws of the State of Califomia without regard to its
conflict of laws provisions. The parties shall work together in good faith to issue at least one
mutually agreed upon press release within 90 days of the Effective Date, and Customer otherwise
agrees to reasonably cooperate with Company to serve as a reference account upon request.

Labor Negotiation Services and Technology
Licensing Agreement

Page 7

AdostroGov i i



Inyo County

EXHIBIT A
Service Level Terms

The Services shall be available 99Yo of the time, measured monthly, excluding holidays and weekends
and scheduled maintenance. If Customer requests maintenance during these hours, any uptime or
downtime calculation will exclude periods affected by such maintenance. Further, any downtime resulting
from outages of third party connections or utilities or other reasons beyond Company's control will also
be excluded from any such calculation. Customer's sole and exclusive remedy, and Company's entire
liability, in connection with Service availability shall be that for each period of downtime lasting longer
than 12 hours, Company will credit Customer l% of Service Fees for each period of 30 or more
consecutive minutes of downtime; provided that no more than one such credit will accrue per day.
Downtime shall begin to accrue as soon as Customer (with notice to Company) recognizes that downtime
is taking place, and continues until the availability ofthe Services is restored. In order to receive
downtime credit, Customer must notify Company in writing within 12 hours from the time of downtime,
and failure to provide such notice will forfeit the right to receive downtime credit. Such credits may not
be redeemed for cash and shall not be cumulative beyond a total of credits for one (1) week of Service
Fees in any one (l) calendar month in any event. Company will only apply a credit to the month in which
the incident occurred. Company's blocking of data communications or other Service in accordance with
its policies shall not be deemed to be a failure of Company to provide adequate service levels under this
Agreement.

Labor Negotiation Services and Technology
Licensing Agreement

Page 8

AdostroGov. ,



Inyo County

EXHIBIT B
Support Terms

Company will provide Technical Support to Customer via both telephone and electronic mail on
weekdays during the hours of 9:00 a.m. through 5:00 p.m. Pacific Standard Time, with the exclusion of
Federal Holidays ("Support Hours").

Customer may initiate a help desk ticket during Support Hours by calling (650)269-6333 or any time by
emailing support@adastragov.com.

Company will use commercially reasonable efforts to respond to all help desk tickets within one (l)
business day.

Labor Negotiation Services and Technology
Licensing Agreement

Page 9

AdostroGov ,



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COLINTY OF INYO

X Consent n Departmental flCorrespondence Action

n Scneduled Time for ! Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

tb

n Puotic Hearing

I lnformational

FROM: Recycling and Waste Management

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: April ft,ZOtl

SUBJECT: Award the bid and approve the contract between County of Inyo and Chuck Stewart for Olancha

Transfer Station Maintenance.

D E PARTMENTAL REC O MMENDA TION: Request that your Board; 1) award the bid, and approve

the Contract betwoen the County of Inyo and Chuck Stewart of Olancha, Califomia for the period of July 1,

2019 through June 30,2022, in an amount not to exceed $16,766 subject to Board adoption of future County

budgets, and, 2) authorize the Chairperson to sign the contract contingent upon obtaining the appropriate signatures,

SUMMARY DISCUSSION: Recycling and Waste Management (RWM) operates four transfer stations and

utilizes individuals to provide maintenance services. Since this is considered a small volume transfer station, a

permanent gate attendant is not practical (at this time). RWM has determined that contracting for this service

is the most cost effective method available. This contract is for maintenance of the Olancha Transfer Station

which includes removal of windblown litter, weed removal and trash clean-up.

The solicitation for this service was posted in Olancha. Mr. Stewart, who currently performs these duties, was

the only individual expressing an interest in doing the work. Department staff is happy with Mr' Stewart's

performance.

ALTERNATIWS: County staff could be utilized to provide maintenance services, however, utilizing a

local contractor is more cost effective.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLWMENT: County Counsel, Risk Management, Auditor,

FIN,INCING: These services will be paid out of the Solid Waste Budget 045700, Object Code 5265 Special

and Professional Services,

D E P ARTM E NT H EAD S/GNA ]-URE;

COUNTY COUNSEL: AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSIO

reviewed and approved by county counsel prior to submission to the board
D RELATED ITEMS (Musl be

*/olqApproved

(Musf be reviewed and approved by the auditor-controller prior to

I
LATED

\{)

AUDITOR/CONTROLLER:

TEEilNEfAN-/+La,+Ed
submission to the b\1[d clerk.)

TTEMS lMust be reviewed and appioved by the director of personnel services prior to

Aooroved: Date

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR:

APPROVALS

(Not to be signed until all approvals are



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND CHUCKSTEWART
FOR THE PROVISION OF CLEANUP OF LITTER AT OLANCHA WASTE SITE SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") may have the need for

the OLANCHA WASTE CLEANUP services of CHUCK STEWART

of OLANCHA, CA (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), and in consideration of

the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as

follows:
TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPEOFWORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in

Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County to the
Contractor to perform under this Agreement will be made by CAP AUBREY
whose title is: Waste Manage ment Superintendent Requests to the Contractor for work or services to
be performed under this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services. The County
makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be
requested of the Contractor by the County under this Agreement. County by this Agreement incurs no
obligation or requirement to request from Contractor the performance of any services or work at all, even if
County should have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be

performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,

state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and

resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement.

2. TERM.

The term of this Ag reement shall be lror JulY 1,2019 +^ June 30,2022

unless sooner terminated as provided below

3 CONSIDERATION

A. Compensation. County shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees

(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by

Contractor at the County's request.

B. Travel and per diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or per

diem which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.
C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreiement, Contractor

shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages,
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Contractor shall not
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 1 07t27t2018



D. Limit upon amount payable under Aqreement. The total sum of all payments made by the
County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed
$ 1 6, 776. O0XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX Dol lars (hereinafter referred to as
"contract limit"). County expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by
Contractor for services or work performed which is in excess of the contract limit.

E. Billinq and payment. Contractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized
statement of all services and work described in Attachment A, which were done at the County's request. This
statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth (sth) day of the month. The statement to be
submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the preceding month through and including the last
day of the preceding month. This statement will identify the date on which the services and work were
performed and describe the nature of the services and work which were performed on each day. Upon timely
receipt of the statement by the fifth (sth) day of the month, County shall make payment to Contractor on the
last day of the month.

F. Federaland State taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal
or state income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California State Income taxes from payments made under this
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars
($1,4ee.oo)

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or
payments from sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other
assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor. County has no responsibility or liability for
payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments
to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal Revenue Service and the California
State Franchise Tax Board. To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the County
an lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Contracto/s obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and. work identified in
Attachment A which are requested by the County. lt is understood by Contractor that the performance of
these services and work will require a varied schedule. Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will

coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will

be performed within the time frame set forth by County.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as othenrise may be required.
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits
in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses,
professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be
procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County. Contractor will provide County,
upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits which
are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute between Contractor
and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in
Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement.

B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any
federal department or agency. Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page2 0712712018



receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://uruv\,v.sam.qov.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ET CETERA.

Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and

telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by

Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by

Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor.

7 COUNTY PROPERTY.

A. Personal Propertv of Countv. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or
safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.
Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in
Contractor's possession. Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items,
partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's negligence.

B. Products of Contractor's Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications, plans,
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result,
product, or manifestation of, Contractois services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination of
this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the Agreement,
Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

8. WORKERS'COMPENSATION

Contractor shall provide Statutory California Worke/s Compensation coverage and Employer's
Liability coverage for not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for all employees engaged in services or
operations under this Agreement. The County of lnyo, its agents, officers and employees shall be named as
additional insured or a waiver of subrogation shall be provided.

9. INSURANCE.

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope
and amount specified in Attachment C and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

10. STATUSOFCONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this

Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
County. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to

exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be

considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement shall

not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a
joint venture. As an independent contractor:

A, Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 3 07t27t2018



B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in

this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of
County.

11. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION

Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees
and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including without
limitation costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with Contractor's
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in the
agreement, except such loss or damages which was caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct
of the County.

,12. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A, Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of
this Agreement. Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B. lnspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or othenivise evaluate the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

13. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not

unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national

origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Contractor and its agents,

officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the

California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.1. BB-

352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

14. CANCELLATION

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Contractor thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel. Contractor may cancel this Agreement
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to

cancelto County.

15. ASSIGNMENT

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,

experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement, Contractor shall not

assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 4 07t27t2018



Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior

written consent of County.

16. DEFAULT.

lf the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by

County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written
notice to Contractor. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to
Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

17. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty{hree (23) below.

18. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County's written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45,

Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,

and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant

thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

19. CONFLTCTS.

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

20. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained

from the Gounty in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,
gain, or enhancement. Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who,
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 5 07t27t2018



21. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be

declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application

thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

22. FUNDING LIMITATION.

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.

ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the

option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying

Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification of
this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty{hree
(23) (Amendment).

23. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual

consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.

24. NOTICE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including

change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first
class mail to, the respective parties as follows:

County of lnyo
RECYCLI NG WASTE MANAGEMENT Department

Street
City and State

163 MAY ST

Contractor:
CHUCK STEWART Name

Street
City and State

P O BOX 240
OLANCHA, CA 93549

25. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements othenryise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,

discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

BISHOP cA 93514

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 6

lill ilil

07t27t2018



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND CHUCKSTEWART

FOR THE PROVISION OF CLEANUP OF LITTER AT OLANCHA WASTE SITE SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS

THIS DAY OI- r-

COUNTY OF INYO

Signature

Print or Type Name

Dated

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

County Cou

APP TO NTING

itor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE

Signature

C \r,* L< S+

CONTRACTOR

By: C
R r.^r\rv

Print or Type Name

Dated: 31,"/tqLr

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 7

County Risk Manag

07t27t2018



ATTACHMENT A

AND

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

CHUCK STEWART

FORTHE pROVtStON OF CLEANUP OF LITTER AT OLANCHA WASTE S|TE SERVICES

FROM

TERM:

JULY 1,2019 ro. JUNE 30,2022

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 8

SCOPE OF WORK:

Contractor agrees to provide the tools necessary to clean up waste and litter debris inside and outside of the
transfer station. Areas of maintenance will include, but not necessarily be limited to the entry road and the area
surrounding the transfer station in all directions at a minimum of 100 yards from the Olancha Transfer Station. All
windblown paper and debris including all solid waste located in and around the area discussed above will be
picked up and placed into the transfer station waste containers by the Contractor.

Maintenance will be provided as-needed but no less often than twice a week. Waste and litterwill be picked up and
placed in the waste bins for removal by the waste hauler.

lf the Contractor suspects that hazardous material has been disposed of at the site, they will contact Recycling and
Waste Management for instructions.

Contractor is entitled to claim all recycling and salvage materials that are picked up during the contractor's
maintenance activities. No scavenging from dumpsters will be allowed due to inherent safety concerns.

Every month a calendar showing which days were worked, signed by contractor, shall be sqnt to:

Recycling and Waste Management
163 May St
Bishop, CA 93514

07t2712018



ATTAGHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND CHUCKSTEWART

FORTHE pROVtStON OF CLEANUP OF LITTER AT OLANCHA WASTE SITE

TERM

FROMr
JULY 1,2019

TO
JUNE 22?#frZoZZ

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

$466.00 PER MONTH

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 9

SERVICES

07t27t2018



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO
X Consent E Departmental flCorrespondence Action

E Scnecuted Time for fl Ctosed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
NUMBER

H
E Puotic Hearing

E lnformational

FROM: COUNTY COUNSEL

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: April9, 2019

SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF SHERIFF DEPARTMENT'S REVISED CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE
BIENNIAL REPORT AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE

Request Board
l. Receive and approve the revised 2018 Conflict of lnterest Code Biennial Report from the lnyo
County Sheriff's Department (Exhibit A); and
2. Receive and approve their Conflict of lnterest Code (Exhibit B).

SUMMARY D/SCUSS/Oil; Government Code S 37306.5 requires that the lnyo County Board of
Supervisors, no later than July 1't of each even numbered year, direct every local governmental agency within
the county to review its Conflict of lnterest Code and report to the Board no later than October 1, of each even
numbered year. The report is a ceilification that the conflict of interest code has been reviewed and changes
need be made to the code or that certain changes need to be made as indicated. lnyo County Ordinance
Number 931 (County Code section 2.83.050) imposes similar requirements upon each district of the County to
conduct a biennial review of its conflict of interest code.

The Sheriff's Department originally submitted its conflict of interest code for your approval on December 4,
2018.1t is now amending its conflict of interest code by including new positions, making changes to the title of
positions and deleting positions.

By this Agenda Request, the Board is asked to receive and approve the Sheriff Departments Conflict of
lnterest Code and Biennial Report (Exhibit A. through B). We have reviewed the Biennial Reports and Conflict
of lnterest Codes submitted to your Board, and find them to be in accordance with legal requirements.

ALTERNATIVES: lf the Board feels that a biennial report is not accurate, it may direct that the report be
returned to the originating Department for revision. Likewise, if the Board feels that a designated employee or
the disclosure category set forth in the conflict of interest code is not appropriate or in accordance with the
requirements of the law, your Board may elect to return the conflict of interest code to the Department for
further revision. The Board could also decline to approve and receive the biennial report or the conflict of
interest codes. Such action, however, would be contrary to the Board's duties as the County's conflict of
interest code approving body.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: nta

FINANCING: The recommended action results in no financial impact to the County of lnyo.

DEPARTMENT HEAD TURE:

COUNTY COUNSEL: AGREEMENTS, CONTMCTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be
rcviewed and approved by county oounsel piorto submr.sslon fo the boad clerk.)

2 /r+Approved:

APPROVALS

(Not to be signed until all approvals are > lzo/r



2018 DEPARTMENTAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE BIENNIAL REPORT

lnyo Gounty Ordinance No. 931 requires each department submit to the Board of Supervisors a biennial
report identifying changes in its Conflict of lnterest Code, or a statement that their code is not in need of
amendment. Such reports shall be submitted to the Office of County Counsel for aooroval no later than
Octobe( l,.,offachgven-numbered.v.ea[. Once reviewed, the Office of County Counsel will submit all
reports to the Board for their approval.

###

This department has reviewed its conflict of interest code and has determined thatr

(1) n Our department's code accurately designates all positions which
make or participate in the making of governmental decisions; that the
disclosure assigned those positions accurately requires the
disclosure of all investments. business positions, interests in real
property and sources of income which may foreseeably be affected
materially by the decisions made by those designated positions;
and further that the code includes all other provisions required by
Govemment Code Section 87302; or,

(2) Our department's code is in need of amendment. We have
determined that the following amendments are necessary (check
applicable items):

A lnclude new positions which must be designated.

Make changes to the reportable sources of income,
investments, business positions, or real property.

Make changes to the titles of positions assigned.

Delete positions which have been abolished or changed

Change or add the provisions required by Government Code
Section 873A2.

COntaCt PerSOn RTANNAH READE

Department OFFICE OF THE SHERIFF

Mailing AddreSS P.o. DRAWERS

Date of Review Departmental Conflict of lnterest Code 312012019

Signature of Head

lglg Govemment Gode Sectlon 87306 rcqullEB lhat whon a dopailmont has dgtormined that amendment3 aflr nec$sltated
by changed clrcumalanc€r, lhe amendmentc or revlllon! lhall be submltod to tho cod6 rovlewlng body vrithh 90 dryr.

dgiclcyBtennist.Deptsl S 01 312018

Exhibit .A

m
n

Pase / or/ -



CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE OF THE
OFFICE OF THE SHERIFF DEPARTMENT

COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

SECTION 1. Puroose.

Pursuant to California Government Code section 87300, et seq., thg oFFlcE oFrHE SHERIFF

Department hereby adopts the following Conflict of lnterest
Code. Nothing contained herein is intended to modify or abridge the provisions of the Political Reform Act of
1974 (Government Code section 81000). The provisions of this Conflict of lnterest Code are additional to
California Government Code section 87100 and other laws pertaining to conflicts of interest. Except as
otherwise indicated, the definitions of said Act and regulations adopted pursuant thereto are incorporated
herein and this Conflict of lnterest Code shall be interpreted in a manner consistent therewith.

SECTION 2. Desiqnated Positions.

The positions listed on Appendix'4" are designated positions. Employees holding these designated positions
are deemed to make, or participate in the making of, decisions which may have a material effect on a
financial interest.

SECTION 3. Disclosure Statements.

Each designated position is assigned to one or more of the disclosure categories set forth in Appendix "B".
Each employee in a designated position shall file a statement of financial interests disclosing that employee's
interest in investments, business positions, real property, and income, designated as reportable under the
disclosure category to which the employee's position is assigned by Appendix "A".

Notwithstanding the disclosure category to which a consultant position is
DifeCtOf Of the oFFlcE oF rHE SHER|FF

County of lnyo
Standard Conflict of lnterest Code

Page 1

assigned by Appendix '4", the
Department may determine in

writing that a particular consultant, although a "designated" position, is hired to perform a range of duties that
are limited in scope and, thus, is not required to fully comply with the disclosure requirements of the category
designated for consultants on Appendix '4". Such written determination shall include a description of the
consultant's duties and, based upon that description, a statement of the extent, if any, of the disclosure
requirements for such consultant. Such written determination is a public record and shall be filed and
retained for public inspection in the same manner and locations as is required for statements of financial
interest.

SECTION 4. Place. Time and Requirements of Filinq.

(A) Place of Filing

All employee's required to file a statement of financial interests shall file the original with the lnyo County
Clerk, and a copy with the DireCtOr Of oFFtcE oF rHE SHER|FF

(B) Time and Content of Filing

The first statement filed by an employee in a designated position upon the effective date of this Conflict of
lnterest Code, shall be filed within thirty (30) days after the effective date of this Conflict of lnterest Code, and
shall disclose investments, business positions, and interest in real property, held on the effective date of this
Conflict of lnterest Code, and income received twelve (12) months before the effective date of this Conflict of
lnterest Code. The first statement filed by an employee who assumes a designated position after the
effective date of this Conflict of lnterested Code, shall be filed within thirty (30) days after assuming such
position with the County and shall disclose investments, business positions, and interests in real property
held, and income received, during the twelve (12) months before the date of assuming such position. After
filing the first statement, each employee in a designated position shall file an annual statement on or before
April 1, disclosing reportable investments, business positions, interests in real property held, and income

Exhibit 3dgClC//COCFormDept. 1 I

Page 0f

01 312018



received, any time during the previous calendar year or since the date the employee assumed the designated
position during the calendar year. Every employee in a designated position who leaves a designated position
shall file, within thirty (30) days of leaving the position, a statement disclosing reportable investments,
business positions, interests in real property held, and income received, at any time during the period
between the closing date of the last statement required to be filed, and the date of leaving the position.

SECTION 5. Contents of Disclosure Statement.

Statements of financial interest shall be made on forms supplied by.the lnyo County Clerk and shall contain
all of the information as required by the current provisions of Government Code sections 87206 and 87207
for interest in investments, business positions, real property, and sources of income designated as reportable
under the disclosure category to which the employee's position is assigned on Appendix "A".

SECTION 6. Disqualification.

An employee in a designated position must disqualify himself or herself from making, or participating in the
making, or using their official position to influence the making of any decision which will have a material
financial effect, as distinguishable from its effect on the public generally, on any financial interest as defined in
Section 87103 of the Government Code. No employee in a designated position shall be required to disqualify
himself or herself with respect to any matter which could not be legally acted upon or decided without his or
her participation.

County of lnyo
Standard Conflict of lnterest Code

Page 2 18 vdgClC//COCFormDept. 1 8

nase & otl



APPENDIX "A''
CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE OF THE

OFFICE OF THE SHERIFF DEPARTMENT
COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

DESIGNATED POSITIONS

Desiqnated Positions

UNDERSHERIFF

LIEUTENANT

ADM IN ISTRATIVE ASS ISTANT

ADM I N ISTRATIVE CORPORAL

CIVIL OFFICER

FOOD SERVICE SUPERVISOR

PUBLIC AFFAIRS OFFICER

Disclosure Cateqory

1

2

3

3

3

3

3

County of lnyo
Standard Conflict of lnterest Code

Page 3 3dgClC//COCFormDept. 1 8

rage 3 ,tq



APPENDIX "B''

CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE OF THE
OFFICE OF THE SHERIFF DEPARTMENT

GOUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES

DrsclosuRE OATEGORY ONE (1):

Designated employees shall report all investments, business positions, interest in real property or source of income, if the business
entities, sources of income (including receipt of gifts, loans and travel payments) and real property is located in the county of lnyo or
within two (2) miles of county boundary and earned within two (2) years of the statement being filed.

Designated employees shall report all investments, business positions, interest in real property or source of income, (including
receipt of gifts, loans and travel payments) if the business entity or source provides leased facilities, products, equipment, vehicles,
machinery or services (including training or consulting services) of the type utilized by the Agency.

Designated employees shall report all investments, business positions, interest in real property or source of income, (including
receipt of gifts, loans and travel payments) if the business entity or source is subject to the Agency'i regulatory, permit or licensing-
authority.

Designated employees shall report their gross income and community property interest in their spouse's gross income aggregating

$250 or more received from any source located in or doing business in county of lnyo.
Designated employees shall report any loans, including real estate loans and margin accounts, received by either the employee or

the employee's spouse aggregating $250 or more from a single source which is located in, or doing business within county of lnyo

DrsclosuRE CATEGORY TWO (2):

DrscLosuRE CATEGORY rHREE (3)

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

a)

b)

c)

Designated employees shall report all investments, business positions, interest in real property or source of income, if the business
entities, sources of income (including receipt of gifts, loans and travel payments) and real property iocated in the county of lnyo or within
two (2) miles of county of lnyo earned within two (2) years prior to the statement being filecl.

Designated employees shall report all investments, business positions, interest in real property or source of income, (including
receipt of gifts, loans and travel payments) if the business entity or source provides leased facilities, products, equipment, vehicles,
machinery or services (including training or consulting services) of the type utilized by the Agency

Designated employees shall report all investments, business positions, interest in real property or source of income, (including
receipt of gifts, loans and travel payments) if the business entity or source is subject to the Agencyt regulatory, permit or licensing-
authority.

a) .. . 
Designated employees shall report all investments, business positions, interest in real property or source of income, if the business

entities, sources of income (including receipt of gifts, loans and travel payments) and real property iocatecl in the county of lnyo or within
two (2) miles of county of lnyo.

DISCLOSURE RPORTING:
All disclosures and reporting shall be in conformance with the requirements contained in the Statement of Economic lnterests Form 700

and instructions presented by the California Fair Political Practices Commission and in the California Government Code.

*Elected officials are subject to disclosure pursuant to FPPC Regulations located at Title 2, Division 6, Sections 181 09-1 8997 of the California
Code of Regulations

County of lnyo
Standard Conflict of lnterest Code

Page 4 01312018

Ir.irittit

0f

dgClC//COCFormDept.l 8

Page



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COTINTY OF INYO

I Consent XX Departmental lCorrespondence Action

E Scneouted Time for flCloseo Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

l5
f] Puutic Hearing

E lnformational

FRoM: COUNTY COUNSEL and WATER DEPARTMENT

FOR THE BOARD MEETING Or: April 9, 20{9

SUBJEGT: APPROVAL OF CONTRACT WTH GREGORY L. JAMES, WATER/ENVIRONMENTAL
ATTORNEY - WATER DEPARTMENT

DEPARTMENTAL RECOMMENDATION: Approve Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement between the
County of lnyo and Gregory L. James, Attomey at Law, for the provision of Water/ Environmental Attorney
services to the Water Department, to increase the FY 2018-19 contract limit by Twenty-Six Thousand Dollars
($26,000.00), from One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00) to One Hundred Twenty-Six Thousand
Dollars ($126,000.00) Contingent upon adoption of 3'd Qtr. Budget.

CAO RECOMMENDATION:

SUMMARY DISCUSSIOIV; This requested amendmeni concerns lnyo County's contract with Mr. James
which is primarily intended to represent the County on Water Department related matters. The contract also
allows us to obtain Mr. James' services for other matters.

The existing contract limit of $100,000.00 was designed primarily to cover water-related services, and
appeared to be an accurate estimate of the need for those services when made. However, in light of the
significant time required by Mr. James in litigation matters, there does not remain sufficient additionalfunds on
Mr. James' contract to represent the County on water issues for the remainder of the fiscal year

ALTERNATIVES: Decline to approve the Agreement with Gregory L. James as recommended, and direct
that the office of County Counsel provide the County and its departments with legal services relating to Water
and Environmental matters with existing attorney staff. This option would result in delays in completing
requests for legal services for all but the most critical matters and the loss of continuity in ongoing projects,
which the County Counsel does not believe is in the best interests of the County.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT :

FINANCING:

Funding for the increased expenditure of $26,000.00 will be discussed during the Third Quarter Budget
Hearings. Funds are to be encumbered in the Water Department's Budget 024102 Object Code 5265.

COUNTY COUNSEL: AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be
reviewed and approved by county counsel pior to submission to the board clerk.)

IApproved

AUDITOWCONTROLLER: ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the auditor+oniloller pior to

?

submlssrbn to the board cle*.)

AI'I'ItOVAI-S



Agenda Request
Page 2

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR: PERSONNEL
submission to

RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the director

J
of personnel to

board clerk.)

( ( 7
DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE:

(Not to be signed until all approvals are

D E P A RTM E NT H EAD S'GTVA TUREJ
(Not to be signed until all approvals are

/s/ARF/GJamesAmndl 1 21 1 1 3

-3{



AMENDMENT NUMBER I TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

GREGORY L. JAMES. ESO.
FOR THE PROVISION OF'LEGAL SERVICES

WATEWENVIRONMENTAL ATTORNEY SERVICES REGARDING WATER DEPARTMENT

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and Gregory L. James. Esq..
of BISHOP. CALIFORNIA (hereinafter referred to as "Confactor"), have entered into an Agreement for the
provision oflegal services dated June 5, 2018, for the term from July l. 2018 to June 30" 2019.

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted
from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written form, and executed with
the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.

WHEREAS, the parties desire to amend such Agreement to increase the contract limit and to adjust
Contractor's hourly rate for work directly related to litigation;

NOW, THER€FORE, County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as set forth below:

1. Section 3(E) of the Agreement (entitled "Limit Upon Amount Payable Under
Agreemenf') is amended to read as follows:

o'E. Limit Upon Amount Payable Under Agreement. The total sum of all payments made by
the County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement, including incidental
expenses, if any, shall not exceed $126,000 Dollars (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit"). County
expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services
or work performed, including incidental expenses, which is in excess of the contract limit."

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is April9. 2019.

All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement not amended remain in full force and effect.

\\\\\ NOTHING FOLLOWS I I I I I

County of Inyo Standard Contract - Gregory L. James, Esq.
(Independent Contractor - Schedule ofFees Including Incidental Expenses/Schedule ofPer Diem)

Page I

03072018



AMENDMENT NUMBER I TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF'INYO AND

GREGORY L, JAMES. ESO,
FORTHEPROVISION OF LEGAL SARVICES

WATER/ENVIRONMENTAL ATTONNDY SERVICES REGARDING WATER DEPARTMENT

IN WITNBSS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HBRETO HAVE sET THEIRHANDS AND SEALS THIS
DAYOF

COUNTY O['INYO

By: By: V
flalad Greporv L. James

Type or Pdrtt

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY

County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOTNTINC FORM:

Auditor

AS TO REQUIREMENTS

ofPersonnel

APPROVED AS TO RISK

Risk

r:CountyCounoel/Contf B0ts4\4isoAmendmcnts/GJames/funnd I 032620 I 9

County of Inyo Standard Contract - Gregory L. James, Esq.
(Independent Contractor - Schedule ofFees Including lncidontal Expenses/Schedule of Pcr Diem)

Page 2

3rcnat8'



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

IConsent E Departmental E Correspondence Aclion El public Hearing

E Scn"outeo Time for E Closeo Seesion E lnformational

For Clerk's Use Ogly:
AGENDA NAMBER

lb

FRoM: HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES - Health

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: April t6, 2019

SUBJECT: Requect approval to partlclpate in Medi-Gal Cornty Inmate prcgrim (MCIp)

DEPA Rf M E TfrA L R ECO M TI E TI DAf IOTT :
Request the Board approve Health and Human Services (HHS), to participate in MCIp and authorize the
HHS Director to sign the county particlpailon forms for Fy Zltglll,

cAo RECOMrilErrpAfIoI*

SUHIIIARY DISCU&$OTI:
The Medi-Cal Inmate Program provides Medi-Cal coverage for eligible inmates who receive inpatient
seruices at a medical facility located off the grounds of the coffectional facillty for an expected stay of
more than 24 hours. This program will relieve the county of the federal share of these seruices proviied
to inmates. fie medical provider will bill Medl-Cal as they usually do and recelve payment, Department
of Health Care Services will then quarterly submit invoices to the counUes where the-inmate is being held
to recover the non-federal share of the services.

Several divisions within Health and Human Servlces (Health, Behavioral Health & Employment and
Eligibility) have developed a comprehensive case management system to idenilfl wneh ah inmate,s
hospitalization meets these criteria so that the Medi-Cal-appltcation is completed timely; the dates of
seryices and eligibllity correspond; and seruices and costs are tracked. Your board previously authorized
HHS to participate in the program for FY 2A$-2020 and we are respectfully requesting authorization to
continue our participation.

ALTERfiAIIVES:
Denylng this request would leave the county responsible for all of the seruices provlded to the inmate.

OII] E R AG ENCY IT{VO LVETII E I! 7:
HHS divisions, Sheriff, and Probation

EIIliltlCIilGt
Health Services Realignment. These expenses are pald out of Health (045100) in professional
Services (5265). No County General Funds.



GOUNTYCOUTISEL:

\4/4/.e''-

AoREEitEilTS, COtrnACrE AlitD oRD|t'llNC!! Aa{D CLO3!D lEtgtONAilD
rsvbw nd appr',,wd by County &u,sal illcf b rubilsston to tho Baant Ctet*.)

o"r"' V hrt aApproved:

REIAIED llEil8 (['{t t,&s

F'

AUDITOR'CONTROLLER:

()

ACCOlrililO,FtItlAt{CE $D ncuTED
su brn lsslo n to lha E@fi t Obttl)

(Wst bc n|/.v!.d and appmwd by rha AUdttwteonlo$ar plw lo

Dstr: 7

DEPA RTII ETIT HEAD SIGNA
(t{ottr bc dgncd unul all apprcvrb aru ltc.lycd}



BH S
State of California-Health and Human Services Agency

Department of Health Care Services

JEITINIFER KEI{T
ARECTW

GAVIN T{EUU$TI
GOYERIJOf;

Medi-Cal Gounty tnmatc Program
County Participation Form: Shte Flscalyear 2019.20

County of lnyo chooses the option selected below in
dountnom.

response to voluntarily participate in the Medi-CalCounty lnmate Program (MCIP) from
July 1 ,2A19 through June 30, 2020 for State Fiscalyear 201g-20

n voluntrrily participating in Mctp- By setecting this option, we are
certifying our interest to voluntarily participate in the MCIP and intend to
submit a fully executed MClp agreement.

Not lnterested in participatlng in MCIP

I hgreby certl,fl, that the option selec'ted above is the option that said county will abide by,
to the best of my knowledge, is true and accurate based on the time of submission.

County Official: Date:
----Ticffi--

County OfficialTitle: Director. Health and Human Services

County Official Phone:

County Official Email: mman nfu.us

County Name: lnvo Countv Heatth and Human Sorvics

Primary Qsnlsd; Anna Scott

Phone: ?60-823-7868

Ema il ;-ascolt@i nyogounty. us

Alternate: Melissa Best Bakgr

Phone: 760-878-0232

Email mbestbakertdi .us

Submit completed form to:
Department of Health Care Services
Safety Net Financing Division/lnmate Medi-Cal Claiming Unit
P.O, Box 997436, MS 4504
Sacramento, CA 95899-7436
EMAIL: DHCSI MCU@dhcs.Ca.Gov

Drpertrflent of Harlth Care Servicas
S{bty Nct Fin6nchg Dlvlslonrlnmato Modi-Cal Claming Unit, MS 4504

P.O, Box 997438, Sacramgnto, CA gSEg$,7446
E-Meil Address: DHCSIMCU@dhcs.ce.oov



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

I Consent I Departmental lCorrespondence Action

! Scheduled Time for D Cbsed Session

Clerk's IJse Onty:
NUMBER

t7
! Public Hearing

I lnformational

FROM Health and Human Seryices
County Ad m inistration-Offi ce of Emergency Seruices

FoR THE BOARD MEETTNG OF: April 9, 2019

SUBJECT: Memorandum of Understanding between the American Red Cross and the County of Inyo

D

Request your Board consider A) approving a Memorandum of Understanding (Mou) between the American Red crossand the county of Inyo for the time period of April 9, 20i9 iht;6h April 9, 2024; and, B) authorize the countyAdministrator, as the Appointed Director of Emergency serviiei, io sign the Memoranoum or Understanding,

SAMfuIARY DISCUSSION

The Mission Statement of the American Red Cross is to prevent and alleviate human suffering in the face ofemergencies by mobilizing the power of volunteers and ihe generosig or aonoii, rnro"Jrt itr strong network ofvolunteers, donors and paftners, they are always there in tiries of need, turning compassion into action so that ourcommunities are ready and prepared for disasters.

The purpose of this MoU with the American Red cross is to define a working relationship between the American Redcross and the county 
9f Inyo, the lead emergency management agency for the county. The MoU provides the broadframework for cooperation and support between the RmJrican Red'cross and Inyo county in assisting individuals,families and communities who have been or could be impacted by a disaster 

"r;;;;;gLncy. rne Mou alsoprovides the descriptions of readiness and response activities such as_planning, trainint,Eercising and resourcing, aswell as clarification of roles and responsibilities of the Red cross and Inyo county to the community and otheragencies,

Inyo County employees and Red cross workers will work cooperatively at the scene of a disaster and in the disasterrecovery, within the scope of their respective roles and duties, and approved policies and frocedures,

ALTERNATIVES,

Your Board could choose not to enter into this MoU with the American Red cross. However, this would not be in thebest interest of the County.

OTH E R AG ENCY I NVOL VEM E NT

caloES, FEMA, Inyo county sheriff, Red cross identified shelter facility owners, local vendors, Non-profits, Faith BasedCommunity.

FIN4NCING

This MoU does not create a partnership, a joint.power agreement, or a joint venture and does not create any financialcommitments from one party to the other' Neither party-nas tne auirrority to binJthe;tner to any obligation.



Agenda Request
Page 2

DEPARTMENT HEAD S'GA'A
(Not to be signed until all approvals are

DEPARTMENT HEAD S'G'VA
(Not to be signed until all approvals are

TURE:

TURE:

Approved:

AGREEMENTS ANDCONTMCTS ANDORDINANCES sEsstoNCLOSED ANO RELATED ITEMS be(Mustandrcviewed byapproved cnunsel tocounty submissionprior to boadthe cletu.)

COUNTY COUNSEL:

AUDITOFYCONTROLLER:

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR:

submission

r

AND RETATED ITEMS be(Musf andreviewed approved theby auditor+ontroller topiorboaN clerk.)

J
REI.ATED

thdboard
ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the director of personnel services prior to

rh.\

AP|,ROV,4t.s

alt tl



Memorandum of Understanding

Between

The American Red Cross

and

The County of Inyo

American
Red Gross

April2019



Memorandum of Understanding Between American Red Cross and the County of Inyo

I. Purpose

The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") is to define a working relationship between The
American Red Cross (hereinafter "Red Cross") and Inyo County, its lead Emergency Management agency
(hereinafter Inyo County Office of the Director of Emergency Services) and other departments, agencies, and
offices in preparing for, responding to, and recovering from emergencies and disasters. This MOU provides the
broad framework for cooperation and support between the Red Cross and Inyo County in assisting individuals,
families and communities who have been or could be impacted by a disaster or an emergency. It also provides
the descriptions of readiness and response activities, such as planning, training, exercising and resourcing, and
the clarification of roles and responsibilities of the Red Cross and Inyo County to the community and other
agencies.

II. Parties

A. Inyo County

Inyo County Code Chapter 2.56 provides for the preparation and carrying out of plans for the protection of
persons and property within the County in the event of an emergency; the direction of the emergency
organization; and the coordination of the emergency functions of the County with all other public agencies,
corporations, organizations and affected private persons. (ord. 215 5 I,1972.)

B. American Red Cross

1. Services to help peoole orenare for- respond to" and recover from disasters

The Red Cross is a nongovernmental organization that mobilizes communities to aid people affected by or at
risk of disasters with the aim of preventing and alleviating suffering. The Red Cross provides disaster iycle
services without regard to race, color, national origin, religion, gender, age, disability, sexual orientation,
citizenship or veteran status. It follows the Fundamental Principles of the International Red Cross and Red
Crescent Movement. The Red Cross is closely integrated into community preparedness, response, and recovery
efforts, including those of federal, tribal, state and local government and other nongovernmental organizations.
Our goal is to work with multi-sector partners to help individuals, families, and communities prepaie for,
respond to, and recover from natural and manmade disasters of all sizes.

The Red Cross provides disaster cycle services pursuant to its Bylaws and other internal policies and procedures
as well as its Congressional Charter (USC 36 $300101-300111). In the Charter, Congresi authorized the Red
Cross "to carry out a system of national and intemational relief in time of peace, and apply that system in
mitigating the suffering caused by pestilence, famine, fire, floods, and other great national calamities, and to
devise and cany out measures for preventing those calamities."

2Memorandum of Understanding - April zorg



Memorandum of Understanding Between American Red Cross and the County of Inyo

a. Preparedness

The Red Cross vision for preparedness is that we, together with community leaders, partners and other
stakeholders have built community capacity and capability to survive, to minimize suffering and to recover
quickly after a disaster or emergency; and that together we have made preparedness a cultural norm all across
the nation. The components for achieving this vision include:

. Assessing community hazards, priority rislrs, needs and asset;

. Engaging the community in preparedness (e.g. Home Fire Campaign),.

' Enabling individuals andfamilies and organizations to take preparedness actions;
' Leveraging our nationol network of volunteers and our ability to engage partners in direct preparedness

actions within communitie s nationw ide ;
' Workingwith social service organizations and schools to help them, their clients and students survive

and recover quicklyfrom a disoster;

' Reinforcing preparedness for people and organizations who have taken preparedness actions.

b. Response

The Red Cross vision for response is to alleviate human suffering in the face of emergencies by mobilizing and
organizing community resources to meet the immediate life-sustaining needs of individuals, families and
communities affected by disaster; to lay the groundwork for long-term recovery; and to build resilience for
future events.

The range of services necessary to achieve this vision will vary based on the needs of those affected and the
scale of the disaster. Additionally, there is often overlap between the provision of response and recovery
services. The blending of the two processes is necessary for seamless service to individuals, families and
communities. Response services most commonly include:

. Home Fire Response Services

. Sheltering

. Feeding

. Health Services

. Mental Health Services

. Spiritual Care Services

. Reuniicotion

. Distribution of Relief Supplies

. Information & Referrals

c. Recovery

The Red Cross vision for recovery is to provide a standard and scalable set of services that align with available
resources to bridge the gaps between client resources and serious human needs and that result in a similar set of
assistance for similarly situated clients. Recovery services most commonly include:

. Community Recovery Strateg,t Development

. CaseworVRecovery Planning

. Direct Client Assistance

. Community Preparedness & Resiliency Building

Memorandum of Understanding - April zorg
3



Memorandum of Understanding Between American Red Cross and the County of Inyo

*For large and/or complex recovery operations, where significant donor resottces are available, expanded services or
assistance may be provided.

2. Services related to the National Response Framework

The Red Cross is a co-lead for the mass care component of Emergency Support Function (ESF) #6 of the
National Response Framework (NRF). In this role, the Red Cross engages in a variety of activities to support
states in their planning, coordinating and executing of mass care programs and strategies. The Red Cross also
takes a leadership role in working with other non-govemmental organizations and private companies that
provide services during a disaster. Additionally, the Red Cross is a support agency to other ESFs - including
ESF-8 and ESF-I5 - in the NRF.

3. Services related to the N Recoverv Framework

The Red Cross is among the supporting organizations for three Recovery Support Functions: Community
Planning and Capacity Building; Health and Social Services; and, Housing. In these roles, the Red Cross
engages at the headquarters level, as well as at the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) regional
level, to provide insight and assistance in planning by drawing on Red Cross experience and representing the
perspective of non-governmental organizations and private entities that provide recovery services.

4. Orsanization

The Red Cross is chartered by the United States Congress to provide humanitarian services. Its national
headquarters, located in Washington, D.C., is responsible for implementing policies and procedures that govem
Red Cross activities and provides administrative and technical oversight and guidance to its 62 regions in seven
divisions. Each region has certain authority and responsibility for carrying out Red Cross disaster preparedness,
response and recovery activities, delivering local Red Cross services, and meeting corporate obligations within
the territorial jurisdiction assigned to it. Each region is familiar with the hazards of the locality and surveys
local resources for personnel, equipment, supplies, transportation, emergency communications, and facilities
available for disaster relief. Regions also formulate cooperative plans and procedures with local government
agencies and private organizations for reliefactivities should a disaster occur.

Through its nationwide network, the Red Cross coordinates its total resources for use in large disasters. In order
to provide these services, the Red Cross will work with federal, tribal, state and/or local government for
assistance and collaboration.

III. Cooperative Actions

The Red Cross recognizes the authority assigned to city mayors, county judges, and other local county officials
of Inyo County and will share operating plans, priorities and objectives with the delegated emergency
management staff of the local jurisdiction.

Inyo County recognizes the national level roles and responsibilities designated to the Red Cross in the October
22,2010 Memorandum of Agreement between FEMA and Red Cross.

Inyo County recognizes the Red Cross as having mass care responsibility in domestic disasters and when
activated, authorizes and will support and coordinate with the Red Cross in the execution of these duties.

4
Memorandum of Understanding - April zorg



Memorandum of Understanding BetweenAmerican Red Cross and the Countyof Inyo

The Red Cross and Inyo County will coordinate their respective disaster cycle activities to maximize services to
the community and avoid duplication of efforts in the following ways:

l. Explore ways to align business and operational processes and programs across the disaster cycle in an
effort to make a more seamless disaster preparedness, response, and recovery experience for residents of
Inyo County.

2. Coordinate mutual activation of no-notice events through the established24 hour notification point of
contact and develop joint Standard Operating Procedures for ongoing communications, including use of
electronic technology, radio communications, and other emergency coordination protocols.

3. Maintain close coordination, liaison activities, and support at all levels with conferences, meetings, and
other means of communication. Include a representative of the other party in appropriate committees,
planning groups and task forces formed to mitigate, prepare for, respond to, and recover from disasters
and other emergencies.

4. During a disaster or emergency situation, the Red Cross will, at the request of Inyo County, provide
liaison personnel to the Inyo County Emergency Operations Center. The Inyo County Office of the
Director of Emergency Services will provide facility access and identification, work space, and,
whenever possible, other required support, such as a computer, e-mail access and a designated phone
line for the Red Cross liaison personnel assigned to the Emergency Operations Center.

5. The Inyo County Office of the Director of Emergency Services will support the Red Cross in the use of
the National Shelter System (NSS) and the Red Cross will coordinate shelter information sharing and
reporting with the Inyo County Off,rce of the Director of Emergency Services.

6. The Inyo County Office of the Director of Emergency Services or designee will facilitate the Red Cross
use of facilities for shelters and service delivery sites wherever possible. The terms and conditions of
such use will be set forth in a separate agreement.

7. During disasters and emergencies, keep each other informed of the human needs created by the events
and the services they are providing. Share cunent datarcgarding disasters, to include risk andhazard.
analysis, statistical information, social media verifications, historical information, emerging needs and
trends, damage assessments, declarations, and service delivery plans.

8. Work together to develop plans, revise planning annexes, and identify resources to facilitate delivery of
services to people with disabilities or other access and functional needs during a disaster.

9. Actively participate in reviewing and carrying out responsibilities outlined in the local emergency
operations plans.

10. Both parties will ensure, to the fullest extent possible, that disaster operations within Inyo County will
be as accessible as possible to people with disabilities or other access and functional needs, based on the
American with Disabilities Act and related federal, state and local laws.

11. Prior to and during the time of disaster, keep the public informed of cooperative efforts through the
public information offices of the Red Cross and the Inyo County Office of the Director of Emergency

Memorandum of Understanding - April zorg 5



Memorandum of Understanding Between American Red Cross and the County of Inyo

Services and explore opportunities for collaboration to provide community, family, and citizen disaster
preparedness within Inyo County.

12. The Inyo County Office of the Director of Emergency Services recognizes that the Red Cross is
dependent upon voluntary public financial donations. In accordance with applicable laws and
regulations, the Inyo County Office of the Director of Emergency Services will support the Red Cross in
locating and acquiring necessary resources in an emergency including a response to formal resource
requests. Both parties will work together, as appropriate, to identify local sourcing solutions that expand
disaster capabilities and enhance community resilience.

13. Both parties agree not to use or display any trademarks of the other without first receiving the express
written permission to do so; however, the use of the trademarks of the other party is permitted for
internal meeting notes and plans that are not publicly distributed and used during the normal course of
business related to the purpose of the MOU. If either party desires to use the intellectual property of the
other, the "requestingparty" should submit the proposed promotional/marketing materials, press
releases, website displays or otherwise proposed use of the trademarks to the "owning party" for review
in advance of dissemination or publication.

14. The Red Cross will support the Inyo County Office of the Director of Emergency Services in integrating
the efforts of the non-govenlmental organizations (lttcos) and Voluntary Organizations Active in
Disaster (VOAD) that provide mass care services (e.g. Mass Care Feeding Task Forces) during disaster
response operations.

15. Make training, educational and other developmental opportunities available to the other party's
personnel and explorejoint training and exercises. Encourage all staffand volunteers to engage in
training (e.g. ICS 300 and 400), exercises, and disaster response activities, as appropriate.

16. Widely distribute this MOU within the Red Cross and the Inyo County Office of the Director of
Emergency Services departments and administrative offices and urge full cooperation.

17. Inyo County and Red Cross will endeavor to work together to provide mitigation and preparedness
information to the County and its residents. Cooperative efforts could include distributing preparedness
materials to targeted populations within the community, or requesting that local residents be encouraged
to take part in pre-disaster preparedness planning efforts. Inyo County and Red Cross will ensure all
materials are made available in accessible formats for people with disabilities and others with access and
functional needs.

18. The Red Cross and Inyo County will work collaboratively to stock and stage necessary Red Cross
shelter supplies, durable medical goods and consumable medical supplies in Red Cross trailers and/or
other portable containers for deployment during shelter activations. Locations of trailers and portable
containers will be mutually agreed upon by the Red Cross and the County.

19. Pursuant to the California Disaster Services Worker (DSW) Act, Inyo County will endeavor to make
County employees available to work with the Red Cross as Disaster Service Workers to assist in mass
care, sheltering and other support functions during the aftermath of any local disaster. The Parties
mutually agree that the first priority for assignment of available County employees will be to address the
operational needs of the County before County employees would be made available to the Red Cross for
assignment for Red Cross functions.

Memorandum of Understanding - April zorg 6



Memorandum of Understanding Between American Red Cross and the County of Inyo

IV. Periodic Review

The parties will, on an annual basis, on or around the anniversary date of this MOU, jointly evaluate their
progress in implementing this MOU and revise and develop new plans, attachments or goals as appropriate
Both parties should notify the other if primary points of contact change.

V. Term and Termination.

This MOU is effective as of April 9,2019. It expires on April 9,2024. Six months prior to expiration, the
parties will meet to review the progress and success of the cooperative effort. In connection with such review,
the parties may decide to extend this MOU for an additional period not exceeding five years, and if so shall
confirm this in a signed writing. This MOU may be terminated by written notification from either party to the
other at any time and for any or no reason.

VI. Miscellaneous

This MOU does not create a partnership, a joint power agreement, or a joint venture and does not create any
financial commitments from one party to the other. Neither party has the authority to bind the other to any
obligation. It is not intended that this MOU be enforceable as a matter of law in any court or dispute resolution
forum. The sole remedy for non-performance under this MOU shall be termination, with no damages or penalty.

Signature page follows.

7
Memorandum of Understanding - April zorg



Memorandum of Understanding Between American Red Cross and the County of Inyo

Signature PaK

Inyo County Office of the Director of Emergency
Services

By
(signature)

Name

Title

Date

Contact Information

Telephone

Email

The American Red Cross

By
(signature)

Name

Title

Date

Contact Information

Telephone

Email

8Memorandum of Understanding - April zorg



PROTOCOLS FOR RED CROSS DISASTER
RELIEF SERVICES IN INYO & MONO

COUNTY



fle ned Cross suppo-tts government partners in meeting immecliate cmergency needs in the event of a disaster.within the Inyo and Mono county service area, Red Cross has historicall! prwioeo .naterial ancl human
resources' such as 1O0-person shelter trailers or shelter management teams, as well as subject matter expertise i'support of disaster relief activities.

In addition, Red Cross monitors the regional jurisdiction for threats and hazards that would trigger Red Crossservices' Close partnership with Inyo and Mono county partners enables prompt, effective service deliverywnell olsaster strrkes.

IDENTIFYING SHELTERING NEEDS

When the potential for shelterizlg services is identified, government parlners provide 2-4 hours notice to the RedCross, identilying the critical information needs:
- Number of people displaced
- Evacuationboundaries
- Road and facility access limitations
- Nature of services requested if any

RED CROSS SHELTERS
Purpose: Provides shelter for everyone in the community, including individuals with access and functional needs, including thosewith disabilities requiring supportive services to maintain inaepenalo"e und utilize the shetter and its programs and services.

o Red cross shelters may only be authorized by a Red cross official working in consultation with a designated local civilauthority; i.e., Health and Human Services.r A Red cross shelter is staffed by trained Red Cross volunteers and employees, including health care and mental healthcare professionals.
r Designated Red cross shelters should have aracility (shelter) Agreement on file with the Red cross office. Agreementsmay be established with city or county facilities, srhool*, chuiche"s, or other privately-owned facilities.r The Red Cross is responsible for costs incurred, including damage, to open and operate a shelter.r A shelter is operational until the emergoncy passes and all shelter residents have made altemative arrangements.

When an evacuation center needs to transition into an overnight shelter, partners may require additional
resources to sustain ongoing sheltering operations. Critical information nieds for transitioning into u rh.lr.. ur.,- Number of overnight stays

- Population estimates in impacted area
- Road and facility access limitations
- Nature of resources requested

EVACUATION CENTERS
Purpose: Provides a safe haven during an evacuation, large storm, or "pre-notice" incident. If sleeping accommodations areprovided for clients, the evacuation center is transitioned io an evacuation shelter.

o An evacuation center may be requested and/or designated by local civil authorities, e.g., fire, law enforcement, andhealth and hurnan services.
r An evacuation center is staffed by local civil ofificials and community volunteers.r Evacuation centers may be city or county facilities, schools, churches, or other privately-owned facilities.r The responsibility for coy-s incurred,.including damage, to_ip* and operate an evacuation center falls to the agency thatrequested and designated the evacuation center, or tne racifity ownerlp'roprietor.o Depending upon the incident and the availability of information regarding the incident, a decision may be made todeclare the evacuation cenler as a shelter.

When Red Cross scrvices are needed, contact our 24-Hour Disaster Dispatch at (g00) 675-5799



OTHER RED CROSS SERVICES

when disaster events increase in scale, scope and magnitude, Red cross disaster relief services include
sheltering, feeding, distribution of emergency supplie-s, reunification, recovery casework, health services,
mental health services, spiritual care services, and disability integration services. When Red Cross services are
needed, contact our 24-Hour Disaster Dispatch at (g00) e%-slgg.

When smaller scale disaster events occur, Red Cross provides disaster relief for immediate emergency needs
through the Disaster Action Team (DAT). The geographical and hazardprofile of Inyo and Mono Counties hasrequired an integrated approach between Red Cioss and County government to provide DAT assistance. Thefollowing process has been adopted when Disaster Action reamlnar; services are needed:

Requests to respond to an impacted home are received through Red Cross Disaster Dispatch. When Red
cross services are needed, contact our 24-Hour Disaster Disfatch at (s00) 675-5799.The Red cross
Duty Officer will be notified of the incident information, inciuding deployed DAT members and/or
county workers, incident location, nature of disaster, etc. Mono Couniy has trained County workers
with financial instruments to support the Disaster Action Team ,.rponr" and are responsible for
providing the appropriate identified Red Cross Financial Assistance outlined by the Red Cross Dutyofficer' Inyo County has Red Cross DAT Leaders with financial instruments to support the Disaster
Action Team response and are responsible for providing the appropriate identified Red Cross Financial
Assistance outlined by the Red Cross Duty Offrcer.

INTERAGENCY COMMUNICATION

READINESS ACTIVITIES

t

a

a

a

Mlno and Inyo Counties provide Red Cross access to the County's Emergency operations Center("EoC") upon activation of the EoC through electronic, telephone -"un, o, via a government liaisonprovided by Red Cross. Red Cross will report through represlntatives of Mono unilnyo Counties
Department of Health and Human Services.
Routine communications will be maintained between Red Cross and Mono and Inyo Counties by
conference calls, meetings, electronic messaging, and other means. Each party wiil share current
information regarding disasters, disaster declaraiions, and changes in regulations, legislation andprotocols related to disaster relief.
Representatives of Mono and Inyo Counties and the Red Cross will maintain open communication.
Participants will encourage their respective agencies and affiliates to maintain op"n communication.
Each participant will share current data regar-ding disasters (except for client information which may beconfidential or privileged, unless disclosuie has 6een expressly authorized by the client), disaster
situational and operational reports, changes in policy o. p.trono.l contact information, and any
additional information pertinent to disasier pr.pu..dn.rs and response.

Red Cross will work closely with Mono and Inyo Counties to ensure shelter agreementsand appropriate
shelter surveys are completed for potential shelier facilities. As well as otherui.""rrury agreements andrelationships such as feeding and medical services. Potential shelter and evacuation center locations arere-surveyed every 2 to 3 years to ensure it meets requirements to serve as a Red Cross shelter and can be
made accessible to clients in need. Trained Red Cross and/or County workers support the periodic
evaluation ofall potential shelter locations as part ofpre-disaster preparedness activities.
Mono and Inyo Counties will invite Red Cross to attend all post-eventAfter Actionmeetings when EoC
activations or emergency shelter operations have occurred oi to provide input for inclusion in any After

I



a

a

Action Report documents for incidents in which Red cross participated.
Mono and Inyo Counties and Red Cross shall work togeth., to .nrur" the most correct informationpossible is found in county and Red cross drsas ter plins and procedures.
Mono and [nyo Counties and Red Cross will participate in one another's disaster exercises, as
appropriate.

Red cross will provide training'as necessary, to any Mono and Inyo counties agency employees andaffiliated organizations-(such as CERT) to ensure they conectly understand the iles, responsibilities,
and limitations of Red Cross disaster relief services.

a

o The Red Cross will provide access to Red Cross mass care and shelter training that will prepare
loutlY employees with basic knowledge and skills in sheltering and other Reid cross support
functions in order to best prepare employees whose facilities are or may be used to support mass
9a-re 

or, who may serve as DSW workers. Mono and Inyo Counties *d th, Red Cross willjointly promote the training for County employees through individual departments. Shelter
training will be required for Mono and Inyo C'ounties Delartment of Health and Human Services
staff pre-identified as priority shelter workers.

PREPAREDNESS ACTIVITIES

Red Cross supports community preparedness activities to help prevent home fires, support families in preparingfor disasters, and engaging the community in disaster..rpon* activities.o Sound the Alarm: Red cross provides sound the Alarm (one each for Inyo and Mono) events each year.
Red Cross and the Counties work together to identifu groups of volunteers to support free fire alarminstallations to the community. Red Cross will support'these ongoing activiiies by providing the requiredlogistical equipment (smoke alarms, home visit records, installei kitJ;.

' Preparedness Education; Red Cross provides preparedness presentations by local Red Cross volunteersthrough the Prepare u and Prepare seniors programs. The Piepare Teens *o tt" Disney pillowcase
Project programs are provided by Red cross Airericorps during quarterly ;isits. Requests for any ofthese preparedness programs must be requested by coniacting cuitt.r-o.sanchez@R.d.rorr.or!.o volunteer Recruilment: Fied cross hosts a volunteer Bootcamp each year to help uuita tne Red LrossDisaster Volunteer Workforce to support both Counties through these services: Disaster Action Team,sound the Alarm, Sheltering, preparedness Education, and rriining.

COORDINATION AND INTERAGENCY COOPERATION

Mono and Inyo Counties and Red Cross will mutually ensure that disaster relief operations within the Countyare equally accessible to people with disabilities and tthers with access and functional needs.

Mono and Inyo Counties employees and Red cross workers will work cooperatively at the scene of a disasterand in the disaster recovery' within the scope of their respective roles and iuties, und upprou.d policies andprocedures.



AGENDAREQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF TNYO
X Consent I Departmental E Correspondence Action E Public Hearing

E Schedule time for ! Closed Session ! Informational

For Clerk's Use
Only:

AGENDA NUMBER

IB

FROM: Public Works Department

FoRTHE BOARD MEETING OF: 1lp,l i^,1 2Oig

SUBJECT: Award of Contract for Kitchen Hood Fire Suppression System Inspection Services to Blizzard Fire
Protection of Mammoth Lakes, California.

DEPARTMENTAL RECOMMENDATIONS : Request your Board:

A. Award the five-year contract for semi-annual Kitchen Hood Fire Suppression System Inspection Services
to Blizzard Fire Protection of Mammoth Lakes, California in the amount not to exceed eleven thousand,
two hundred dollars ($l1,200.00).

B. Authorize the Board Chairperson to sign the contract, contingent upon Board approval of future budgets
and appropriate signatures being obtained; and,

C. Authorize the Public Works Director to sign all other contract documents, including change orders, to the
extent permitted pursuant to Section 20142 of the Public Contract Code and other applicable law.

CAO RECOMMENDATION:

SUMMARY DISCUSSION: This project will provide inspection and testing of fire suppression systems in
ANSUL kitchen hoods every 6 months over the five-year term of the contract for kitchens located at the following
County buildings: Inyo County Jail, 550 S. Clay St., Independence, CA; Statham Hall (ESAAA Kitchen), 138 N.
Jackson St., Lone Pine, CA; Bishop Senior Center (ESAAA Kitchen), 506 Park Avenue, Bishop, CA; and Bishop
Airport Terminal Restaurant, 703 N. Airport Rd., Bishop, CA.

On February 21,2019, the Public Works Department advertised for Kitchen Hood Fire Suppression System
Inspection Services. One bid was received by bid opening on March 13,2019. The bid was submittedby Blizzard
Fire Protection and it meets the project bid proposal requirements. The County has previously had a three year
contract withBlizzard Fire Protection and was pleased with the services provided.

The Inyo County Public Works Departmdnt would like to enter into a Service Contract with Blizzard Fire
Protection to provide Kitchen Hood Fire Suppression System Inspection Services for four County buildings, for a
period of five years from April 9, 2019 to December 31,2023.

ALTERNATIVES: Your Board could choose not to award the bid and service contract for the Project and to
readvertise. This is not recommended because it is unlikely that readvertising will result in additional bids.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: The Auditor's Office to make payments to the contractor after the
contract is awarded; Office of the County Counsel for review of the contract documents.

FINANCING: The service costs will be paid through budget unit 011100, Building & Maintenance, object code
5191, the amount of not to exceed 52,240.00 per year.



Agenda Request Form: Kitchen Hood Fire Supression System Inspection Services
Page2 of2

DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE:
(Not to be signed until all approvals are received)

t7

Darc:Zetn o4.o1

AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS

Approved: 'WDffi lc> Datqe/A
COUNTYCOUNSEL:

ft"^^,-
be reviewed and approved by County Counsel prior to submission to the board clerk.)

AUDITOR/CONTROLLER ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the auditor/controller

Approved:

prior to submission to the board clerk.)

PERSONNELAND RELATED ITEbS (f,ust be reviewed and approved by
prior to submission to the board clerk.)

Approved:

the director ofpersonnel services

Date

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR

APPROVALS



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND BLIZZARD FIRE PROTECTION
FOR THE PROVISION OF KITCHFN HOOD FIRF SIIPPRtr N SYSTEM INSPECTION SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") may have the need for
fftg xitctren Hood Fire Suppression System lnspection SefViCeS Of BliZafd Fife PfOteCtiOn

of Mammoth Lakes, California (hereinafter referred to as "Contractoi'), and in consideration of
the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as
follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1 SCOPE OF WORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County to the
Contractor to perform under this Agreement will be made by Chris Cox
whose title is: Buildino & Maintenance Suoervisor Requests to the Contractor for work or services to
be performed under this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services. The County
makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be
requested of the Contractor by the County under this Agreement. County by this Agreement incurs no
obligation or requirement to request from Contractor the performance of any services or work at all, even if
County should have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,

state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be from April 9, 2019 to

unless sooner terminated as provided below.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 1

December 31,2023

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. Compensation. County shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by
Contractor at the County's request.

B. Travel and per diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or per
diem which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.

C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages,
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Contractor shall not
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

0712712018



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTYOF INYO

AND BLIZZARD FIRE PROTECTION

FOR THE pROVtStON OF KTTCHEN HOOD F|RE SUPPRESSTON SYSTEM TNSPECTTON SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS
TH]S 

- 

DAY OF-

COUNTY OF INYO

Signature

Print or Type Name Print or Type Name

Dated: Dated: 05 I

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

By

County Counsel

ilrr*nr. ll^r^fl,L

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM

County Auditor

AS TO REQUIREMENTS:

Services

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(lndependent Contractor)

PageT

County Risk Manager

0712712018



ATTACHMENTA

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND BLIZZARD FIRE PROTECTION

FOR THE PROVISION OF KITCHEN HOOD FIRE SUPPRESSION SYSTEM INSPECTION SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: April 9, 2019 TO: Dec 31

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 8

2023

SCOPE OF WORK

The Scope of Work for this contract will include the following for each ANSUL Hood listed on the bid sheet:

. lnspection and testing of ANSUL R-102 Wet Chemical Fire Suppression systems in kitchen hoods every 6
months (per California 2016 Fire Code, Section 904 and California Code of Regulations, Title 19, Division 1 ,

Chapter 5).

. Tests shall include a check of the detection system, alarms and releasing devices, including manual stations and
other associated equipment.

. Fire suppression system units shall be weighed and the required amount of agent verified. lf needed, retardant
shall be added to the system meet the manufacturers specifications. Stored pressure-type units shall be checked
for the required pressure. The cartridge of cartridge-operated units shall be weighed and replaced at intervals
indicated by the manufacturer.

0712712018



BID SHEET

The specific bid price for the materials and services to be rendered pursuant to the Scope of Work
for which this bid is made are as follows:

No. Site Description Address Hood Type
Install
Date

Upgrade
Date

Price Per
Inspection

Contract Total
(10 Inspections)

1
Inyo County Jail
Kitchen

550 S. Clay
st.
Independence

ANSUL Hood
(Double Tank)

t992 2009 $320.00 $3,200.00

2
Statham Hall
(IMAAA Kitchen)

138 N.
Jackson St.
Lone Pine

ANSUL Hood
(Single Tank)

1975 2009 $250.00 $2,500.00

J

Bishop Senior
Center (IMAAA
Kitchen)

506 Park Ave.
Bishop

ANSUL Hood
(Single Tank)

Mid-
80s

2009 $260.00 $2,600.00

4
Bishop Airport
Terminal
Restaurant

703 N.
Airport Rd.
Bishop

ANSUL Hood
(Double Tank)

2002 N/A $290.00 $2,900.00

Note: This is aprevailing wage job.

BID TOTAL IN NUMBERS (Contracttotal for all sites)

g 11,200.00

BID TOTAL IN WORDS:

g Eleven thousand two hundred dollars

County of Inyo Public Works Department
KITCHEN HOOD FIRE SUPPRESSION SYSTEM INSPECTION SERVICES

Bid Proposal Forms
Page 6



D. Limit upon amount pavable under Aqreement. The total sum of all payments made by the
County to Contractor for services and work perform

eleven thousand and two hundred
ed under this Agreement shall not exceed

Dollars (hereinafter referred to as
"contract limit"). County expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by
Contractor for services or work performed which is in excess of the contract limit.

E. Billinq and pavment. Contractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized
statement of all services and work described in Aftachment A, which were done at the County's request. This
statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth (sth) day of the month. The statement to be
submitted willcoverthe period from the first (1st) day of the preceding month through and including the last
day of the preceding month. This statement will identify the date on which the services and work were
performed and describe the nature of the services and work which were performed on each day. Upon timely
receipt of the statement by the fifth (sth) day of the month, County shall make payment to Contractor on the
last day of the month.

F. Federaland State taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal
or state income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars
($1,4ee.oo).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or
payments from sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other
assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor. County has no responsibility or liability for
payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments
to non-Galifornia residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal Revenue Service and the California
State Franchise Tax Board. To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the County
an lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement.

4. WORK SCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A wtrich are requested by the County. lt is understood by Contractor that the performance of
these services and work will require a varied schedule. Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will

coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will

be performed within the time frame set forth by County.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits
in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses,
professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be
procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County. Contractor will provide County,
upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits which
are required to perform the services identified in Aftachment A. Where there is a dispute between Contractor
and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in
Aftachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement.

B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any
federal department or agency. Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(lndependent Contractor)

Page2 0712712018



receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.qov.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ET CETERA.

Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incuned by
Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by
Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor.

7. COUNTY PROPERTY.

A. Personal Propertv of Countv. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or
safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive propefi of County.
Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in
Contractor's possession. Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items,
partial or total, which is the result of Contracto/s negligence.

B. Products of Contractor's Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications, plans,
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result,
product, or manifestation of, Contractor's services orwork under this Agreement are, and at the termination of
this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the Agreement,
Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

8. WORKERS'COMPENSATION

Gontractor shall provide Statutory California Worke/s Compensation coverage and Employer's
Liability coverage for not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for all employees engaged in services or
operations under this Agreement. The County of lnyo, its agents, officers and employees shall be named as
additional insured or a waiver of subrogation shall be provided.

9. INSURANCE.

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope
and amount specified in Attachment C and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

10. STATUSOFCONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this

Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
County. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to

exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be

considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Contractor and Coun$ that this Agreement shall
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a
joint venture. As an independent contractor:

A. Contractor shall determine the method, detaib, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement.

Coun$ of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 16
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 3 07n7n0'18



B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in

this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of
County.

11. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees
and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including without
limitation costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with Contractor's
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in the
agreement, except such loss or damages which was caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct
of the County.

12. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of
this Agreement. Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B. lnspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

13. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not

unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national

origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Contractor and its agents,

officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the

California Code of Regulations. Contractor shallalso abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.1. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

14. GANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Contractor thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel. Contractor may cancel this Agreement
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to

cancelto County.

15. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,

experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall not

assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 4 0712712018



Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior
written consent of County.

16. DEFAULT

lf the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by

County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written
notice to Contractor. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to
Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

17. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty{hree (23) below.

18. CONFIDENTIALITY

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,

regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by

Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,

or confidential. Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such

confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County's written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45,

Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,

and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant

thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

19. CONFLTCTS.

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

20. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained

from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,
gain, or enhancement. Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who,
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 5 07t27t2018



21. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

22. FUNDING LIMITATION.

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notiffing
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification of
this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-three
(23) (Amendment).

23. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.

24. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including

change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first
class mail to, the respective parties as follows:

County of lnyo
Public Works Deoartment Department
168 N. Edwards St. P.O. Drawer Q Street
lndependence. CA 93526 City and State

Contractor:
Blizzaft Fi re P rotection Name

Street
City and State

P.O. Box 1450

25. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,

discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

Mammoth Lakes, CA 93546

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 6

ilil lilt

07t27t2018



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND BLIZZARD FIRE PROTECTION

FORTHE PROVISION OF KITCHEN HOOD FIRE SUPPRESSION SYSTEM INSPECTION SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: April9,2019 TO Dec 31 2023

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

See attached bid sheet

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(lndependent Contractor)

Page g 07n72018



ATTACHMENT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND BLIZZARD FIRE PROTECTION

FORTHE PROVISION OF KITCHEN HOOD FIRE SUPPRESSION SYSTEM INSPECTION SERVICES

TERM

FROM: April9,2019 TO Dec 31 ,2023

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 10 07t2712018



Specifications 1
Insurance Requirements for Most Contracts

(Not for Professional Services or Construction Contracts)

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance
against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise
from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder and the results
of that work by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or
subcontractors.

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. Commercial General Liability (GGL): lnsurance Services Office (lSO) Form
CG 00 01 12 07 covering CGL on an "occurrence" basis, including products-
completed operations, personal & advertising injury, with limits no less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence. lf a general aggregate limit applies, either the
general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location or the
general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability: ISO Form Number CA 00 01 covering any auto (Code 1),

or if Contractor has no owned autos, hired, (Code 8) and non-owned autos (Code
9), with limit no less than $500,000 per accident for bodily injury and property
damage.

3. Workers' Compensation: as required by the State of California, with Statutory
Limits, and Employer's Liability lnsurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000
per accident for bodily injury or disease.

If the contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums shown above, the Entity requires and

shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the contractor.

Other Insurance Provisions

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following
provisions:

Ad d iti o n a I I n s u red Sfalus

The Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as
additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work
or operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials,
parts, or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations.
General liability coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the
Contractor's insurance at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 1 1 85 or if not
available, through the addition of both CG 20 10 and CG 20 37 il a later edition is
used).



Primary Coverage

For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor's insurance coverage shall
be primary insurance as respects the Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and
volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Entity, its officers,
officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor's insurance
and shall not contribute with it.

Notice of Cancellation

Each insurance policy required above shall provide that coverage shall not be
canceled, except with notice to the Entity.

Waiver of Subrogation

Contractor hereby grants to Entity a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of said
Contractor may acquire against the Entity by virtue of the payment of any loss under such
insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this
waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the Entity has
received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by
the Entity. The Entity may require the Contractor to purchase coverage with a
lower deductible or retention or provide proof of ability to pay losses and related
investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the retention.

Acceptabitity of Insurers
lnsurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M, Best's rating of no less
than A:Vll, unless otherwise acceptable to the Entity.

Verification of Coverage

Contractor shall furnish the Entity with original certificates and amendatory
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage
required by this clause. All certificates and endorsements are to be received and
approved by the Entity before work commences. However, failure to obtain the
required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor's
obligation to provide them. The Entity reserves the right to require complete,
certified copies of all required insurance. policies, including endorsements
required by these specifications, at any time.

Special Bisks or Circumsfances
Entity reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on
the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special
circumstances.



COUNTY OF INYO BID TABULATION

Kitchen hood f l_re srrootesslon tem insDection serviceProject Title & Bid No.
CoNTMCT //116

Bid Opening Date Mrrntrt,l? ?lnq Location: County Admin Center

I BLizzard Fire Protection ll,2oo ,

2

3.

4.

5.

6.

7

8.

9

l0

Bid Additive
A

Bitt Atlditive
B

Bid Atldith,e
C

Totut Base
Bful and

Additives

Base Bid
lllDDER NAu'lE Bond

1s a /c/Opened By:

Present

-Tt\vrr



KITCHEN HOOD FIRE SUPPRESSION SYSTEM INSPECTION
SERVICES

WINTER 2OI9

NOTICE TO BIDDERS

This entire BID Package, which includes the following:

Notice Inviting Bids,
Bid Proposal Forms,

And
County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 116

Must be submitted in its entirety. Do not remove any pages.

Be sure to fullv complete all forms and sign.

BID RESPONSES DUE BY 3:30 PM
MARCH 13 2019



COUNTY OF INYO

NOTICE INVITING BIDS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT INYO COUNTY IS SOLICITING BIDS FOR:

KITCHEN HOOD FIRE SUPPRESSION SYSTEM INSPECTION SERVICES

Sealed Bids will be received at the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors Office, 224N Edwards St.
P.O. Drawer N Independenceo California 93526 until 3:30 p.m. March 73,2019, at which time
they will be publicly opened and read.

Bids must be in a sealed envelope, addressed to the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N
Edwards St. P.O. Drawer N Independence, Califomia93526. Indicate on the outside of the bid
envelope "KITCHEN HOOD FIRE SUPPRESSION SYSTEM INSPECTION SERVICES"

All bids must be signed with the firm's name and by a responsible officer or employee.

The period for which the specified Services are to be provided pursuant to this bid is from
Contract Approval, through and including December 3I,2023.

Inyo County reserves the right to reject any or all bids, or to waive any minor informality in any
bid, if it is deemed to be in the best interest of the County of Inyo.

Bid Packages, which include the Notice Inviting Bids, Bid Proposal Forms and Contract Forms,
may be obtained from the Inyo County Public Works Department 168 N Edwards St. P.O.
Drawer Q Independence, CA 93526 or call (760) 878-0201 andmay be inspected at the above
department.

Bid packages may also be downloaded from the County website at:
http://www.inyocountv.us/Bid_Packages.html. Please be aware that if you download the bid
package from the county website, you are responsible for notifying the Public Works Department
that you are aplan holder. Only plan holders known by the County will receive any addenda that
are issued.

County of Inyo Public Works Deparlment
KITCHEN HOOD FIRE SUPPRESSION SYSTEM INSPECTION SERVICES

Notice to Bidders



BID PROPOSAL FORM

TO: COUNTY OF INYO
Department of Public Works
168 N. Edwards Street
P.O. Drawer Q
Independence, CA 93526
(Herein called "County")

FROM Blizzard Fi re Protection

PO Box 1450

Mammoth Lakes, CA 93546

(Herein called "Bidder")

FOR: KITCHEN HOOD F.IRE SUPPRESSION SYSTEM INSPECTION SERVICES

In submitting this Bid, it is understood that:

1. BID DEADLINE:

Bids must be received no later than 3 :30 p.m. March 13 , 2019 by the Clerk of the Board of
Supervisors,224 N Edwards St. P.O. Drawer N Independence Califomia,93526 at which time
they will be publicly opened and read.

2. INCLUSION OF ALL COSTS:

This Bid includes all costs for all labor (at prevailing wage rates), materials, tools, taxes, insurance,
transportation and other related supplies and services to perform all services and provide all
materials as required by, and in accordance with, the Bid Package and Contract Documents for the
KITCHEN HOOD FIRE SUPPRESSION SYSTEM INSPECTION SERVICES.

3. PRE-BID MEETING:

Potential bidders may request a walk-through of all affected facilities by contacting Maintenance
Supervisor Chris Cox at 7 60 -87 8-0230 or qqp;@lnregguntLUg .

4, CONTRACT DOCUMENTS:

The Notice Inviting Bids, this Bid Proposal Form, and the Agreement for the KITCHEN HOOI)
FIRE SUPPRESSION SYSTEM INSPECTION SERVICES, County of Inyo Standard Contract
No. 116, shown in Exhibit A, and any documents incorporated therein, including Attachments A,
B and C, are referred to collectively as the Contract Documents and shall constitute the contract

County of Inyo Public Works Department
KITCHEN HOOD FIRE SUPPRESSION SYSTEM INSPECTION SERVICES

Bid Proposal Forms
Page I



between the parties that will come into full force and effect upon acceptance, approval and
execution by the Inyo County Board of Supervisors or its designee.

5. ACCEPTANCE:

The County reserves the right to reject any and all Bids. Howevero this Bid shall remain open and
shall not be withdrawn for a period of at least sixty (60) days after the date set for its opening and
shall remain open and valid thereafter until it is withdrawn by Bidder. The Bidder will execute
and deliver the Agreement for the KITCHEN HOOD F'IRE SUPPRESSION SYSTEM
INSPECTION SERVICES County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 116, any certificates or other
required proof of insurance, and any other required documents, to the County no later than fifteen
(15) days after receipt of notification to Bidder of the award of that Contract.

Failure to bid all items on the Bid Sheet will render the bid incomplete and may result in the bid
being rejected.

No Bid will be accepted wherein the price quoted is specified as a posted price with an escalator
6(IJP" clauseo whether or not such escalator clause has a "TOP" or maximum limit to which the
price may advance.

The Contractor will be allowed no claim for anticipated profits, loss of profits, or for any damages
of any sort because of any differences between the estimated amounts set forth in this bid package
and actual amount of material ordered and delivered during the course of the contract.

6. BID PROTEST

In the event a dispute arises concerning the bid process prior to the award of the contract, the party
wishing resolution of the dispute shall submit an appeal request in writing to the County Director
of Purchasing. Bidder may appeal the recommended award or denial of award, provided the
following stipulations are met:

1. Only a bidder who has actually submitted a Bid Proposal is eligible to submit an appeal
request/bid protest against another bidder. Subcontractors are not eligible to submit bid
protests. A bidder may not rely on the bid protest submitted by another bidder, but must timely
pursue its own protest.

2. Appeal must be in writing. The appeal must contain a complete statement of the basis for the
protest and all supporting documentation. Materials submitted after the Bid Protest Deadline
will not be considered. The protest must refer to the specific portion or portions of the
Contract Documents upon which the protest is based. The protest must include the name,
address and telephone number of the person representing the protesting bidder if different from
the protesting bidder.

3. A copy of the protest and all supporting documents must also be transmitted by fax or by
email, by or before Bid Protest Deadline, to the protested bidder and any other bidder who has
a reasonable prospect of receiving an award depending upon the outcome of the protest.

County of Inyo Public Works Department
KITCHEN HOOD FIRE SUPPRESSION SYSTEM INSPECTION SERVICES

Bid Proposal Forms
Page2



4. Must be submitted within ten (10) calendar days of the date of the recommended award or
denial of award letters.

5. An appeal of a denial of award can only be brought on the following grounds:
a. Failure to follow the selection procedures and adhere to requirements specified in the

Bid Package or any addenda or amendments.
b. There has been a violation of conflict of interest as provided by California Government

Code Section 87100 et seq.
c. A violation of State or Federal law.

6. Appeals will not be accepted for any other reasons than those stated above. All appeals must
be sent to:

Clint Quilter, County Administrative Officer
County of Inyo
Purchasing Department
Independence, CA 93526

County's Purchasing Director shall make a decision concerning the appeal, and notifu the Proposer
making the appeal, within a reasonable timeframe prior to the tentatively scheduled date for
awarding the contract. The decision of County's Purchasing Director shall be deemed final.

7. ADDENDA:

The Bidder acknowledges receipt of the following Addenda and has provided for all Addenda
changes in this Bid: (Fill in Addendum numbers and dates Addenda have been received. If none
have been received enter "NONE".)
NONE

WARNING: IF AN ADDENDUM OR ADDENDA HAVE BEEN ISSUED BY THE COUNTY
AND NOT NOTED ABOVE AS BEING RECEIVED BY THE BIDDER, THIS BID MAY BE
REJECTED.

8. BIDDER'S BUSINESS INFORMATION

IMPORTANT NOTICE: If Bidder or other interested person is a corporation, state legal name of
corporation, and also the names of the president, secretary, treasurer and chief executive
officer/manager thereof. If Bidder is a partnership, joint venture, limited liability company or
other business entity, state the true name of the firm, and also the names of all partners, joint
ventures, managing members or other entities or parties having authority to act on behalf of the
entity, such as offtcers, owners or directors. If Bidder or other interested person is an individual,
state your first, middle and last names in full.

Bidder provides the following information concerning Bidder's business:

Bidder'S Name: Blizzard Fire Protection Owner: Alexander Terrell, Ops.Mngr.: Michele Kinney

County of Inyo Public Works Department
KITCHEN HOOD FIRE SUPPRESSION SYSTEM INSPECTION SERVICES

Bid Proposal Forms
Page 3



California Contractor's License No. : Type A1077 Extinguishing Systems, Servicing and Testing

Address: PO Box 1450

Mammoth Lakes, California zip 93546

(The above address will be used to send notice of acceptance or request for additional information.)

Telephone 760-934-4455 EXT. 2

Type of Business (check one):

Individual ( ), Partnership ( ), Joint Venture ( ), Corpor ation $/1,
Specify:

Limited Liability Company ( ), Other

Owners, Officers, Partners, or other Authorized Representatives:

THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY DECLARES UNDER PENALTY OF PERIURY
ACCORDING TO THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, THAT THEY ARE THE
INDIVIDUAL, MANAGING PARTNER, CORPORATE OFFICER, OR OTHER
REPRESENTATIVE, DULY AUTHORIZED BY LAW TO MAKE THIS BID ON BEHALF OF
BIDDER ACCORDING TO ALL OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SET FORTH OR
REFERENCED HEREIN.

Owner

(Signature Person) gitle)

03t11t2019Alexander Terrell

(Printed Name)

9. EXECUTION AND AGREEMENT

The undersigned Bidder hereby declares and agrees that:

(Date)

(a) Blizzard Fi re Protection (Name of Bidder or Bidder's

Representative; has carefully examined the Specifications, Contract and other portions of this Bid
Package and submits this Bid in accordance therewith.

(b) That if this Bid is accepted, the Bidder will enter into a written Contract with the County of
Inyo, State of Califomia.

County of Inyo Public Works Department
KITCHEN HOOD FIRE SUPPRESSION SYSTEM INSPECTION SERVICES

Bid Proposal Forms
Page 4



(c) That if Contract is awarded to Bidder, Bidder will accept in full, as payment for the materials
andlor services to be furnished pursuant to said Agreement, the amounts shown on Bid Sheet of
this Bid Package. It is understood and agreed that the quantities set forth are but estimates and the
unit price will apply to the actual work performed, whatever it may be.

(d) It is understood that no later than fifteen (15) days after award of the Contract to the Bidder, the
Bidder shall return the signed Contract to the County.

Blizzard Fi re Protection
(Company Name)4
(By)

Alexander Terrell, Owner

(Print Name)

IO. SCOPE OF WORK

The bidder must be a qualified State of California Contractor, with a valid "A" license issued by
the Office of the State Fire Marshal or a C-16 license as issued by the State of Califomia
Contractors State Licensing Board.

The Scope of Work for this contract will include the following for each ANSUL Hood listed on the
bid sheet:

o Inspection and testing of ANSUL R-102 Wet Chemical Fire Suppression systems in
kitchen hoods every 6 months (per Califomia20l6 Fire Code, Section 904 and Califomia
Code of Regulations, Title 19, Division 1, Chapter 5).

e Tests shall include a check of the detection system, alarms and releasing devices, including
manual stations and other associated equipment.

. Fire suppression system units shall be weighed and the required amount of agent verified.
If needed, retardant shall be added to the system meet the manufacturers specifications.
Stored pressure-type units shall be checked for the required pressure. The cartridge of
cartridge-operated units shall be weighed and replaced at intervals indicated by the
manufacturer.

wae rccclved -t
Qullter, Admlnlstafiv€ Offlcer

lnyo Gallfornla

County of Inyo Public Works Department
KITCHEN HOOD FIRE SUPPRESSION SYSTEM INSPECTION SERVICES

Bid Proposal Forms
Page 5



BID SHEET

The specific bid price for the materials and services to be rendered pursuant to the Scope of Work
for which this bid is made are as follows:

No. Site Description Address Hood Type
Install
Date

Upgrade
Date

Price Per
Insnection

Contract Total
(l0Insnections)

1
Inyo County Jail
Kitchen

550 S. Clay
st.
Independence

ANSUL Hood
(Double Tank)

r992 2009 $320.00 $3,200.00

2
Statham Hall
(IMAAA Kitchen)

138 N.
Jackson St.
Lone Pine

ANSUL Hood
(Single Tank)

1975 2009 $250.00 $2,500.00

3

Bishop Senior
Center (IMAAA
Kitchen)

506 Park Ave.
Bishop

ANSUL Hood
(Single Tank)

Mid-
80s

2009 $260.00 $2,600.00

4
Bishop Airport
Terminal
Restaurant

703 N.
Airport Rd.
Bishop

ANSUL Hood
(Double Tank)

2002 N/A $290.00 $2,900.00

Note: This is aprevailing wage job.

BID TOTAL IN NUMBERS (Contract total for all sites)

g 1 1,200.00

BID TOTAL IN WORDS

g Eleven thousand two hundred dollars.

County of Inyo Public Works Department
KITCHEN HOOD FIRE SUPPRESSION SYSTEM INSPECTION SERVICES

Bid Proposal Forms
Page 6



AGEI{DA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO
n Consent ! Departmental f Correspondence Action
n Schedule time for n Closed Session

n Public Hearing
n Informational

For Clerk's Use

Only:

AGENDA NUMBER

t1

FROM: Public Works/Road DeRartme6Nrit f
FoR THE B.ARD MEETING oF: Wl'{z's
SUBJECT: Sole Source Declaration for the design of the Annex HVAC Retrofit Project

DEPARTMENTAL RECOMMENDATIONS

The Public Works Department/Road Department requests the Board:

1. Declare Etchemendy Engineering, Inc. as a sole source provider for the design of the Annex HVAC
Retrofit Project.

2. Apprqve the Contract between the County of Inyo and Etchemendy Engineering, Inc. of Reno, NV for.\
Engindering Services for a lump sum amount of Eighty Thousand and fifty dollars ($80,050).

3. Authorize the chairperson to execute the contract; contingent upon obtaining appropriate signatures.

CAO RECOMMENDATION:

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:

The Inyo County Public Works Department requires the services of a mechanical engineering consultant for the

Annex HVAC Retrofit Project, the preliminary engineering for this project is part of the 18/19 Deferred
Maintenance Budget. Additionally, a portion of the project, the Information Services Back-Up Cooling Project
is budgete<lin 18/i9 Deferred Maintenance Budget. The remainder of the construction work will occur in the

19120 Fiscal Year if included in the approved Deferred Maintenance list for that year.

In the f-all of 2016, Public Wolks sought proposals for an evaluation of heating, ventilation and air conditioning
(HVAC) system in the Courtirouse Annex Building. Only one proposal was received after reaching out to
several engineering firms. Etchemendy Engineering (EEI) r,vas chosen, and in May 2017, the evaluation was

completed.

Due to EEI's extensive knowledge of this system, Public Works believes it is in the best interest of the County
to declare EEI a sole source provider for the required design r,vork under IV Procurement of Services Section
I.2.d) of the Inyo County Procurement Manual:

"Proposed contractor has a substantial investment that would have to be duplicated at the County's
expense by another contractor entering the field."

The lump sum amount for this project is divided into four phases:

o Design - Information Services Back-Up Cooling ($12,640)
o Construction Administration Services - Information Services Back-Up Cooling ($3,160)
. Design - Annex HVAC Retrofit ($51,400)
o Construction Administration Services - Annex HVAC Retlofit ($12,850)

The construction administration phases will be billable at the completion of the construction phase.



ALTERNATIVES:

The Board could choose to deny the sole source request, and request that Public Works advertise a Request for
Proposals. This is not recommeded due to the additional costs to the County for another consultant to
familiarize with the system.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
The Inyo County Auditors Office
County Counsel
County Administrative Officer

FINANCING:

Budget Unit 011501 Defened Maintenance, Object Code 5265 Professional Services. The Defened
Maintenance Budget included $30,000 for the design work. To cover the additional costs, Public Works
requested that the CAO approve the reallocation of $33,551 from the South Street Flooring Project (which has

been postponed) and $7,000 remaining in the budget for the Jail Boiler Design Project. See attached memo
with CAO approval.
The construction administration portions of this contract will be paid from the construction budgets of the
respective projects. There is $50,000 approved in the budget for the Information Services Back-Up Cooling
project. The Annex HVAC Retrofit project will be requested in the 19120 Fiscal Year; if the project is not
approved then the construction administration charges would not be incurred.

AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (MuSt bECOUNTY COUNSEL

& Cl.uut^U_
reviewed and approved by County Counsel prior to submission to the board clerk.)

AUDITOR/CONTROLLER ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the auditor/controller prior to

Approved:

submission to the board clerk.)

PERSONNEL
GiiB?tission,--d 1J

'nv,"' of personnelPERSONNEL to

Approved:

RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by
board clerk.)

APPROVALS

CAO/BUDGET OFFICER SIGNATURE,:

DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE:
(Not to be signed until all approvals are received)

o^t",7lqf /9

Date: Zm Q ,p5 , 4



County of Inyo
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

168 N. Edwards Street, Independence,CA93526
Main 760.878-.0201 Fax760.878.2001

TO: Clint Quilter, CAO

FROM: Ashley Helms, Public Works

RE: Request to allocate excess funds in the 18/19 Defened Maintenance Budget to the Annex Building
HVAC Design

The approved20lSlI9 Deferred Maintenance Budget includes $30,000 for the re-design of Annex
building fryAC system. This design contract was to include two separate projects - the server room
cooling system (with a generator back-up), which is funded for construction in this fiscal year; and the
upgrades to the remainder of the Annex building, which will occur next year.

The proposals received from Etchemendy Engineering are as follows:

IS Cooling Design
IS Cooling Construction Administration
Annex fryAC Retrofit Design
Annex fryAC Retrofit Construction Administration

$t2,640
$3,160
$51,400
$12,850

The design portions total $64,040, which exceeds the budget by $34,040. To cover this shortfall the
Public Works Department would like to reallocate $33,551 from the South Street Flooring project (which
has been postponed) and $7,000 remaining in the Jail Boiler Design Project.

The construction administration portions of the contract will be funded by the construction budget of the
respective projects; the consultant will not expend those funds until authorized by the County in writing.

If any further information is required, please contact Ashley Helms at760-878-0200 or
ahe lms @ inyo count-v. u s.

Thank YOU,

Ashley Helms
Engineering Assistant II
Inyo County Public Works

A

Clint



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND ETCHEMENDY ENGINEERING, INC.,

FOR THE PROVISION OF DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") has the need for the enqineering
and consulting services of Etchemendy Engineering. lnc., (hereinafter referred to as "Consultant"), and in
consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties
hereby agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPE OF WORK.

The Consultant shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Aftachment A, aftached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County to the
Consultant to perform under this Agreement will be made by Michael Errante. the Director of Public Works.
Requests to the Consultant for work or services to be performed under this Agreement will be based upon the
County's need for such services. The County makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any
minimum level or amount of services or work will be requested of the Consultant by the County under this
Agreement. County by this Agreement incurs no obligation or requirement to request from Consultant the
performance of any services or work at all, even if County should have some need for such services or work
during the term of this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Consultant at the County's request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement and, as applicable, as
set forth, in Attachment E, attached hereto and incorporated herein.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be from April 9, 2019 to December 31. 2020, unless sooner
terminated as provided below. ln addition, County shall have the option to extend the Agreement for an
additional one-year period as follows: from January 1. 2021 through December 31. 2021 .

County shall exercise such option by giving written notice to Contractor at least thirty (30) days
before the expiration of the Agreement, or an extension thereof.

The notice shall specify the period of the options being exercised. The option to extend shall be upon
the same terms and conditions stated in this Agreement.

3. CONSIDERATION.

A, Compensation. County shall pay Consultant in accordance with the Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by
Consultant at the County's request.

B. Travel and per diem. County shall not reimburse Consultant for the travel expenses and
per diem which Gonsultant incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement
(see Attachment C).

C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Consultant
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages,
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Consultant shall not

County of lnyo and Etchemendy Engineering, lnc.
(lndependent Consultant - Professional Services)

Page 1 of 12

Modified Contract No. 156

a25t2019



be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

D. Limit upon amount payablg under Aoreement. The total sum of all payments made by the
County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed Eighty
Thousand Fifty Dollars, ($80,050.00) (initial term) and Zero Dollars $0.00 (extension option) for a total of
$80,050.00 Dollars (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit'). County expressly reserves the right to deny
any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work performed which is in excess of
the contract limit.

E. Billinq and pavment. Consultant shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized
statement of all hours spent by Consultant in performing services and work described in Attachment A, which
were done at the County's request. This statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth
(Sth) day of the month. The statement to be submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the
preceding month through and including the last day of the preceding month. This statement will identify the
date on which the hours were worked and describe the nature of the work which was performed on each day.
Consultant 's statement to the County will also include an itemization of any travel or per diem expenses,
which have been approved in advance by County, incurred by Consultant during that period. The itemized
statement for travel expenses and per diem will include receipts for lodging, meals, and other incidental
expenses in accordance with the Coun$'s accounting procedures and rules. Upon timely receipt of the
statement by the fifth (sth) day of the month, County shall make payment to Consultant on the last day of the
month.

F. Federal and State taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any
federal or state income taxes or social security from any payments made
by County to Consultant under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made
under this Agreement to non-California resident independent Consultant's
when it is anticipated that total annual payments to Consultant under this
Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars
($1,499.00).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes
or payments from sums paid by County to Consultant under this
Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other assessments on such sums is
the sole responsibility of Consultant. County has no responsibility or liability
for payment of Consultant's taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by County to Consultant, and taxes withheld from
payments to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the
lnternal Revenue Service and the California State Franchise Tax Board. To
facilitate this reporting, Consultant shall complete and submit to the County
an lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this
Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Consultant's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Aftachment A, which are requested by the Goun$. lt is understood by Consultant that the performance of
these services and work will require a varied schedule. Consultant will arrange his/her own schedule, but will
coordinate with County to insure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will be
performed within the time frame set forth by County. Consultant shall not be held liable for delays or non-
performance due to causes that are outside the control of Consultant, such as disasters that cannot be
evaded through the exercise of due care,

County of lnyo and Etchemendy Engineering, lnc.
(lndependent Consultant * Professional Services)

Page 2 of 12

Modified Contract No. 156

312512019



5. REQUTRED L|CENSES, CERT|FICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal
governments for Consultant to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by
Consultant and be valid at the time Consultant enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Consultant must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits
in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, drive/s
licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits
will be procured and maintained in force by Consultant at no expense to the County. Consultant will provide
County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and
permits which are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute
between Consultant and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the
services identified in Aftachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of
this Agreement.

B. Consultant warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any
federal department or agency. Consultant also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.gov.

6. OFFTCE SPACE, SUPPL|ES, EQU|PMENT, ETC.

Consultant shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Consultant to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Consultant, for any expense or cost incurred by
Consultant in procuring or maintaining such items, Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by
Consultant in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Consultant.

7, COUNTYPROPERTY.

A. Personal Property of County. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective
or safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Consultant by Coun$ pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.
Consultant will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in
Consultanfs possession. Consultant will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items,
partial or total, which is the result of Consultanfs negligence.

B. Products of Consultant's Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications,
plans, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result,
product, or manifestation of, Consultant's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination
of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the
Agreement, Consultant will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

8. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.

For the duration of this Agreement Gonsultant shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope and
amount specified in Attachment D and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

9. STATUSOFCONSULTANT.

All acts of Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent Consultants, and not as agents, officers, or employees of

County of lnyo and Etchemendy Engineering, lnc.
(lndependent Consultant - Professional Services)

Page 3 of '12

Modified Contract No. 156

3t25t2019



County. Consultant, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
Coung. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Consultant has no authori$ or responsibility to
exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Consultant is to be
considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Consultant and County that this Agreement shall
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a
joint venture. As an independent Consultant:

A. Consultant shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Consultant under this Agreement.

B. Consultant shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Consultant in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Consultiant, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent Consultant's, and not as employees of
County.

{0. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

Consultant agrees to indemnify, including the cost to defend, entity and its otficers, officials,
employees, and volunteers from and against any and all claims, demands, costs, or liability that arise out
of, or pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of Consultant and its
employees or agents in the performance of services under this contract, but this indemnity does not apply
to liability for damages arising from the sole negligence, active negligence, or willful acts of the County;
and does not apply to any passive negligence of the County unless caused at least in part by the
Consultant.

To the extent permitted by law, County shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Consultant, its
agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities,
expenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and aftorney's fees, arising out of, or resulting from, the
active negligence, or wrongful acts of County, its officers, or employees.

11. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Records. Consultant shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, and municipal law, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Consultant shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of
this Agreement. Consultant may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B. lnspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Consultant, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Consultant.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Consultant and its agents,
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the

County of lnyo and Etchemendy Engineering, lnc.
(lndependent Consultant - Professional Services)

Page 4 of 12

Modified Conhact No. 156

3t25t2019



California Code of Regulations. Consultant shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.1. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

13. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Consultant thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel. Consultant may cancel this Agreement
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirly (30) days written notice of such intent to
cancelto County.

14. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the services of Consultant. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Consultant as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Consultant shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.
Further, Consultant shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the
prior written consent of County.

15. DEFAULT.

lf the Consultant abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by
County, County may declare the Consultant in default and terminate this Agreement upon flve (5) days
wriften notice to Consultant. Upon such termination by default, Coun$ will pay to Consultant all amounts
owing to Consultant for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default, Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below.

17. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Consultant further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Consultant in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Consultant agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Consultant only with the express written
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Consultant without the County's written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Consultant in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

County of lnyo and Etchemendy Engineering, lnc.
(lndependent Consultant - Professional Services)

Page 5 of 12

Modified Contract No. 156

3t25t2A19



18. GONFLTCTS.

Consultant agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

{9. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Consultant agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,
gain, or enhancement. Further, Consultant agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any County, association, corporation, or person who,
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has
been an adverse parly in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Gonsultant by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

20. SEVERABILIW.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable,

21. FUNDING LIMITATION.

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying
Consultant of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modiflcation
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
two (22) (Amendment).

22. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the originalAgreement to maintain continuity.

23. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Consultant or County shall be
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first
class mail to, the respective parties as follows:

County of Inyo
Public Works Department

Address
City and State

P.O. Drawer Q

Gonsultant:
Etchemendv Enoineerino. lnc. Name
10597 Double R Blvd, Suite 1 Address
Reno. Nevada89521 City and State

County of lnyo and Etchemendy Engineering, lnc.
(lndependent Consultant - Professional Services)

Page 6 of 12

Modified Conhact No. 156

3t25t2019

lndeoendence. CA 93526



24. ENTIREAGREEMENT.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

--o0o--

County of lnyo and Etchemendy Engineering, lnc.
(lndependent Consultant - Professional Services)

PageT of 12

Modified Contrac-t No. 156

3t25t2019



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND ETCHEMENDY ENGINEERING, INC.,

FOR THE PROVISION OF ENGINEERING AND CONSULTING SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
DAY OF

COUNTY OF INYO CONSULTANT

Signature Signature

Print or Type Name Print or Type Name

Dated: Dated:

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY

By:By:

&tvant
County Counsel

AS TO ACCOUNTING

AS N REQUIREMENTS:

Services

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

Gounty Risk Manager

s/CoCo/Contrats/Itlodifi ed/EtchemendyEngineering

County of lnyo and Etchemendy Engineering, lnc.

(lndependent Consultant - Professional Services)
Page 8 of 12

Modified Conkact No. 156

3t25r2019



ATTACHMENT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND ETCHEMENDY ENGINEERING, INC.,

FOR THE PROVISION OF DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION SERVICES

TERM:

From: April9, 2019 To: December 31, 2020

Extension Option: From January 1,2021through December 31,2021

SCOPE OF WORK:

The Scope of Work covered by this contract, which includes the design of the lnformation Service Back-Up
Cooling Project and the Annex Building HVAC Retrofit Project, shall be in general accordance with
Etchemendy Engineering lnc.'s proposals entitled Contract Proposal: lnyo County Annex Building HVAC
Retrofit dated 0311112019 and Contract Proposal: lnyo County Annex Building Server Room HVAC
Replacemenf dated 0110712019, which are included in this attachment.

County of lnyo and Etchemendy Engineering, lnc.
(lndependent Consultant - Professional Services)

Page 9 of 12

Modified Contrac{ No. 156

3t25t2019



lnyo County Annex Building HVAC Retrofit R1
03t1'u19

10597 Double R Blvd, Suite 1

Reno, Nevada 89521
(775) 853-1131 - Fax (775) 852-2352

To: Glint Quilter,
lnyo Gounty Public Works
PO Box Q
lndependence, GA
Phone: (760) 973-6064

Gontract Proposal

From: Brandon Etchemendy, PE

Principal

Project lnformationr
We understand this project to consist of the retrofit of the existing HVAC system at the
lnyo County Annex Building in lndependence, CA. With the exception of the chiller, the
system is original to the building and is far past its expected lifespan. The system is
comprised of an outdoor chiller plant, indoor boiler plant and 7 indoor air handlers
throughout the building. There are two existing air handlers on the first floor. One serves
office area and will be retrofifted as part of this project. The second conditions a server
room, and adjacent storage rooms, and is being replaced under a separate scope. The
remaining 5 air handlers are located on the second floor in the ceiling space and lack
service access as currently installed. We propose replacing the entire system as the
boiler and air handlers are far past their expected lifespan as the chiller utilizes a
refrigerant who's production ceases in2020. Electrical and structural designs will be
provided as necessary for the retrofit.

Scope of Work:
Our scope of work will include: Up to 2 site visits for design purposes. Demolition
drawings will be provided as necessary for the equipment replacement, electrical
infrastructuraland building architectural/structuralchanges. Calculations and detailed
design drawings for the HVAC systems in accordance with above listed renovations.
Structural/architectural designs of the renovation necessary for the proposed HVAC
replacement system. Electrical designs of the renovation necessary for the proposed
HVAC replacement system. The structuraliarchitectural and electrical engineering
designs will be completed by Tectonics Design Group and JP Engineering respectively.
Model energy code calculations. Coordination with, and oversite of, other disciplines as
required to produce construction documents suitable for use in competitive bidding.
Attendance at local coordination meetings with other design professionals and the
Owner. Construction administration services including in office submittaland rfi review
and up to 3 site visits for job progress review. All other CA will be provided on a time and
materials basis.

Excluded ltems:
Third party Plan Review
Seismic Restraint Design
Water Usage Calculations

This proposal covers the work provided for above and does not include any modifications to the mechanical design. Any
modifications based on equipment or owner changes once the original design is completed shall be covered under an
additional contract.



lnyo County Annex Building Server Room HVAC Replacement
0'1107119

10597 Double R Blvd, Suite 1

Reno, Nevada 89521
(775) 853-1131 - Fax (775)852-2352

Gontract Proposal
To: Glint Quilter,

lnyo Gounty Public Works
PO Box Q
lndependence, GA
Phone: (760) 973-6064

Project lnformation:
We understand this project to consist of the replacement of the existing HVAC serving
the server room at the counties Annex Building in lndependence, CA. The current
system is aging and struggles to maintain temperature at times. The intent is to re-duct
the existing 5 ton mini-split, and replace the outdoor condensing unit, for better
conditioning of the space as well as replace the existing 7 ton air handler serving the lT
Room and remainder of the lower floor attached to the server room. The mini-split will
allow independent control of the various spaces on the lower floor while recovering the
heat from the server room to heat other spaces in the winter. The HVAC system, at least
a portion of the system, for the server room is to be backed up by an emergency
generator. The generator will be designed as a part of this scope. The size of the
generator, and the amount of server HVAC connected to it, will be determined based on
the ooals needed met for coolino in a outaqe.

Scope of Work:
Our scope of work will include: An initial site visit. Calculations and detailed design
drawings and CSI specifications for the HVAC systems, and generator, in accordance
with the proposed equipment replacement. Our design scope includes those facilities
within each building extending no more than 5' outside of the building line. Coordination
with other disciplines along with the production of construction documents suitable for
use in competitive bidding. The electrical engineering designs will be completed by JP
Engineering. Attendance at coordination meetings with other design professionals and
the Owner. Construction administration services including submittal and rfi review and up
to 3 site visits for project progress review and punch lists. All other CA and site visits will
be provided on a time and materials basis.

Excluded ltemsr
Third party Plan Review
Seismic Restraint Design
Water Usage Calculations
Energy model for LEED, or any other accreditation authority, requirements or submittal
LEED, or anv other accreditation authoritv, documentation requirements or submittal

Fee Typer Flat Fee
Design
Gonstruction Administration Seruices

This proposal covers the work provided for above and does not include any modifications to the mechanical design. Any
modifications based on equipment or owner changes once the original design is completed shall be covered under an
additional contract.

From: Brandon Etchemendy, PE

Principal

$1216,40
$3r'l60



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND ETCHEMENDY ENGINEERING, INC.,

FOR THE PROVISION OF DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION SERVICES

TERM:

From: April 9, 2019 To: December 31 ,2020

Extension Option: From January 1,2021through December 31,2021

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

Etchemendy Engineering, lnc.'s fee for the services described in Attachment A to the contract: Scope of
Work shall be a lump sum fixed fee of Sixty Four Thousand Two Hundred and Fifu Dollars ($64,250.00) for
this project. This lump sum shall be divided into two phases as follows:

Design
Construction Administration Services

30% Design Completion
75% Design Completion
100% Design Submitral

$12,400.00
$ 3,100.00

Design - Annex HVAC Retrofit $51,400.00
Construction Administration Services - Annex HVAC Retrofit $12,850.00

The total Design fee for each project is payable to the Consultant in the following increments:

50% fee payable
80% fee payable
100% fee payable

The 30o/o Design Completion will include preliminary design drawings and description.

The75o/o Design Completion will include preliminary plans, specifications and estimate of probable costs for
the project.

The 100% Design Submittalwill include the submiftal of all plans, specifications and estimates to the County,
in a form ready for bidding.

The lump sum total for Construction Administration Services for each project will not be billed by the
Consultant until approved by the County at the end of the construction phase.

County of lnyo and Etchemendy Engineering, lnc.
(lndependent Consultant - Professional Services)

Page 10 of 12

Modified Contract No. 156

3125t2019



ATTACHMENT G

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND ETCHEMENDY ENGINEERING, INC.,

FOR THE PROVISION OF DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION SERVICES

TERM:

From: April 9, 2019 To: December 31 ,2020

Extension Option: From January 1,202'l through December 31,2021

SCHEDULE OF TRAVEL AND PER DIEM PAYMENT:

There will be no compensation for Travel or Per Diem. Any and all costs of Travel and Per Diem are
considered to be inclusive in the Lump Sum price, as described in the Schedule of Fees, Attachment B to
the Contract.

County of lnyo and Etchemendy Engineering, lnc.
(lndependent Consultant - Professional Services)

Page 11 of 12

Modified Contract No. 156

3t25t2019



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COLTNTY OF INYO
Departmental ! Cor..rpondence Action

I Public Hearing ! srn.aule time for ! Closed Session ! Informational

X Consent

For Clerk's Use

Only:

AGENDA NUMBER

;o

FROM: Public Works/ Road Department

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: dF& ; g zutg

SUBJECT: Request authorization to purchase 120 linear feet of corrugated metal pipe culvert and the
associated hardware to replace existing culvert on Poleta Road.

DEPARTMENTAL RECOMMENDATIONS :

Request your Board approve the purchase of 120 linear feet of corrugated metal pipe culvert and the associated
hardware from Western Nevada Supply of Bishop, CA in an amount not to exceed $11,278.90.

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:

The Road Department solicited bids in March, 2019 for materials needed to replace an existing culvert located
on Poleta Road in Bishop. Bids were opened on March 25,2019 and three bids were received:

1. Western Nevada Supply of Bishop, CA $11,278.90

2. Brown's Supply of Bishop, CA $16,825.91

3. Kelly Pipe Co., LLC of Bakersfield, CA No Bid

Kelly Pipe Co., LLC of Bakersfield mailed in a bid package, but wrote in that they are unable to bid the
specified materials and thanked the County for the opportunity. The Road Department has reviewed the
remaining two bids and found them to be responsive.

The Road Department is recommending your Board authorize the purchase of 120 linear feet of corrugated
metal pipe culvert and associated hardware from Westem Nevada Supply, to be delivered to the Bishop road
yard. The total expense, including delivery and taxes, is not to exceed $11,278.90.

ALTERNATIVES: Your Board could choose not to approve this purchase. This is not recommended, as the
material is needed to replace an existing failing culvert on Poleta Road. If the purchase is not approved, the
Road Department would need to re-advertise which would delay the replacement and could result in less
favorable bids.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
County Counsel for review ofagenda request and approval ofpurchase order agreement.
Auditor's Office for payment of invoices.

FINANCING
The funding for this replacement of existing culvert materials will be paid from the Road Department Budget
034600, Object Code 5199 Maintenance of Structures - Materials.

Authorize Purchase of Culvert Materials Page 7 of 2



AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMSCOUNTYCOT]NSEL

Date
(Must be reviewed and approved by County Counsel priorto submission to the board clerk.)

AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the auditor/@ntroller prior to to

PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed aod approved by the directo. of ffisonnel .e*ices prior to submission to the board

clerk.)
PERSONNEL DIRECTOR

N/AApproved: Date_

APPII.OVALS

7

DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE:
(Not to be signed until all approvals are received) Date: 2ptQ,o1-O (

Authorize Purchase of CulvertMaterials Page 2 of 2



COUNTY OF INYO BID TABULATION

Project Title & Bid No. ir\otT -oS C tt ( O.pLue/t {; gt-

Bid Opening Due: 14,*\tl "1 Location: Countv Adnin Center

Opened By:

-D6p.vc-1 
8)1,9

Ln6( 1

I B...,"nr S*fftl Ir,,BJS '?l

I
-**--_''--l*-

n
U,us{,anr Ntl I6pQ ?lr,a;t 1o

J {e rq ?;fe to ,Lvc No B;d"

4,

5

6.

7

8.

l0

9

Itid Additive
A

Eid A&litive
B

llirt Alttitive
C

Tr.aol Buse
Bid und

tlrlfitivcs

Bose Bkl
BIl)l)ER Ii.[,\f E Bond

Present: < Iv



1

2.

BrD NO. 2019-05 PAGE I OF 3

couNTY oF |NYO (760) 878-0293

MATERIAL OR SERVICES
TO BE DELIVERED TO: INYO COUNTY ROAD DEPARTMENT

3236 WEST LINE STREET
BrsHoP, cA 93514

RETURN BIDS TO: INYO COUNTY BOARD CLERK
COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE CENTER
P.O. BOX N
224 NORTH EDWARDS STREET
INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526

BID OPENING: DATE: Mondav. March 25.2019 TIME:3:30 P.M. {FDTI

Prices quored FoB DESTINATION UNLESS OTHERWTSE STATED.
MAKE YOUR BID OR QUOTATIONS IN THE SPACE PROVIDED ON THE ATTACHED SHEETS.
IMPORTANT: Bid must be sealed with bid number as indicated above on the outside of the envelope.
Read the lnstructions and Conditions before making your Bid or Quotation.

INSTRUCTIONS & CONDITIONS

All prices and notalions must be typewritten or written in ink. No erasures permitted. Mistakes may be crossed out
and corrections made adjacent and must be initialed in ink by person signing quotation.

State brand or make on each item. lf quoting an article exactly as specified, the words "or equal" must be stricken out
by the bidder. lf quoting on other than make, model or brand specified, the manufacturefs name and the catalogue
number must be given, or descriptive cut and information attached to the quotations.

Quote on each item separately. Prices should be stated in units specified herein.

Each quotation must be in a separate sealed envelope wilh bid number, on outside, and must be submitted to the
lnyo County Board Clerk, not later than the hour and day specified hereon, at which time it will be publicly opened
and read. A properly addressed and bid numbered envelope, without postage, is included for your convenience.

Time of delivery is a part of the consideration and must be stated in definite terms, and must be adhered to. lf time
varies on different items, the bidder shall so state in the column provided, opposite each item.

Terms of less than 10 days for cash discount will be considered as net.

All quotations must be signed with the Firm's name and by a responsible officer or employee. Obligations assumed
by such signature must be fulfilled.

No charge for packing, drayage, or for any other purpose will be allowed over and above the prices quoted on this
sheet.

The right is reserved, unless othenrlise stated, to accept or reject any or all quotations, or any part thereol either
separately or as a whole, or, to waive any informality in a bid.

Samples of items, when required, must be furnished free of expense to the County of lnyo and if not destroyed by
tests, will upon request be returned at the bidders expense.

ln case of default by the vendor, the County of lnyo may procure the articles or service from other sources.

Cost of transportation, handling, and/or inspection on deliveries or offers for delivery, which do not meet the
specifications will be for the account of the vendor.

The vendor shall hold the County of lnyo, its officers, agents, servants and employees, harmless from liability of any
nature or kind on account of use of any copyrighted, or uncopyrighted composition, secret process, patented or
unpatented invention, article or appliance furnished or used under this quotation.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

L

L

10.

11.

12,

13.



BrD NO. 2019-05 PAGE 2 OF 3

14. The vendor will not be held liable for failure or delay in fulfillment if hindered or prevented by fire, strikes, or Acts of
God.

15.

16.

'17.

Quotalions are subject to acceptance at any time within 30 days afler opening same, unless otherwise stipulated.

Verify your quotations before submission as they cannot be withdrawn, or corrected, after being opened.

Return this sheet whether or not you quote a price. lf you do not quote, state your reason, othenruise your name may
be removed from the mailing list.

Amounts paid for transportation of property to the County of lnyo are exempt from Federal Transportation Tax. An
exemption certificate is not required where the shipping papers show the consignee as County of lnyo, as such
papers may be accepted by the carrier as proof of the exempt character of the equipment.

There is a contracting preference of 5% for small buslness enterprises and 8% for local businesses available
for this Request for Proposals (bids). To be eligible for the preferences, a small business enterprise must
submit proof of state registration as a SBE with its bid and a local business must provide certification that it
is a local business as defined by lnyo County Code $6.06,020 (b) with its bid.

THE FOLLOWING MUST BE FILLED IN BY THE BIDDER IN SUBMITTING HIS BID:

DATED AT (crw& STATE)

,f,/1.,,.1 11 2019_-

CASH DISCOUNT TERMS

To the County of lnyo: We (l) hereby agree to furnish the articles and/or services,
at the prices and terms stated subject to the instructions and conditions set forth
in this bid.

NAME OF COMPANY

NAME OF COMPANY REPRESENTATIVE

18.

19.

COMPANY REPRESENTATIVE SIGNATUR

STREET ADDRESS 5t{ Mqloel-

CITY AND STATE

PHONE NUMBER

FAX NUMBER
*ilP:Igu8-
fil,iffi*,.,. Oilorr

,:, md lnyoGounry, Crlllomh



BID NO. 201945 PAGE 3 OF 3

CMP Culvert Pipe

a. I20 LF - 5' (50") diameter of 'squash' CMP galvanized culvert pipe, 14 gage

b. 6 each - Galvanized dimple arch coupling bands for 5' (60") diameter pipe-arch culverts with
associated hardware

For questions or cornments regarding specifications please contqct Trevor Taylor at
tta.vI or{&,i nYcoun ty. U; or (7 60) -B7 I-0 i47

NOTE: YOUR NAME & ADDRESS (NOT HANDWRITTEN) MUST APPEAR ON THE ENVELOPE
WHEN RETURNING YOUR BID. ENVELOPES WITHOUT A RETURN ADDRESS WLL BE
DISPOSED OF WITHOUT BEING OPENED.

Subtotal

Sales Tax (7.75o/ol

Shipping Charge

LFr tl b').-{nb

ql I .l.l
\

I alq,1DTotal

Delivery will be made in 3 O days after receipt of order.

Bid prices will remain valid and in effect through
t7

lndicate any exception to the bid:



ABC E[ro
775.738.98r1

$ Lrke Trlror
030.541,t884

CorDollta
050 8. Roclr Blvd. ' $prrks, NV 89t13j

tcl26.360.6800 . lar 75.359.46t19

**QUOTATION*r

Trtlokaa
6:10.682.500S

$lrrnvfib
530251,6800

82.78 9933.60

89.01 534.06

1 TOTAL L0457.66

LA461.66

Carron Clty
775,882.0900

9lrhop
760.873.711S

U,lnnamuccr
776.626,6s00

TO: Ilt{YO COIINTY ROAD DEPT.
P.O. BOX DR,AWER Q
MDEPENDBICE, CA 93526

120 D2NS273576

6 W2NS352164

DATE: 02 a4/L9 NO. 81652s
sFFEsrrvE 02/04/L9 ro 02/a4/8
ITOB:

TERIi!S: NET 30
FOB: ffa
PREP. BY CRAIG FRECHETTE

WE ARE PIJEASED TO QUOTE YOU ON THE FOIJ.OWING MATSRIAI,
r*r sAr.ns TAt( NoI. INCII'DED r**

PAGE: 1
====3--=eE=e=!-=-E--a-s=taEa=Es*-EE-ErE=====EE===E===€= =EEEEE=B=EgE===-!rEE3=--=E

Qty Part Nwnber DescripEion price... Extended
===E=33=-==3=€t==- ====-====-===*-=-=--== ==-€=======-E===E========-=========-== ==

1

66 X 5]. X 2OF'T ARCH CT'I,VERT
14ga

65 x 5X arch cplg

QUOTATION TOTAIJS

* t t SALES TAt( NOT fNCITUDED * !t t
THE MATERIAL ITISTED AAOVE TS OUOTED PER TITE PI'ANS AND SPECS
PROVfDED TO WNg, AI\ID I{HETHER SPECIFIED OR NOT WIIJIJ BE SUB\IECT
TO TIIE ENGINEER'S APPROVAIJ. ALL SADES ARE gIrB'tECT TO TAX.

-far 3tt '24



APPROPRIATION CHANGE REQUEST FORM

DEPARTMENT Road Deparrment DATE 43t29/19

1.

BUDGETUMT: 034600

FROM: 5265 AMOLINT: $12,000

$

$

$

TOTAI $12.OOO

DEPT Road Department

TO: 5199 AMOUNT: $12,000

s

$

$

TOTAL $12.000

ruSTIFICATION (Attach rnemo if necessary) DEPARTMENT HEAD

For the purchase ofCulve*s for Poleta

BY:

)
Sufficient Funds Available Insuflicient Funds

AUDITOR-CONTROLLER

BY;

3.

Board Action Required

Board Action not Required

Approve as Required

REMARKS:

4/5's Vote Required

Approve as Revised Disapprove

. CO{"]NTYADMIMSTRATOR

BY:

4.
ATTEST:

REV l/3/2003

Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
DATE;



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

[] Consent I Departmental I Correspondence Action

I Scheduled Time for [] Closed Session

For Clerks Use Only

AGENDA NUMBER

JI
I Public Hearing

I lnformational

FROM: Sheriff's Department

FOR THE BOARD MEETING Or: April 9, 2019

SUBJECT: Amendment one with CALOES for Radio Maintenance

D E PART M E N TA L RE C O MM E NDAT I O N :

Request the Board

A. Amend existing schedule of fees with CALOES to increase the monthly payment amount and extend
the term of service.

B. Approve the amendment between the County of Inyo and CALOES for the provision of radio
maintenance, extending the term for 3 years, beginning July 1, 2016 through June 30,2022,a1the rate
of $21,667 for FY 19120, $21,667 for FY 20121 and $21,666 for FY 21122 increasing the not to
exceed amount by $65,000 for a total not to exceed amount of $125,000

C. Authorize the Sheriff or designee to sign the amendment, contingent upon approval of the 201912020
and future budgets.

CAO RECOMMENDATION:

SAMMARY DISCUSSION:

The State of California has been handling our maintenance and repair of our radio repeater sites for some time,
under various agreements. These repeater sites are imperative to the Sheriff s office for radio communication.
ALTERNATIWS:

Deny this amendment and seek other maintenance suppliers. This is not recommended as it is critical to have the repeater
working.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLWMENT:

County Counsel
Auditor's office

FINANCING:

The cost of this agreement is included in the 2018-2019 Sheriffs'Department requested budget 022700, Object Code 5171
Maintenance of Equipment, and will be included in future budgets, to be encumbered annually.



Agenda Request
Page 2

DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE:
(Not to be signed until all approvals are

COUNry COUNSEL: AGREEMENTS, CONTMCTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (MUSIbE

and apprcved by county counsel pior to submission to the board cletu.)

\r* /\.e--*.

reviewed

Approved:

AUDITOR/CONTROLLER: ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the auditor-contoller pior to

3 n
submrssion to the board clerk.)

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR: PERSONNEL AND RELATED ffE]Uqfvltr5i--be reviewed and approved by the director of personnel services prior to

submission to the board clerk.)

Aooroved: Date

APPROVALS

=/er/t?



STATE OF CALIFORNIA

STAN DARD AG REEMENT AMEND]UIENT
STD. 213 A (Rev 6/03)

! cHncx HERE IF ADDITIoNAL PAGES ARE ATTAcHED Pages AMENDMENT NUMBER

1

AGREEMENT NI.-JMBER

4105-6
REGISTRATION NUMBER

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Aoencv and Contractor named below:
STATE AGENCY'S NAME

Inyo County Sheriff s Office
CONTRACTOR'S NAME

California Governor's Office of Emersencv Services (Cal OES)
2 The term of this

Aoreement is
July 1, 2016, or upon DGS
approval, whichever is later

through June30,2022

3. The maximum amount of this
Agreement after this amendment is:

$125,000.00
One Hundred Twenty Five Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents

4. The parties mutually agree to this amendment as follows. All actions noted below are by this reference made a part of the
Agreement and incorporated herein:

' EXHIBIT A Statement of Work 3. Contract Amount: Adding funds in the amount of $65,000 broken down as follows:
Maximum Amount: $60,000
Additional Funds: $65,000
Amended Maximum Amount: $125,000
FY t9 D0 - $2 1,667.00, Fy 20/21 - $2 1,667.00" Fy 2t /22 - $2 1,666.00

EXHIBIT A Statement of Work 6. Term of Agreement: Changing terms as follows
Current Term: 0'1/0112016 - 06/30/2019
New Term: 07 /01 12016 - 06/3012022

EXHIBIT A Statement of Work 7. Notices: Contacts have been updated.

EXHIBIT B Budget Detail and Payment Provisions
(This Exhibit to be replaced in its entirety)

EXHIBIT B-l Service Descriptions & Rates
(This Exhibit to be replaced in its entirety)

EXHIBIT C General Terms and Conditions
(This Exhibit to be replaced in its entirety).

All other terms and conditions shall remain the same.

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto

CONTRACTOR

CONTRACTOR'S NAME (lf other than an individual, state whether a coryoration, paftnership, etc.)

California Governor's Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES)
BY (A uth o ized Sign atu re)

.6
PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING

Tabitha Stout, Assistant Director of Administrative Services
ADDRESS

3650 Schriever Avenue
cA 9s6ss

AGENCY

AGENCY NAME

Sheriff s Office
BY (Authonzed Signaturc)

6
PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING

Jeff Hollowell, Undersheriff
ADDRESS

DATE SIGNED (Do not type)

DATE SIGNED (Do nottype)

CALIFORNIA
Department of General Services

Use Only

n Exempt per:

PO Drawer S, 550 S. Clay Street



State of Galifornia lnyo Gounty Sheriff's Office
Galifornia Governor's Office of Emergency Services SA4105-6 Amendment 1

EXHIBIT A
STATEMENT OF WORK

Radio Maintenance Agreement

1. CONTRACT DESCRIPTION

This is an agreement between California Governor's Office of Emergency Services, Public Safety
Communications, hereinafter called the State, and lnyo County Sheriff's Office, hereinafter called
the Agency.

2. PURPOSE & SCOPE

The Agency requests to have the State provide radio maintenance and repair services to the
Agency's radio equipment under State Government Code Section 14931 to render service to
federal/local political subdivisions. The equipment listed on the attached marked "Exhibit D" will be
made a part of this agreement by reference.

3. CONTRACT AMOUNT

Agreement will be for a total of $60€O0SO $125,000.00 broken down as follows:

. FY 16117
o FY 17118
. FY 18119
. FY 19120
. FY 20121
. FY 21122

$20,000.00
$20,000.00
$20,000.00
$21,667.00
$21,667.00
$21,666.00

4. THE STATE'S RESPONSIBILITIES

a. The State agrees to provide radio maintenance and repair service to Agency on a mutually
agreeable schedule. ln the event of a conflict between State and Agency service
requirements, service to State equipment will have priority;

b. The State agrees to perform emergency radio repair services 24171365 to Agency
equipment listed in Exhibit D;

c. The State will issue amendments to this agreement each Fiscal Year to reflect that specific
years'Service Descriptions & Rates (Exhibit B-1) as soon as they are published and
available;

d. The State agrees preventive maintenance will be performed annually or on an agreed upon
schedule. Agency will be notified in advance prior to turning off any operation equipment as
necessary to perform maintenance and or repairs. State will replace parts as necessary,



State of California Inyo Gounty Sheriff's Office
California Governor's Office of Emergency Services

and biil COSTS to

SA4105-O Amendment I

the Agency;

e. State will perform equipment repairs required due to accidents or acts of nature, equipment
modification, installation, and other work not within the category of normal maintenance
upon request of Agency, State will work with Agency on pricing of repair;

f. State will provide radio system engineering services to Agency. Engineering services
include systems and equipment design engineering, specification preparation and review,
and equipment evaluation and testing. Engineering services will be provided on an
individual basis upon written request by Agency. A written estimate of costs for such
engineering service will be provided by State to Agency prior to proceeding with any work.

5. THE AGENCY'S RESPONSIBILITIES

a. Agency agrees to provide to State an accounting of all radio equipment to be maintained
and serviced along with instruction manuals and schematics to its system equipment.
Exhibit D is required annually for recurring maintenance of Agency equipment.

b. Agency agrees to be responsible for establishing a method for verifying charges made and
invoiced by State;

c. Agency agrees to indemnify, defend, and save harmless the State, its officers, agents, and
employees from any and all claims and losses accruing or resulting in connection with the
performance of this agreement, and from any and all claims and losses accruing or
resulting to any person, firm, or corporation who may be injured or damaged by the Agency
in the performance on this agreement.

6. TERM OF AGREEMENT

The term of this agreement will be 710112016 through 613€12€4€ 0613012022.

7. NOTTCES

All notices required by or relating to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be sent to the
parties of this Agreement at their address as set below unless changed from time to time, in which
event each party shall notify the other in writing, and all such notices shall be deemed duly given if
deposited, postage prepaid, in the United States mail and directed to the address listed on the
following page:



State of California Inyo County Sheriff's Office

$tate Agency Agency

California Governor's Office of Emergency
Services - Public Safety Communications

Name:
lnvo Countv Sheriff's Office

Attn' Jb'r+LH€mb+in Jacob Gomez Attn: Ja+is€dum Jeff Hollowell

Phone: (94q€57-9t7}(91 6) 657-9695 Phone
Fax:

(760|878-0326 (760) 87 8-0327
(760) 878 038s (760) 878-0389

E-mail:
Jacob. Gomez@caloes. ca.qov

Email: @
i hol lowel l@ i nvocou nty. us

California Governor's Office of Emergency Services SA4105-6 Amendment 1

The technical representative during the term of this Agreement will be

Contract inquiries should be addressed to

State Agency Agency
California Governor's Office of Emergency
Services - Public Safety Communications

Name:
lnyo County Sheriff Department

Attn: Nieele Fineh Jodi Lopez Attn: Jeff Hollowell
Address: 3650 Schriever Avenue

Mather, CA 95655
Address: P.O. Drawer S

550 S. Clay Street,
lndependence, CA 93526

Phone: 191€)€45-8{&1
(916) 845-8307

Phone: (760) 878-0327

Fax: (916) 845-8303 Fax: fi60) 878-0389
E-mail:

Jodi. Lopez@caloes. ca.qov
E-mail: ihollowell@invocountv. us

8. AMENDMENTS

Consistent with the terms and conditions of the original solicitation, and upon mutual consent, the
California Governor's Office of Emergency Services and the Contractor may execute amendments
to this Agreement. No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless
made in writing, and agreed upon by both parties and approved, as required. No verbal
understanding or agreement not incorporated into the Agreement is binding on any of the parties.

9. TERMINATION PROVISIONS

The State may exercise its option to terminate this Agreement at any time with 30 calendar days
prior written notice. lf at such time the Agreement terminates, the State and Agency will mutually
agree upon any pro-rated monthly reimbursement cost due to the State for services rendered.



State of Galifornia lnyo Gounty Sheriff's Office
California Governor's Office of Emergency Seruices SA4105-G Amendment 1

2.

3.

4

5

EXHIBIT B
BUDGET DETAIL AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS

1. Costs for hourly maintenance services to be provided by the State shall be fully reimbursed by
the Agency at an hourly rate. The Agency agrees to pay to the State, upon receipt of an
invoice, the State's current Fiscal Year rate per hour for radio maintenance and engineering
services. Travel to and from site of service will be at the above hourly rate. Emergency
overtime calls for repair services after normal STATE working hours and on official STATE
holidays will be at the Emergency hourly rate with a minimum four-hour charge. Parts
necessary to repair the Agency's equipment will be billed separately from hourly services at
the State's cost to procure the parts. lnvoices will be presented monthly as necessary. The
State will invoice the Agency on a monthly basis in arrears for actual work performed.

Yearly costs for Annual Maintenance Service Program (AMSP) are based on the Agency's
three-year average of repair hours for equipment covered by the program. AMSP costs
include travel, emergency overtime, and parts necessary for repair of the Agency's
equipment. The Agency will be billed one-twelfth of the yearly cost each month.

The Agency is required to schedule invoices for payment to State no later than 15 days
after receipt of invoice. lf errors are found in the invoice or the Agency disputes invoice
charges or services rendered, the State is to be notified immediately. Partial payment of an
invoice without the State's approval is not allowed. Failure to comply with the State's payment
policy as outlined above may result in cancellation of this agreement.

The State reserves the right to review the hourly rate on July 1 of each year, and will be
allowed to increase or decrease the rate, as a result of the review, throughout the term of the
agreement.

The State will provide their Service Descriptions and Rates sheet and AMSP costs at the
beginning of each Fiscal Year after rates are determined. Exhibit B-1 provides the Fiscal Year
2018119 Service Descriptions and Rates sheet.



State of Galifornia lnvo Countv Sheriff's Office
California Governor's Office of Emergency Services SA4105-6 Amendment 1

EXHIBIT 8.1
SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS & RATES

Office of Emergency Services
Public Safety Communications

Service Descriptions

Project Services

Charges for specific projects performed by PSC. Projects may include project
management; engineering, planning and design for new or existing public
safety communications systems, towers and antennas, vehicle or hand-held
radios; site and coverage surveys, FCC licensing and frequency coordination,
technical specification preparation, equipment evaluation/testing; rebuilding
com m unications hardware/software ; equi pm ent i nstal lation, m odification or
relocation; and programming radio equipment. Charges include labor and travel
for engineers, technicians, project managers and technical staff, and costs for
purchasing equipment and materials, or contracting for services.

System Assistance/Gonsu lting

Charges for planning, consulting and assisting agencies in the development
of specific communication programs or projects. Charges include labor
for engineers, project managers and technical staff.

Microwave Services

Charges for Microwave Transmission Service (voice circuits), Public Safety
Switching Network Service (green phone), and Digital Circuit Service
(digital circuits). Charges are based on the type of circuit and the number of
circuits used. ln addition, both voice and digital circuits are charged mileage
between relay points and the respective service points, and have a charge for
each terminal point (customer interface).

Annual Maintenance Seruices

Charges to clients for repair and maintenance of communications equipment
covered by the program, including travel, emergency callout, and replacement
parts

FY 2018-19

Engineer $171.00 per hour
Project Mgmt./Technical

Staff $154.00 per hour
Technician $144.00 per hour

Engineer $171.00 per hour
Project Mgmt./Technical
Staff $154.00 per hour

Estimates available upon
request

Fixed rate based on 3-year
average of Agency repair &
maintenance hours.



State of California lnvo Countv Sheriff's Office
Galifornia Governor's Office of Emergency Services SA4105-G Amendment 1

Equipment Repair, Maintenance and lnstallation Services

Technician labor and travel charges for equipment that is not covered by annual $144.00 per hour
maintenance services. Call-back for emergency repairs or troubleshooting after
normal working hours, weekends and holidays has a minimum four-hour charge
per Department of Personnel Administration Rule 599.708. Repair parts are not
included and are charged separately.

Galifornia Multiple Agency Radio System (CMARS)

Charges for use of a statewide network of mobile relay stations operating in
the 800 MHz public safety radio spectrum. The system provides coverage
along major traffic arteries throughout California and within densely populated
areas such as Sacramento, San Francisco, Los Angeles and San Diego.

$16.50 per radio per month

Contracted Mobile Radio Equipment lnstallation/Removal Services

Charges for installation and/or removal of mobile radios and related equipment
under contracts administered by OES/PSC. PSC approval is required to use
contracted services and agencies are charged the contractor's flat rate based
on the type of equipment. Contracts also include a flat rate for travel based on
mileage and an hourly rate for non-standard installations/removals or special
equipment.

Charges for the storage of an agency's radio communications equipment, parts
or materials in PSC's warehouse when items have been stored more than two
years and there is not an active telecommunications project underway. Rates
are based on cubic feet or palletized storage.

PSC Mobile Radio Equipment Installation/Removal Seruices

Charges for installation and/or removal of mobile radios and related equipment Estimates available upon
by PSC technicians at a flat rate based on type of equipment. Travel has a flat request
rate based on mileage, and there is an hourly rate for non-standard installations/
removals or special equipment.

Vault Services

Lease/rent charges to install and operate radio communications and associated Estimates available upon
equipment in a radio vault controlled by OES/PSC. request

Eq u ipment Storage Services

Estimates available upon
request

Estimates available upon
request

For additional information, contact Public Safety Communications at (916) 657-9405.



State of California lnyo Gounty Sheriff's Office
California Governor's Office of Emergency Seruices 544105-6 Amendment I

EXHIBIT C
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The General Terms and Conditions (GTCs) 0412017 are hereby incorporated by reference and can
be accessed by visiting the following link:

Non-lT Services

https://www.dqs.ca.qov/OLS/Resources/Paqe-ContenUOffice-of-Leqal-Services-Resources-List-
Fo lde r/Sta n da rd-Contract-La n o uaoe



t'

In the Rmms d$w Ward of Sapwisors
County of lnyo, State of California

I' HEREBY CERTIFY. that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisor of the Couuty of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 14th day of June 2A16 an order was duly

made and entered as follorvs:

SHERIFF
CTIO€S RAAA REPEATER
SITEMAINTENANCE
AGREEMENT

Moved by Supervisor Tillemans and seconded by $upervisor Totheroh to: A) approve the
agreernent between th€ County of lnyo and the California Otlice of Emergency Services
(CalOES) for the provision of Radio Repeater site maintenance as outlined in the
agreement, in an amount not to exceed $20,000 per year for a total amount of 960,000 for
the period of July 1,2016 through June 30,2019; and B) authorize the Undersheriff to
sign the agreemeni, contingent upon Board's adoption of future Budgets. Molion carried
unanimously.

lVlll'NESS my hnnd and the seal of said Board this 14th

Dayaf lyXp: 2!,16

KEVIN D. C. RUNCT{IO
Clerk oJthe Eoard of Supemisors

"... 
- " i" "i.Z:::.a.i:i "d:::::- 

... ^' ---

Routing

GC

Purcha$ng

Perconnel

Audltor
cAa
Oker;Shetift
DATE: July 6,2016

By:



STATE OF CALIFORNIA

STANDARD AGREEMENT
STD 213 (Rev 06/03)

1- This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and the Contractor named below:

AGREEMENT NUMBER

4105-6

REGISTRATION NUMBER

AGENCY'S NAME

lnyo County Sheriff's Office

CONTRACTOR'S NAME

California Governor's Office of Emergency Services (CalOES)

2. The term of this

Agreement is:

July 1"', 2016 through June 30"', 2019

3. The Maximum amount of
Agreement is:

$60,000.00
Sixty Thousand Dollars

4. The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits which are by this reference made a
part of the Agreement.

Exhibit A - Statement of Work
Exhibit B - Budget Detailand Payment Provisions

Exhibit B-1 - Service Descriptions & Rates

Exhibit C - General Terms and Conditions - lnteragency Agreements (G14-610)

Exhibit D - Equipment List

3 Pages

1 Page

1 Page

1 Page

3 Pages

Items shown with an Asferisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made paft of this agreement as if attached hereto.

These documents can be viewed at vvww.ols.dgs.ca.gov/Standard+Language

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto.

CONTRACTOR

CONTRACTOR'S NAME (if other lhan an individual, state whether a coryoration, padnership, etc.)

California Governor's Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES)

BY (Auth orize d Si gn atu rc)

.6
PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING

Rick Stolz, Assistant Director, Admin. Services
ADDRESS

3650 Schriever Avenue
Mather, CA 95655

Agency
AGENCY NAME

lnyo County Sheriffs Office
BY (Aulh o ize d Si gn atu re )

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING

Jeff Hollowell, U ndersheriff
ADDRESS

PO Drawer S
555 S. Clay Street
lndependence, CA 93526

DATE SIGNEDfDa not type)

DATE SIGNED/Do not type)

Calffornia Department of General
Seryices Use Only

! Exempt per:



State of Catifornia lnyo Gounty Sheriffs Office

California Governor's1flftC'ttrtmd'rgbnCV"Sbrvices 544105-6
Page 2 of 10

EXHIBIT A
STATEMENT OF WORK

Radio Mai ntenance Agreement

1. CONTRACT DESCRIPTION

This is an agreement between California Governor's Office of Emergency Services,
Public Safety Communications, hereinafter called the State, and lnyo County
Sheriffs Office, hereinafter called the Agency.

2. PURPOSE & SCOPE

The Agency requests to have the State provide radio maintenance and repair
services to the Agency's radio equipment under State Government Code Section
14931 to render service to federal/local political subdivisions. The equipment listed
on the attached marked "Exhibit D" will be made a part of this agreement by
reference.

3. CONTRACT AMOUNT

Agreement will be for a total of $60,000.00 broken down as follows:

. FY 16117: $20,000.00

. FY 17118. $20,000.00

. FY 18119: $20,000.00

4. THE STATE'S RESPONSIBILITIES

a. The State agrees to provide radio maintenance and repair service to Agency
on a mutually agreeable schedule. ln the event of a conflict between State
and Agency service requirements, service to State equipment will have
priority;

b. The State agrees to perform emergency radio repair services 24/71365 to
Agency equipment listed in Exhibit D;

c. The State will issue amendments to this agreement each Fiscal Year to
reflect that specific years' Service Descriptions & Rates (Exhibit B-1) as soon
as they are published and available;

d. The State agrees preventive maintenance will be performed annually or on an
agreed upon schedule. Agency will be notified in advance prior to turning off
any operation equipment as necessary to perform maintenance and or



; ,.,1, ,- 
l

State of Galifornia lnyo County Sheriff's Office

California Governor's T' gencrf:services 5A4105-6
Page 3 of 10

repairs. State will replace parts as necessary, and bill costs to the Agency;

e. State will perform equipment repairs required due to accidents or acts of
nature, equipment modification, installation, and other work not within the
category of normal maintenance upon request of Agency, State will work with
Agency on pricing of repair;

f. State will provide radio system engineering services to Agency. Engineering
services include systems and equipment design engineering, specification
preparation and review, and equipment evaluation and testing. Engineering
services will be provided on an individual basis upon written request by
Agency. A written estimate of costs for such engineering service will be
provided by State to Agency prior to proceeding with any work.

5. THE AGENCY'S RESPONSIBILITIES

a. Agency agrees to provide to State an accounting of all radio equipment to be
maintained and serviced along with instruction manuals and schematics to its
system equipment. Exhibit D is required annually for recurring maintenance of
Agency equipment.

b. Agency agrees to be responsible for establishing a method for verifying
charges made and invoiced by State;

c. Agency agrees to indemnify, defend, and save harmless the State, its
officers, agents, and employees from any and all claims and losses accruing
or resulting in connection with the performance of this agreement, and from
any and all claims and losses accruing or resulting to any person, firm, or
corporation who may be injured or damaged by the Agency in the
performance on this agreement.

6. TERM OF AGREEMENT

The term of this agreement will be 710112016 through 613012019

7. NOTICES

All notices required by or relating to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be
sent to the parties of this Agreement at their address as set below unless changed
from time to time, in which event each party shall notify the other in writing, and all
such notices shall be deemed duly given if deposited, postage prepaid, in the United
States mailand directed to the address listed on the following page:



State of California lnyo County Sheriff's Office
"'Gdlffornia Governor's OiFife of Emergency Services SA4105-6

Page 4 of 10

The technical representative during the term of this Agreement will be:

Contract inquiries should be addressed to:

8. AMENDMENTS

Consistent with the terms and conditions of the original solicitation, and upon mutual
consent, the California Governor's Office of Emergency Services and the Contractor
may execute amendments to this Agreement. No amendment or variation of the
terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, and agreed upon by
both parties and approved, as required. No verbal understanding or agreement not
incorporated into the Agreement is binding on any of the parties.

9. TERMINATION PROVISIONS

The State may exercise its option to terminate this Agreement at any time with 30
calendar days prior written notice. lf at such time the Agreement terminates, the
State and Agency will mutually agree upon any pro-rated monthly reimbursement
cost due to the State for services rendered.

California Governor's Office of
Emergency Services -
Public Safety Communications lnyo County Sheriffs Office

Attn: Joni Hamblin Name: Janis Odum

Phone: (916) 657-9173 Phone: (760) 878-0326
Fax (760) 878-0389

E-mail: Joni.Hamblin@caloes.ca.gov Email: Jodum@inyocou nty. us

California Governor's Office of Emergency
Services - Public Safety Communications

Company Name:
lnyo County Sheriff Department

Attn: Nicole Finch Attn: Jeff Hollowell
Address: 3650 Schriever Avenue

Mather, CA 95655
Address : P.O. Drawer S

550 S. Clay Street,
lndependence, CA 93526

Phone: (916) 845-8164
Fax: (916) 845-8303
E-mail: N icole.Adams@caloes.ca.cov

Phone: (760) 878-0327
(760) 878-038e

E-mail: ihallowell@invocountv.us



State of California
California Governor's of Emergency Services

Cou SherifPs Office
sA4105-6

Page 5 of 10

EXHIBIT B
BUDGET DETAIL AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS

1. Costs for maintenance services to be provided by STATE shall be fully
reimbursed by AGENCY at an hourly rate. AGENCY agrees to pay to the
STATE, upon receipt of an invoice, STATE's current FiscalYear rate per hour for
radio maintenance and engineering services; AGENCY will pay for services as
they are actually rendered. Travel to and from site of service will be at the above
hourly rate. Emergency overtime calls for repair services after normal STATE
working hours and on official STATE holidays will be at the above hourly rate
with a minimum four-hour charge. Parts necessary to repair AGENCY equipment
will be billed separately from hourly services at the STATE's cost to procure the
parts. lnvoices will be presented monthly as necessary.

2. The STATE will invoice AGENCY on a monthly basis in arrears for actualwork
performed. AGENCY is required to schedule invoices for payment to the STATE
no later than 15 days after receipt of invoice. lf errors are found in the invoice or
AGENCY disputes invoice charges or services rendered, STATE is to be notified
immediately. Partial payment of an invoice without STATE's approval is not
allowed. Failure to comply with the STATE's payment policy as outlined above
may result in cancellation of this agreement.

3. The State reserves the right to review the hourly rate on July 1 of each year, and
will be allowed to increase or decrease the rate, as a result of the review
throughout the term of the agreement.

4. The State will provide their Service Descriptions and Rates sheet at the
beginning of each Fiscal Year after rates are determined. Exhibit B-1 provides
the FiscalYear20lS/16 Service Descriptions and Rates sheet.



State of Galifornia lnyo County Sheriffs Office
."*Ciilifornia Governor's"Oltec'rf,Grillrg€ricy Services SA4105-G

Page 6 of 10

EXHIBIT B-1
SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS & RATES

Califomia Governuls *fftce of En'lergency Ser+ices
Pulrlic Saie\r CoFnmunications

Service Descriptions & Rates

Radio Engine*ring Service's:

Radio engineeri*g sefvices, associated wilh a sew or existing Pubtic
Safety and Fulrlic Service co*nmunicaticn system i*chdes svstem
planning and design, site and coverage surlreys, FCC t,censing and
tr€euefi c! cocrdinati cn. tech nicat specifi cati,on preparatlon, eq ui pment
evatuation and testinE, project ffianagernent. installatisn, and
msdifi calion engifi eering:. Travel tirure associated witfr engineering
wcrk is: charged atllle hourly rale. Equlprnent aftd parls are additional-

Radi:s ft#aitltenance S€fyitres:

Essistfi€rrf dfl sfa#afrbfl and J[,fod"rJ-Jcafren:
lnstallation" mDdffication. and relocation of,r:adb afid r€lated equipment at
Agency tacllities during no{Fna! busi*ess lrcurs, Trav€l tifn€ ls clrarged at
the hourly rate- Farts are additional-

8epqf Fesaris
Handheld./mobil* radio eqflipn:teFt is defivered, and piel(ed up lry Agenqy at
PSC Depot facitfiies- lf reguested, arra ngements r:tray [:e made fcn FSC
Fickup ancirsrdefivery: however" shippins cftarges will apply-

Afinu€f Mainfellance Sefi/ice Pr-oqrarll fFjxed RaieJ-'
The program ceuers all breakde*fi repair and preventive maistenance
torequiFrn€nt cfv€r€d bythe prograrn" inclLlding travel, emergeFcy call-
hack and pEr-ls for a fixed annual rdte. Ttre tixed rate ts besed oft a 3-year
auerage of r:epair h*urs for indlvidual agencies covered lry ihe progrant-

fda0#e Fadio Ea*inment fFiaf Rafe.l:
InstalletifiB, rerncvaf and m*diticatien of rnobite rad,iss, undercover
installations:. Code' 3 insta!trauofts and releted equfpr:n€nt- Travel time
is charged al a flal rate-

Eallefe€/?tr1.. Rep€ii]l'lsfalfallsn fl{8uli}, R€te):
Technician call-back for eHergency repairs or installation activifies
a{ter nonual vrorking ftours" week€nds and frolidays- Travef tirne is
c*afged at tlre hourly rale- Parts are addi{ional. {&liniritum f:our lrours
c{^}arged per Departnrent 6f Personnel Admiftislration Flule 5Sg-708-)

FY 2015-1G

$143-0O p€r lmur

S12.0fi perhour

S12'.08 per hoilr

Estiftates avail*ble
uFsft request

Estiniates available
uF€il r€eu€st

$12?.ilS Ferfiour

Foraddifibrelinfonnaf.'on, confsef tf:e Fu&tricSafefl.Comrfiunibafr:ons af f9?6) 65f-S485.

Ugdated 1G'$7?2S15



State of California lnyo Gounty Sheriffs Office
Cal ifo rn ia Governo i's otFab W€?herg en cy Services sA4105-6

Page 7 of 10

EXHIBIT C
GENERAL TERMS AND COND|flONS - TNTERAGENCY AGREEMENTS (GrA-610)

www. dpcuments. dss. ca.qov/ols/G lA-9 I 0. dog



State of Galifornia lnyo County Sheriff's Office
G Emergency Services sA4105-6

Page 8 of 10

EXHIBIT D
EQUIPMENT LIST

Ll$T of EQUIPMENT TO BE lvlAlt{rAlNED

Attached is TDf{t 3415.?,2 (Equipment Code definitiansi fcr assistance in deiermining equipment types and cqde
abbredalions.

Code Siianufacturar lliladel llamber Seiial Numher
Ageficl|Froperry

Hrimber L6caiii:n
Mbtorole Qnirnfi tt Rgrerrte,r '15363A -c- Quan{iE.2 $llYr{ rh{v rNYo sr{h.Rr}.r

Mator0la Fuplcxer Q202tr-U$r -s- Quaitdiy:3 ,Sfl.VtriR llH Xl l}ili(} SHIift ll"'F

Motoml* tlua.rilar Repqqteq 15365A -0- Qr:srdrqf - 2 M 7'IJUr(K"1l *;&Ki ;SIlbRlFF

Mo{sfiia.nuple,L'r Qrfiacc-ril$ -1F" Quaniily:2 rljux}UKKA $lj&v $HhlRil.}'

Motcrola III{F Q.uwrtrr

l.irftRadis

-0- J.J- qrtarflty - 4 r:Et{tttxi$R.t}ojlNYo, sJl}TIrT

l\{otoml* l"l.tlF l}uplexcr nx96sR-23 -s- Qu*mity.4 ,csti.K0 GORDolndYo sl{iiRrb:rj

.li{oturtlsYflF Qu$tsr

R€trc{er

-tJ: "{r- Qllsntily - 2 .fi rrRKd) {itxil}g{NY(} sl{E{dlFIi

Molorola Duplcxrr Q2S2CC-UHI; -0- Quentttt- 2 CERRO C(}RIX,*I.{YO *HCnJrr

kmnunieall't$ Spscialist

r?;8
{- QuaniiiY;2. .qERRO GOROO{I{Y$ $ rnffi:*



State of California
California Governor's ency Services

Cou Sheriffs Office
sA410s-6

Page 9 of 10

EXHIBIT D
EQUIPMENT LIST (continued)

Code Ma$ufasturgr iilodal hambar $erisf Humbor
ASency ProFerty

'.f.luftbor Lacstion

Mot*:rola tiHI; Qrrrirdnr

Li*k,Rarlio

4J- 4- Qua$i{y-3 RO{itiT$ FbJIXJ INYt} S'JBRIFF

Morotalt Qu*nar VIIF

C*inlral $t*iirxl

-4- .0, Quantity -2- ROGNRS TIiAKJ fNYO SI{ERIFF

It{otcroe- VHF Qu*niar

Rcpcstdr

T5a6sA {- Quasrily - I IiOSERS FFAKi INYS SHSRIFF

M6.urol&UHF Prr$int(f, t.DdsdsR!2 4- Q0a$i!y *2- R0{ilRs rxAKl nsYt} $in*lFr
i{otnzot* Vl{FFuplcxor Q?02€G{,lff -0- Qumrity - 1 RCG$R"S FFr{K/ INYO Sl'lfRlff
(bmrnr:riigarirn Spr4istist

TP3& '

4- 4- q$ar*ity*2 R(X}ERS f,EAKl t){Yo SflSttlFr"

.:t49it!0}e.Q$arrlBr RqrcAllr T3!65ll -0- Qsaqii{y-3 Ec'PAAOJ INYO SilERlFF

Motorola Duplexer Q2OlCf-Ur{f -0- Qlpntity-3 EL PACOI INY€ S?IEKIFF

Ma*rola QJe*larRrlr*{x :t5t65A 4- Qua*rir: * 1 TEGCPA' INYOSHERIFF

l{otorola Duplexcr Q202GC-UHr -0- Qnsrltiti - 1 TECOPA' INVO sH€R*FF



State of California Inyo County Sheriffs Office
Governor's Services sA4105-6

Page 10 of 10

EXHIBIT D
EQUIPMENT LIST (continued)

Cada ftfianafactuter Mcdel Numher $srial Numher
Agengy PraFer-Iy

ilumtrer 'Locafion
Mhtor*Ia \iI"il. Spcctrr

llase ,Con*olettas

-(l- -c" Qucntig -9 INDEP€NSENCE D8PATCH
CET'TTER'INY.O SIiERIFF

b{stsnt,* I"oBaBani!

. $. Ff rtra Iiff 4 Srn$clcllcl

-c- -{l- Quantity - I INDEPEND€NCE qIqPATCI{
C€f'r-lEFirlt'lY0 Sl-lERl FF

lr{otoxrlr Ltl{F Qu*rtr
Ctlnr$l Stations

-a- -c' Qurrtity - 3 INDEPFNDENC€
CgNTER'INYd

DI$PATCH
SHEEIFF

Mo{omlr V.l,Il: Quaut*r
(hnrrol sunlons

-.0- -& Qudati$: - 3 ISIDEF€HUF'{CE. DISFATCH
C.€NTER,TNY.O S,F{ER{FF

Mo{rxqtji Cenlrtcofir Gnld

C'odssl* F6siri6fi$ witli ime

mais fiame

-0- {- Quantity * 2 iNDEFEI{DENOf; SISP'ATCH
CFNIER'INYO SHERTFF

$pecuaconi GP$ recciver -tL -0- qiunlity- I INqEPENDENCE QISPATCH
CENTERINYO SHERIFF

Motorola l\{C,$ ?00[ Bnsp

$1t'tiotrs

-Q- *0- Queatity - 2 INDEFEhIDENCE DJ$PATCH
T€I{TER.IINYO S'.I€FIFF

Moiwola h{C5?S$fl Dc*.

Sst

-& -0- Q!,ontity.- 1 IT.IDtrENDENGE DISPATGT'
C€ftIfERJINYO SHERIFF

'Comnun:ication Sp{: cialist

Tp38

-s- -0; q0an{ity-4 INDEFENEENCE
DISFATCfiCfi{r€R/tNYO

SHERIFF



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO
Consent X Departmental lCorrespondence Action

Scheduled Time for E] Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

2tu
E Puotic Hearing

I lnformational

FRoM: Water Department

FORTHE BOARD MEETTNG OF April 09, 2019

SUBJECT: Owens Valley Groundwater Authority Meeting - April 18, 2019

D E PARTM E N TAL RE C O M ME N DA TI ON :

A meeting of the Owens Valley Groundwater Authority is scheduled for April 18, 2019 in Bishop, California. The Water
Department requests your Board provide direction to the Owens Valley Groundwater Authority representatives.

SAMMARY DISCUSSION:

ln2014, the State of California signed into law the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA). On August 1,
2017 eleven agencies within the basin entered into a joint powers agreement to form the Owens Valley Groundwater
Authority (OVGA) for the purpose of creating a groundwater sustainability plan for the Owens Valley groundwater basin.
The OVGA has adopted a developmental budget, bylaws, a purchasing policy, and has entered into funding agreements
for state grants and contracts with consultants. Regular meetings are held monthly.

The OVGA will hold its next regular meeting on April 18, 2019; a draft agenda is attached. The agenda contains several
informational items and severalaction items described below.

Items 1-6 are standing ceremonialor informational items.

Item 7. Status of Proposition 1 Grant Advance Payment Request. This is an update from staff on acquisition of an
advance payment on the Proposition 1 grant obtained by lnyo County and transferred to the OVGA to fund development
of the Groundwater Sustainability Plan. We have received tentative approval of the application for the advance on the
grant.

Item 8. Approve 2019-2020 OVGA Budqet. The OVGA Joint Powers Agreement requires an annual budget for the 2019-
20 fiscal year be approved by May 1. A draft budget was presented and discussed at the March 14,2019 meeting. The
draft budget corrected several assumptions regarding revenues and expenditures contained in the Development
Budget which can be amended by the OVGA Board. The 2018-19 annual budget proposed for approval is unchanged
from the draft discussed in March.

Item 9. Approval of Aqreement with Golden State Rick Manaqement Authoritv and Authorize lnsurance Purchase. At the
March '14,2019 meeting, the OVGA directed staff to acquire insurance from the Golden State Risk Management
Authority. This item requests approval of an agreement to join that joint powers agency and purchase the desired
insurance.

Item 10. Approve Resolution Adopting a Resave Policy of the OVGA. Requested action on this item is to approve a
resolution to adopt the Resave Policy discussed by the OVGA at the March 14,20199 meeting.

Item 1 1. Approve Staff Services Contracts for lnvo County. Mono County, and City of Bishop. The original developmental
budget for the OVGA assumed staff would consist of a part time Executive Manager and Administration staff and one part
time Counsel; originally those services were provided by lnyo County. Subsequently, the OVGA Board desired
collaboration among staff from lnyo County, City of Bishop, and Mono County. The roles, responsibilities, and level of
service provided by staff from the three agencies are formalized in contracts submitted for OVGA approval. The total not
to exceed costs of the contracts in aggregate exceed the original developmental budget. The contracts are included in
the proposed OVGA 2018-19 budget.



Agenda Request
Page 2

Item 12. Approve Contract with Dr. Robert Harrington for Hydroloqic Consultinq Services. At the March 14,2019
meeting, the OVGA directed staff to develop a contract with Dr. Robert Harrington for hydrologic consulting.

Item 13. Discussion of Associate and lnterested Partv Board Seats. The OVGA Joint Powers Agreement allows for
additional members to join as Associate Members or lnterested Parties. ln January, 2019 the OVGA solicited Statements
of lnterest to assess the level of interest from potential Associate and lnterested Parties. Three Associate statements and
six lnterested Party statements were received. A detailed staff report on this topic was discussed at the March 14
meeting. This item will discuss the decisions for the OVGA to undertake to conclude whether to add seats if any.

Items 14-17 are informational or ceremonial items. Staff anticipate the GSP consultant will provide updates or
presentations on the Public Engagement Plan, data acquisition, and the hydrogeologic conceptual model at the next
OVGA meeting in May.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLWMENT :

City of Bishop, Mono County, Tri-Valley GWMD, lndian Creek-Westridge CSD, Wheeler Crest CSD, Big Pine CSD, Sierra
Highlands CSD, Keeler CSD

FINANCING:

N/A

DEPARTMENT H EAD SIGNATURE: 7-s17(Not to be signed until all approvals are

COUNTY COUNSEL:

N/A

AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be
rcviewed and approved by coun$ aunsel pior to submrsslon to the board clerk.)

Approved: Date: _
AUDITOR/CONTROLLER:

N/A

ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND REI-ATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the auditor+ontroller pior to
submissrbn to the board clefu.)

Approved: Date: _
PERSONNEL DIRECTOR:

N/A

PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the director of personnel services prior to
submission to the board clerk.)

Approved: Date: _

APPITOVALS



Big Pine CSD - Ciry of Bishop- County of Inyo- County of Mono- Eastem Sierra CSD - Indian Creek-Westridge CSD - Keeler CSD -
Sierra Highlands CSD -Tri Valley Groundwater Management District - Wheeler Crest CSD

Owens Valley Groundwater Authority

Bishop Fire Training Center
960 Poleta Rd.

Bishop, CA
April 18,2019 2:00 PM

Board of Directors Meeting Agenda

All members ofthe public are encouraged to participate in the discussion ofany items on the Agenda. Me4bers of the public will be allowed to
agenda item before the Board of Directors takes aclion on it. Any member ofthe public may also make commenls Atring the scheduled "Public
lhis agenda conceming any subjecl related to the Board of Direclors or lhe Owens Valley Groundwater Authority.

Public Nolice: In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, ifyou need special assistonee to participate in this meeting please contact Lauto Piper ot
(760) 878-0001. (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADATitle II). Notifcdtion 48 hours prior to the meetingwill enable the County to make reasonable drrangements to ensurc
accessibility lo this neeting. Shouldyou because ofa disability require altemaliveformattingofthis agenda, pleasenotify Laura Piper 72 hours prior to themeeting
to enable the OVGA to make lhe agenda available in a reasonable ahemativeformaL (Government Code Section 54954.2).

OPEN SESSION (With the exception of timed items, all open-session items may be considered at any time and
in any order during the meeting in the Board's discretion.)

1. Pledgeofallegiance.

2. Public comment.

3. lnhoductions.

4. Approval of minutes from the March 14,2019 OVGA Boardmeeting.

5. Board Member Reports.

6. Financial Report,

7. Status of Proposition I Grant Advance Payment Request.

8. Approve 2019-2020 OVGAbudget.

g. Approval of Agreement with Golden State Risk Management Authority and Authorize Insurance Purchase.

10. Approve Resolution Adopting a,Reserve Policy of the OVGA.

11. Approve Staff Services Contracts for Inyo County, Mono County, and City of Bishop.

12. Approve Contract with Dr. Robert Harrington for Hydrologic Consulting Services,

13. Discussion of Associate and Interested Parly Board Seats.

14. Reports from OVGA members' staff.

15. Discussion regarding future agenda items.

16. Set next meeting.

17. Adjoum.

speak about each

Comment" period on

I



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVTSORS

COUNTY OF INYO
Consent X Departmental lConespondence Action

n Scheduled Time for ! Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

2a*
! Puotic Hearing

E lnformational

FROM: Water Department

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: April 9,20tg

SUBJECT: lnyo County/Los Angeles Standing Committee Meeting - May O 2019

D E PA RTMENTAL RECO M M E NDATI ON :

A meeting of the lnyo County/Los Angeles Standing Committee is scheduled for May 6,2019 at the County
Administrative Center, lndependence, California. Pursuant to Resolution 99-43 and the Long-Term Water
Agreement, your Board sets policy for the County's representatives to the Standing Committee. The Water
Department requests your Board provide direction to the County's Standing Committee representatives.

SUMMARY QISCUSSION:

The Standing Committee agenda has not been finalized as of the drafting of this Agenda Request, but the
agenda is relatively short. A draft Standing Committee agenda is attached. lt is expected that the Standing
Committee agenda will include reports on runoff and operations; the annual LADWP operations plan
(pumping plan) and Owens River Water Trail CEQA and funding status. The Standing Committee will set the
LORP seasonal habitat flow and Blackrock Waterfowl Management Area flooded acreage in consultation
with California Fish and Wildlife.

Itern 1 - Approval of documentation of actions from the Mav 31. 2018 meeting.

Item 2 - Runoff and Operatlong UpdaS& LADWP's annual Owens Valley runoff forecast has not been
released yet, but the snowpack is approximately L72o/o of normal for April 1.

Item 3 * Reoort on LADWP's 201-10 Owens Vallqv Operations Plan, The draft Operations Plan is due April
20, but given the extremely favorable runoff, we suspect it will be a relatively low proposed pumping
amount. The draft Operations Plan and the County's comments on the Plan will be completed before the
date of the Standing Committee meeting.

Item 4a - Consultation with California Fish and Wildlife. The 1997 MOU requires that the LORP seasonal
habitat flow be set by the Standing Committee in consultation with the California Department of Fish and
wildlife. Typically, we receive their recommendation in a letter in April.

!!9m 4b -Settins Lower Owens River Proiect leatgnal habitat flow - Considgration of Technical Group
r€commendatlon. Unless the Standing Committee directs otherwise, the peak flow and duration of the
seasonal habitat flow is set out in the LORP Final ElR, lt is safe to predict that runoff will be above average
and the seasonal habitat flow according to the flow schedule in the EtR will peak at 200 cubic feet per
second



Agenda Request
Page 2

Item 4d - Blackrock Wat-e"rfowl Ma4aqement Area flooded acreage. The flooded acreage in the Blackrock
Waterfowl Management Area is set out in the LORP Final ElR. lt is safe to predict that runoff will be above
average, and unless the Standing Committee directs otherwise the flooded acreage will be 500 acres.

5 - Report on IADW3 fundins for CE_CI,A analvsls of the Owens River Water Trail PJo-iegt. lnyo County will
provide a status report on the completion of the CEQA. The Administrative Draft EIR for the project has

been circulated and a Draft EIR for public comment is in preparation. Because LADWP provided funding to
the County to complete the ElR, the update will also include a financial report.

Attachments:
Draft Standing Committee agenda,

ALTERNATIVES:

OTHEF. A,GENCY INVOLWMENT: IADWP, CDFW

FINANCING: NlA

DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE:
(Not to be signed unlil all approvals are

COUNTY COUNSEL:

N/A

AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND REI-ATED ITEMS (Musf be
,eviewed and ap$oved by county counsel prior to submission to the board clerk.)

Approved: _Date:
AUDITOR/CONTROLLER:

N/A

ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND REI-ATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the audilor+onlrollet ptior to
submissbn to the board clerk.)

I'lala.Approved:

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR:

N/A

PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the director of personnel services prior to
submission to the board clerk.)

Approved: Date: _

APPIIC)VAI,S



AGENDA

INYO COUNTYILOS ANGELES
STANDING COMMITTEE

1:00 p.m.
May 6,2019

Board of Supervisors Room, County Administrative Center
224North Edwards S

Independence,

The public will be offered the opportunity to comment to any action on the
item by the Standing Committee or, in the absence prior to moving to the next
item on the agenda. The public will also be ity to

of the
Committee on any

matter within the Committee's jurisdiction prior

1. Action Item: Approval of documentation of 31,201

2. Runoff and Operations update.

3. Report on LADWP's2019-20

4. Lower Owens
concerning item 4b.a.

b.

c. Report

5

Area flooded acreage.
Waterfowl Management Area flooded acreage

Owens River Water Trail Project

6.

7.

8.

ing meetings.

Adjourn.

with



Standine Committee meeting protocols (Adopted May I l. 2011)

The Inyo/Los Angeles Long-Term Water Agreement (LTWA) define the Standing Committee in Section II:

As agreed by the parties, the Department representatives on the Standing Committee shall inclttde at least one (l)
member of the Los Angeles City Council, the Administrative Officer of the City of Los Angeles, two (2) members of
the Boqrd of l4/ater and Power Commissioners, qnd three (3) staff members. The County representatives on the
Standing Committee shall be at least one ( I ) member of the Inyo County Board of Supervisors, nuo (2) Inyo County
Water Commissioners, and three (3) staff nenbers.

The LTWA furlher provides that

Regardless of the number of representatives from either party in (iltendance at a Standing Committee or Technical
Grotrp meeting, Inyo Counfii shall have only one (l) vote, qnd Los Angeles shall have only one (l) vote.

The Standing Committee adopts the following protocol for future Standing Committee meetings.

1. In order for the Standing Committee to take action at a meeting, representation at the rneeting will consist
of at least four representatives of Los Angeles, including one member of the Los Angeles City Council or
Water and Power Commission, and four representatives of Inyo County, including orre member of the
Board ofSupervisors.

2. A Chairperson from the hosting entity will be designated for each meeting.

3. In the event that an action item is on the meeting agenda, Los Angeles and Inyo County shall each
designate one member to cast the single vote allotted to their entity at the onset of the meeting. The
Chairperson may be so designated. Agenda items that the Standing Committee intends to take action on
will be so designated on the meeting agenda.

4. If representation at a Standing Committee meeting is not sufficient for the.standing Committee to act, the
Standing Committee members present may agree to convene the meeting for the purpose of hearing
informalional items.

5. Meeting agendas shall include any item within the jurisdiction of the Standing Committee that has been
proposed by either party.

6. The public shall be given the opportunity to comment on any agenda item prior to an action being taken.
. The public will be given the opponunity to comment on any non-agendized issue within the jurisdiction of

the Standing Commiffee prior to the conclusion of each scheduled meeting. At the discretion of the
Chairperson, repofts froin staff or reopening of public comment may be permitted during deliberations.

7. The Chairperson may limit each public cornment to a reasonable time period. The hosting entity will be

responsible for monitoring time during public cornment.

8. Any actions taken by the Standing Committee shall be described in an action item summary memorandum
that is then transmitted to the Standing Committee at its next meeting for review and approval. This
summary memorandum shall also indicate the Standing Committee members present at the meeting where
actions were taken.

9. Standing Committee meetings shall be voice recorded by the host entity and a copy of the recording shall
be provided to the guest entity.

10. (Added February 24,2012) The Standing Committee may also receive cornrnents/questions in written form
from tnembers of the public. Either party rnay choose to respond, however, when responding to a public
comment/question, whether verbally or in writing, any statements made by either party may represent the
perspective of that party or the individual making the response, but not the Standing Committee as a whole
(unless specifically agreed to as such by the Standing Committee). When either party responds in writing
to public comment/question, that response will be concurrently provided to the other party.



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

WeENffrNffi:,fr*h

7b

Xconsent Departmental

Scheduled Time for

n corr".pondence Action ! eroti"

! ctoseo Session n lnformationat

FRoM: HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES - Aging and Social Seruices

FORTHE BOARD MEETING OF: April9,2019

SUBJECT: Approval of agreement with RTZ Associates, Inc. for the provision of an on-line web portal for GetCare
program In ESAAA,

D EPA RTM ENTA L RECO M M E N DATIO N :
Request your Board approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and RTZ Associates Inc. for the provision of an
on-line web portal for GetCare program, in the amount of $14,930.00 for the period of April t,2OL9, through June 30,
2019 and $18,120 for FY 19/20 and $18,120 for FY20|2L for a total amount of $51,170 contingent upon adoption of
future budgets, and authorize Marilyn Mann, Director of Health and Human Seruices, to sign.

CAO RECOMMENDATION:

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:
California Department of Aging requires that program specific data be submitted monthly. The former IS Director
developed an in-house system to collect the data, generate the donation letters and submit data to the State. The data
system requires reprogramming periodically to accommodate state requirements and the data upload submissions
periodically fail as a result of the system interface.

RTZ Associates Inc. is a vendor that offers GetCare, an online system that is currently used by Planning Seruice Areas
(PSA) to collect data, generate donation letters and submit data to the State, which also uses the RTZ system. Currently,
program staff in both Inyo and Mono County aging programs are collecting data on paper rosters, manually tally services
units, and forward the information to our fiscal staff who then input the data into our system, With GetCare, staff will be
using bar code scanners to track the data and it will be electronically submitted into the system in real time reducing data
errors, eliminating paper storage issues, and reducing data submission failures.

RTZ Associates updates GetCare with state-mandated reporting elements regularly, ensuring minimal data submission
errors. Having real time data will also help ensure accuracy of utilization data which is used as one data element when
determining allocation of dollars across Inyo and Mono counties.

The cost of GetCare, which includes 15 access licenses, for the period of April L,2Ot9 through June 30, 202Lis 910,400
(which includes the optional barcode scanning component) initial one-time fee and 3 monthly payments of g1,510 (which
includes the optional barcode scanning component) for FY 18/19 and then 12 monthly payments of g1,510 (g18,120) for
FY L9/20 and 2012I respectively. This system will be utilized to manage data for I.C. GOLD, as well as managing bus
passes and other "gift" cards used across multiple programs, allowing the cost of the system to be spread across multiple
budgets, We are respectfully requesting your Board's approval to enter into a three year agreement with RTZ Associates
Inc. as outlined above.

ALTERNATIVES:
The County could choose to not approve this agreement and we will continue to work with county IS staff to update the
current system.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
California Depaftment of Aging



FINANCING:
State and Federal funds. This expense will be budgeted in ESAM (683000), Social Services (055800), Community Mental
Health (045200), and Health (045100) under Professional Seruices (5265). No County General Funds.

DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNA
(Not to be signed until all approvals are received)

?

COUNTY COUNSEL:

ft tl,un^O^-

AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Mustbe
reviewed and apprcved by County Counsel prior to submission to the Board Clerk.)

o^t , 1L5h1Approved: {{D
ROLLER:AU

I
ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the Auditor/Controller Vior to

q/o== sH2,Date:Approved:

submission to the Board Clerk.)

INFORMATION SERVICES INFORMATION SERVICES AND RELATED ITEMS /Musf
Seruices prior to submission to the Board Clerk.)

a
apprcved by the Directot of lnformation

Date:Approved: Vzz ,D



GetCare Agreement
ttSoftware as a Service'o

This Agreement is by and between the Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging (ESAAA) and RTZ
Associates, Inc. (RTZ), incorporated and headquartered in the State of California. This Agreement
specifies the rights, obligations, and requirements governing the provision and use of RTZ's
GetCare software - a cloud-based, "off-the-shelf' commercial software product designed to
support the business needs of Area Agencies on Aging (AAAs). This Agreement shall be effective
when fully executed by both parties (the "Effective Date").

I Services:

1.1 RTZ will provide ESAAA with the current version (v.2019) of GetCare per a
"sofLware as a service" model. ESAAA is entitled to receive all general updates to
this version of GetCare during the Term of this Agreement at no additional cost. The
content and schedule of general GetCare updates will be solely determined by RTZ;
however, RTZ will make any data collection/reporting changes required by the
California Department of Aging or state or federal law in a timely manner at no
additional cost. For the Term of this Agreement RTZ hereby grants ESAAA an
unlimited, non-exclusive license to access and use GetCare (including all successor
versions thereof) as provided for herein.

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

RTZ will host GetCare in accordance with the Service Level Agreement (SLA)
incorporated in Attachment B. In addition to the production (i.e. "liveo')
environment, for 30 days both before and after the Go-Live date, RTZ will also host
a sandbox environment to support acceptance testing and training activities. As a
cloud-based service, use of GetCare requires a computer or mobile device with
internet access and a web-browser. ESAAA assumes responsibility for purchasing
and supporting all software and hardware used to access GetCare.

RTZ will provide system implementation services necessary for ESAAA to access
and use GetCare as intended under this Agreement. Optional system configuration,
data conversion, and training services are outlined in Attachment C ("Pricing").

RTZ will provide ESAAA with routine technical support via phone and email during
normal RTZ business days (Monday through Friday - excluding holidays observed
by the New York Stock Exchange - between the hours of 8am and 6pm Pacific
Time).

RTZ warrants that Getcare - as provided to ESAAA: (a) will be free from coding
errors and defects, (b) will perform as specified / presented by RTZ, (c) will meet or
exceed industry security and disaster recovery standards, and (d) will not infringe
upon, violate, or misappropriate any foreign or United States patent, copyright,
trademark, trade secret or any other intellectual property or proprietary right of any
third-party. RTZ will promptly correct any component of GetCare which does not
conform with any of the foregoing representations and warranties at no charge to
ESAAA.

page I of16



II Pricing:

2,1 The pricing for GetCare is specified in Attachment C.

2.2 ESAAA shall keep pricing information confidential and shall not disclose pricing
information unless required by law.

2.3 RTZ shall invoice ESAAA on a monthly basis in advance of'each month (not in
arrears), or as otherwise agreed upon by both Parties in writing.

Payment is due and payable within 30 calendar days following receipt of a correct
and undisputed invoice.

2.4

2.5 Any undisputed amounts not paid when due are subject to a late fee of lo/o per month
(a compounded annual rate of 12.68%) - or the maximum amount allowed by law,
whichever is less - provided thatRTZ has given ESAAA written notice of
delinquency and at least 30 calendar days to cure such delinquency.

2.6 ESAAA will pay all federal, state, or local sales or use taxes that RTZ is legally
obligated to charge, unless ESAAA has furnished RTZ with a certificate of
exemption with respect thereto. ESAAA is not liable for any taxes that RTZ is
legally obligated to pay, including, without limitation, any taxes based upon RTZ's
property, net income or gross receipts.

III Term:

3.1

3,2

This Agreement shall go into effect immediately upon execution by both parties and
have an Initial Term of thirty-six (36) months.

At the end of the Initial Term (and then at the end of each subsequent renewal term)
this Agreement shall automatically renew in twelve (12) month increments unless
ESAAA gives written notice of its intent to discontinue use of GetCare toF.TZ at
least thirty (30) calendar days prior to the expiration of the then current term, or RTZ
gives written notice of its intent to discontinue the provision of GetCare to ESAAA
at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to the expiration of the then current term.
Each renewal term will be subject to a cost of living adjustment based on the then-
cunent CPI-U published by the U.S. Department of Labor or as otherwise
renegotiated by both parties.

Mermination:
4.1 Pricing under this Agreement is based on a fixed-term contract with no "Termination

for Convenience" rights. If parties agree to a Termination for Convenience
amendment in writing, this Agreement shall become a month-to-month agreement,
and the monthly costs specified in Attachment C will increaseby 50%.

4.2 Termination for Cause. In the event of a material breach of any clause, condition or
covenant of this Agreement by one par$, the non-breaching party may terminate the

page2 of 16



Agreement if the breaching party does not cure the breach within thirty (30) calendar
days of receiving written notice of such breach.

4.3 Upon the effective date of termination of this Agreement, all use licenses shall
expire. In the event of termination, RTZ shall deliver to ESAAA a copy of all
ESAAA data. Specifically, RTZ will provide up to two sets of files - one
preliminary set of files for review, and one final set of files for migration to a new
system. RTZ will provide said data in a non-proprietary electronic format (.CSV or
equivalent). ESAAA assumes ultimate responsibility for checking files for
accuracy/completeness and noti$'ing RTZ of any errors/omissions. Files will only
include ESAAA data; i.e. they will not include GetCare data such as (but not limited
to) validations/constraints, triggers, algorithms, or stored procedures. RTZ will not
provide a data dictionary or schema; however, upon request RTZ will participate in
one phone call with ESAAA staff (and only ESAAA staff) not to exceed one hour in
length in which P.TZ can clarifi, fields/files as needed. ESAAA understands that
Agreement pricing does not include transition assistance, such as (but not limited to)
data translation, conversion, or migration assistance. At its sole discretion, ESAAA
may engage F.TZ at its standard hourly rate identified in Attachment C to provide
data translation or other transition-related services.

4.4 All terms and conditions of this Agreement that would reasonably be interpreted as
surviving termination of this Agreement will be deemed to survive termination of
this Agreement.

V Relationship of the Parties and Their Employees:

5.1 Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create an employer/employee
relationship between ESAAA and RTZ or its personnel, and personnel shall not be
eligible for any employee benefits programs of ESAAA, nor shall they have any
claim against ESAAA for vacation pay, sick leave, retirement benefits, Social
Security, Workers Compensation, disability or unemployment insurance benefits, or
any other employee benefits of any kind.

VI Confidentiality:

6.1 It is assumed that ESAAA will enter consumer data into GetCare, including data that
may meet HIPAA's definition of Protected Health Information ("PHI"). All such
participant data shall be governed by the Business Associate Agreement ("BAA")
incorporated in Attachment A.

6.2 In addition to, but separate from participant data entered into GetCare (which shall
be governed by the terms of the BAA), during the course of the Agreement, one
Party may share "Confidential Information" with the other party. For the purposes
of this Agreement, "Confidential Information" shall mean any information either (i)
marked "confidential" or "proprietary"; or (ii) which by its nature is reasonably
understood to be confidential or proprietary, whether or not so marked, including but
not limited to, information and know-how regarding business practices, strategies,
and products/pricing. All aspects of the GetCare product, including but not limited

page 3 of 16



to source code, system logic/functionality, screen layout/design, and
documents/forms/reports, shall be treated by ESAAA as Confidential Information.

As between the Parties, Confidential Information shall be deemed to be the sole and
exclusive proprietary information of the disclosing Party.

6.3 Regardless ofthe form produced, observed, or received, each Party shall: (i) not
disclose any Confidential Information to any third-party without express written
consent of the disclosing Party; (ii) not use any Confidential Information for the
benefit of itself or any other person or entity except as expressly permitted in this
Agreement; and (iii) safeguard all Confidential Information with reasonable security
measures at least equivalent to the measures that it uses to safeguard its own
Confi dential Information.

6.4 Each Party will promptly destroy / delete all Confidential Information: (i) if
requested by the disclosing ParIy, or (ii) upon the termination of the Agreement.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the receiving Party shall be entitled to retain
Confidential Information to the extent required or compelled by law. The receiving
Party shall remain bound by the provisions of the Agreement with respect to
Confidential Information even after the termination of the Agreement, and prevent
any further use or disclosure of such Confidential Information.

6.5 The obligations regarding Confidential Information do not apply to information that:
(i) is or becomes publicly known without breach of the Agreement, or (ii) at the time
of disclosure is already known to the receiving Party without any restriction on its
disclosure.

VII Ownership:

7.1 RTZ owns all aspects of the GetCare product, including but not limited to source
code, system logic/functionality, screen layout/design, and documents/forms/reports.
ESAAA agrees that it will not seek to reverse engineer GetCare or provide (and will
expressly inform staffnot to provide): (a) account credentials or other form ofaccess
to GetCare, (b) screenshots or other forms of visual, written, or oral descriptions of
GetCare, or (c) forms/documents/reports produced by GetCare to any internal
software development team or third-party - specifically but not limited to other
software vendors competing with or seeking to compete with RTZ. No ownership
equity in GetCare shall accrue to ESAAA through its use of GetCare under this lease
arrangement.

7.2 ESAAA owns all data and information that it enters into GetCare. RTZ shall not
acquire any rights to any such ESAA A data or information, and further, shall only
use participant data- including de-identified participant data- to fulfill its
obligations under this Agreement.

ESAAA agrees not to provide RTZ with any electronic files or printed documents
containing any information that it does not solely own or otherwise have the rights to
use, copy, and disseminate in the manner contemplated by this Agreement (and
ESAAA assumes sole responsibility for clarifying and ensuring ownership and usage
rights). ESAAA agrees to indemni$,, defend, and hold harmless RTZ (and its
principals, employees, and agents) from any and all actions, claims, losses, damages,

6.2

7.3

page 4 of 16



penalties, and costs (including costs for reasonable attorney fees) that are reasonably
caused by its provision or disclosure of intellectual property (including but not
limited to data structures, forms / assessments, or other information) claimed by a
third-party to be proprietary in nature and/or protected by trademark, copyright, or
patent laws.

VIII DisputeResolution:

8.1 Each Party must provide the other Party with written notification of any controversy,
dispute, or disagreement arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the breach
thereof. The receiving Party shall respond to any disputes with 10 business days,
and the Parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve such dispute, including
requiring a member of each Party's respective executive management team to
participate in this dispute resolution process. Should parties not reach a resolution
within 30 calendar days (or a timeline mutually agreed upon by both parties in
writing), the dispute shall be refered to mediation. If mediation is unsuccessful,
either party may pursue remedies available to it at law that are consistent with the
terms of this Agreement, in any court of competent jurisdiction.

IX Choice of Law / Situs:

9.1 RTZ and ESAAA are both domiciled in the State of California, andthis Agreement
shall be governed by the laws of the State of California. In the event that one Party
institutes any legal proceedings against the other Party, such legal proceeding shall
be brought in any court in Contra Costa County (California), and both Parties
expressly submit to the jurisdiction of such court.

X Entire Agreement:

10.1 This Agreement, including Attachments A, B, and C, constitute the entire agreement
of the parties hereto, and all previous communications between the parties, whether
written or oral, with respect to the subject matter of this contract, are hereby
superseded. No amendment, change or modification of this Agreement shall be
effective unless in writing and signed by the parties hereto.

I0.2 If any part of this Agreement is declared invalid or becomes inoperative for any
reason, such invalidity or failure shall not affect the validity and enforceability of
any other provision.

XI Notices:

I 1.1 All notices affecting this Agreement must be in writing to the undersigned or to the
individual reasonably assumed to be his/her successor or appointed representative
regarding matters herein.

page 5 of 16



XII Waiver of Breach:

l2.l A waiver of a breach of any provision of this contract by either Party will not operate
or be construed as a waiver ofany subsequent breach.

XIII Non-Exclusion:

13.1 RTZ represents and warrants to ESAAA that neither it nor any of its affiliates: (a) are
excluded from participation in any federal health care program, as definedunder 42
U.S.C. $ 1320a-7b(D, for the provision of items or services for which payment may
be made, either directly or indirectly (e.g., through inclusion in a Medicare cost
report), under such federal health care program; and (b) has arranged or contracted
(by employment or otherwise) with any employee, agency or agent that such party or
its affiliates knows or should know are excluded from participation in any federal
program, to provide items or services hereunder. RTZ represents and warrants to
ESAAA that no final adverse action, as such term is defined under 42 U.S.C.
$1320a-7.e(g), has occurred or is pending or threatened against such contractor or its
affiliates or, to their knowledge, against any employee or agent engaged to provide
services under this Agreement.

XMmnibus Reconciliation Act:

14.l RTZ hereby agrees that, subject to the legality and applicability of Sectiong52 of the
Omnibus Reconciliation Act of 1980 and implementing regulations: (i) until the
expiration of four (4) years after the furnishing of services under this contract,Klz
shall make available, upon written request of an appropriate federal official, this
contract and any books, documents and records of RTZ that are necessary to certifii
the nature and extent of the costs of such services; and (ii) if RTZ carries out any of
the duties of this contract through a subcontract with a value or cost of $10,000 or
more over a twelve (12) month period, with an organization related to RTZ, such
subcontract shall contain a clause similar to subparagraph (i) above, making
available the subcontract and the books, documents, and records of such related
organization which are necessary to verifl, the nature and extent of the costs of the
subcontracted services, upon written request of an appropriate federal official.

XV General Provisions:

15.1 Proper use and safeguarding of the system and its data is the responsibility of both
parties. ESAAA shall create and enforce rules related to accessing and handling
consumer data in GetCare.

15.2 Except in the event of gross negligence or willful misconduct, under no circumstance
shall either Party's total liability under this Agreement exceed the annual amount
paid or payable to RTZ under this Agreement. Each Party shall defend, indemnifir,
and hold harmless the other Party against any and all third-party claims and resulting
damages (including reasonable attorneys' fees) arising out of the gross negligence or
willful misconduct of, or breach of this Agreement by, such Party.

page 6 of 16



15.3 Force Majeure: Neither party shall be liable or deemed to be in default for any delay
or failure in performance under this Agreement or interruption of service resulting
from Acts of God, civil or military authority, acts of war or tenorism, or riots or
insurections. If, notwithstanding RTZ's disaster recovery/business continuity plan,
a Force Majeure event renders RTZ unable to perform its obligations under this
Agreement or materially impacts the functionality or accessibility of GetCare for a
period of ten (10) or more consecutive business days, then ESAAA shall have the
right to terminate this Agreement without penalty.

15.4 In the event RTZ plans to cease operations or cease its support of GetCare - or
otherwise sell its rights to the GetCare product - RTZ shall notift ESAuM promptly.

This Agreement may be executed in counterpartsl each counterpart may be deemed an
original and all counterparts together shall constitute a single document. For the purpose of
this Agreement, a facsimile or PDF signature transmitted electronically shall be valid and
binding as if it was an original signature. The Agreement shall become effective upon the full
execution of the Agreement by all parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed
as of the Effective Date specified herein.

RTZ Associates, Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging

of authorized representative Signature of authorized representative

Michael Zawadski
Printed name Printed name

President
Title Title

March 7, 20L9
Date Date

pageT of16



ATTACHMENT A

Business Associate Agreement

This HIPAA Business Associate Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into by and between RTZ
Associatesr lnc. ("Business Associate") and Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging ("Covered
Entity") (collectively "the Parties").

Covered Entity has engaged Business Associate to perform services on its behalf. Covered entity
possesses Protected Health Information ("PHI") (defined below). Covered Entity and Business
Associate intend to: (i) protect the privacy and provide for the security of PHI disclosed pursuant to
this Agreement and (ii) comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of
1996 (HIPAA), Public Law 104-191, as amended by the Health Information Technology for
Economic and Clinical Health Act ("HITECH"), Public Law 111-5, and the regulations
promulgated thereunder by the U.S. Department of Health & Human Services (the "HIPAA
Regulations"), and other applicable federal and state laws.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

Article 1. Definitions.

a. "Breach" means the acquisition, access, use, or disclosure of PHI in a manner not
permitted under subpart E of 45 CFR Part 164 that compromises the security or privacy of the PHI
(within the meaning of 45 CFR 164.402).

b. "Designated Record Sd" shall have the meaning given to such term under the
Privacy Rule, including, but not limited to, 45 CFR 164.501.

c. "Electronic Prote 'means PHI that is transmitted
by or maintained in electronic media as defined in 45 CFR 160.103.

d. ooPrivacy Rule" shall mean the HIPAA regulations codified at 45 CFR Parts 160 and
164, Subparts A and E.

e. "Protected Health Iffi" shall have the meaning given to such term
under the Privacy Rule, including, but not limited to, 45 CFR 164.103, and is the information
created or received by Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity, including, but not
limited to, oPHI.

f. ".Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health & Human
Services or designee.

g. "Unsecured PHI" means PHI that is not rendered unusable, unreadable, or
indecipherable to unauthorized individuals through the use of a technology or methodology
specified by the Secretary in regulations or other guidance issued under Section Ba02$)(2) of
HITECH.

page 8 of 16



Article 2. Obligations of Business Associate.

1. Permiffed Uses. Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement or by law, Business
Associate may: (i) use or disclose PHI to perform functions, activities or services for, or on behalf
of, Covered Entity, provided that such use or disclosure would not violate the Privacy Rule if done
by Covered Entity; (ii) use PHI to carry out the legal responsibilities of Business Associate; (iii)
conduct any other use or disclosure permitted or required by HIPAA or applicable federal or state
law; or (iv) use PHI for the proper management and administration of Business Associate.

2. Permitted Disclosures. Business Associate shall not disclose PHI except for the
purpose of performing its obligations under this Agreement or as required by law. Business
Associate shall not disclose PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy
Rule or HITECH if so disclosed by the Covered Entity. If Business Associate discloses PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable
written assurances from such third party that such PHI will be held confidential as provided
pursuant to this Agreement and only disclosed as required by law or for the purposes for which it
was disclosed to such third party, and (ii) a written agreement from such third party to immediately
notifu Business Associate of any breaches of confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has
obtained knowledge of such breach.

3. Appropriate Safeguards. Business Associate shall use appropriate physical,
technical, and administrative safeguards (i) to prevent use or disclosure of PHI other than as
permitted under this Agreement or as required by law and (ii) to reasonably and appropriately
protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of the ePHI that Business Associate creates,
receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of the Covered Entity.

4. Reporting of Improper Use or Disclosure. Business Associate shall report in
writing to Covered Entity any access, use, or disclosure of PHI not permitted by this Agreement
promptly and in no case later than 60 calendar days, after discovery.

5. Reporting of a Breach. Business Associate shall, in accordance with the
requirements of 45 CFR 164.410, promptly notiff Covered Entity in writing, of a Breach of
Unsecured PHI. Business Associate also shall, without unreasonable delay, but in no event later
than sixty (60) calendar days after the discovery of a Breach of Unsecured PHI, notify affected
Individuals, the Secretary, and media of such Breach to the extent required under, and in
accordance with the requirements of, 45 CFR 164.400 et seq. (Subpart D). To the extent provided
under 45 CFR 16a.ala@)(2), aBreach shall be treated as discovered as of the first day on which
such Breach is known, or by exercising reasonable diligence would have been known, to any
person, other than the person committing the Breach, who is an employee, officer, or agent of
Business Associate.

6. Business Associate's Agents. Business Associate shall ensure that any agent,
including a subcontractor, to whom it provides PHI agrees in writing to the same restrictions and
conditions that apply to Business Associate to such PHI and implement the safeguards required
above with respect to ePHI. Business Associate shall implement and maintain sanctions against
agents and subcontractors that violate such restrictions and conditions and shall mitigate such
effects of any such violation.

7, Mitigation. Business Associate shall mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful
effect that is known to Business Associate of a Breach relating to Business Associate or any of its
agents or subcontractors.

page 9 of 16



8. Access to PHI. Business Associate shall provide access to an Individual, at the
request of the Individual or the Covered Entity, to PHI in a Designated Record Set maintained by,
or in the possession of Business Associate in the time and manner required of a Covered Entity
under 45 CFR 164.524 or as required by law. Any denial of access to such PHI determined by
Business Associate shall be the sole responsibility of Business Associate, including, but not limited
to, resolution or reporting of all appeals and/or complaints arising therefrom. Business Associate
shall promptly report all such requests and their resolution to Covered Entity. Business Associate
shall promptly notifu the Covered Entity of any request made to the Business Associate that
extends to other PHL

9. Amendment of PHI. Business Associate shall make a determination on any
authorized request by an Individual for amendment(s) to PHI in a Designated Record Set
maintained by, or in the possession of, Business Associate in the time and manner required of a
Covered Entity under 45 CFR 164.526 or as required by law. Any denial of such a request for
amendment of PHI determined by Business Associate shall be the responsibility of Business
Associate, including, but not limited to, resolution or reporting of all appeals, and complaints
arising therefrom. Business Associate shall report all approved amendments or statements of
disagreement/rebuttals in accordance with 45 CFR 164.526. Business Associate shall also promptly
report all such requests and their resolution to Covered Entity.

10. Documentation of Disclosures. Business Associate agrees to document such
disclosures of PHI and information related to such disclosures as would be required for a Covered
Entity to respond to a request by an Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in
accordance with 45 CFR 164.528. At a minimum, such documentation shall include: (i) the date of
disclosure; (ii) the name of the entity or person who received PHI and, if known, the address of the
entity or person; (iii) a brief description of the PHI disclosed; and (iv) a brief statement of the
purpose of the disclosure that reasonably informs the Individual of the basis for the disclosure, or a
copy of the Individual's authorization, or a copy of the written request for disclosure. Business
Associate shall retain such documentation for such period as is set forth in the Privacy Rule or
other applicable laws.

1 1. Accounting of Disclosures. Business Associate agrees to provide to the Covered
Entity the information required to provide an accounting of disclosures to enable Covered Entity to
fulfill its obligations under the Privacy Rule upon the Covered Entity's request.

12. Governmental Access to Records. Business Associate shall make its internal
practices, books, and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI available to Covered Entity
or to the Secretary for purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with the Privacy Rule.

page 10 of 16



13. HITECH Compliance. Business Associate shall:

(i) not receive, directly or indirectly, any impermissible
remuneration in exchange for PHI or ePHI, except as permitted by HITECH $
l3aOs(d);

(ii) comply with the marketing and other restrictions applicable to
business associates contained in HITECH $ 13406;

(iiD to the extent required under HITECH $ 13404, fully comply
with the applicable requirements of 45 CFR 164.502(e)(2) for each use or disclosure
of PHI;

(iv) to the extent required under HITECH $ 13401, fully comply
with 45 CFR 164.308, 164.310, 164.312, and 164.316; and

(v) to the extent required under HITECH $$ 13401 and 13404,
comply with the additional privacy and security requirements that apply to covered
entities in the same manner and to the same extent as Covered Entity is required to
do so.

Article 3. Obligations of Covered Entify.

l. Delegation to Business Associate. As set forth in this Agreement, Covered Entity
hereby delegates to Business Associate Covered Entity's responsibility to provide access,
amendment, and accounting rights to Individuals with respect to PHI in any Designated Record Set
maintained by, or in the possession of, Business Associate. It is understood that Business Associate
will interact with the Individual directly, up to and including resolution of any appeals or reporting
of complaints under HIPAA or applicable federal or state law. Further, Covered Entity hereby
delegates to Business Associate the Covered Entity's obligations with respect to notice of Breaches
of Unsecured PHI. In accordance with this Agreement, Business Associate shall notiff affected
Individuals, Covered Entity, the Secretary, and media (if required by law) of such Breach within
sixty (60) calendar days after discovery. Such notice shall comply with the notification
requirements set forth in HITECH, 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 (specifically, 45 CFR 164.410), and
any other associated regulations.

2. Notice of Privacy Practices. Covered Entity shall provide Business Associate with
the notice of privacy practices that Covered Entity produces in accordance with 45 CFR 164.520,
as well as any changes to such notice. Business Associate shall not distribute its own notice to
Individuals. Business Associate shall not be responsible for the content of Covered Entity's notice
of privacy practices nor any error or omission in such notice.

3, Changes in Permission by Individual. Covered Entity shall provide Business
Associate with any changes in, or revocation of permission by an Individual to use or disclose
PHI, if such changes affect Business Associate's permitted or required uses and disclosures.

4. Restrictions on PHI. Covered Entity shall notifr Business Associate of any
restriction upon the use or disclosure of PHI to which Covered Entity has agreed, to the extent that
such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHI.

page l1 of16



5. Permissible Requests by Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall not request Business
Associate to use or disclose PHI in any manner that would not be permissible under the Privacy
Rule if done by Covered Entity, except for Business Associate's use of PHI for its proper
management and administration or to carry out its legal responsibilities under this Agreement.

6. Disclosure to Third Parties. Covered Entity may request that Business Associate
disclose PHI directly to another party. Covered Entity agrees that all such disclosures requested by
Covered Entity shall be for purposes of Covered Entity's treatment, payment or health care
operations, or otherwise permitted or required under HIPAA or other applicable law.

Article 4. Use of Limited Data Sets.

The parties agree, for purposes of complying with 45 CFR 164.502(b)(1), to limit, to the extent
practicable, any use, disclosure and requests of PHI to a "limited data set" (as defined in 45 CFR
l6a.5l4(e)(2)) or, if needed by the Business Associate or Covered Entity, to the minimum
necessary PHI to accomplish the intended purpose of such use, disclosure or request.

Article 5. Term and Termination.

1. Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence as of the Effective Date, and
shall terminate when all of the PHI provided by either party to the other, or created or received by
Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity, is destroyed or returned to Covered Entity or, if it
is infeasible to return or destroy PHI, protections are extended to such information.

2. Termination for Cause. If either party violates or breaches a material term of this
Agreement, the non-breaching party shall provide a written notice of the breach and a reasonable
opportunity to the other party to cure the breach or end the violation within a reasonable period of
time specified in the notice. If neither cure nor termination is feasible, the non-breaching party
may report the problem to the Secretary.

3. Effect of Termination.

(i) Upon termination of this Agreement, for any reason, Business Associate
shall return or destroy all PHI received from Covered Entity, or created or received by
Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity. This provision shall apply to PHI that is in
the possession of subcontractors or agents of Business Associate. Business Associate shall
retain no copies of the PHI.

(ii) In the event that Business Associate determines that returning or destroying
the PHI is infeasible, Business Associate shall provide to Covered Entity notification of the
conditions that make return or destruction infeasible. Upon mutual agreement of the Parties
that return or destruction of the PHI is infeasible, Business Associate shall extend the
protections of this Agreement to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such
PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
Associate maintains such PHI.

page 1,2 of 16



Article 6. Miscellaneous.

1. Amendment. The Parties agree to take such action as is necessary to amend this
Agreement from time to time as is required for Covered Entity to comply with the requirements of
HIPAA or HITECH and any applicable any other laws or regulations.

2. Waiver. No delay or omission by either party to exercise any right or remedy under
this Agreement will be construed to be either acquiescence or the waiver of the ability to exercise
any right or remedy in the future.

3. Survival. The respective rights and obligations of Business Associate shall survive
the termination of this Agreement.

4. Severability. In the event any part or parts of this Agreement are held to be
unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement will continue in effect.

5. Assignment. This Agreement is not assignable by either party without the other
party's written consent.

6. Prior Agreement. This Agreement shall replace and supersede any prior business
associate agreement between the parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF' the parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement as of the
Effective Date.

F'OR: F'OR:

RTZ Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging

Signature of authorized representative Signature of authorized representative

Michael Za ki
Printed name Printed name

President
Title Title

March 7 201.9
Date Date

page 13 of16



ATTACHMENT B

Service Level Agreement

RTZ has a solid track record providing high availability information systems. Under this SLA, RTZ
will conform to the following standards during the Term of the Agreement with ESAAA:

(a) RTZ will host GetCare 24 hours a day excluding regularly scheduled routine maintenance. For
the purposes of this SLA, "availability" is defined as the ability of an end-user to access the system
and use all functions.

(b) All regularly scheduled routine maintenance of GetCare shall occur outside of ESAAA business
hours.

(c) For the purposes of this SLA, 'oexcusable downtime" is defined as a period of time when the
GetCare site is unavailable due to: (a) a scheduled software and/or hardware upgrade within the
maintenance window described above, (b) an ESAAA request to take the system offline not related
to a system error/defect, or (c) a Force Majeure event (as defined in the Agreement). Except in
cases of emergency, RTZ will provide ESAAA with advance notification before scheduled system
unavailability.

(d) For the purposes of this SLA, "non-excusable downtime" is defined as a period of time when the
GetCare site is unavailable due to: (a) an enor/defect in the application or database, (b) a hardware
failure at the co-location site, (c) a power failure at the co-location site, or (d) a network failure up
to, but not including, the interconnection point of the co-location infrastructure and the ISP
infrastructure.

(e) RTZ guarantees that GetCare site availability will meet or exceed 995% in any given calendar
month, excluding excusable downtime. If non-excusable downtime exceeds 0.5Yo in any given
calendar month, in addition to any other remedies available to ESAAA, RTZ will credit ESAAA
according to the following schedule:

Service Level
(availability per month excluding

excus?ble dorvntime)

99.5% or above

98% -99.4%
97.99 - 96%
95.99 -94%
93.99 -92%

Service Level Credit
(percent of monthly ASP cost

" in pricing.s_chedrle)

None

5%
l0%
25%
50%

(0 In order to obtain a service level credit for a given calendar month, ESAAA must notift RTZ in
writing within the first 10 business days of the following month. Upon receipt of such notification,
RTZ shall use GetCare system logs to quantiff downtime and determine the service level credit due.
ESAAA shall not obtain any credits other than those specified above. Credit shall be applied
against the next ESAAA invoice. In the event ESAAA has already paid the contract in full (and no
further invoices shall issue as a result), RTZ shall remit to ESAAA the credit due within 30 days.

(g) Although RTZ may adjust its change management and installation procedures to accommodate
client preferences, system patches are typically installed as soon as practical (depending on the
severity of the problem and the complexity of the fix) and system updates are typically installed
during the next scheduled push.

page 14 of 16



ATTACHMENT C

Pricing

Pricing for services is as follows

GetCare - baseline AAA / NAPIS component

t+ core I&R component

l+ core user package - 15 user accounts

one-time cost ongoing cost

$4,950 1

$3,950

none

$295 /month 2

$195 / month

$825 /month

Total of core / baseline components; $8,900 $1,315 / month

v ll'l'Z-oltered optional selviccs

Barcode scanning component (optional) I

Customization services (optional) a

Additional user account (optional) s

Data conversion / migration services (optional) 0

Data warehouse or interface set-up (optional)

Client-specific documentation [optional) z

Onsite visit foptional) I

$1,500

$165 / hour

none

$165 / hour

$165 / hour

$165 / hour

see note

$L95 per month

none

$55/month (each)

none

varles

none

none

v RTZ-olfcrcd optional aclcl-on system conllonents

Ombudsman (includes NORS reporting)

APS (includes NAMRS reportingl

SHIP / MIPPA (includes STARS reportingJ

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

TBD

r Standard set-up services for RTZ-hosted implementation utilizing AWS "GovCloud"
environment. Pricing assumes ESAAA will use standard system assessments and
reports. One-time costs are invoiced / due in full upon contract execution and are not
tied to specific milestones / deliverables or general project status,

2 Required service bundle. Includes hosting services (utilizing the AWS "GovCloud"
environment) and unlimited phone / web-based technical support. Also includes no-
cost general product updates required to ensure security and operability ofthe
system, including any changes necessary to meet evolving NAPIS reporting
requirements. Ongoing fees will begin on the contract effective date and will then
continue in full throughout the contract term and will not be adjusted for site
use/non-use or the presence/absence of system functionality. RTZ reserves the right

page 15 of 16



to apply a cost-of-living adjustment (not to exceed 3o/o per annum) for any renewal
periods after the Initial Term.

3 RTZ will provide ESAAA with minimum / recommended hardware specifications;
barcode scanners are not included.

a Customization services are defined as requested "one-off'system changes not
applicable to other GetCare clients. As stated, system changes to accommodate
evolving NAPIS reporting requirements are included in maintenance services.

s A user account/license is defined as "active" ifthe account holder can log-in to
GetCare in a given month (regardless of whether or not the account holder actually
logged-in to GetCare in a given month). Cost calculations will look at the peak
number of additional accounts/licenses active at any point in the month and will not
prorate charges. Core / baseline package includes fifteen (15) user accounts, No
credits shall apply for unused accounts.

6 RTZ will convert / migrate client data currently transmitted to the state CARS
reporting system at no cost. At its discretion, ESAAA can purchase additional data
conversion / migration services on an hourly basis. In an effort to minimize RTZ
hours spent on data conversion / migration activities, RTZ can (if desirableJ provide
ESMA with data format specifications. Should ESAAA provide legacy data in a format
meeting these specifications and not needing data clean-up, it will greatly minimize
the amount of time sp'ent on data conversion / migration activities.

7 RTZwill provide up to 4 cumulative (non-transferrable) hours within each contract
year to prepare documentation requested by * and specific for - ESAAA. (As an
illustrative example, some GetCare clients ask RTZ to complete an annual client-
specific questionnaire,) In the event this cumulative amount is exceeded in any given
contract year, the standard hourly rate shall apply.

e Standard set-up services include web-based training supplemented by written guides
and/or video tutorials. RTZ effectively supports AAAs throughout California via
phone and web-based sessions; however, if ESAAA wants an onsite visit RTZ will
provide a quote for approval based on the location, duration, and personnel required.
When developing a quote, RTZ looks at personnel time/rates as well as the actual
travel expenses incurred for coach airfare, mid-tier car rental or ride-share service,
and business-grade lodging.

page 16 of 16



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO
I conrrn, n D.pun*.ntd f Conespondence Action

n Public Hearing I srn.aule time for ! ctosea session Informational

For Clerk's Use
Only:

AGENDA NUfllBER

24

FROM: Public works

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: tl,,}! r-:i$ 2019

SUBJECT: Request the Board approve the contract with Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. for Water Rate

Study Services for the Lone Pine, Independence and Laws Town Watet Systems for an amount not to exceed

$34,691.00.

DEPARTMENTAL RECOMMENDATIONS :

Request your Board:

A) Approve the contract with Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. for the provision of Water Rate Study
Services for the Lone Pine, Independence, and Laws Town Water Systems in an amount not to exceed

$34,691 for the term of January 1,2019 to December 3I,2019;

B) Authorize the chairperson to execute the contract; contingent upon obtaining appropriate signatures.

CAO RECOMMENDATIONS:

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:

At the November 14,zAn meeting of the Board of Supervisors, your Board approved a sole source contract with
Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. for Water Rate Study Services for the Lone Pine, Independence and Laws
Town Water Systems. The previously approved contract ended in 2018.

This new contract will allow Raftelis to continue finalizing the rate calculations and customer impacts analysis for
the Town Water Systems; provide draft and final reports that will serve as the Public Works Deparhnent's
Administrative Record to meet the requirements of Proposition 218; and conduct an in- person meeting to present

to the public. One additional meeting has been included in the not-to-exceed cost of the contract should Raftelis'
presence be required at an additional public meeting.

The approval of this contract will allow payments of invoices for services rendered.

ALTERNATIVES:

The Board could choose not to approve this contract. This is not recommended since a portion services have

been provided and this rate study is required to establish water rates to fund the Town Water Systems.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
County Counsel
Auditor-controller



FINANCING:
The not to exceed cost is $$34,691.00 and will be funded 41% from Budget Unit 152201 Water System-Lone
Pine and 59Yo from Budget Unit 152101 Water System- Independence object code 5265 professional services.

DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE:
(Not to be signed until all approvals are n

AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELA.I'ED ITEMS (Must beCOUNTY CO[,INSEL
reviewed and approved by County Counsel prior to submission to the board clerk.)

Approved

ACCOLINTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewcd and approved by the auditor/controller prior to
submission board olerk.)

PERSONNET, AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the director of personnel scrvices prior to
submission to the board clerk.)

Approved:_-_--.--Date_
PERSONNEL DIRECTOR

..\ l,lrlto\';\l.s



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND RAFTELIS FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS, INC.

FOR THE PROVISION OF WATWER RATE STUDY SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafler referred to as "County'') has the need for the
WATER RATE STUDY servicesof
(hereinafter rafened to as "Consultant"), and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and
condltlons hereinafter contained, lhe parlies hereby agree as follows:

TERMSAND CONDITIONS

t. scoPEoFwoRK.

The Goneultant shall furnish to the Coung, upon lts requesl, those services and work set lorlh in
Atlachment A, attached herelo and by reference incorporatod herein. Requests by the County to the
Consultant to perform under thie Agreement will be made by the Dlreotor of Public Works

ffi txllff 8[:!",;fr'ifl '?:lifl .y+,lil"#i'i,'J:RTJ;il:r",#:l
wananty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of servlces or work will be requested of the
Consultant by th6 Counly under thls Agreement, County by this Agrccment incurs no obligation or
requirement lo requost from Consultant the performance of any services or work at all, evcn if County should
have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement.

Services and work providcd by the Consultant at the Count/s request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with th€ requirements and standards established by applicable federal,
slate, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutlons, Such laws, ordlnances, regulations, end
resolutions include, but are not limlted to, lhose which are referred to in this Agreement and, as applicabla, as
sel forth, in Attachment E, attached hereto and incorporated herein.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be from 1101t2019 to 1213112019 unless
sooner terminated as provided belou ln addition, County shall have two
additional one-year periods as follows:

options to extend the Agreement for

A, From N/A through N/A
B, From N/A lhrough N/A

County shall exercise such optlons by giving w'itten notice to Gonlractor at least thirty (30) days
before the expiration of the Agreemenl, or an extension thEreof.

The notice shalt speciff the period of the options being exercised. The oplion to extend shall be upon
the same t6rms and conditions stated in this Agreement.

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. Compsnsallon. Gounty shall pay Consultant in accordsnce with the Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Altachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by
Consultent at the Countt's reguest,

B, Traval and pe[ dJeim. Coung shall reimburse Consultant for the traval expenses and per
diem which Consultant incurc in providing seMces and work requested by County under this Agreement,
Consultant shall request approval by thebounty prior to incurrin! any kavel or pei dlem expenies, Requests

Counly of lnyo Slandard Contract - No. 156

(lndopendenl Consultanl - Professlonal)
, Page 1 ofll 08t1712O18



by Consultant for

6Xperures

lo as
reim bursement requested
limlt.

"conlract limit').
by Contractor for

to incur lravel and per diem expenses shall be submitted to the
Travel and per dlem

in accordance wilh the rates set forth ln the Schedule of Travel and Per Diem

(initialterm) (option 1) and
Z)for a of

Gounty expressly reserye$ the right to deny any paymont or
excsss of tha contrec.tsgr\fiC€8 or work performed wlrlcfr is in

E. Bllllno and oavmEnt. Consultant shall submit to the County, once a monlh, an itemizad
statement of all hours spant by Gonsultant in performlng services and work described in Attmhment A, wtrich

ryqre dona at the Gounty's request, This statement wlll be submitted to the County not latsr than lhe fifih
(sth) d-ay of the month, The statement to be submltted wlll cov6r the period from ihe first (1st) day of the
qrecedlng lonth through and including the last day of the preceding month. Thls statement wilildenti[r thc
date on which lhe hours were worked and deacribe lhe nature of the work which was performed on eactrday,
Coneultant's statement to the County will algo hclude an itemization of any travel or per diem expenses,
wltich have_ been approved ln advance by County, incurred by Coneulhnt during that pirtoO. me *emized
statement for kavel expensos and per diem wlll indude receipts for lodglng, meals, and other incidental
exp€nse8 in accordance with lhe County's accountlng procedures and Mes. Upon timely reoeipt of the
statement by the frfih (Sth) day of the month, County shall make payment to Consuliant on thi last day of the
month,

F, Federal and State taxas.

. (1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, Counly will not wlthhold any
federal or state income taxes or social secuilg from any payments made by county to Consultari
under the terms and condlUons of lhle Agnement(21 Cdrnly vrtlll withhold California Strate income laxes frorn payments made
under thie Agreement to non-California reeident independent ConEultant'e when it ti ahtbipateO Urat
total annual payments to Consultant under thie Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred
ninety nine dollars ($1,499.00).

- (3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to witrhold any taxes
or payments from sums paid by Coung to Consullant under this

Agreement. Payment of all taxes and olh€r aeseesments on such sums is
the sole rcsponsibility of Consultant. Gounly has no responsibllily or liability for payment of
Consultant's taxes or asgessments,

(4) The total amounts paid by County to Consultant, and taxes withheld from
Peymenls to non-Californla resldents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnlernal Revenue
Service and the California State Franchlsa Tax Board. To fadlitate thls-reporting, Consultant shall
complete and subrnit to the County an lntemal Revenue Service (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing
thls Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Consultants obligaton is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work ldentilied in
Attachment A, wltlch are requested by the County, lt is underslood by Consultant that the performance of
these servlces and work wiill require a varied schedule. Consultant wil brrange hlg/her own schedule, butwill

Counly ol lnyo Standord Contract - No, iJ6
(lndepondenl Consullant - Prolesslonal)

Page 2 of 11 08/12/2018



cootdinate with Counly to lnsure lhat all seMces and work requested by County under this Agreement udll be
performed within the tlme frame sEt forth by County.

6. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certlfrcates, or permlts requlred by lhe federal, state, coung, or munlcipal
governments for Consultant to provlde the seryioes and work describad in Attachmont A must bo procured by
Consullant and be valid at the time Consultrant enters into this Agreement or as otheMis€ may be required.
Further, durlng the term of thls Agreement, ConBultant muet maintain such licenses, cerlificates, and permits
in full force snd effect. Llcenses, cerlificates, and permits may lnclude, but are hot limited to, drlve/s
licensss, professional licenses or certiflcates, and business licenees, Such licenses, certificates, and permita
will be procured and maintained in force by Consultanl at no expense to the County. Consultrant wlll provide
Coun$, upon execulion of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid llcenses, certificates and
parmits v*tlch are requlred to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dlspute
between Consultant and Gounty as lo what licenses, ertificates, and permits are required to perform lhe
earvices identified in Attachment A, Counly reserveB the right to make such detorminations for purposes of
this Agreement.

B. Consuftant werrants that it is not presenlly debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarmcnl, declared ineligible, or voluntarily axcluded from partlclpallon ln covered transacllone by any
federal department or agency, Consultant also warrants that it ls not suspended ol debaned from
recoiving federal funds as listed in the List of Partles Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issuad by lhe General Servicee Adminletration available a[ bltglllgs&gggggU.

6. OFFICESPACE SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC.

Consultant ehall provide such off,ce space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone eervica ag iE necessary for Consultant to provide the seryices identifled in Attacfiment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligsted to relmburse or pay Consultant, lor any expenso or cost irrcurred by
Consultant ln procudng or malntaining eudr items, Responsiblllty for lhe costs and expenses incurred by
Consultant ln provlding and maintaining such ltems ls the sole responelblllty and obligation of Consultanl

7. COUNTYPROPERTY,

A. Pereonal Fronertv of Countv, Any personal property such as, but not limited to, proteclive
or safety deviceg, badges, ldentilication cards, keys, etc. provlded to Consultant by County pursuant to ihis
Agreemenl ar6, and at the termlnelion of this Agreement remaln, the sole and excluolve property of County,
Coneultant will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and mainhin such items while they are in
Consullant's possesslon, Coneultant will be flnancially responelbh for any loss or damag€ to such items,
parllal or total, which is the result of Consultant's negligence.

B. Products of Gonsultant's Work-and Serviceg. Any and all compositions, publicatlons,
plans, specifications, blueprinls, maps, fomulas, processes, photographs, slides, vldeo tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presontations, exhlbiF, reports, studies, works of arl, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or
intellectual properlies of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are lhe result,
product, or manlfeslation of, Consultant's servicee or work under thie Agreement arc, and at the lermlnation
of thle Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County, At the termination of lhe
Agreement, Consultant will convey possesslon and title to all such propsrties to County.

8. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.

For lhe duraiion of lhis Agreement Consultant shall procure and maintaln insurance of the scope and
amount specified ln Attachmenl D and with ths provlsions specified in that attachment.

County of lnyo Stand0rd Contrac{ - No. 156
(lndependsnt Consultant - ProfeBBlonal)

PagB 3 of tl 0u1712018



8. STATUSOFCONSULTANT,

All acts of Congultant, its agents, officers, and employees. r€lating to lhe performance of thie
Agreement, shall be performed as independent Consultant's, and noi as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Consultant, by viilue of thls Agreement, has no aulhorlty to bind or incur any obligation on belralf ol
County. Except as expressly provlded ln Attachmsnt A, Consultant has no authority or responsibility to
exerclse any rights or power vested in the Courrty, No agent, oflicer, or employee of the Consultant ls to be
considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Gonsultant and County lhat thls Agroement shall
not under any circumslances be conslrued or considered to creal€ an employer-employee relationship or a
joint venture. As an lndependent Consultant:

A. Consultant shall determlne the method, detalls, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Consultant under this Agreement.

B. Consultant ehall be responsible to Counly only for the requirements and results epsciffed in
thls Agreement, and except as expressly provided in lhis Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
control with respect to lhe physical aclion or activities of Consultant in fulfillment of lhis Agreement.

C. Consultant, its agents, ofiicers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of lhis
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent Consultant's, and not as employees of
Counly.

10. DEFENSE ANO INDEMNIFICATION.

Deeign Professional/Consultant agreos lo indemnify, lncluding the cost lo defend, entity
and its offlcers, officials, employees, and volunteers from and against any and all clalms, demands, costs,
or liability that arise out of, or perlain to, or relate to lhe negligenca, recklessness, or willful misconducl of
Design ProfessionallConsultant and ils employees or agenls in the performance of services under this
conlracl, but this indemnity does not apply to liablltty tor damages arising from the sole negligence, active
negligence, or willful acts of the County; and does not apply to any paesive negligence of the County
unless caused at least in part by the Deslgn ProfessionaU0onsultant.

I{. RECORDSANDAUDIT

A. Records. Consultant shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, and municlpal law, ordinances, regulatlons, and directlons.
Consultant shall maintain lhege records for a mlnimum of four (4) years from the terrnination or completion of
lhls Agreemenl Consultant may fullill its obligation to maintain recorde as required by thls paragnaph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other aulhentic reprodudion of such records.

B, lnsosclione and Audlts. Any authorized representatlve of County shall have access lo any
books, documents, papers, records, lncludlng, but not lhited to, flnancial records of Consultant, which
County determines to be perlhent to thls Agreement, for lhe puryoses of making audit, evalualion,
examinatlon, excerpts, and transcripts during the pedod suct records are lo be maintalned by Consultant.
Further, County hae lhe dght, at all reasonable tim6s, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work
pedormed or boing performed under this Agreement.

12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of thls Agreement, Consullant, its ag6nts, of{icers, and employees shall not
unlawlully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local laq against any employee, or applicant for
employrnent, or penton receiving servicas under this Agreement, because of rac6, religion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex, Consultant and lts agenls,
officers, and employees shall comply wlth the provisions of the Fak Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 12900, et 6eq,), and the appllcable regulations promulgated lher€under in the
Callfomla Code of Regulatlons, Consultant shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1984 (P,1. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all adminlstretive rules and regulatlons issued pursuantto said act,

Counly of lnyo Stondard Conksct - No. 156

(hdopendent Consultant - Professional)
Page 't of 11 0u17n010



13. CANCELLATION.

Thls Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Consultant thlrty (30) days written notlce of such intent to cancel, Consultant may cancel this Agreemenl
without cause, and at wlll, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to
c€ncel to Gounty.

14. ASSIGNMENT.

This ls an agreement for the services of Consultant, County has reliad upon the skills, knowledge,
experlence, and training of Gonsultant as an inducement lo enter into this Agreement. Consultanl shall not
asslgn or subconract thls Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County,
Further, Gonsultant shall not asslgn any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the
prior written consent of County.

15. DEFAULT.

lf the ConBultant abandons the work, or fails to proceed wlth the work and servlces requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails ln anyway as requlrcd to conduct the work and services as required by
County, County may declare lhe Consultant in default and terminate this Agreement upon live (5) days
written notico to Consultent. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Consultant all amounts
owing to Consullanl fot services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termlnation,

16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement ehall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent defaull. Waiver or breach of any provision of lhis Agreement shall not be deemed to be a walver
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall noi be construod to be a modiflcation of the terms of this
Agreemenl unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph hrrnnty-tnn (22) below

17. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Consultant further agrees to comply wilh the various provisions of the federal, state, and county lawe,
regulalions, and ordinanc€s provlding lhat lnformalion and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Consultant in the course of providing servic€s and nrcrk under this Agreement, shall be prlvlleged, restricted,
or confidential, Consultant agrees lo keep conlldential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be rnade by Consultant only wilh the expr€ss wt'itten
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Consultant without the County's wrltten
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responelbility of Consultant in all respecls.

Notwithstending anylhing in the Agreement to lhe contrary, names of persons recelvlng public soclal
servil:es are confldentlal and are to be protected from unauthorized dlsclosure in accordance with Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, he Health lnsurance Portability and Accountablllty Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstltutions Code, and regulatons adopted pursuant
thereto, For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements perlaining lo
benEliciaries shall be protected by the provlder from unaulhorized disclosure.

t8. coNFLtcTs.

Consultant agrses that it has no interest, and ehall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degroe with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

19, POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Consultant agr€es not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged informatlon whlch is gained
from the County ln the course of provlding services and worh under thls Agreement, for any personal beneflt,

Counly of lnyo Staftlad Contracl - No, 156
(lndepondent Consultanl - Profossional)

Pag€ 5 of t1 08/17/2018



gain, or enhanc€ment. Furlher, Consullant agrees for a perlod of trrvo years afler lhe terminailon of thls
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any'County, assoilathn, corporation, or peraon r6fio,
during the term of thle Agreement, has had an adverse or conlliiling interest Wth itre Gounty,'or who has
been an adverse.parly ln lltlgation tdth lhe CounU, and concernlig such, Consultant by'virlue of thls
Agteement has galned accoss to the Countfs confidential, privileged, piotecteo, or proprietary tnformation,

20, SEVEMBILIil

ff any portion of this Agreement or applioalion thereof to any person or clrcumstance shall be
declated.invalld bya court of competent Jurisdiciion, or if it is found in c6niravention of any federal, stat€, or
county stalute, ordlnancs, or regulallon, lhe remaining provlsions of thie Agreement, or the applicailon
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remdin in full force and 

-effect 
to the exteni inat ttre

provlsions of this Agreement are severeble.

21. FUNDINGLIMITATION.

The ablllty of County io enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the event lhal such lunding falls, ls reduied, or is modified, irom one or more s6urces, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modls thls Agreement, or any of lts terms wlthin ten (10) days of iti notifying
Consultant of the cancellation, reduction, or modificatlon o-f available funding. nny ieOiraidn or modificaiion
of this_Agrcement made pursuant to lhis provision must comply with the req'uiremints of paragraph twenty-
two (22) (Amendment).

22. AMENDMENT.

. 
This Agreement may be modllled, emended, changed, added lo, or subtracted from, by the mufual

gonsen!of the parties harelo, if such amendment or change is in vvritten form and executed wiith the same
forma[tles as lhis dgraement, and attached to the orlglnalAgreement to maintain continuig.

23. NOT|CE.

, Any notica, communlcation, .amendments, additions, or delations to this Agreemont, including
change of addrsgs of elther party durlng lhe terms of ihls Agreement, wtrich Consultani or County shall be
requlred,.or may deeire, to make, ehall be ln writing and may be personally s€rved, or senl by pr6paid flrst
claes mallto, tho resp€clive pErties as follows:

County of lnyo:
Public Works Departmentffi Address
lndependencs. CA 93526 - 

City and State

Gonsultant:
Name
Address
City and State

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

. This Agreement oontalns the enthe agreement of the parties, and no representations, induc€m€nts,
promlses, or agr€em€nte olh€Mrise between the parties nof embodled herein or lncorporatod hJrein oy
reference,.shall be.of-any fop 

9_t effect, Further, no term or provision hereol may be'changed, walved,
dlscharged, or terminated, untess ths same bE ln wriling executed by the parlles heret6.

lll nn

County of hyo Standard Conlracl - No. iso
(lndependenl Consullant - Profosslonal)

Page6of11 08117t2018



By:By:

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND MFTELIS FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS, INC,

FOR THE PROVISION OF WATER RATE STIJDY SERV|CES

IN WTNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS

-DAY 

OF 

-I 

#

couNwoF rNYo CONSULTANT

Slgnallrs Slgnature

Pdnt or Tlpe Name Pdnl cllpe Namo

Dated: Dated:

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

F.-r.-.

ASTOACCOUNTING FORM:

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

Pemonnel SeMc€g

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

County Risk Manager

Counly of lnyo Stsnclard Gonlracl - No. 156

(lnftp€nd€rt Conrultant - Profcsslonal)
Page 7 ol'tt 08t17t2018



ATTAGHMENTA

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNW OF INYO

AND RAFTELTS FtNANctAL CONSULTANTS, tNC.

FOR THE PROVIgION OF WATER RATE STUDY SERVICES

TERM

FROM: 01t0u201s luelnUS

scoPE oF\r[oRKr

SCOPE OF WORK:

TASK 1- RATE CALCULATIONS AND CUSTOMER IMPACTS We will develop one uniform rate structure for atl
thrae service areas. The model will heve the ability to examlne dlfferent levels of flxed revonu€s, We will also assess
cuslomer blll impac.ts from the revised rales.
Meeling(s):One (1) ln-pereon meeting to discuss and present study rosults
Dellverable(s): Water Rate Model in Micmsoft Offlce Excel@2013 ihowing proposed rates and customer impacts,

TASK 2' DRAFT AND FINAL REPORTS The dralt report will delail the assumplions ueed and the development of
the flnanoial P-1a1, coslof servlce and rates. The report will dedve the rates so that a tayperson wlll be ablb to follow
tha rate calculatlons. The roporl wlll Berve as lhe D'epartmenfs Administrativs Rocord id mset Proposition 218.
Raftella wllllncomorate the Departmenfs commEnts into tho flnal version.
Meeting(s): None
Deliverables: An electronlc copy of lhe drafi report bnd ffnal report.

TASK 3. ATTEND PUBLIC MEETINGMORKSHOP
Meeting(s): One (1) lpperson meeting to attend public meeting/workshop, One(1) additionat meeting optionat as
needed/requested.

TASK 4- CONTINGENCY - Additionalwork as required to perform various iterations of weter rate calculatlons.

County 0t lnyo Standard Conhact - No. 150
(hdepondent Consultant - Prcfesslonal)

Pqge I ol tl oilflnu8



ATTAGHMENTB

AGREEMENT BETWEEN GOUNTY OF INYO

AND RAFTALISFINANCIALCONSULTANTS.INC.

FOR THE PROVISION OF WATER RATE STUDY

TERM;

FROift Otmnt$

SCHEDULE OF FEES:
TASK lNo. Mee.ttngs Descrlptlon

Hourly Rate*..$

1

Rate Calculatlon and

Customer lmpacts

2. and

Pu bllc Meetlngsfltt/o*shops

TOI 12l3lr{9

gERVTCES

sG 5f6 Fc ,ldmlnltotat
175'1-**,7_!

n

_ *a.._ -J

Total Foes

$ zsr

ls3

2

)t

County of lnyo Strndrrd Conk cl - No. 156
(lndapcn&nt Conrullant - Profcralonal)

Pegr g ol 1l

$ 14500

@tfim18



ATTACHMENT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND RAFTELTS FINANC|AL CONSULTANTS, lNC.

FOR THE pROVtStON OF WATER RATE STUDY SERVIGES

TERM:

FROM: 01t01t2019 TO.12131t2019

SCHEDULE OF TRAVEL AND PER DIEM PAYMENT:

Travel and Per Diem Payment are part of Task 3 "Public MeetingsMorkshops" identified in Attachment A and
Attachment B of this contract.

County of lnyo Standard Conlract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 10 of 11 ogt17t2018



ATTAGHMENTD

AGREEMENT BEil'EEI{ COUNTY OF INYO

AND MFTELIS FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS, INC.

FORTHE PROVlSlOtrl OF WATER RATE STUDV SERVICES

FROM: 01tuna1s

TERIII:

IU31'n01S

sEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

Counf ol lnyo Shndad Contno't - No. 150
(lndcpcndmt Con$nanl - ProtssBbnsD

Prge lt ol 11 0811712018



Speclfications 2

I nstt rqn cc llctl u ircrncttts lbr Prp fcssio lull$crv.iccs

Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duiation of thc contract insuranoe against claimu

for injuries to peisons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the

performanco of thc work hereuntler by the Consnltant, its ngcnts, representatives, 0r employees.

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. Commerclal General Llability (CGL): lnsurance Ssrvices Office Forrn CG 00

01 covering CGL on an "occurronce" basls for bodily injury and propefly damage,
lncluding ploducts-completed operatlons, personal lnjury and advertlsing lnj!ry,
with limlts'no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence, lf a general aggregate lirnit
applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this
pi6JecUlocation or th-e general aggregate limlt shall be twice the requlred
occurrence llmlt.

2. Automobile Liablllty: lnsurance SeMces Office Form Number CA 0001

coverlng, Code 1 (any auto), or if Consultant has no owned autos, Code _8 
(hired)

and 9 (non-owneO), iittr limlt no less than $500,000 per accident for bodlty lnJury

and property damage.

3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with

Statutory Llmils, and Employe/s Liabillty lnsurance with limit of no loss than

$'l,000,000 pei accident for bodily lnjury or disaass.
(Not regutred lf consuttant provtdes wrltlen verlflcalion it has no

employees)

L Professlonal Ltrblllty (Emors and Omissions) Insuranco appropriatos to ths Consultant's

profession, with lirnit no lsss than $l'000'000 pcr occunence,

If rhc Consuttant mointains higher limits thau tlre minimums shown above, the Entity

requircs and shall be entitlsd to coverage for the higher limits rnaintained by the Consultant,

Any available insurance prooeeds in exiess of tho specified nininum limits of insuran0e and

covetnge shnll be available to the Entity.

Other Inwrance Provl.rlons

The insurancc pollclos fire to contaln, or be endorscd to contaln, tlre following provlsions:

Addltlonal Ins ured Sfalus

L Tho Entlty, its offlcors, offlclals, employees, and volunteers are to bo covsred
as addltlo-nal insurods on the CGL p6[ct wlth respect to llablllty arlsing out of work

or operatlons performed by or on behalf 6f the consultant lncludlng rnaterlals,.pSlls,

or equipment iurnlshed in connection wlth such work or operations, General llabllity

ooveiag" can be provlded ln the form of an endorsement lo the Consultant's

insuranie (at least is broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11BE or both CG 20 10 and CG

20 37 forms lf later revlsions used).



Ol h e r In su r ance P r ovis lo tts

Tho insurnncc policies are to contain, or be Endorscd to contain, the following provisionsl

Prlmary Coverage
For any clairns relatsd to thls contract, the Consultsnt's lnsurance coverage
shall be prlmary insurance as respects tho Entlty, its officers, offlcials,
employees, and volunteers, Any insurance or self-lnsurance maintained by the
Entlty, lts offioers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the
Consultant's insurance and shall not contribute with it.

Alofice of Ca ncellatl on
Each lnsurance policy requlred above shall state that coverage shall not be
canceled, except wlth notlce to the Entlty,

Waiver of Subrogatlon
Consultant hereby gxants to Entity a waiver of any right to suhrogation whioh any insurer of said
Consultant may acquire agninst the Entity by virhre of the paymcnt of any loss under such
insurance. Consultant agrecs to obtain any cndorsement thnt may be nccessary to $ffect this

waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies rcgardless of whether or not the Entity has

received a waivor ofsubrogation endorscrnont from the insurer.

Deductibles and Self.lnsured Retentions
Any deductibles or self-insured reteniions must be declared to and approved by
the Entlty. The Entlty may roqulre the Consultant to provldo proof of ability to pay
losses and related investigations, claim adminlstration, and defonse oxpenseg
wlthin the retention;

Accepta btl ity of I ns u rars
lnsurance ls to be placed with lnsurers wlth a current A.M. Best's ratlng of no less
than A:Vll, unless otherwise acceptable to the Entity.

Glairns Made Policies
lf any of the required policles provide coverage on a claims-made basis:

1. The Retroactlve Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract
or the beginning of contract work.

2. lnsurance must be malntalned and evidence of lnsurance must be provlded for
af least five (5) y@ars after completion of the contract of wotk.

3. lf coverage is cancelad or non'renewed, and not replaced wlth anothet clalms'
made pollcy farm wlth a Retroactive Data prior to the contract effectlve date,
the Consultant must purchase "extended reporting" covgrage for a mlnimum of
five (5) years after completion of conlract work.

Verlflcatlon of Coverage
Consultant shall furnlsh the Entlty wlth original certificates and amendatory
endorsements or oopies of the applicable pollcy language efiecting coverage
required by this clause, All ceflificates and endorsemenls are to be received and
approvod by the.Entlty before work commences, Howover, fallure to obtain the
requlred documents prior to the work beginning shall not waivo the Consultant's
obligation to provide them. The Entlty reserves the right to requlre cornplete,



certffled copies of all required insurance pollcies, including endorsemsnts
required by these speclflcations, at any fime.

$ubcontractorc
Consultant shall require and vorify that all zubcontractors maintain insurancs meeting all tho
rcquirements statod herein.

Speclal Ritkt or Clrcamstnnces
Entity roserves the rlght to
the nature ol the rlsk, prlor
circumstances.

modlfy these requlrements, lncluding limlb, based on
experience, insurcr, coverage, or other speoial



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COLINTY OF INYO
l-l consent l--l Departmental E correspondence Action

I Public Hearing ! s"n.aule time for ! closed Session f] Informational

For Clerk's Use

0nly:

AGENDA NUMBER

35

FROM: Public Works / Road Department

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: gyll;l t/ :4fljrl

SUBJECT: Resolution adopting projects for the FY 19120 Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 (SB l);
Inyo County allocation from the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA)

DEPARTMENTAL RECOMMENDATIONS :
Request your Board:

1. Approve a resolution entitled, "A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, OF THE
COTINTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, IDENTIFYING PROJECTS TO BE FT]NDED BY
ROAD MAINTENANCE AND REHABILITATION FTINDS PURSUANT TO SB 1: THE ROAD
REPAIR AND ACCOTINTABILITY ACT; and

2. Approve the recommended project lists attached to satisfl' the documentation requirements to receive
SBl, Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 funding from the Road Maintenance and
Rehabilitation Account (RMRA); and

3. Approve the Public Works department to apply for and submit all required documentation to receive the
Inyo County allotment of SB l, Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 funding; and

4. Authorize the Public Works Department Head, or his designee, to sign for the RMRA funding and all
associated supporting documents.

CAO RECOMMENDATIONS:

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:
On April 28,2017, the Governor signed Senate Bill (SB) l, to address basic road maintenance, rehabilitation

and critical safety needs on both the State highway and local streets and roads. An overview and details of the
Senate Bill were outlined at the Board meeting of May g,20ll. To recap, SB 1, or The Road Repair and
Accountability Act of 2017, increased the per gallon fuel excise taxes; increased the diesel fuel sales tax;
increased vehicle registration fees; and provides inflationary adjustments to tax rates in future years. The
collected revenue is to be placed in the State Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account giVtnA; for
allocation.

State law requires Counties and Cities to establish eligibility for SB I Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation
Account (RMRA) funding on an annual basis by submitting a list of proposed projects to the California
Transportation Commission (CTC). Project lists do not have to be adopteC *ithin-u County or City budget, but
project lists do have to be adopted by resolution at a regular public meeting. Projects that are proptsed do not
need to be completed in that fiscal year, and can be amended or continuedln subsequent project proposals.

On Octobet 3,2017 Public Works brought a Resolution to your Board for approval to be eligible for funding
from the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA), Resolution #2017- 1.This resolution
identified four projects for the 2017-18 funding cycle; #1- Rubberized Crack fi|l, various Countywide locations
identified; #2- Road Striping and Pavement Markings, various Countywide locations identified; #3- Cold Mix
overlay, Laws Poleta Road; #4- coldMix overlay, Doromite loop Road.

Of the four projects identified, #I- Rubberized Crack fill and #2- Road Striping and Pavement Markings are
currently in progress, and were included as Phase Two of these projects in the iequested projects for 2018-19.



Funding and reporting uncertainties had delayed the start of projects #3 and#4,the Cold Mix overlays (Laws
Poleta Road and the Dolomite Loop Road) for the 2017-18 cycle, but are now underway in the 2018-19 funding
cycle and expected to start Spring of 2019, as well as the continuation of Phase II Rubberized Crack fill and
Road Striping and Pavement Markings. In the 2018-19 SBl cycle, there was the addition of project #5- South
Lake Road reconstruction matching funds for the Federal Lands Access Grant. Project number five, South
Lake Road reconstruction matching funds can be held over for its anticipated use in the 20t9-20 SB 1

funding cycle, if needed, depending on the State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) funding
availability. The South Lake Road project is expected to begin in201912020. If the STIP match funding
for the South Lake Road Project becomes available, the SB 1 funds will be used for another SB 1 project.

Public Works is bringing a Resolution and project lists for the 2019-20 SB1 funding cycle as required in
the SB1, Road Repair and Accountability Act, to be eligible for Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation
Account (RMRA) funding.

The requested projects in this SBI funding cycle request a continuation of two of the ongoing maintenance
projects, #1- Rubberized Crack fill, various Countywide locations identified, phase III, and #2- Road
Striping and Pavement Markings, various Countywide locations identified, Phase III. It is anticipated that
these two projects will be reoccurring for as long as the need requires. Project #5- South Lake Road
reconstruction matching funds for the Federal Lands Access Grant is also resubmitted as Phase II in
anticipation of making up any short fall from the 20I8-I9 SB1 cycle funding. With the exact match
amount still to be determined, it is prudent to have this project continue in the 2019-20 SB1 resolution.

New projects that are to be submitted this SB1 funding cycle include: #6- Meadow Creek IlII,Lazy A
Sidewalk improvement, Phase T;#7- First St./ West Jay Street improvement project; #8- Onion Valley
Road Storm Damage repair; #9- Cactus Flat Road repair; #10- North Round Valley Bridge Repair, State
matching funds requirement;#11- Panamint Valley Road Cold Mix Overlays, various locations., and #12-
Old Spanish Trail Road Cold Mix Road Overlays, various locations.

As mentioned above, State law requires Counties and Cities to establish eligibility for SB I Road Maintenance
and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) funding on an annual basis by submitting a list of proposed projects to the
California Transportation Commission (CTC) approved by Resolution. Projects that are proposed do not need
to be completed in that fiscal year, and can be amended or continued in subsequent project proposals. There is
also no requirement to place estimated project costs, or match commitments on each proposal; this is done for
the Boards pleasure for reference and scope of the projects proposed. There is a requirement for complete SBI
fund accounting of allotted revenues at the end of each fiscal year and to ensure the funds were correctly
applied to approved projects. It is entirely possible that an agency can change what it expends on a project for
any number of reasons, the State recognizes these variables, and allows this flexibility.

With that flexibility considered, the proposed projects presented exceeds the estimated$2,740,595 for the20l9-
20 SB1 funding cycle, this proposal addresses some required and committed expenses, and allows for some
project flexibility throughout the County and infrastructure needs.

ALTERNATIVES:
Your Board could choose to not approve the resolution and project lists; however, this is not recommended as
the County would not be entitled to the SB1 funding. The addition of this funding will allow for continuing
improvements to the County's road infrastructure and provide safer roads for the traveling public.

OTHER AGF],NCY INVOLVEMENT:
County Counsel

FINANCING:
This funding and estimated project costs for salaries and materials will be included in the FY 2019-20 Road
Budget, pending Board approval of Road Projects.



AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Must beCOTINTY COUNSEL:

WMI,!*
reviewed and approved by County Counsel prior to submission to the board clerk.)

S^rmr Approved:

ACCOTINTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the auditor/controller prior to
submission to the board clerk.)

AUDITOR/CONTROLLER

DateApproved:

PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the director of personnel services prior to
submission to the board clerk.)

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR

Approved: Date

APPTIOVALS

DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE:
(Not to be signed until all approvals are received) Date: 3 /"5 ,j



RESOLUTTON NO._

RESOTUTION ADOPTING A LIST OF PROJECTS FOR FISCAT YEAR 2019-20 FUNDED BY

SB 1: THE ROAD REPAIR AND ACCOUNTABILITYACT OF 2017

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 1 (SB L), the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 (Chapter 5,

Statutes of 20171was passed by the Legislature and Signed into law by the Governor in April 2017 to
address the significant multi-modal transportation funding shortfalls statewide; and

WHEREAS, SB f. includes accountability and transparency provisions that will ensure the
residents of lnyo County are aware of the projects proposed for funding in our community and which
projects have been completed each fiscal year; and

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo must adopt by resolution a list of projects proposed to receive

fiscal year funding from the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA), created by SB 1,

which must include a description and the location of each proposed project, a proposed schedule for the
project's completion, and the estimated useful life of the improvement; and

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo, will receive an estimate d 52,740,595 in RMRA funding in Fiscal

Year 2Ot9-20 from SB 1; and

WHEREAS, this is the third year in which the County of lnyo is receiving SB L funding and will

enable the County of lnyo to continue essential road maintenance and rehabilitation projects, safety

improvements, repairing and replacing aging bridges, and increasing access and mobility options for the
traveling public that would not have otherwise been possible without SB 1; and

WHEREAS, the funding from SB 1 will help the County of lnyo maintain and rehabilitate

numerous streets and roads with several treatments such as rubberized crack filling, patching, and

overlays , North Round Valley bridge reconstruction, add active transportation infrastructure throughout

the lnyo County this year; and

WHEREAS, the 2018 California Statewide Local Streets and Roads Needs Assessment found that
County streets and roads are in an at risk condition and this revenue will help us increase the overall

quality of our road system, preserve existing infrastructure, thus allowing the strategic improvement of
poor roads and sidewalks; and

WHEREAS, the SB 1 project list and overall investment in our local streets and roads

infrastructure with a focus on basic maintenance and safety, investing in complete streets

infrastructure, and using cutting-edge technology, materials and practices, will provide the ability to
catch up on delayed and postponed repairs that will benefit the residents of the County of lnyo, as well

as the traveling public that comes to, and through, the Owens Valley.



2

NOW, THEREFORE lT lS HEREBY RESOLVED, ORDERED AND FOUND by the Board of Supervisors of the
County of lnyo, State of California, as follows:

t. The foregoing recitals are true and correct.

The following list of proposed projects will be funded in-part or solely with fiscal year 20L9-20

Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account revenues:

Project #6, Phase l, Meadow Creek l/ll, Lazy A Subdivision Sidewalk lmprovement

Project #7, First St. / West Jay Street improvement project

Project #8, Onion Valley Road Storm Damage repair

Project #9, Cactus Flat Road Repair

Project #10, North Round Valley Bridge Replacement, Birchim Lane improvemenq matching funds

requirement

Project #11, Phase l, Panamint Valley Road Cold Mix Overlays, various locations

Project #12, Phase l, Old Spanish Trail Road Cold Mix Road Overlays, Various Locations

[See Attachments]

3. The following previously proposed and adopted projects may utilize fiscal year 20L9-20 Road

Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account revenues in their delivery. With the relisting of these

projects in the adopted fiscal year resolution, the City/County is reaffirming to the public and

the State our intent to fund these projects with Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account

revenues as needed:

Project # L, Phase lll, Rubberized Crack fill / Patching Project

Project # 2, Phase lll, Road Striping and Pavement Markings Project

Project #5, South Lake Road - Potential Bridge Funding for Grant Match

[See Attachments]

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Supervisors of the County of lnyo, State of California

this _ day of _,20\9, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Rick Pucci, Chairperson

Inyo County Board of Supervisors

AfiEST:

Clint Quilter
Clerk of the Board

By
Darcy Ellis, Assistant



TOTAT

546,612,72s
Sgtt,ogt

Szlse,aat
s13,3t2,940
5s,7o2,69s
54,26L,748

539,257,015

52,240,702

5t4,zz4,7so
542,417,499

55,r77,657
$r0,286,1"48

S17,s39,810

56,306,582

540,247,876
57,743,173
Ss,ogq,oqz

5s,qs\gzz
5280,27O,t84

sL1.,2s7,sgs

5r0,o7o,674
5:,ssa,zsz
S8,301,494

s1s,329,081

55,r77,902
5z,gs+,ttz

5t8,7sr,064
56,94L,616
57,093,7L6

s97,840,s18
s20,906,678

54,722,917

s77,086,650

SB 1 Revenues

RMRA

$1G,936,192

Szzz,tzz
s1,s5s,403
Ss,s31,631
52,383,6L2
51,870,84s

Sr4,LBg,i76
s967,453

55,0s2,943

'ri,2iB,ooo52,275,743

___ s41l?f37
St,szg/gs
52,740,sgs

516,L54,406
$t,zss,ott
52,361,497
52,297,472

$102,094,561
54,92L,741
$3,827,255
5L,522,477

S3,s38,241

s6,549,907

52,24o,754
$r,oss,sra
57,349,982
s2,706,830
52,767,8s6

53s,072,s1s
St,tgt,zot
S1,843,260

s28,904,s91

Loan Repavment

S1,1s3,90s
S22,aLg

S106,6ss
5376,884
itoz,+ot
5127,465

5966,717

S6s,e1s

5344,27O

5r,r77,194
s1ss,0s2
s298,!16
Ssre,+sa
5186,724

$1,100,640
5228,4s4

s150,894
s1s6,s33

s6,955,959
s335,331
5260,767

S103,730

5241,069

5446,262

S152,668

s113,019
5so0,773

5t84,423
S188,581

52,399,s79
S503,586

S12s,s86
5r,969,343

Estimated County Highway User Tax Account Revenues - FY 2019-20

HUTA 2106

Sqqs,sez
Szs,oso

$r.88,820

5433,731
S308,542

511s,090
Sgqt,qoa
Si.o6,37s

5800,233

Sr,rso,agr
5132,143
S399,66s

s396,s84
s11s,331

s1,890,408
S208,103

5312,787

Stzz,uq
52,746,764

S+st,ggz
5295.ss8

51-27,9r5

Ssas,sos
Sss1,207

$61,101

Szt,ttz
S844,06s

S31s,sss
5311,,016

5744,O5r
Stgs,qqa
5146,822

51,43o,701

HUTA 2105

S6,04s,s83
sL40,2e2
548s,72o

st,7!5,378
5739,s97
s580,494

5s,tzt lzq
s300,185

5t,90o,754
S5,361,090

$706,127
s1,,3s7,660

s2,429,462
S8s0,363

5s,on,qsl
Sr,o4o,4o7

5732,733

$772,869
s35,223,99r
5L,s21,r39
5t,zzq,arc

S47z,4aI
Si.,097,860

s2,032,333
$ags,ztt
Ssrq,tos

$2,280,s83
S839,887

s8s8,822
5r2,920,249
s2,810,6ss

Ss71,93s

S9,564,689

HUTA 2104

Sra,:o+,sgg
s296,032
Sozs,qq+

52,403,983
s880,217
$603,848

510,7Ls,204

$3o2,265
53,s22,876
S8,s41,33s

573s,e4s
S1,600,s48

52,3Ls,974
S1,001,39s

57,765,939
S1,185,363

5909,911-

5978,044
579,64L,73r
$L,485,327
52,+ag,fit

$s47,729
S1,215,639

52,374,344
Se;t,qgq
5812,304

S3,988,36e

$1,s00,149
51.,s4t,223

528,64r,995
Ss,sgz,rsg
51,o8s,42L

$2Q,323,399

HUTA 2103

58,726,863
5166,s24
5806,61-e

S2,8s0,333

51,228,22s
5964,oo7

57,3t1,,ri8
S498,s08

Sz,aoz,ots
S8,902,989

5r,u2,643
52,2s4,622
54,a34,s29
St,4tz,t7L
58,324,02s
5r,727,770

5t,2L6,827
S1,183,839

5s2,607,r77

52,s36,o7o
St,stz,tog

S784,500

S1,823,181

s3,37s,029
S1,1s4,613

58s4,7s4
$z,zet,zgt
51.,394,772

57,426,278
518,072,129
S3,808,s64

5949,793
51.4,893,927

COUNTY

ALAMEDA

ALPINE

AMADOR

BUTTE

CALAVERAS

COLUSA

CONTRA COSTA

DEL NORTE

EL DORADO

FRESNO

GLENN

HUMBOLDT

IMPERIAL

INYO

KERN

KINGS

LAKE

TASSEN

LOS ANGELES

MADERA

MARIN

MARIPOSA

MENDAqNO
MERCED

MODOC

MONO

MONTEREY

NAPA

NEVADA

ORANGE

PLACER

PLUMAS

RIVERSIDE

CSAC BudgetYeqr Estimqtes - Based on January budget revenue estimqtes - 1/22/L9



Road Repair and Accountabili tv Act FY 2019/2020 SB L Proiects

Project # L, Phase lll

Rubberized Crack fil / Patching Project

TR# 18-002

Description;

Rubberized Crack Fill and pot hole patching to seal asphalt pavement to prevent water intrusion to the subgrade,
protecting the subgrade from erosion and causing pavement failure.

Location/s:

County wide, the lnyo County Road Route system, where several roads are grouped in areas, or'zones' will be used for
identification of the residential streets, outlying roads, and individual roads receiving the crack fill / patching

application. Not every road in each route will warrant the application , the routes identified below are both residential
and outlying roads, roads within the routes will receive some application, towns and routes are as follows;

- Bishop Area; Routes #1001 through #1006

- Big Bine Area; Routes #2OO'J., through #2004
- lndependence Area; Routes #3001 through #3005, and #3008

- Lone Pine Area; Routes #4001 through #4008

- Tecopa/Shoshone Area; Routes #5002 through #5006

Estimated useful life:

2-5 years, Rubberized crack sealing has the benefit of moving with the asphalt as it expands and contracts with the
seasons, extending its service life. Eventually the movement will exceed the adhesion of the product and will fail,
requiring another treatment.

Anticioated construction date:

Winter 2019/Spring 2020, Depending on weather conditions, application can occur as long as the road surface is dry. The
preferred application time is in the colder months, when the cracks can accept more material.

Costs for this proiect are estimated to be;

Material cost for the rubberized crack sealing is 5200,000

Labor Costs 5230,000

Equipment rental costs S+O.OOO

Tl 5 470,0OO



Road Repair and Accountabilitv Act FY 2019/2020 SB 1 Proiects

Project # 2, Phase lll

Road Striping and Pavement Markings Project

TR# 18-002

Description;

Road striping/Pavement markings, application of Center line, Fog line and Bike Lane striping as well as pavement

markings such as 'Stop'(s), Crosswalks, Speed Limit (s) and School/Bus zones.

Location/s;

County wide, the lnyo County Road Route system, where several roads are grouped in areas, or'zones' will be used for
identificationoftheresidentialstreets,outlyingroads,andtheindividualroadsreceivingthemarking application..Not

every road in each route will require maintenance of markings, the routes identified below are both residential and

outlying roads, roads within the routes will receive some application.

Marking application will follow the rubberized crack seal operation on the same routes;

Bishop Area; Routes #1001 through #1005

Big Bine Area; Routes #200L, through #2004

lndependence Area; Routes #3001 through #3005, and #3008

Lone Pine Area; Routes #400L through #4008

Tecopa/Shoshone Area; Routes #5002 through #5006

Estimated useful life

L - 2 Years, Striping and painting operations are generally refreshed annually, as time and conditions allow

Antici pated construction date;

Spring/Summer 2019-20

Costs for this proiect are estimated to be;

Materials, (White/Yellow paint and safety spheres) 560,000

Labor Cost 5160,000

T/5220,000



Road Repair and Accountabilitv Act FY 2019 /2020 SB 1 Proiects

TR#

Project # 5,

South Lake Road - Potential Bridge Funding for Grant Match

Description:
On South Lake Road, the project will pulverize and reclaim the existing pavement and portion of the existing subgrade

for use as a new base course and overlay with a new asphalt concrete pavement section on 6.9 miles of South Lake

Road, as well as minor widening along the first 2.1 miles. The project includes grading, pulverize existing pavement,

minor drainage structures, major drainage structures, slope stabilization, rock scaling, placement of crushed aggregate

base and asphalt pavement, signing, striping, and other safety-related features necessary to meet current design

practice.

ln Decembe r 2OI4,lnyo County submitted a Federal Lands Access Program grant application for the South Lake Road

project. The competitive grant application proposed a 12% match. The Federal Highway Administration

implements the project. The environmental and design components of the project have been completed. This

project will leverage about StO million in federal funding. The County proposed to fund the match for the project

through the 2018 State Transportation lmprovement Program (STIP). The California Transportation Commission

programmed the project, but moved it back two years because of over-programming in the early years of the STIP.

The Countywillattemptto still deliverthe project on time through the STIP. lf those funds are not available in a

timely fashion, the County will use SB 1 funds to deliver the project.

Location;

South Lake Road (#2022l'between US 168 and the South Lake trailhead parking area, approximately 12 miles

Southwest of Bishop, California.

Estimated usefu I life;
20 Years

Anticipated construction date;

04 / or / 2079 -10 / 3L I 2019

Costs for this oroiect are estimated to be:

Construction Match $1,369,000



Road Repair and Accountabilitv Act FY 2019/2020 SB 1 Proiects

Project #6, Phase I

Meadow Creek l/ll, Lazy A Subdivision Sidewalk lmprovement

TR#

Description;

This will be a multi-phase project consisting of grinding, removal, repair, or replacement of various sections of failing

sidewalk sections including; substrate stabilization, tree/root removal, and mailbox relocation/s as needed to comply

with ADA requirements.

Location/s;

Meadow Creek l, Meadow Creek ll, and the Lazy A subdivisions are located approximately 2 miles North West of the City

of Bishop, in lnyo County. This project will be located in Route #7004, in the lnyo County Road Route system, and over

the life of this project will some or all of the sidewalk sections of 35 of the 50 roads identified in this Route.

Estimated useful life

20 years

Antici pated construction date;

Fall 2019/Spring2O2O

Costs for this proiect are estimated to be:

2Ot9/20 Phase I 5150,000



Road Repair and Accountabilitv Act FY 2019/2020 SB 1 Proiects

Project #7

First St. / West Jay Street improvement project

TR#

Description;

This will be a County contribution for improvements that the City of Bishop will be performing to a County Road. At lnyo

County's request, the City of Bishop will include new subbase, asphalt, curb and gutter in a City utility capital

improvement project that encroaches on County right of way, this will maximize efficiencies and contract cost savings

by having needed repair and maintenance completed under one contract.

With Board of Supervisors approval, it is anticipated that First Street will be renamed West jay Street to match the

existing East Jay Street (a City of Bishop street) that is directly East of this project, this renaming would also prevent

confusion with an existing L't Street in the City of Bishop system, as well as another First Street, an lnyo County Road,

within 10 miles.

Location/s;

First Street (West Jay Street) is located south of the City of Bishop, West of US395 (Main St.) and shares the City of

Bishop/l nyo County Boundary.

Estimated useful life

20 years

Anticipated construction date;

Summer/Fall20L9

Costs for this oroiect are estimated to be;

I nyo County contribution S235,ooo



Road Repair and Accountabilitv Act FY 2019/2020 SB 1 Proiects

Project #8

Onion Valley Road Storm Damage repair

TR#

Description;

ln 2OI7 a storm system damaged a West bound section of Onion Valley Road (#3047) a County Road,

approximately L3 miles West of the US395 intersection, and one mile from the end of the road where it

terminates at a trailhead and pack station. The repair of the damaged section qualified for State of California

OES disaster funds at75% reimbursement of project costs, with a 25% match contribution from the County of

lnyo, this is incident #2017-I!,3603 (attached).This project is 1500'in length, and the Engineers estimate for

repair, agreed to by the California Office of Emergency Services is estimates at 5626,125. This includes the

damaged area, and the area that will be disturbed to transition to existing infrastructure. This project will

consist of securing proper environmental permitting, repairing, and replacing, part of an existing drainage

system, replace subbase, and pave the damaged section.

Of the OES/Engineers estimate, the County of lnyo 25%o contribution is estimated at S157,000.

Location/s;

Onion Valley Road is located in lnyo County, just West of lndependence. The damaged section that will be repaired is 13

miles west of the intersection of Onion Valley Road/Market St. and US395 in lndependence.

Estimated useful life

20 years

Anticipated construction date:

Fall20L9/ Spring 2020

Costs for this n ro ect are estimated to b

25% County contribution requirement; S157,000



Itrgc I ul frge*

t"r A t$ {}r cAlJ${}lrNlA

ile"{Sn.'$.
40v({rtA t nfFti!
nr g$sR$nlcl 5i*{rcg9

{-klifslni,r f}br}t{rAssiil$ure ALt
tlsmge $urry Repntt

{D5R}

36$1

s't'A"t's DiliAsTrR Nilil{srlt torT-r r

$TATS :tPPl"ICi.4.*:f 11) Nr]il'{llliR: -"..-!!}-{i$!l!!!-*

,!'l'A I'li I NCI OtrNT PERI{]}; 031$ lll ?

TYPI {)f Dl${$'lIiR: n
n
ts

TYP6 Oll CIIAA IISIi: S
CATSCf}RTi

SUI'r'LUS{lrtiT "1t) C$Ai\ D$ll # ;

I..l:tllirlAL lll$..1$T$l] {' 
"""..N1,1.,...""--

$&;$f,llAt. i!:t l]} *: .*..*.\l$

to {)?i3$ll?

{:iofrrncr'r }raclim$tis! .,t S }hsl*t't tonqrtr&re
Mq.thqo$l! or Cl fld{rlAvit)tcr $iomr rr il Fl|t
Olhr {91(nxf $p{rl$ rXpel: iigrp3-ffiS(

.Un*rg*ney V*rir or Sl *#nee$l lylril
t ltcA.fr sT$f$il$ Aflir s8.lt{;}:it

$USSR,{NTT€ NAMEI b?foCr'*$ity

CO$N]'Y:

lnvo

Onion Valley Rd. Independence CA, Inya Co{:nty

tl3$Cltlllr Sffi.{S't'gll RELATI1i) PA$iA$&'l't}'Il't'li FA{JLl'l},'StTlt:

unusually high run-off, caused by exressive amounts cf $now from the .lanuary-February 203.7

Storms led to severe scourins under the westbound lane of Onion Valley Rd. approximately S50

yards east CIf ths Onion Valley Campgraund. The northern trib$tary to lndependence Creek jump*d

its banks when flows exceeded the capacity of ths culvert under 0nion Valley Rd. The ove rflow
destroyed the shoulder and damaged the rcadway for 500 feet, at which point the flow passed

through a lubsequent culvert.

sc$Pn {}r tvoRx,

Work ta $e Campleted:
Permsnent restorstion construction will invslve removing the asphalt frsm the damaged section of roadway,

over-excsv*ting and rebuilding the roadway {including $ub*ba$eu under-pavement drainage, ciass }l base and

hot mix nsphalt {3" tlrick}. The under-pavemrnt drainage includes a layer of class I pe rmeable mrterial and

edge drains {3" slotted plastic pip*}. Preliminary engineering and construction enginecring will include

engineering design of the damaged roildbed and drainage, *nvironmental clearances, material testing, and

caordination with v*rirus agefic'fs: cpnstruction mailag€mcnt xnd project documentatinn.

f *dsral Ds.ll/Plt R-u$bcrr NIAls ttri* fa*lllty trllgllrle tbrfed.n$ Funds? Sh* fl$(s
Seelcrul fmgrnnr: t.lFM mb*. I [$G t dMR f{d{$l Usll/l'lv xj.1!toolar NIA

k thle nu llistoric $lrx*lursl Stlo t"1dG Os tli'dtio{rl R}Sjile* A 50.F Y*qrs {}11? tl

ls 0r{s
lle gl,ilsCiro

[}x
ille
U&c

nlfe*t on glr}iru$mnt?

lbr

l* fftJert Csl"]i or SliF,\?

lo[{f&iltc Rtcol4rti$ t
TJs

Lrs. Dr{luctiblt

\Yudr;lorc by Fcx* A|{runt l".t horJ fhr 1t%6[,{ tlfrs FeJ$tr{trAa o{lyddr f{$plrtrd nt ln$}etl:o*:

fst&: Gllgurh tibor! Crl{ipm|nt' Meattislc std {lr,$ats*l trstr fr*e Ceil lVnrk$h*all $fi3$'1r5.0nt'0Tnt, c{.}$l's:

t)&S AFgta({ill Se*lces fiep. fiart*

l\{areia Burebisl

O(S A$n 6ign&tur+

{tN&P#rfS# r}o

lr?$&l.lI8
t/r5a0r$

SI.5

D!{a rf :iir} l{s|}rctkwj

nqtr slDSIl S$ilmlssirn tr "\tr
lle{{ffr?}rd l:l:uibh1

Nsrne olL!crl il{prels1{li}t

Kellev Williams

Rtprestntttlv*'s $ignrturc

(it:ncur hy Ph*rc {?6S} 878-r?rx
llalrtl.s{oxrur lYiat $mpc of lYo{k'l

Cr{l{d'fqls}htn* l\!sl}+il

Numg rf Rovlewer/ldrnr ger

rci*r Cru*s

Rr,olewpg{a3;1r ger Sigrrtrrt

. Prt"^"p t /ss f tx ReeDrnnendlll{itrl*t Bx

zln fi*
t.Ahsisnrrudf zz

{ti,f.4#L ilc! rtlarhmrtrl
ixllqilirg chdn*cs or dlnlsl iltfrlxnl $:

Pdbllc.{*ilstsnee {ltfi i*r

Dnvid |]illinss
{lDAr\ fsnu ? {i!-tl r}ii,s 9*



Road Repair and Accountabilitv Act FY 2019/2020 SB 1 Proiects

Project #9

Cactus Flat Road Repair

TR#

Description;

This project will consist of an asphalt overlay of 1500' x20' of damaged pavement on Cactus Flat Road #5024.

The Department of Water and Power, City of Los Angles (DWP), will be doing a realignment of Cactus Flat

Road, a County Road, to allow DWP to perform infrastructure upgrades. Upon completion of the realignment,

the County will perform an asphalt overlay on a 1500' section of Cactus Flat East of the DWP project boundary.

Location/s;

Cactus Flat Road is located in lnyo County, just south of Olancha. The section that will be repaired is approximately 5

miles west of the intersection of Cactus Flat Road and US395, 5 miles south of Olancha.

Estimated useful life

20 years

Anticipated construction date;

Spring 2020

Costs for this proiect are estimated to be;

I nyo Engineers estimate s80,ooo



Road Repair and Accountabilitv Act FY 2019/2020 SB 1 Proiects

Project #10

North Round Valley Bridge Replacement, Birchim Lane improvement;

State matching funds requirement

TR#

Description;

ln2OL7, a storm system destroyed a County bridge located in North Round Valley Road #1003, a County Road.

This bridge was on the primary access route for the community of 40 Acres, located at the North end of the

paved section of North Round Valley Road, approximately one mile north of the bridge. This bridge

replacement qualified for State of California OES disaster funds aL75% reimbursement of project costs,

incident #2017-L'1.;3602 (attached). Also included in this incident is the repair and stabilization of Birchim Lane

#1005, a County Road. Birchim Lane is a secondary primitive road that allows access to the effected

community, and has now become the primary access to the community of 40 Acres. Birchim Lane has also

qualified under the OES Disaster incident and is eligible for the 75% reimbursement of project cost from the

State of California. Environmental and bridge design are currently underway for the North Round Valley

Bridge, as well as design and repair of Birchim Lane. The Office of Emergency Services has approved the

Engineers estimate of_S3,400,000 for the North Round Valley Bridge Replacement, as well as 5600,000 for the

Birchim Lane repair and stabilization. lt is anticipated that the State of California OES will fund 53,000,000;

lnyo County will provide the 25% contribution of 51,000,000 with SBl funds. Due to the anticipated two to

three year construction schedule, it is anticipated that the County contribution will be divided over the

FY2019-20 and FY2020-21 SB1 funding cycles, at 5500,000 each cycle.

Location/s;

North Round Valley Road, with the damaged bridge, and Birchim Lane, that intersects North Round Valley Road, is

located in lnyo County, 15 miles North West of Bishop.

Estimated useful life

30 - 50 years for North Round Valley bridge reconstruction, 10 - L5 years for Birchim Lane repair and stabilization

Anticipated construction date:

Spring 2020

Costs for this proiect are estimated to be;

25% County contribution requirement; S1,000,000, (Anticipate dividing between FY2OT9-2O/FY2020-2L SB1 cycles)



I'asr I u{ 7:} Pagrr

$'r',rTt: (}r cAt"lF$RXtn

CsI #H$
s*v6G{o* 9 0tfrsi
6f iir$R$tatv tgi?$tst

Cnlifanin llls$sacv Asli$tnnrs Act
D:rrnngc $un'eg ltcporl

tn$Bi

36{12

$1'41'li APPLICAI,IT In $ljMBER; !3?4{,t!!t*

$'t'dfli ll,id)l)liln*'l' l'f)I{lt}l}l $s/l}t/ll

li"l'AI'I:l lll$A$i'tlll Nt;i\,!llHlL: 2$1?-11 Fl;ullxAt. DlsAsTElt ilr t.J/A

TYff OIr DISASTIR: [ {jrvernor's ttodrrrlior or El slrsror's Unss{rrurcr
f, grra,iqu{h( ?r n}"1$!,ljlYitrrcrSrarm .,i fiFlre
Al $thcr{pl€ffrS$giB'ly!}e',r lina$ ${clt

TYIE {)$ CIIAA $$tl: I nrrcrgcrry\Tark
{-'A'rac(}nY c

$ut,PL$J!1SN"t"I't] CI]AA OSR # :

l$

flil)0H,\L PA il) d: -**. NA

$7130117

ur $l PtrerrentlTark
It{)Al} sYs't't:Hs Ar{Ir $arn6E$

tsrfoColnqSUB*RAT{TEE I.IAME:

{ioLiN't'Y:
Norih Round Valley Road-Pinr: lreek Sridge. Round Valley CA. lnyc County

lrvo
bliscar$n ttsAstr,a Rf,t,ATnr) DAilt{$r 7$ T}ill FA(Il.JT1'lslTs:

Cxcessive amsunts of snow caused by th* January-Febrilary ?01"7 Strrms Disaster and a rain fvent
1n the mountaifis, prgduced extraordinary hish Jlows in Pine Creek rcsult!ng in severs ero$ion to
the south b*nk and bridge failure. Pine {reek fiows scoured away approximatcly 5S feet of
embankmeilt and roadway rffuth oi the southern bridg€ abiltment, Scouring beneath the foating of
the southern abutme nt compromised the integrity fif the bridge structure resulting in settling af
the $outhern abutnent and puliing thc bridge deck *way from the north abutment.

iCOPI t]F 1Y(tltl{r

Wark to Be {ornpleted:
perm*n€nt restoration will include remcving damaged bridge structure and debris from the lin* dree k channel.

Constrircting a new 75' by 35' R*inforred Csncrete 9ax Sirder Bridgr with abutrnents, conrtructin$ appraach slabs,
roadwork and guartl railing, instaiiing and placing rip rap for slopa and scs{rr protectlon. Traffic h*s been detoured
to 9irchirn Lane ar an alternate route until the bridge csn bs constructed {duution of 3-4 years}. Birchim l-ane will
require work/maintenance tc safely *ddress the increased volume of traffic for this d uratian. Fre liminary
Sngineering and Con$truction Englneering will include bridge design, surveying, gectechnical studier, hydrauiic
studies, environrnental and archaeological clearances, material testiiTg. coordination with various regulatory
igenries, constrilction managemsnt and prajeet documentation.

lJr lhis r'fieility liligible fcr Fultre l Funds? r?fa tt6 rad$al nSlVFMlnrttcr: N/A

trcdcml lt$giiml !.lr{t frdi Fc'lcrul DSTt/l$' $ ingrnr: N/1\

l* thls r* Ilittnde Strod!re? nlh oat${e lJtr il$tlflnrl **glrttrt n S$+ Yr0ri Otrt:,

$ignlllcrnt fi ffrrl rn Enr,imnnenl? f,lrf SI0 Brar h.?raiflt Cna-x 0r Stot'l(? nr5 lln 6Ne
.lE tll*rt hltuuuc€ for l)unags'i I3rs Gls lls* lnglrince &qcor.er:;6 I Itrr, lled{.lil,le $13

11'o*done by Forcr Aeelnni l,ubor? l{lo/qllil 6I. $nu P*rcrntogc of 1\'orh Conllrtcil rt lnrpectiou:

'||tBl llligible Lrt$r, gquipinctrt, lilslf,ritrls rn{i Cnnira(l erst$ {rorn Cq3t 1yorkshc*tt 51,?3{1,6?$.00T0TAL C0ST$r

*E$ Alpll$nt Serrlrs$ llq). Nsd{

l\'lmia llur$iel

OES ,\sll,Sigr'oturt/ J' /

il/ilWgl/#M $!

u?5lx*rg
r/!5n{r 1$

I$rs

Drtr rrf Siie 1r,}eai!si
Dgte offtSll .lnhrnirsirn ln A{:
Recrsman{ tllsit}l19

lJars$f L{x}l E q}relrltrtiv*

KellevWilliams

lktln$nlnti!o'r Siqnaaurr

l-"*ncur by lh*ne p60l s?8-or.e2

F.5 tl:Cmrur lrrlth Sinpc of \1rorl(?

fo{(ort'frle}hsne I{nber:

llrrielr{l{lsl,rxcr $igilsturc I f
;,Y U6./W I bq{ K

finmr it llc*i${rllurnnger

Petrr Crare n.^lldrrs&dlr.ltilsitl.i Eltl
lublic A*ist!re* 0ffl€sr

l)avid Silling*

r'4t\1i11{naturt/" "// /1 f J
1 ln tlt{a{*\**- fifarts

Ses sll$rh$rfl{
erplrinlng rh|ogrs or dcninl

CB

$;

t
{

Forn I lRsix.l



Road Repair and Accountabilitv Act FY 20L9/2020 SB 1 Proiects

Project #11", Phase I

Panamint Valley Road Cold Mix Overlays, various locations

TR#

Description;

Panamint Valley Road is L4 miles long and located in the Southern end of lnyo County. Panamint Valley Road

was constructed in the early 50's and predominantly a 'mixed in place' road. This road is heavily used by

visitors and tour busses to Death Valley National Park, as it is the most direct route from the San

Bernardino/lnland empire area. This project will consist of several large grader patches of various lengths and

widths, at a depth of approximately 2" to repair failing road sections and provide a safe road surface for the

traveling public. lt would be impracticable to identify where each of the patches will be over the entire length

of 14 miles, the estimated material quantity is 2,000 tons over 7 - IO locations.

Panamint Valley Road is Part of Route #4008 in the lnyo County Road Route system

Locat ion/s:

Panamint Valley Road is located in the Southern section of lnyo County; it connects US190 in Panamint Valley (Adjacent

to the West edge of Death Valley National Park) , and Trona-Wildrose Road, a County Road, to the South near the San

Bernardino County line.

Estimated useful life

3 -7 Years depending on traffic volume and loads

Anticipa ted construction date:

Fall2019/ Spring 2020

Costs for this proiect are estimated to be;

County Forces;

Materialand Labor 5500,000



Road Repair and Accountabilitv Act FY 2019 /2020 SB 1 Proiects

Project #12, Phase I

Old Spanish Trail Road Cold Mix Road Overlays, Various Locations.

TR#

Description;

Old Spanish Trail Road #5007, a County Road, is 30 miles long and located in the South East end of lnyo

County, next to the State of Nevada. Old Spanish Trail Road construction dates are unknown, most likely

L920's-40's and predominantly a 'mixed in place' road with some newer sections that were reconstructed as

needed. This road is heavily used to access the Dumont Dunes recreation area and the East access to Death

Valley National Park, as it is the most direct route from Las Vegas and surrounding areas. This project will

consist of several large grader patches of various lengths and widths, at a depth of approximately 2" to repair

failing road sections and provide a safe road surface for the traveling public. lt would be impracticable to

identifywhere each of the patches will be overthe entire length of 30 miles, butthe intended direction for

repairs will be west to east from SR127 to the Nevada State Line, with the focus on the first ten miles. The

estimated material quantity is 2,000 tons over 5 - 7 locations.

Old Spanish Trail Road is Part of Routes #5003, #5004, #5005, and #5005 in the lnyo County Road Route

system

Location/s;

Old Spanish Trail Road is located in the South East section of lnyo County; it connects to SR127 Approximately 10 South

of the town of Shoshone (Adjacent to the East edge of Death Valley National Park) , and the Nevada State line, at the

Southern edge of Pahrump, NV,

Estimated useful life

3 -7 Years depending on traffic volume and loads

Anticipated construction date;

Spring 2020

Costs for this proiect are estimated to be:

County Forces;

Material and Labor S5oo,ooo



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO
EConsent EDepartmental flCorrespondenceAction

E Scheduleo Time for E Ctosed Session

For Clerk's Use Qnly:
AGENDA NUMBER

7b
fl Puotic Hearing

E lnformational

RequestBoardapproVeResolutionNo.2o1g-17,titled,.A
Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the County of lnyo, State of California, Changing the Location of the Board's
April 16, 2019 Regular Meeting," and authorize the Chairperson to sign.

S(IMIVIARY DISCUSSION: The Board of Supervisors meeting of April 16, 2019 is scheduled to be held in Furnace
Greek and Tecopa as part of the Board's annual trip to Southeast inyo County. Staff plans to include on the agenda the
introduction of two ordinances that would amend County Code to provide consistency with other chapter! of lnyo
County Code relating to commercialcannabis activity.

Government Code Section 25131 says that introduction or adoption of any ordinance must take place at a regular
meeting or at an adjourned-regular meeting of the board and Governmenf CoOe Section 25081 says regular b-oard
meetings take place in the County seat. However, Government Code Section 25081 also says the board riay cnange
the location of a regular meeting by resolution as long as the change is posted no later than the prior regulai meetiig
(today, April9).

ln order to allow for the consideration of the aforementioned ordinances at the April 16 meeting in Southeast lnyo in
accordance with state law, County Counsel has drafted the attached resolution changing the iocation of the regular
Board of Supervisors meeting to Timbisha Tacos at 1 p.m. in Furnace Creek and the bohmunity Center at 4 p.ir. in
Tecopa.

AL.TEBNAAWS: The Board could choose not to approve the resolution but then the ordinances could not be placed
on the April 16 agenda as planned.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLWMENT: County Counsel

FINANCING: NIA

FROM: Glint G. Quilter, County Administrator/Clerk of the BoardBY: Darcy Ellis, Assistant Clerk of the Board

FOR THE BOARD MEET|NG OF: April 9, 2019

suBJEcr: Resolution changing location of regular Board meeting of April 16

DEPARTMENT H EAD SIGNATIJRE:
c

AJ 0

COUNTY COUNSEL:

I

CONTMCTSAGREEMENTS, ORDIAND ANDNANCES SESSIONCLOSED RELATEDAND ITEMS be(Must
reviewed and counselbyapproved to tosubmrssrbn boardthecounty pior cletu,)

Approved:

AUDITOFYCONTROLLER:

N/A

ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED
subrnssrbn to the boad cleft,)

ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and apprcved by the auditor+ontrctter pior to

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR:

N/A

PERSONNEL AND RELATED TTEMS (Must be rcviewed
submission to the board cletu.)

and approved by the director of personnel services pior to

API]ROVAI,S

(Not to be signed until all approvals are



RESOLUTION NO. 2019.-

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE
COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIF'ORNIA, CHANGING THE LOCATION

oF'THE BOARD'S APRIL 16,2019 REGULAR MEETING

WHEREA$ pursuant to Government Code Section 25081, the Board wishes to change the

location of its April 16,2019, regular meeting;

Nolry, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Inyo County Board of Supervisors that the

location of the Board's April 16, 2019, regular meeting is hereby changed from Independence

(the county seat) to the following other places within the county:

1:00 p.m. at Timbisha Tacos (the Restaurarrt at the Timbisha Shoshone Reservation),

900 Indian Village Road, Furnace Creek, CA92328; and

4:00 p.m. at Hurlbutt-Rook Community Hall, 405 Tecopa Hot Springs Road, Tecopa,

c492389.

Notice of the location change shall be posted by the Clerk in a location that is freely accessible to

the public no later than April 9,2019 (the prior regular meeting of the Board).

,2019 by the following vote:

Chair, Board of Supervrsors

ATTEST: Clint G. Quilter
Clerk of the Board

By:
Darcy Ellis, Assistant

PASSED AND ADOPTED this day of
AYES :

NOES :

ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COTINTY OF INYO

n Consent fi Departmental flCorrespondence Action

fl Scheduled Time n Closed Session

I Public Hearing

n lnformational

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

a7

FROM: Recycling & Waste Management

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OX': April9,2019

SUBJBCT: Waste Hauler Franchise Agreement

D TMENTAL R TINN,

Request your Board approve the Franchise Agreements with the County's waste haulers

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:

Public Resources Code Section 40059 authorizes your Board to determine aspects of solid waste handling which are of
local concern. This includes the authority to grant franchises to solid waste haulers.

At your April 2"d meeting a draft of the franchise agreements was presented to your Board for review. It is requested that

your Board approve the agreements at today's meeting.

ALTERNATIVES:

Your Board could choose not to approve the franchise agreement. The current permit system will then remain in place.

FINANCING:

If the franchise agreement is approved, it is anticipated that there will be negligible change in the County's expenses or

revenues.

DEPARTMENT HEAD S'GNA
(Noi to be signed until all approvals are received

RELATED ITEMS (Musf beCOUNTY COUNSEL: CONTMCTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION

reviewed and approved by county counsel prior fo submlsslon to the board
AGREEMENTS,

Approved

AUDITOR/CONTROLLER:

N/A

ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf

submission to the board clerk.)

be reviewed aWapproved by the auditolconirotter pior to

DateApproved

PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the director of person

Approved Date-

nel services prior to

submission to the board clerk.)
PERSONNEL DIRECTOR:

N/A

1/I

APPROVALS

(The Original plus 14 copies of this document are required)

/r



FnaNCHISE AcnEnMENT

BnrwnEN THE CouNry

AND

IFRAN E

"1?l

OF INYO
., ', : :1:.

' :. ' ::'.,,::,:. .:.,.:

:'r 
"I ir.

a:;t,,:.::::

" :t'

II

FOR COI

FROM RNSINNNTIAL AND

n

OF SO Wasrn

USTOMERS

COUNTY

May 7,2019
31, 2026

.'':

..,: : .

, .:..

..i':....

, ... .:..

lJ.'.:

a;'



This page intentionally left blank.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I. DEFINITIONS AND CONTRACT INTERPRETATION....

1.01

t.02
1.03

1.04

1.0s

ARTICLE 2

2.01
2.02

ARTICLE 3

3.01

3.02
3.03
3.04

Definitions..
Interpretation and Construction
Integration
Severability
Interpretation.................

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES .....

Franchisee
County.....,

Routing
Vehicles, Service Assets, and Drivers
Personnel..
Unpermitted Waste

DIVERSION

Diversion Reporting....
Additional Programs...

..,,,,',..7

..........7

..........7

TERM OF AGREEMENT.. ..........8

Term.........
Survival of Certain Provisions.
Effect on Prior Agreements....
Limit on Number of Service Providers....

ARTICLE 4. COLLECTION 10

8

8

8

9

4.01

4.02
4.03
4.04
4.05
4.06
4.07
4.08
4.09
4.10
4.tT
4.12
4.13

5.01

5.02
s.03
s.04

ARTICLE 6

6.01

6.02

Scope of Basic Franchise Services
Pickup of Excess and Bulky Waste
Service Standards..
Service Exceptions
Customer Service......
Public Education and Community Relations ...........
Customers' Privacy...
No Discrimination

10

t4
t4
15

I6
l7
l7
t7
t7
18

18

18

21

Franchisee Billing......
Description of Customers' Rights
Customer Satisfaction Survey.......
Performance Review...
Enforcement of Franchise

ARTICLE,s. OPERATIONS 2I

2I
22
23
22

23

23

25

1



ARTICLE 7. SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL..... ...26

.......26

.......27

.......27

28
29
30
30
30
30
30

7.01

7.02
7.03

10.01
10.02

Transportation to Designated Disposal
Defense and Indemnifi cation; Release
Disposal Fees ..........

Compliance with Applicable Law.
Cooperation with Waste Studies....
Waste Studies......

Recycled Materials
Responsiveness to County

Facility

ARTICLE 8. MISCELLANEOUS SERVICE PROVISIONS....

8.01
8.02
8.03
8.04
8.0s
8.06
8.07

Emergency Services..........

Service Materials Belong to County..

r r. .:11. .

8.08 changes in Scope or specifications of Franchise Services.
8.09 Failure to Report

ARTICLE 9. INTENTIONALLY OMMITTED.................

ARTICLE 1 O. RECORDS AND REPORTING.,..................

Intent and Review

31

..............34

..............34

..............36
..38

38

..39

..43

..44

..45

.....................48

.....................48

.....................48
,.....'............,.49

Reporting..

ARTICLE 11. INSURANCE, INDEMNIFICATION AND PERFORMANCE
ASSURANCES ..........

1 1.01 Insurance.......,.....,...... .....,.............
1 1 .02 Franchisee Defense and Indemnification............
1 1.03 Letter of Credit/Performance Bond

ARTICLE 12. SERVICE FEES

12.01 Service Fees....,.....
12.02 Franchise Fee Payable by Franchisee......
12.03 Fee Disputes.................

ARTICLE 13. BREACHES, DEFAULTS, DAMAGES AND OTHER REMEDIES.
13.01
13.02
13.03

13.04
13.0s
l3.06
t3.07
13.08

Certain Breaches and Damages....
Remedies Upon Default......
Remedies Not Exclusive...............
Waivers
Jurisdiction, Venue
Costs
Assurance of Performance..........
County Right to Perform Franchise Services ........

45

47
47
47

2



ARTICLE 14. FRANCHISEE'S OBLIGATIONS UPON EXPIRATION OR
TERMINATION..

I 4.0 1 Pay Outstanding Amounts ................
14.02 Cooperation During Transition.

ARTICLE 15. THE PARTIES .....

50

50
50

50

49
49
49
49
49
49
50
50
50
51

53

54
54

56

Franchisee is Independent Contractor ............
Parties in Interest
Binding on Successors............
Further Acts..
Actions of the County in Its Governmental
Franchisee's Obligations Performed at Its
Parties' Representatives ...................
Due Diligence ...........
Subcontracting ...........
No Use of County Name..............;:.

ARTICLE 16. ASSIGNMENT & Amendments

16.01 Assignment
16.02 Amendments ..............

ARTICLE 17. NOTICES, CONSENTS,

18.01 Notices....
18.02

ARTICLE 18.

15.01
15.02
15.03

15.04
15.05
15.06
15.07
15.08
15.09
15.10

................52

................52

................53

J



EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT 1.01:

EXHIBIT 2.01:

EXHIBIT 4.01a:

EXHIBIT 4.05e:

EXHIBIT 5.029:

EXHIBIT 5.06:

EXHIBIT 10.01a:

EXHIBIT 10.02a:

EXHIBIT IO.O2b:

EXHIBIT 13.01a:

EXHIBIT I4.OI:

DEFINITIONS...

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

ANNUAL REPORTS l::< ,:':.:l)
. t.....4;.ai;..,.

........................ I

....................xiii

....xxlv

....xxvi

..xxviii

:/.

4



This Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into by and between the County of Inyo, a
political subdivision of the State of California, (the "County") and IFRANCHISEE]
("Franchisee" and together, the "Parties"), on the later date of execution by the Parties
indicated on the execution page of this Agreement.

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, The County is responsible for protection of public health and the environment.
The County is authorized and required to provide solid waste handling services to its citizens
under the provisions of the California Integrated Waste Management Act (the "Act"), which is
under the California Public Resources Code at Section 40000, et seq., including source
reduction, recycling, composting, and the collection, transfer and disposal of solid waste within
the unincorporated County area; and

WHEREAS, Pursuant to a Joint Powers Agreement between the County and the City of Bishop,
those same solid waste handling services within the City of Bishop are managed by the County
on behalf of the City of Bishop; and

WHEREAS, The County is liable for its solid waste by virtue of fines up to $10,000 per day
levied for noncompliance with the Act. Local public agencies like the County have also
generally been held liable under federal Superfund laws for the costs of cleaning up Hazardous
and Unpermitted Waste sites that accepted solid waste generated within the jurisdiction of the
local public agency. Therefore, the County is prudent to provide for terms and conditions of its
solid waste processing and disposal under this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Franchisee has been providing quality and cost-effective solid waste handling
services in Inyo County and within the City of Bishop. As an existing provider of solid waste
handling services within the unincorporated area of Inyo County and within the City of Bishop,
Franchiiee has developed customer relationships and experience which will enable it to provide
quality services throughout the region; and

WHEREAS, It is desirable to transition from a three-year permit system to a longer-term
Franchise Agreement to provide those businesses providing solid waste handling services in Inyo
County with certainty as to the long-term viability of their enterprises and to clarify the County's
ability to specify and regulate those services, while continuing to provide the benefits of a non-
exclusive permit or franchise system; and,

WHEREAS, It is necessary to require Franchisee to deliver solid waste to a solid waste facility
owned or otherwise specified by the County. In order to sustain its solid waste program,
minimize its risk of liability for waste generated within its borders, and continue to provide
beneficial solid waste services, such as education and recycling, to its residents and to visitors to
the area, it is necessary to require that solid waste collected by franchisees be delivered to a solid
waste facility owned and/or operated by the County unless otherwise specified by the County.

5



NOW' THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, guaranties and
conditions contained in this Agreement and for other good and valuable consideration, the
County and Franchisee agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1. DEFINITIONS AND CONTRACT INTERPRETATION

l.0l Definitions
In this Agreement words have the meanings defined in Exhibit 1.01, which controls in the

event of any conflict with the definitions used in the preamble a44 recitals above.

1.02 Interpretation and Construction

a. Gender and Plurality. Words of the masculine gender include correlative words of
the feminine and neuter genders, and vice versa. Words importing the singulai number include
the plural number, and vice versa, unless the context demands otherwise.

b. Headings, Font. Any captions or headings folfowing the Article, Exhibit, Section,
subsection, and paragraph numbers and preceding the operative 

-text 
of this Agreement are for

convenience of reference only and do not control or affect the scope, intent, meaning,
construction, interpretation or effect of this Agreemerrt, Any underlined, italicized, bold-facel,
upper captioned or other font style is for ease of reading 4nd qontract administration only and
does not imply relative importance or unimportance of any provision of this Agreement.

c. References to Parts. 
.References 

to Sections and Articles refer to Sections and
Articles of this Agreement, unless specihed otherwise. References to Exhibits refer to Exhibits
attached to this Agreement. Reference to "subsections" refers to the subsection contained in the
same Section inwhich the reference occurs, unless otherwise provided.

d. Examples. . Examples are for purpose of illustration only. If any example is
ambiguous or is inconsistent.or conflicts with the text that it illustrates, the text governs.

e. Specifics No Limitation on Generalities. The mention of any specific duty or
liability_imposed upon the Franchisee may not be construed as a limitation oi reitriction of *y
general liability or duty imposed upon the Franchisee by this Agreement or Applicable Law.

f. Exhibits. The Exhibits to this Agreement are part of this Agreement to the same
extent and effect as if included in the text of Articles I through to.

1.03 Integration.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the Parties with respect to the
rights and responsibilities of the Parties under this Agreement, including the enforcement and
administration of this Agreement. This Agreement completely and fulf supersedes all prior

6



understandings and agreements between the Parties with respect to their rights and
responsibilities, including those contained in Procurement Proceedings.

It is the intention of the Board of Supervisors to revise the Inyo County Code to conform
to this agreement.

1.04 Severability.

a. Substitute Provision. If any clause, sentence, provision; subsection, Section or
Article of this Agreement (an "Agreement Provision") is ruled unconstitutional, illegal, invalid,
non-binding or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, then the Parties will, in
good faith,:

(1) promptly meet and attempt to negotiate a substitute for the Agreement Provision
and any related amendments, deletions or additions to other provisions of this
Agreement that together effect the Parties' original intent to the greatest extent
allowable under Applicable Law; and 

:

(2) If necessary or desirable to accomplish item (1), apply to the court that declared
that invalidity for a judicial construction of the.substituted Agreement Provision
and any amendments, deletions or additions to this Agreement.

The Parties will split the costs of such application equally.

b. Remaining Provisions. The unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, non-binding
nature or unenforceability of any Agreement Provision will not affect any of the remaining
provisions of this Agreement.

1.05 Interpretation.

This Agreement must be interpreted and construed reasonably and neither for nor against
either Par|y, regardless of the degree to which either Party participated in its drafting. Franchisee
acknowledges th4t it determined to participate in the procurement of this Agreement upon its
own choice and initiative and during the course of that procurement County met and conferred
with Franchisee and solicited Franchisee's comments, exceptions and proposals with respect to
provisions in the Agreement. The Parties have negotiated this Agreement at arms length and with
advice of their respective attorneys, and no provision herein is construed against the County
solely because it prepared this Agreement in its executed form.

ARTICLE 2. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

2.01 Franchisee. Franchisee represents and warrants as contained in Exhibit2.0l

2.02 County. The County represents and warrants as contained in Exhibit2.0I.

7



ARTICLE 3. TERM OF AGREEMENT

3.01 Term.

a. Term. The Term of the Agreement commences on thc Commcnccmcnt Date and
expires on December 31, 2026, unless terminated earlier.

b. Optional Extension Right. The Franchisee may request to extend the Term for up to
two additional 5 year terms commencing, respectively, on January 1,2027, and terminating
December 31,2031; and commencing January 7,2032,and terminating on December 31,t036,
and the request(s) for extension shall not be unreasonably withheld, cunditioned, or delayed by
the County if the Franchisee has maintained compliance and remains in compliance with the
terms and conditions of this Agreement, both at the time the option is exercised and on the day
that the renewal term is to commence.

Notice of the exercise of said options shall be given to the County, in writing, no earlier
than eight (8) months prior to the commencement of each such renewal period, but no later than
five (5) months before the commencement of each such renewal period; provided, however, that
County shall notify Franchisee if County does not receive the required notice from Franchisee
within said time frame, and Franchisee shall have fourteen (14) days from Franchisee's receipt of
the County's notice in which to cure the failure to give Franchisee's notice of renewal of the
Franchise by serving the County with written notice of Franchisee's request to exercise the
renewal option. If, within fourteen (14) days after receipt of the notice from the County,
Franchisee fails to deliver to the County written notice exercising its renewal option, then
Franchisee will be conclusiVely presumed to have waived its right to renew the term for the
option period and this Agreement shall terminate at midnight on the last day of the term hereof.

3.02 Survival of Certain Provisions. The following provisions survive the Term:

All representations, warranties, certifi cations and acknowledgements;
Indemnities;
Performance Obligations to pay County, including any County Payment Obligations;
obligations to maintain Records and submit Records and reports to county,
including the final Annual Report;
Confi dentiality provisions ; and
Any other rights and obligations of the Parties stated to survive the Term.

3.03 Effect On Prior Agreements. Franchisee is currently one of two Persons authorized
to provide solid waste handling services in the Waste Collection Area on a nonexclusive basis
via a nonexclusive solid waste Permit as defined in Inyo County Ordinance Code Section 7.08
(the "Permit"). This authorization shall remain in effect, and Franchisee shall continue to
collect, transfer, process, recycle, and dispose of solid waste in the Waste Collection Area
pursuant to the Permit, until the Commencement Date of this Agreement. Notwithstanding any
other provision of this Agreement or of the Permit, upon the Commencement Date, the permit
shall expire and be of no further force or effect, except that:

o

a.

o

a

a

a

8



Any provisions of the Permit providing for either party to defend and/or indemnify the
other party for acts, omissions, or occurrences prior to the Commencement Date, or
which provide for insurance or record-keeping duties, shall survive termination of the
Permit;

Any provisions of the Permit expressly stating that they shall survive expiration of the
term or termination of the Permit shall survive; and

Any amounts owed by Franchisee to the County pursuant to the Permit shall remain due
and payable in accordance with the terms of the Permit.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Permit shall not be deemed terminated by this section, and
shall be automatically reinstated, if this Agreement is invalidated as a result of litigation or other
proceeding challenging the award of this Agreement.

3.04 Limit on Number of Service Providers. As of the Commencement Date, there are two
service providers authorized by non-exclusive Permits issued by the County to provide Solid
Waste Handling Services in the Waste Collection Areas. County and Franchisee agree that the
number of Persons authorized to provide nonexclusive Solid Wdste and Recycling Handling
Services in the Waste Collection Areas, whether by franchise or otherwise, will not be increased
during the term of this Agreement beyond the existing level of service authorized for the two
existing Solid Waste Handling Service providers unless the Board of Supervisors finds and
determines, by resolution, the following:

. There is an unmet need for Solid Waste Handling Services and/or Recycling Handling
Services as determined by the County and the existing service providers, including
Franchisee, are incapable of meeting that need at a reasonable cost to subscribers, as

detennined by the Coun1y, 
O*

. There is an unmet nged for Solid Waste Handling Services and/or Recycling Handling
Services as determined by the County and the existing service providers, including
Franchisee have not demonstrated to the County's satisfaction the ability and/or
willingness to provide said service at a reasonable cost to subscribers, as determined by
the County.

Before being considered by the Board, a potential new service provider must demonstrate that
granting an additional franchise is in the public interest and that the provider will satisfy an
unmet need.

The failure of a customer to subscribe to Solid Waste Handing and/or Recycling Handling
Services offered by Franchisee shall not constitute an unmet need.

o

a

9



ARTICLE 4. COLLECTION

4,01 Scopc of Bnsic Franchisc Services.

a. Service Area and Exclusive Franchised Services. County grants Franchisee the
franchise, right and privilege to offer to provide Franchise Services to Customers within the
Franchise Area, so long as Franchisee is at all times ready, willing and able to provide Franchise
Services and is fully and timely satisfying its Performance Obligations. Franchisee accepts that
franchise, right and privilege in accordance with this Agreement. Franchisee further waives any
right or claim to serve any part of the Waste Collection Areas (as set forth in Exhibit 4.01(aj)
under any prior grant of franchise, contract, license, or Permit issued or granted by any
governmental entity.

In addition to the provisions herein, Franchisee shall comply, and shall ensure its
agreements with Customers comply, with any additional requirements of the Inyo County Code
Chapter 7.08, as may be amended. Provided, however, County will not amend said Chapter
during the term of this Agreement to circumvent or avoid the contractual commitments of
County herein made and the Parties acknowledge that any changes to said Chapter that impact
Franchisees cost of operations can be considered through the rate adjustment process specified in
Article 12.

b. Limitations on Right to Provide Franchise Services. Franchisee's franchise right
and privilege to provide Franchise Services is limited. Persons, including both the o*tt.r. und
occupants of premises and persons.performing services at premises, frdy themselves transport
and dispose of Solid Waste, C&D Waste, and/or Recyclables that they generate in the use and
occupancy of those premises or as a by-product of services performed at those premises
themselves, unless or until the County implements a mandatory solid waste collection oidinance
and/or recycling collection ordinance. For example, landscapers, gardeners, or construction
contractors or demolition contractors may collect and transport Yard Waste and C&D Waste
they generate in the course of performing their services in their owned or rented dump trucks,
end dumps, flatbed trucks, or similar vehicles. Also, owners and occupants of a premise may
transport and dispose of solid waste that they generate on their own premises using their own
vehicles.

c. Regularly-Scheduled Franchise Services. Subject to the terms and conditions
of this Agreement, Franchisee will independently arrange to provide Franchise Services at the
frequency, capacity, price and other terms agreed to with its Customers. Franchisee
acknowledges that County is not responsible for supervising or performing Franchise Services.
Franchisee's obligation to offer and provide services includes, but is not limited to, Customers on
non-County maintained private roads, provided that said roads are kept in a safe and good
traveling condition and will accommodate Franchisee's collection vehicles. In the event any
road is unsafe or in such a state of disrepair that such will be either hazardous or potentially

10



cause injury to the vehicle(s) of Franchisee, Franchisee shall not be required to provide service to
customers on said road.

1. Residential Solid Waste.

O Collection. Franchisee will continue to collect all Solid Waste set out by
Persons who are existing customers of Franchisee as of the Commencement Date at the
Residential Set-out Site of Residential premises located within the Franchise Area. Franchisee
will commence collecting all Solid Waste set out at the Residential Set-out Site of Residential
premises located in the Franchise Area within 7 days of anyone's request for Collection Service
at that premise.

(iD Cancellation of Services. Upon oral or written direction of any existing
Residential Customer, Franchisee will cease providing Franchise Service immediately or at any
other time specified by that Person, without penalty, and refund any pre-paid Seryice Fees
pursuant to Section 4.09b. Franchisee will notify Customers of cancellation rights, pursuant to
Section 4.10. New Residential Customers (having had service of six months or less) may be
charged a cancellation fee not to exceed 1 month Service Fee provided said fee is disclosed by
Franchisee in advance.

(rir) Containers. Franchisee will provide all Residential Customers located
within the Franchise Area with one or more cans or Carts for the deposit of Solid Waste having a

nominal capacity of up to 96 gallons ("Residential Containgrs") or, at Customer's request, with
a Bin. Franchisee must provide Residential Containers that are clean, water tight, constructed of
a material of suitable strength and durability (such as heavy plastic), tight seamed, and otherwise
in compliance with Inyo County Code Chapter 7.08 and any applicable State regulations.
Franchisee will return Residential Containers to the Set-out Site after Collection upright, with
can lids properly secured, at the same point it was collected, without obstructing alleys,
roadways, driveways, sidewalk, or mailboxes. Franchisee will ensure that any Bins that it
provides to Residential Customers will comply with all of the requirements applicable to
Commercial Containers under Subsection c(2)(iii). Notwithstanding the above requirement for
Franchisee.provided cans or Carts, Franchisee may allow customers to utilize 30-45 gallon cans
in limited areas not readily accessible to Franchisee Cart collection equipment.

(iv) Frequency. Franchisee will Collect all Solid Waste set out at the Residential
Set-out Site at least once each week, on the same day ("Regularly-Scheduled Residential
Collection Day"), or more frequently, as Franchisee and its customers may agree. Franchisee
shall collect all Solid Waste for Multi-Family Unit Residential Customers at the Residential Set-
out Site at least once per week, and more frequently if needed to handle the Multi-Family Unit
waste stream, as required to maintain public health and safety. If Franchisee is unable, for any
reason, to Collect all Solid Waste from a Customer on the Regularly-Scheduled Residential
Collection Day (e.g. the regularly scheduled Collection Day falls on a holiday), then it will
Collect that Solid Waste within one Service Day, and all subsequent Collection Days during that

11



holiday week may be moved back one day atthe discretion of Franchisee and upon advance
notice to all affected Residential customers pursuantto 4.01.e.2 below.

2. Commercial Solid Waste

(i) Collection. Franchisee will continue to collect all Solid Waste placed in
Bins and compactors, ("Commercial Containers") or other Containers,by existing 

-Commercial

Customers of Franchisee at the location on the Commercial Premises agreed to between
Franchisee and the Customer ("Commercial Set-out Site"). Franchisee will commence
collecting all Solid Waste placed in Commercial Containers at the Commercial Set-out Site by
Persons located within the Franchise Area within 7 days of that Person's request for Collection
Service atthat premise. Franchisee will continue to include weekly cardboard and mixed paper
collection from Commercial Customers and transport same to a recycling facility.

(ii) Cancellation of Franchise Services. Upon oral or written direction of any
existing or new Commercial Customer, Franchisee will cease providing Franchise Service
immediately or at any other time specified by that Customer, without penalty, and refund any
pre-paid Service Fees under Section 4.09b. Franchisee will notifu Customers of cancellation
rights, pursuant to Section 4.1 0.

(iii) Containers. Franchisee will provide all Commercial Customers with2,3, 4,
or 6 yard Containers as ordered by the Commercial Customer. Franchise will provide
Commercial Containers that:

(1) are durable,
(2) are constructed from structural steel plate with all welded seams,
(3) are leak-proof,
(4) are equipped with a lid, uniformly colored, satisfactory to the county as

providing adequate protection against frehazard. rodents, and bears,
and

(5) display Franchisee's name and telephone number in legible lettering no
less than 2 inches in height as well as language warning against illegal
dumping and Unpermitted Waste (including Hazardous Waste) or
special waste disposal, as satisfactory to County; and

(6)' otherwise comply with Inyo county code chapter 7.08 and state
regulations.

At the time of a Customer request for Franchise Service, Franchisee will provide written notice
to each Commercial Customer utilizing Bin service of the types of wastes which require special
handling and may not be discarded in the debris box and informing the Customer of the proper
methods for disposing of such wastes. Franchisee will submit this notice to the County ior
approval as to form prior to distribution.

l2



(iv) Frequency. Frartchisee will Collect Solid Waste set out at the Commercial
Set-out Site at least once each week, or more frequently as directed by the Commercial
Customer, on the day or days written in the Customer's Subscription Order ("Regularly-
Scheduled Commercial Collection Day") or on such other day as mutually agreed to by
Commercial Customer and Franchisee. If Franchisee is unable, for any reason, to Collect Solid
Waste from a Customer on the Regularly-Scheduled Commercial Collection Day or other day
agreed to by Customer, then it will Collect that Solid Waste on the next Service Day following
the date of the missed pick up, or other day arranged with the Customer, but in no event later
than72 hours after the time of the missed pick-up, and will provide the Customer with a verbal
or written Non-Collection Notice.

e. CollectionSchedules.

1. Hours. Franchisee will Collect all Solid Waste from Commercial Customers
only between 5:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m., on any given day of the week. Franchisee will Collect all
Solid Waste from Residential Customers only between 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m., Monday through
Saturday with no service on Sunday. Except that Franchisee,may Collect Solid Waste from
Residential customers between 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. on Sunday:

(D if road closures have prevented collection during the previous 7 days; or
(ii) with prior written approval from 

fhe 
Director.

Notwithstanding the above, Franchisee shall comply with any applicable Inyo County Noise
ordinance. Franchisee funher agree_s to reasonably adjust the hours of commencement of
collection operations in selected areas at the request of County where early collection activities
generate material and numerous complaints from nearby residents. The above collection
schedules may be temporarily adjusted due to extraordinary circumstances or conditions upon
consent of the Director.

Prior to changing the Regularly-Scheduled
Collection Day for any Customer, F
Customer.

will provide 15 days' oral or written Notice to that

f. Changes in Service Levels; Container Exchanges.

1. Delivery. Franchisee will give Customers Containers in accordance with
Subsections c.1 .(iii) and c.2.(iii). Within 7 days after receiving a request for Franchise Service or
changes in Franchise Service, Franchisee will respond to and fulfillthat request.

2. Pick Up. No later than the next Regularly-Scheduled Collection Day for
such Customer occulring after direction of a Customer to discontinue Franchise Service,
Franchisee will pick up and remove that Customer's Container(s).

3. Repair and Replacement. Franchisee will repair or replace Containers or
provide locks for Bins within 72 hours of a request therefor from a Customer or the County. If

13



Franchisee cannot complete a repair within 72hours, Franchisee will give the Customer a
replacement Container without surcharge within those 72 hours.

g. C&D Waste. At anyone's request and agreement (including a Residential or
Commercial Customer) with respcct to pricc and frequency of Collectiun, Franchisee will
Collect C&D or other Inert Waste (including dirt) that is discarded in debris boxes, roll-offs, or
other similar containers. In providing C&D or other Inert Waste Collection, Franchisee shall use
its best efforts to educate Customers on the proper segregation of recyclable or reusable materials
so as to ensure that said materials are segregated by the customer or Franchisee and not disposed
of in landfills.

4.02 Pickup of Excess and Bulky Waste.

Upon request of a Residential or Commercial Customer, Franchisee will Collect excess
Solid Waste or Bulky Waste at the Residential or Commercial Set-out Site on that Customer,s
next Regularly-Scheduled Collection Day or other date agreed to between the Customer and
Franchisee for a price that is mutually agreed to by Franchisee and Customer. Upon request of a
Person who does not receive regular Commercial or Residential Collection from Franchisee,
Franchisee will collect Bulky Waste or excess Solid Wast e at alocation and time and for a price
that are mutually agreed to by that Person and Franchisee which is not less than that chargei for
similar services to customers receiving regular collection services..

4.03 ServiceStandards.

a. General. Franchisee will provide all Franchise Se.rvices in a prompt, thorough,
comprehensive, reliable, courteous,and professional manner so that Customers receive high-
quality service at all times. Franchisee must provide Fr.anchise Services regardless of difficulty
of collection, subject to the exceptions under Section'4.04. or extrem., unruf. weather
conditions. More detailed specifications for particular aspects of Franchise Services enumerated
elsewhere in this Agreement do not relieve Franchisee of its duty and obligation to accomplish
all other aspects of Franchise Services under this Subsection.

b. Litter. Franchisee will clean up litter caused by Franchisee's employees. Franchisee
will ensure that each Collection Vehicle at all times carries appropriate tools 

-forihis 
purpose.

c. Spills and Leaks.

1. Solid Waste Spills. Franchisee will transport Solid Waste only in covered
vehicles. Franchisee will prevent Solid Waste from escaping, dropping, spilling, blowing or
scattering from Vehicles during Collection and transportation. Franchisee will lmmediatety
clean up any Solid Waste that is dropped, blown, spilled, scattered or leaked from any Veh-icle
andlor tracked by any vehicle onto any alley, street or public place.

2. Liquid Leaks. During Collection and transportation, Franchisee will also take
reasonable measures to prevent oil, hydraulic fluid, paint or other liquid from leaking out of
Vehicles. Franchisee shall immediately clean any liquid leaks caused by Franchiseeis Vehicles

14



at its sole expense, and shall report any leaks in excess of five (5) gallons to the Inyo County
Road Department and the Inyo County Environmental Health Services Department.

3. Reimbursement. Damages & Penalties.

i. Spillage. If Franchisee fails to clean up Solid Waste or leaked liquids as

required above, the County may clean up or cause to be cleaned up the Solid Waste or leaked
liquids and Franchisee will reimburse the County for the County's Reimbursement Costs thereof.
Franchisee is also responsible for paying compensatory and/or liquidated damages as set forth in
Exhibit 14.07, civil penalties and/or other charges that may be lawfully assessed for improperly
covering loads or leaking liquids, per incident, per location.

4.04 ServiceExceptions.

il. Excess Weight. Franchisee is not required to collect aCart weighing in excess of the
manufacturer's recommended weight, as evidenced by warranties or other documentation
acceptable to the County. Franchisee will provide Customers with weight limitations on the
Customer Subscription Order, marked on the Cart, or through some other written means.

b. Unsafe Condition at Set-out Site. If Franchisee determines that any condition at or
near any Set-out Site presents a health or safety threat to Franchisee's employees or equipment,
Franchisee may attempt to personally provide the Customer whose Set-out Site presents the
threat notice of the danger thereof. If Franchisee does not personally provide Customer with
notice, prior to leaving Customer's premises Franchisee will provide the Customer with a Non-
Collection Notice, describing the threat and danger. Franchisee may discontinue collection for
that Set-out Site until the safety hazard is eliminated.

c. Hazardous Waste or Unsafe Materials. If Franchisee determines that Containers
contain Hazardous Waste (other than Household Hazardous Waste not discovered and identified
by Franchisee acting in. accordance with its Unpermitted Waste Screening Protocol) or other
materials that may present a health or safety threat to Franchisee's employees, the public, or to
Franchisee's equipment, Franchisee may refuse to Collect that Container. Franchisee may
attempt to personally provide the Customer whose Container contains Hazardous Waste or
unsafe mateiial with written information about their proper disposal. If Franchisee cannot
personally provi{e Customer with information, prior to leaving Customer's premises it will
provide the Customer with a Non-Collection Notice. Franchisee will follow the procedures
outlined in the Unper-mitted Waste Screening Protocol, as it applies to Hazardous Waste,
including providing notice to the County Health Department and to the Director. Title to and
liability forHazardous Waste and Unsafe Materials shall at all times remain with the Customer.

d. Customer Delinquency or Nonpayment. Franchisee is not obligated to provide
Franchise Services to any Customer whose bill becomes delinquent fifteen (15) days after such
bill was due and owing.

e. Non-Collection Tags. When Solid Waste is not collected from any customer other
than due to withholding of service pursuant to subsection d immediately above, Franchisee shall

15



notit/ its customer(s) as to why that Collection was not made by attaching tags approved by the
County to the applicable container(s) that clearly identify the reason(s; foi non-Collection.

4.05 Customer Service.

Franchisee acknowledges that the County determined to procure and enter into this
Agreement with Franchisee, among other reasons, in order to providi improved Customer
service, relations and satisfaction. Franchisee will post its Contact Information on all of its
written communications with Customers.

il. Office- Unless otherwise approved by the Director in writing, Franchisee shall
establish and maintain an office within the County through which the Franchisee,s
representatives may be contacted. Franchisee's office hours shall be, at a'minimum, from g:00
a'm. to 12:00 p.m., and from 1:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m. on all Collection Days. A representative of
Franchisee shall be available in the established office during said office hou6 for communication
with the public.

b. Phone Number. Franchisee will maintain a telephone number at least during Office
Hours and, if Franchisee provides Residential Collection on baturday, from 8:00 a.m. to noon on
Saturdays ("Phone Hours"). Franchisee will list the telephott. nu-t". under Franchisee,s name
in the County telephone directories (e.g. white pages and yellow pages), and on all billing
statements. Franchisee will provide an answering machine or answering service to take reporti
of missed pick-ups and other complaints that are received outside of phoie Hours.

c. Email. Franchisee will maintain an email address for the purpose of corresponding
with customers and County. Franchisee will record customers' email addresses.

d. Emergency Number. Franchisee will also maintain an emergency telephone number
disclosed to the County for use outside Phone Hours. Franchisee will make a representative in a
position of authority available at the emergency number outside Phone Hours who will return
any emergency call as soon as possible and in any event within one hour.

e. Complaints. (1) All customer complaints shall be directed to Contractor. Contractor shall
record allcomplaints received by mail, email, by telephone, or in person (including date, name,
address of complainant, and nature of complaint). Contractor agrees to use its best efforts to
resolve all complaints by the close of business of the second regularly scheduled waste
Collection day following the date on which such complaint is received. Service complaints may
be investigated by the County or his/her designee. Unless a settlement satisfactory to the
complainant and Contractor is reached, the complainant may refer the matter to the County for
review.

(2) Contractor will maintain records listing the date of customer complaints, the customer, the
nature of the complaint or request, and when and what action was taken by Contractor to resolve
the complaint. All such records shall be transmitted to the County quarteriy and maintained for a
period of thirty-six (36) months and shall be available for inspeciio" Uy the County.

I6



f. Complaint Resolution. Contractor will use its best efforts to resolve all complaints by close
of business of the second business day following the date on which the complaint is received.
Contractor shall notify customers that service complaints may be reviewed by the County if a

satisfactory solution is not reached.

A customer dissatisfied with Contractor's decision regarding a complaint may ask the
County to review the complaint. To obtain this review, the customer must request the County's
review within thirty (30) days of receipt of Contractor's response to the complaint, or within
forty-hve (45) days of submitting the complaint to Contractor if Contractor has failed to respond
to the complaint. The County may extend the time to request its review for good cause.

The County shall determine if the customer's complaint is justified, and if so, what remedy, if
any, shall be imposed. The remedy under this section shall be limited to a rebate of customer
charges related to the period of breach of any of the terms of this Agreement.

A reference to that portion of the Franchisee's website containing the complaint resolution
procedure shall be made on all billing statements.

4.06 Public Education and Community Relations.

l. Community Relations Materials. Any community relations material, other than billing
information, from the Franchisee to its customers regarding the services provided under this
Agreement, including rates changes, shall be approved in advance, in writing, by the County.

The County may, once each contractyear,produce and give Franchisee printed inserts,
specified as a sheet no larger thanS% by 11 inches, which Franchisee will include in Customers'
bills or otherwise give to Customers upon County request at no cost to the County. In lieu of
mailing the materials, Franchisee may e-mail such materials to Customers that receive bills on-
line or have requested electronic communication (if any).

In addition, Franchisee will print public information directed by the County on
Customers' bills.

2. Recycling Materials. Franchisee will develop and distribute all materials pursuant to
Section 6.02.

4.07 Customers'Privacy.

Franchisee will strictly observe and protect Customers' rights of privacy. Franchisee will
not reveal information identifying individual Customers or the composition or contents of a
Customer's waste stream to anyone other than the County unless upon lawful demand of a
regulatory authority (including law enforcement and courts of law), by Applicable Law or by
Customer's authorization. This provision will not be construed to preclude Franchisee from
preparing, participating in or assisting in the preparation of waste charucterization studies or
waste stream analyses that may be required by the County or Applicable Law. The foregoing

t7



notwithstanding, the parties hereby acknowledge that franchisee's obligation to comply with
applicable law include certain information reporting obligations to CalRecycle as a rezult of the
enactment of AB 901 (Gordon, Chapter 746,Statutes of 2015) and they agree that franchisee's
compliance with those requirements or with any other disclosure laws to which franchisee is
subject, may require the release, rcporting or disclosure of cefiain custorner infunnatiun ancl tlata
and franchisee's compliance there with does not violate this agreement or a customer's privacy
rights.

In addition, Franchisee will not market, sell, convey, or donate to anyone any list with the name
or address of Customers except that Franchisee will give that list to the County or someone else
as directed by the County. The rights accorded Customers pursuant to this Section are in
addition to any other privacy right accorded Customers pursuant to Applicable Law.

Other than as set forth above, Franchisee shall not market or distribute mailing lists with
the names and contact information of its customers.

4.08 NoDiscrimination.

Franchisee will not discriminate against Customers entitled to Franchise Service on
account of Suspect Categories.

4.09 FranchiseeBilling.

^. Billing. Franchisee will bill and collect Service Fees in accordance with Franchisee's
standard billing and collection practices. Franchisee acknowledges that the County is not
obligated to bill or collect Service Fees. Franchisee will not hold the County liable for any
under-billings to Customers of Service Fees or delinquent Service Fee payments. Franchisee
shall provide itemized bills,'distinctly showing charges for all classifications of services,
including the charges for late payment and, when applicable, tipping fees. Bills shall be made no
less frequently than each quarter, unless otherwise agreed to by Franchisee and its customers.
Billings may be mailed at the beginning of the billing period for all services.

b. Refunds. Franchisee will refund to Customers any overcharges for Franchise
Services the earlier of 2 weeks from the time that Franchisee discovered the overcharge or
Customer notified Franchisee of the overcharge. "Overcharges" includes: (1) Franchisee's
billing effors; and Q) refunds for Franchise Services paid in advance by Customers who
terminated Franchise Services prior to the end of the billing period.

c. Customer Disputes. Franchisee will take Customers' calls and respond to
Customers' correspondence with respect to disputes regarding billing. Franchisee acknowledges
that the County is not responsible for handling Customer disputes, but the County may intervene
to assist in resolving disputes.

d. Records. Franchisee will maintain billing records under Section 10.01.

18



4.10 Description ofCustomers' Rights.

Within 30 days of the Commencement Date for existing Customers and prior to the
provision of Franchise Services to new Customers, Franchisee will give Customers a written
Subscription Order. In each Subscription Order and in Customer's first bill of each Contract
Year, Franchisee will include a description of the following Customers' Franchise Services and
rights under this Agreement, the form and content of which shall be subject to the review and
approval of the Director:

o the scope of Franchise Services provided, including day of collection and
arrangements for the collection of Bulky Waste or excess Solid Waste;

o the Service Fee (or, rate);
:o Holiday schedules;

o the ability of Customers to terminate their Subscription Order upon oral or written
notice to Franchisee without penalty under Section 4.01cl(ii) and c2(ii), and
describing their refund rights for pre-paid but unused Franchise Service under Section
4.09b;

o the complaint resolution process or a clear reference to the complaint resolution
process on the franchisee's website;

o other information concerning the conditions of service, including, but not limited to,
rates, fees, charges, service options, payment options, discounts (if any), service level
the Dispute Resolution Protocol, including the name, address and local telephone
number of Franchisee; and,

. any other provisions of this Agreement or Applicable Law as directed by County.

The Subscription Order may include a waiver of damage liability andlor indemnification
in connection with subscriptions for Franchise Services on private driveways, roads, easements
or pavement.

4.ll CustomerSatisfactionSrirvey.

The County may conduct a Customer satisfaction survey for implementation of Franchise
Services, including a survey mailed to Customers together with Customers' bills, in the form of a
post card or letter retumable to the County. The survey shall include, without limitation, a
section rating Franchisee's response to customer complaints. The survey methodology, format
and content shall be subject to the prior review and approval of the Director. Nothing in this
paragraph shall limit the right of the County to conduct additional surveys. The Franchisee shall
reasonably cooperate with the County in such cases. Franchisee may obtain a copy of the results
of the survey upon request to the County.

4.12 PerformanceReview.

a. County Review. From time to time, at its sole discretion, the County may examine
Franchisee's operation in order to evaluate whether or not the Franchisee is operating at a
satisfactory level of efficiency and customer satisfaction. Franchisee agrees to cooperate in any
such examination, and upon not less than thirty six hours notice shall permit County's

t9



representatives to inspect, at Franchisee's principal place of business, or as otherwise may be
agreed upon, records and information pertaining to Franchisee's obligations hereunder as the
County may reasonably require. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the
County's right to review hereunder shall be limited to Franchisee's operations directly
undcrtaken pursuant to this Agleernent, and the County shall have no right to review any
proprietary or privileged information of the Franchisee nor shall the County retain the records
reviewed for this purpose..

b. Public Review. Upon providing sixty (60) days advance Notice to Franchisee, the
County Board may conduct a public hearing within ninety (90) days of the first anniversary of
the effective date of this Franchise Agreement, and not more frequently than every other ylar
thereafter throughout the term of the Franchise Agreement. Said pubtic hearing may review
Franchisee's performance and the quality of Franchise Service, provide for technological,
economic and regulatory changes in solid waste collection, facilitate recyclingprograms,
promote competition in the solid waste industry, and/or aim to achieve a continuing, advanced
solid waste collection system. Franchisee and County may fuither agree to additional topics for
discussion at any such hearing. Franchisee shall attend and participate in the hearing. Tire
County Board may use Records and reports required under Article 10, and other relwant
information it may request or obtain, as a basis of its review.

1' Franchisee's Reoort. In addition to the Records and reports Franchisee is
otherwise required to maintain andlor produce, the County may request in the Notice of
the public hearing, and Franchisee shall provide at least thirty (30) days prior to the
public hearing, a report to County indica-ting the following:

(D All solid waste collection and recycling services reported in solid waste
collection and recycling industry trade journals that are being commonly
provided onan opeiational basis, excluding tests and demonitrations, to
communities in the United States with comparable populations, that are provided
by Franchisee to County;

(ii) Changes recommended to improve the County's ability to meet the goals of
AB 939 andlor other applicable laws; and

(iii) Any specific plans for provision of such new services by the Franchisee
along with tl.re estimated expenses and adjustments to rates necessary to
compensate Franchisee for providing such services, or a justification indicating
why Franchisee believes that such services are not feasible for the waste
Collection Areas.

c. County Report. Within 30 days after the conclusion of the public hearing, the
County may issue a report with respect to any material matters raised at the hearings. A-otrg
other things, the report may summarizethe systems and services review hearing and address
services not being provided that the County considers technically and economi-ally feasible.
Concurrent with the issuance of any such report, the County and Franchisee shall meet to discuss
the potential and feasibility of providing such services and the compensation required to perform
such services.

20



4.13 Enforcement of Franchise.

The County m&y, in its sole discretion, enforce the franchise requirement against third
party violators, taking into account the cost of doing so and other factors. In addition to the
foregoing, Franchisee may independently enforce the rights granted by this Agreement to
Franchisee against third party violators (excluding the other franchisee operating pursuant to a
Franchise Agreement with County), including seeking injunctive relief, and the County will use
good faith efforts to cooperate in such enforcement actions brought by Franchisee. The County
will not be liable to Franchisee in any manner, including for any costs or damages such as lost
revenues or lost profits, should anyone refuse to subscribe to Franchise Services from Franchisee
and/or perform Franchise Services under a Franchise Agreement with the County in competition
with Franchisee, and in doing so violate the semi-exclusive grant of franchise given to
Franchisee in this Agreement. In that event, Franchisee's sole and exclusive remedy will be to
seek an injunction, damages or other available judieial relief against any such third person or
entity that engages in any conduct or activity that violates Franchisee's semi-exclusive rights
under this Agreement. If Franchisee becomes aware of any activity by a third party that violates
or may violate the provisions of this Agreement, Franchisee will give County notice of that
activity.

ARTICLE 5. OPERATIONS

5.01 Routing.

a. Route Maps and Account Information. Within 30 days of the Commencement
Date, Franchisee will give the County, route maps or narratives containing the following
information: .: .. .'

(1) a general dgsqription of each individual route;
(2) Collection day of the week for each individual route; and
(3) approximate Collection times (a.m. or p.m.) for route or portion of route

b. Route Changes. Franchisee will inform the County of any proposed change in
Routing Specifications not less than 15 days prior to the proposed date of implementation or as

otherwise agreed to by Franchisee and the Director.

c. Route Changes Directed by County. Franchisee acknowledges that in order to
provide detailed reporting it may be necessary for waste to be segregated by source location (i.e.
City of Bishop, tribal lands, federal land, etc.) Therefore, County may direct Franchisee to
establish routes exclusively within said locations. In the event such direction is given, Franchisee
agrees to revise routing. If said changes required by County increase operation cost for
Franchisee,floor rates will be adjusted per the terms outlined in Section 13.01 (2 iii) of this
agreement.

2l



5.02 Vehicles, Service Assets, and Drivers.

^. Vehicle Appearance. Bodies of Vehicles used in Collection or transportation of
Solid Waste must havc watcrtight beds of metal or inrpcrviuus rnaterial that can be cleaned.
Franchisee will utilize packer-type, completely enclosed Vehicles unless another type of Vehicle
is required by terrain or type of Solid Waste to be hauled. Franchisee will paint and label all
Vehicles in a consistent, uniform, and professional manner. All Vehicler *ilt be maintained and
operated in compliance with State Minimum Standards.

b. Compliance with Applicable Law. Franchisee will ensure that all Vehicles it uses
to provide the Franchise Services comply with all Applicable T.aw. Franchisee will document,
through its maintenance log or otherwise, compliance under Applicable.taw applying to each
Vehicle and will provide the County with copies of inspectitrn reports within tO aays of tne
County's request, or within a longer time as otherwise requested. The Countf mayconduct
inspections of Vehicles in connection with any Permits issued by the County or ot|erwise.
Franchisee will maintain copies of registration certificates and reports and make them available
for inspection at its office during office Hours upon request by lhe county.

c. Vehicle ldentification. Franchisee will paint its name, toll-free telephone number
and a unique Vehicle number on all Vehicles in letters and figures not less than-|2 inches high
for packer trucks and not less than 6 inches high on other Vehicles, unless otherwise prescri|'ed
by State Minimum Standards.

d. Cleaning, Maintenance, and Availability. Franchisee will at all times maintain
Vehicles in good, clean condition and repair so that they operate properly and safely. Franchisee
shall provide an adequate number of vehicles and equipment to continuously provide Franchise
Services. Franchisee may not leave Vehicles loaded with Solid Waste for over 24 consecutive
hours.

e. Equipment. Franchisee will equip each Collection Vehicle with a fire extinguisher
which must be maintained and checked under manufacturer's warranty and maintenance
recommendations.

f. Re-Refined Oil. To the extent permitted by equipment warrantees and/or available
services, Franchisee will give serious consideration to recycling used oil from its Vehicle
maintenance operatiohs and to use re-refined oil in its Vehicles. Should Franchise elect to adopt
such a policy, Franchisee will submit copies of re-refined oil invoices to the County upon County
request.

g. Service Assets. Franchisee will prepare a Service Asset Inventory under Exhibit
5.02g.

22



5.03 Personnel.

a. Nondiscrimination. Franchisee will not discriminate against any of its personnel on
the basis of Suspect Categories. Franchisee will comply with all Applicable Law, including but
not limited to those prohibiting discrimination in employment.

b. Compliance with Law. Franchisee will comply with all applicable labor laws,
including keeping records of compliance with the Federal Immigration and Control Act of 1986
Failure to comply with Applicable Law (such as a citation or failure-to-abate notice from the
California Division of Occupational Safety and Health) is a material breach of this Agreement.

c. Conduct. Franchisee will employ only competent, qualified, conscientious, and
sober personnel to ensure Franchise Services satisfactory to the County. Franchisee will ensure
that its employees serve the public in a courteous, professional and reliable manner.

d. Drivers. Franchisee will ensure that all drivers of Vehicles have in full force and
effect a valid license of the appropriate class issued by the Califomia Department of Motor
Vehicles. Franchisee will provide suitable operational and safety training for all of its personnel,
including those who drive Vehicles or operate other equipment for Collection, which training
will include on-the-job-training by supervisors. Franchisee will train sufficient numbers of
drivers to drive all Collection toutes so as to ensure no lapse of Franchise Services and will use
Reasonable Business Efforts to assign the same driver(s) to identified routes in order to
encourage accountability and enhance Customer relations. Franchisee will train its drivers to
implement the Unpermitted Waste Screening Protocol so as to identify and to not collect
Unpermitted Waste. Franchisee will implement drug and alcohol testing in accordance with
Applicable Law. Franchisee wjll maintain copies of licenses for all Vehicle operators and full
and complete records of training and testing, which Franchisee will make available to the County
at Franchisee's Office during Office Hours.

5.04 UnpermittedWaste.

Except as explicitly set forth herein, Franchisee shall not knowingly collect, handle,
process, transport, affange for the transport of, or dispose of Unpermitted Waste. Franchisee
shall keep current wittr, and maintain compliance with, the laws and regulations applicable to
Unpermitted Waste. As part of that effort, Franchisee will comply with the Unpermitted Waste
screening, identification and prevention protocol ("Unpermitted Waste Screening Protocol")
as reflected in Exhibit 5.06. If Franchisee delivers Unpermitted Waste to the Designated
Disposal Facility or a Diversion Facility, Franchisee will arrange for proper disposal under
Applicable Law and/or cooperate with the facility owner or operator with respect thereto. Except
for arranging for the proper disposal of Unpermitted Waste delivered to the Designated Disposal
Facility or Diversion Facility by Franchisee and/or cooperating with the facility owner/operator
related thereto, if Franchisee complies with its obligations pursuant to the Unpermitted Waste
Screening Protocol, and Unpermitted Waste is delivered to the Designated Disposal Facility or

23



Diversion Facility, Franchisee shall have no responsibility or liability associated with such
Unpermitted Waste. The facility owner or operator shall look solely to the Customer/generator
of such Unpermitted Waste.

The County reserves the right to contract with other Persons to coiiect, dispose of, ciivert, anci
otherwise handle Unpermitted Waste.

ARTICLE 6. DIVERSION

6.01 DiversionReporting.

a. Reporting and Substantiation of Diverted Materials. Franchisee will report the
amount of Diverted Recyclables to the County in its Quarterly Report or as otherwise more
frequently required by the Act or Applicable Law. Franchisee wil

I include:

(1) the date of diversion,
(2) the quantity (by each type) of those materials expressed in cubic yards, pounds,

or tons,
(3) the community or project where the materials originated, and
(4) the name and telephone number of the material recovery facilities or composting

sites to which Franchisee delivered the materials and a receipt or invoice from
that Diversion Facility

ooDiversion Facility" means any materials recovery facility, salvager, processing facility
or materials end user. "Diverted Recyclables" means the net quantity of Recyclables that
Franchisee has Collected at Residential and Commercial premises and at construction or
demolition projects and Diverted, including Recyclables in Bulky Waste. The net quantity will
be the gross amount of material Collected and delivered to the Diversion Facility, less any
quantity of Solid Waste that was contained therein and deducted from payment and/or Diversion
and disposed by said Facility. "Divert," ooDivertedr" "Diversion" or other form thereof means
to divert from disposal so that the disposal tonnage is not reported as disposed under the State's
disposal reporting system and qualifies as diversion under the Act.

Franchisee will additionally report to the County on a quarterly basis the amount of Solid
Waste contained within Diverted Recyclables that was separated from the Recyclables.
Franchisee's report will include the date of Collection, the quantity of Solid Waste expressed in
cubic yards, pounds or tons, and the community or project where the Solid Waste originated.

b. Additional Information. If the County questions reports, Records or other
documentation that serves as the basis of measuring the quantity or types of Diverted
Recyclables (and associated Solid Waste), Franchisee will respond to the County's questions and
provide additional clarifying documentation as soon as possible, but in all events within 30 days
from the date the County submits written questions to Franchisee.

24



6.02 Additional Programs

^. Recycling Services. This Agreement contemplates that, as part of the franchise,
Franchisee shall be required to offer Waste Recycling Handling Services to its customers in the
near future at a date to be determined by the County, and that its right and obligation to do so
will form apart of this Agreement.

The parties acknowledge that the awarding of a Waste recycling Handling Services agreement is
non-exclusive and that in the event that the current providers are incapable of providing the
service at a reasonable cost as determined by the County or have not demonstrated to the
County's satisfaction the ability and/or willingness to provide said service at a reasonable cost to
subscribers, as determined by the County this will be deemed an unmet need and in accordance
with Section3.04, the County may enter in additional Agreements of a nature similar to this
Agreement with other Persons to provide Waste Recycling Handling Services.

Selection of the specific Waste Recycling Handling Services that shall be offered to residential,
commercial and industrial customers, the method of providing those Waste Recycling Handling
Services, and the corresponding revision of the floor rate shall be determined in cooperation with
the County and are subject to County approval. At a minimum, such Waste Recycling Handling
Services shall include the collection and transportation of recyclable waste materials from the
premises of such residential, commercial and industrial customers to the processing location or
point of sale.

The County may specify the processing location or point-of-sale for any recyclable material it
directs to be collected. County acknowledges that any decision to exercise its right to control the
Solid Waste Stream, may increase Franchisee's Direct Costs which may justify an increase to
Franchisee's Service Fees. In any such event, Franchisee shall request a Pass-Through Cost
Adjustment in the same manner by which a request is made for a Change in Law as set forth in
Article 72,01.c,2 of this Agreement.

At such time as the Board of Supervisors determines the recycling services that are to be
provided, and has selected a date or dates for the implementation of such services, the Waste
Recycling Handling Services and implementation dates shall be set forth in Exhibit 4.06. At
such time as the County provides Notice to Franchisee of its decision to incorporate Waste
Recycling Handling Services in this franchise, Franchisee shall thereafter perform all education,
outreach, monitoring, and reporting for all commercial solid waste and multi-family properties as

required by AB 939 andAB 341, which shall include online and print materials. All materials
and proposed educational activities shall be submitted to the County for approval prior to
distribution. These activities shall include educating commercial solid waste and multi-family
customers regarding the mandatory recycling requirements of AB 341, and notifying non-
compliant commercial solid waste and multi-family customers at least semi-annually.

Upon the beginning of Waste Recycling Handling Services, Franchisee shall be an Authorized
Recycling Agent of the County within the meaning of Public Resources Code Section 41950.
All recyclable materials placed for collection at curbside (for a residential curbside collection

25



program), or placed at the designated collection location (in the case of a commercial or
industrial entity), are the property of the Franchisee in accordance with Public Resources Code
Sections a1950(c) and 41951(c).

b. Expansiou of Services. The County may direct Franchisee to submit proposals for
additional programs, including diversion programs, necessary in the County's opiniorrto meet
any required diversion goal or other goal. If necessary, prior to implementatiorof said necessary
programs, the Parties will enter into good faith negotiations for at least 30 days following the
date the County directs Franchisee to submit a program proposal. If the Parties cannot reach
agreement regarding implementation terms within thirty (30) days, the County may, atany time
and in its sole discretion, independently implement programs itself orlhrough a third person.

ARTICLE 7. SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL

7.01 Transportation to Designated Disposal Facility.

a. County May Control Waste Stream. County has the right, in its sole discretion, to
control the disposal and diversion of all Solid Waste, including recyclables, generated within the
Waste Collection Areas (the "Solid Waste Stream"). Accordingly, the Couniy has the right,
upon 30 days'Notice to Franchisee to:

(l) direct the Solid Waste Stream to be disposed of at, or diverted to, any Disposal
or Diversion Facility;

(2) market and process Recyclables generated within the Waste Collection Areas.

County acknowledges that any decision to exercise its right to control the Solid Waste Stream,
may increase Franchisee2s Direct Costs which mayjustify an increase to Franchisee's Service
Fees. In any such event, Franchisee shall request a Ptsss-Through Cost Adjustment in the same
manner by which arequest is made for a Change in Law as set forth in Article l2.0l,c,2of this
Agreement.

b. Designated Disposal Facilitv. Except as otherwise directed by County pursuant to
Section 7.01a above, Franchisee will transport and deliver all Solid Waste, except for
Recyclables that it diverts, to a Designated Disposal Facility, including:

(1) Solid Waste that Franchisee Collects from Residential and Commercial premises
under Section 4.01c,

(2) Solid Waste that Franchisee Collects in performing emergency services under
Section 8.01,

(3) excess or Bulky waste that Franchisee collects under Section 4.02, and,
(4) C&D Waste that Franchisee Collects under Section 4.01f.

Franchisee will at all times operate according to safe industry practices.

26



7.02 Defense and Indemnification; Release

^. Requirement. Franchisee will defend, release, indemniff and hold harmless at its
sole cost and expense with counsel approved by the County, the County (including Persons
described in the definition of "County" in Exhibit 1.01) in any actions that assert or allege
Liabilities paid, incurred or suffered by, imposed upon or asserted against, the County that result
or are claimed to have resulted directly or indirectly from the presence, disposal, escape,
migration, leakage, spillage, discharge, release or emission of Unpermitted Waste or petroleum
products to, in, on, at, or under any place, site or facility where Franchisee delivers, stores,
processes, recycles, composts or disposes of Solid Waste to the extent that the Liabilities are
caused or alleged to be caused by the following

1. Franchisee Negligence or Misconduct: the wrongful, negligent act, error or
omission, or the willful misconduct of the Frdnchisee; or

2. Non-Customer Materials: the collection, delivery, handling, recycling,
processing, composting or disposal by the Franchisee of any materials or waste, including
Unpermitted Waste, which are generated by Persons other than Customers collected from
premises other than Customers' premises; or

3. Failure to Comply with Unpermitted Waste Pretocol: the failure of Franchisee to
undertake Hazardous Waste training procedures required by Applicable Law or the
Unpermitted Waste Screening Protocol, wtrichever is more stringent; or

4. Franchisee-Identified Unpermitted Waste: the improper or negligent
collection, handling, delivery, processing, recycling, composting or disposal by
Franchisee of Unpermitted Waste that Franchisee inadvertently collects from
customers and that Franchisee identifies as Unpermitted Waste prior to its delivery,
processing, recycling, composting or disposal.

b. Exclusion. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, Franchisee
will not be required to defend, release, indemnify and hold harmless the County (or any other
party) to the extent any Liabilities are due to the: (i) negligence or willful misconduct of the
County and the Persons described in the definition of "County" in Exhibit 1.01 or any other
third-party not under the control of Franchisee, (ii) violation of any law, rule, regulation, order,
permit, or license by County, any of the Persons described in the definition of "County" in
Exhibit 1.01, or any other third-party not under the control of Franchisee, or (iii) to the extent
prohibited by law.

c. Cooperation with County's Counsel. The County may retain counsel at its own
cost and expense or utilize in-house counsel as co-counsel. Franchisee will direct Franchisee's
counsel to assist and cooperate with co-counsel with respect to the County's defense.

27



d. Liability Transfer. The indemnity in subsection a is intended to operate as an
agreement pursuant 1o Section 107(E) of the Comprehensive Environmental Risponse and
Liability Act ("CERCLA"), 42 U.S.C. Section 9607(e) and california Health and safety code
Section 25364, to insure, protect, hold harmless and indemnify the County from liability in
accordonce with this Scction.

e. Unpermitted Waste. For waste other than that collected from County facilities,
Franchisee hereby releases and will not seek contribution or compensation of any nature from
County for Liabilities relating to Unpermitted Waste arising from franchisee's performance
under this agreement, including relating to RCRA, CERCLA, or the California Healt^h and Safety
Code. Franchisee will not make any claims against or assert an interest in any account, fund or
reserve that the County may establish or set aside, from the proceeds of the Franchise Fee or
otherwise, or maintains to cover Liabilities arising from franchisee's performance under this
agreement relating to Unpermitted Waste, which established fund or..r.rrr" the County is under
no obligation to establish or maintain.

7.03 Disposal Fees. Franchisee will timely pay gate and any other fees charged by the
Designated Disposal Facility under the County's existing gate fee schedule and-Gate Fee
Administration Policy, as the County may amend those fees or policy from time to time. If the
County directs waste to a Disposal Facility not owned by the County, it reserves the right to pay
those disposal costs directly and adjust the Franchisee,s rates accordingly.

ARTICLE 8. MISCELLANEOUS SERVICE PROVISIONS

8.01 EmergencyServices.

a- Franchisee Performance During Emergency. During emergency situations, as
determined by the Director, other than those set forth in Section t+.OS Uelow, within 24 hours of
Notice from the County, Franchisee will provide emergency services beyondthe scope of
Franchise Services at the times and to the extent directed by the Countyiincluding unscheduled
gathering, pick up, collection and disposal of C&D Debris, Bulky Wasie and other debris
resulting from natural disasters such as earthquakes and floods. The County will compensate
Franchisee for those services at rates reasonably set by Franchisee, which sirall include, without
limitation, reimbursement for all costs and expenses incurred by Franchisee in providing such
emergency services and profit thereon. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the
contrary, Franchisee shall have the right to determine (in its reasonable discretion) the timing and
nature of such emergency services, based on any and all relevant factors, including, without
limitation, the safety of Franchisee's employees and equipment, and the safety of ihe Customers,
and the feasibility of performing such services. Notwithstanding anythi.rg 

"ontuin"d 
herein to

the contrary, nothing herein shall limit the County's emergency services authorities as specified
in County code or State or Federal law.

b. County Performance During Emergency. County may perform Franchise Services
during an emergency as set forth in Section 14.08 below.

28



8.02 Compliance with Applicable Law.

il. Compliance. Franchisee will perform all Franchise Services, and will cause its
Subcontractors to provide goods or services, in accordance and compliance with Applicable Law
and with this Agreement, whether or not referenced specifically in the text of this Agreement and
regardless of whether Performance Obligations are stated less stringently than Applicable Law.
If any Performance Obligation is more stringent than Applicable Law, Franchisee and its
Subcontractors must satisfy that Perforrnance Obligation. Nothing in this Agreement is
construed to relieve the Franchisee of any obligations imposed by Applicable Law.

Franchisee acknowledges that the County is authorized to make all necessary and reasonable
rules and regulations regarding all aspects of Solid Waste Handling Services, including
Franchise Services. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the County agrees that it shall not make any
rules or regulations which materially change the County's or Franchisee's rights hereunder.
Franchisee agrees to comply with any and all such rules and regulations.

County acknowledges that any decision to exercise its right to change rules or regulations may
increase Franchisee's Direct Costs which may justify an increase to Franchisee's Service Fees. In
any such event, Franchisee shall request a Service Fee adjustment in the same manner by which
a request is made for a Change in Law as set forth in Section 12.01.e.2 of this Agreement.

Provisions of Applicable Law are incorporated in this Agreement by reference as if set forth
fully in this Agreement as contractual obligations of Franchisee to County. However, the County
has no obligation to enforce any Applicable Law.

b. Referenced Provisions. Reference in this Agreement to particular provisions or
requirements of Applicable Law may not be construed to limit Franchisee's obligation to comply
with all provisions of Applicable Law. Reference to statutory provisions of Applicable Law are
deemed to include reference to implementing rules and regulations. These references are
intended to facilitate Franchisee's satisfaction of its Performance Obligations and the County's
administration and specific enforcement of this Agreement, and may not be construed to imply
lack of obligation to comply with other provisions or requirements of Applicable Law not
referred to or cited in this Agreement. If any Applicable Law specifically referenced or cited in
this Agreement is amended, supplemented, restated, re-codifed, modified or repealed, that
reference or citation will be deemed to refer to that amendment, supplement, restatement, re-
codifi cation or modifi cation.

c. Permits. Franchisee will obtain and maintain throughout the Term all necessary
approvals, authorizations, and Permits. Franchisee will show proof of approvals, authorizations,
and Permits and will demonstrate compliance with the terms and conditions of said approvals,
authorizations, and Permits promptly upon the request of the County.

d. Fines and Penalties. Franchisee shall be responsible for payment of any and all fines
and penalties imposed on Franchisee, except to the extent resulting from the acts or omissions of
the County (including, the acts and omissions of County's employees, representatives, officials,
and agents), Customers, or any other third party not under the control of Franchisee.

29



8.03 Cooperation with Waste Studies.

Franohisee will coopcratc with the County un any and all waste composition studies,
including modification of routes, separate collection of individual Customerls Solid Waste,
and/or delivering targeted loads of Solid Waste to a County-designated location or locations.
Franchisee will also cooperate with the County on any and all Customer waste assessments,
including providing information in its Records on volume and characterization of wastes
generated by Customers.

8.04 Waste Audits.

Franchisee shall conduct waste audits at the request of County where such waste audits
are necessary to enable County to comply with the requirements of federal or state law. The
results of such audits will be memorialized on forms either designed or approved by the County
The purpose of the audit will be to identifu volume and charactJristics of so1d *uri. being 

'J

generated by the customer. A copy of the audit shall be provided by the Franchisee to the
customer, the County, and to Franchisee's own files.

8.05 Service Materials Belong to County.

Reports prepared by Franchisee in accordance with Article 10, public education and
community relations materials prepared in accordance with Section 4.ti6 whether developed
directly or indirectly by the County or Franchisee, are owned and may be used by the County
without limitation or restriction. Other work products (whether computerized, written, printed
or photographic) developed by the County or Franchisee in connection with Franchise Services,
whether developed directly,sl indirectly by the County or Franchisee, may be used by the
County. Franchisee may also continue to use public education and community relations materials
and other work product in connection with any project not connected with this Agreement
without the prior written eonsent of the County.

8.06 Recycled Materials. ,

Franchisee will use Reasonable Business Efforts to procure supplies with post-consumer
recycled content.

8.07 Responsiveness to County.

a. Contact Person. Franchisee shall designate a "government liaison" person who
shall be primarily responsible for working with the Director or his/hei designee to
address routine I day-to-day issues related to this Franchise Agreement.

b. Return of Communications. Except as otherwise required herein, Franchisee will
return telephone calls from the County to the person whomade that call during
County Office Hours no later than the next County Working Day. Franchisee will

30



respond to all e-mails from the County within 2 County Working Days of receipt and
will respond to other written correspondence from the County within 7 days of receipt
thereof.

c. In Person Meetings. Franchisee will meet with the County during County Office
Hours within one week of the County's oral or written direction at County offices or
other location directed by the County. The purpose of the meetings may include
addressing operational issues and contract compliance, reviewing quarterly reports
and resolving any issues or problems related to the Franchise Services. The person
attending these meetings on behalf of Franchisee shall be vested with suffrcient
authority to make decisions binding on Franchisee.

8.08 Changes in Scope or Specifications of Franchise Services.

a. Directions and Proposals. The County may direct Franchisee to submit proposals
for changes in the scope of specifications of Franchise Services or Franchise Obligations, such as

mandatory commercial recycling programs. If necessary, thg Parties will enter into good faith
negotiations for at least 30 days following the date the County directs Franchisee to submit a

proposal If the Parties cannot reach agreemerrt regarding the cost and corresponding rates
associated with the proposal within 30 days, the County may independently implement programs
itself, with another franchised hauler or through a third Person.

8.09 Failure to Report. The refusal, failure or neglect of the Franchisee to file any of the
reports required, or to provide material information to County, or the intentional inclusion of any
materially false or misleading statement or representation made knowingly by the Franchisee
shall be deemed a material breach of the Franchise Agreement, and shall subject the Franchisee
to all remedies, legal or equitable, which are available to the County under this Agreement.

ARTICLE 9. INTENTIONALLY .OMITTED

ARTICLE IO. RECORDS A}[D REPORTING

10.01 Intent

Franchisee that the County entered into this Agreement, rlmong other reasons, to
provide Customers and the County with improved Collection Services while maintaining the
benefits of open competition. Franchisee further acknowledges that, in order that the County may
better evaluate Franchisee's performance under this Agreement, Franchisee has obligated itself
to maintain Records and timely submit reports under this Article. Franchisee's failure to adhere
to any requirement of this Article shall be considered a material breach of this Agreement.

31



10.02 Records

a. Maintenancc. Franchisee shall maintain in its principal office in the County, a
proper set of books and records on an accrual basis, and an annual financial statement in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, accurately reflecting the business
done by it under this Agreement including items listed in Exhibit 10.01;.

Franchisee shall maintain all records relating to the services provided hereunder,
including, but not limited to, customer lists, billing records, route maps, AB 939 records, and
customer complaints for a period of three (3) years from the date of the generation of each such
record.

b. County Inspection and Audit. Upon ten (10) business days' advance Notice by
the County, Franchisee will make Records which reasonably relate to the Franchisee's
compliance with the provisions of the Franchise Agreement available to the County or County's
designee(s) for inspection or audit at Franchisee's Office during Offrce Hours. To the extent the
County inspects and/or otherwise obtains Customer information from Franchisee, the parties
agree that Franchisee's customer lists, route maps/route listings, service records and other
operating statistics are a valuable trade secret of Franchir". *d are exempt from disclosure
under the Public Records Act.

The County agrees to hold financial statements delivered pursuant to this section as
confidential and shall not disclose the same unless and to the extent disclosure is required
pursuant to applicable law. Nothing in this section will prevent County from allowing public
access to County's records as required by law, and in the event any dispute arises as to the public
access to information provided by Franchisee under the terms of this Agreement, the County
shall, in its discretion, provide public access to said information according to law or tender the
defense of any claims rnade against the County conceming said information to Franchisee. prior
to releasing any information pursuant to this paragraph, County shall make a good faith effort to
notify Franchisee of the intended release.

County shall not make or retain copies or photocopies containing Franchisee's
confidential financial and business records pertaining to the establishment of rates and payment
of franchise fees without executing a confidentiality agreement providing that County stratt trota
and keep such copies and photocopies confidential. The confidentiality agreement shall be
negotiated in good faith'between the County and Franchisee, and commernorated in a separate
legally binding document.

Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the County shall have no right
to review, audit, inspect, or copy any of Contractor's: (i) confidential, proprietary, or privilegel
information (as determined in Contractor's reasonable discretion), or 1i1 information or records
conceming operations outside of the services provided pursuant to this Agreement as agreed to
by both parties.

32



Where the County has reason to believe that Records may be lost or discarded due to
dissolution, disbandment or termination of Franchisee's business or other reason, the County
may require that Franchisee give the County custody of any or all Records and that those
Records and documents be maintained in the County Office of the Recycling and Waste
Management Department. In that event, access to said Records will be granted to any Person
duly authorized by Franchisee.

c. Requested Floor Rate Increase. In the event that Franchisee requests an increase in
the floor rates in order to maintain a reasonable rate of return, the Couqty or County's agents

shall be entitled to examine the books, records and financial statements of Franchisee and its
affiliates pertaining to operations not regulated by the County fol the sole purpose of gathering
information necessary to allow the agents to ascertain whether income, gxpenses, assets and
liabilities are reasonably and consistently allocated among operations regulated by County and
those not regulated by the County. For review ofbooks and other financial records necessary to
verify Franchisee's income, sxpenses, assets and liabilities, "Agent" shall mean an independent
certified public accountant or public accountancy firrn designated by County. :

Franchisee may request that rather than using County staff that the County appoint an
Agent. The County will honor said request, however, all additional costs of employing an Agent
will be borne by Franchisee.

Information gained from examination of records pertaining to operations not regulated by
the County shall be treated by the County and its agents as proprietary and confidential trade
secret information exempt from disclosure under the Public Records Act. County or County's
agents shall prepare a confidential report regarding the results of their examination of
Franchisee's non-regulated operations and transactions with affiliates. County or County's agent
shall issue its report on Franchisee's non-regulated operations and Franchisee's transactions with
aff,rliates to County's counsel, and said report shall remain conhdential, except that the dollar
amount and gerrgtal description of any costs that County or County's agent recommends be

disallowed shall be disclosed to County's governing body. If Franchisee appeals the conclusions
of said report to County's governing body, Franchisee shall decide what portions, if any, of said
report shall be disclosed to County's governing body. County's governing body shall then
consider Franchisee's request for increase in the rate, but may, in its discretion, limit its
consideration to that information the Franchisee has made public, or deny said request if in the
County's reasonable discretion inadequate information has been disclosed to County's governing
body to make an informed decision on the request.

d. County Review of Financial Statements. County and/or its agents and
consultants may review any audit plan and work papers of any of the accountants whose
opinions on the financial statements Franchisee is obligated to deliver to County in accordance
with subsections a, b, and c. If that review gives rise to any questions or differences of opinion
regarding Franchisee's compliance with this Agreement, Franchisee and its accountant(s) will
meet with the County and its consultant, if any, to discuss the issues involved within 14 days of
County's direction.

JJ



10.02 Reporting.

^. Quarterly. Franchisee will submit Quarterly Reports to the County no later than the
first day of the second ututtilt irrunediately following the end of each quarter described in Exhibit
l0'02a (for example, for the Quarter ending on March 31, the Quarterly Report is due no later
than May l). Quarterly Reports must be in the form directed or approved 

-by 
the County and

contain, at a minimum, the information listed in Exhibit I0.02a, including information needed
for the County to prepare Quarterly Reports required under Applicable Law with respect to
recycling and Diversion of Solid Waste in the County, the County's compliance with its solid
waste facility permits, and quarterly taxes due and payable to the California Board of
Equalization.

b. Annual. Franchisee will submit Annual Reports to the County on or before February
15 of each Contract Year in the form directed or approved by the County, totaling thl
information contained in the Quarterly Reports for the previous Contract Year and containing, at
a minimum, the information listed in Exhibit 10.02b.

c. Additional Information. Franchisee will use Reasonable Business Efforts to
incorporate into reports additional information from Records promptly upon Notice from the
County.

ARTICLE 11. INSURANCE, INDEMNIFICATION AND PERFORMANCE
ASSURANCES

11.01 Insurance. Franchisee shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract
insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or
in connection with the performance of the work hereunder and the rezults of that work by the
Franchisee, his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors.

a. MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

l. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 0l
covering CGL on an "occurrence" basis, including products and completed operations,
property damage, bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than
$L'000'000 per occurrence. If a general aggregate limit applies, either the general
aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or
the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability: ISO Form Number CA 00 01 covering any auto (Code l),
or if Franchisee has no owned autos, hired, (Code 8) and non-owned autos (Code 9), with
limit no less than $5,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

34



3. Workers' Compensation: as required by the State of California, with Statutory
Limits, and Employer's Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per
accident for bodily injury or disease.

If the Franchisee maintains broader coverage andlor higher limits than the minimums shown
above, the County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage andlor the higher limits
maintained by the Franchisee. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified
minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to the County.

b. OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions

l. Additional Insured Status

The County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as

additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or
operations performed by or on behalf of the Franchisee including materials, parts, or
equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability
coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Franchisee's insurance (at
least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 1l 85 or if not available, through the addition of
both CG 20 10, CG 20 26,CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 2A 37 if a later edition is
used).

2. Primary Coverage

For any claims related to this Agreement, the Franchisee's insurance coverage shall be
primary coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects the County, its
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained
by the County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the
Franchisee's insurance and shall not contribute with it.

3. Notice of Cancellatiqq

Each insurance policy required above shall provide that coverage shall not be canceled,
except with notice to the County.

4. Waiver of Subrogation

Franchisee hereby grants to County a waiver of any right to subrogation which any
insurer of said Franchisee may acquire against the County by virtue of the payment of
any loss under such insurance. Franchisee agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be
necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of
whether or not the County has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the
lnsurer.

5. Self-Insured Retentions

Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the County. The County may
require the Franchisee to purchase coverage with a lower retention or provide proof of
ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense
expenses within the retention. The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to

35



provide, that the self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named insured or
County.

6. Acceptability of Insurers
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than
A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to the County.

7. Claims Made Policies

If any of the required policies provide claims-made coverage:

i. The Retroactive Date must be shown, and must be before the date of the
contract or the beginning of contract work.

ii. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided
for at least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work.

iii. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another
claims-made policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective
date, the Franchisee must purchase "extended reporting" coverage fqr a minimum
of Jive (5) years after completion of work.

8. Verification of Coverase

Franchisee shall furnish the County with original certificates and amendatory
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting rou..ug" required by
this clause.. All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the
County before work commences. However, failure to obtain the requiied documents prior
to the work beginning shall not waive the Franchisee's obligation to provide them.

9. Soecial Risks or Circumstances

At the beginning of any extension of the Term as provided for under Section 3.01 (b),
County reseryes the right to require reasonable modifications to the insurance
reduirements of this Section 1 1.01, including limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior
experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.

11.02 Franchisee Indemnification, Release/Hold Harmless and Defense.

a. Defense and Indemnification. Franchisee will indemni$r, defend with counsel
approved by the County, protect and hold harmless the County from and against all Liabilities
paid, incurred or suffered by, or asserted against, the County that result o. L. claimed to have
resulted directly or indirectly by Franchisee's actions or inactions related to this Agreement,
including the following:

36



1. Franchisee Negligence or Misconduct: the wrongful, willful or negligent act,
effor or omission, or the misconduct of the Franchisee and the Persons described in
the dehnition of "Franchisee" in Exhibit 1 .01 ;

2. Intellectual Property.: any allegation of infringement, violation or conversion of
any patent, licenses, proprietary right, trade secret or other similar interest, in
connection with any Service Assets, including technology, processes, Vehicles,
software, machinery or equipment;

Franchisee will not, however, be required to reimburse or indemnify the County or any other
person pursuant hereto, to the extent any Liabilities are due to: the negligence or willful
misconduct of, or violation of any law, rule, regulation, order, permit, license, or ordinance by
the County or any of the Persons described in the definition of "County" in Exhibit 1.01.

b. AB 939 Indemnification. Subject to the provisions of Public Resources Code
Section 40059.1, Franchisee will further indemnify, defend with counsel approved by the
County, protect and hold harmless the County from and against any and all fines, penalties and
assessments levied against or threatened to be levied against the County for the County's failure
to meet the requirements of AB 939, its amendments or any successor legislation and/or all rules
and regulations promulgated thereunder, but only to the extent, said failure results from
Franchisee's failure to comply with the express provisions of this Franchise Agreement and/or
Franchisee's failure to comply with said laws, rules or regulations binding on Franchisee,
including but not limited to failing to timely supply the County with documentation needed in
order to comply with AB 939. However, Franchisee shall not be obligated to indemnify County
for fines or penalties caused by County's modifications of Franchisee's information, by a change
by the County in the scope of work hereunder which materially and negatively affects the ability
of Franchisee to perform diversion activities, or by County's own acts or omissions which result
in County's failure to provide timely reports to the state. In addition, the Franchisee's duty to
indemnify under this Section is subject to the {ollowing restrictions:

1. The Franchisee's obligation to indemnif, the County shall not be enforceable to
the extent the penalty imposed on the County is based upon the failure of the County to
establish and maintain a source reduction and Recycling element pursuant to Sections
41000 et seq. of the Public Resources Code.

2. No payment required under the Franchisee's obligation to indemnify the County
may exceed that portion of any penalty assessed by CalRecycle against the County that
was caused by Franchisee's failure to comply with an express obligation or requirement of
this Agreement. Further, the Franchisee shall not be liable under the indemnity obligation
to the extent that the Company's failure to comply resulted from County's action or failure
to act, determined as a result ofjudicial review, hearing or appeal to CalRecycle.

11.03 Letter of Credit/Performance Bond.

a. Conditions of Letter of Credit or Performance Bond - In the event Franchisee fails to
make timely payment of any Franchise Fees owed to County, County may require Franchisee, in

37



addition to paying any payment and/or penalty required, to provide for the issuance of an
irrevocable direct pay letter of credit or a performance bond as described below (Franchisee shall
be entitled to select whether it provides a letter of credit or performance bond).

1. Letter of Credit - A lel"ter of uedit shall be issued by a bank approved by the County
for the benefit of the County, under which the County is authorized to drtw, in one or more
drawings, an aggregate amount of fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) upon the occurrence of an
Event of Default or Franchisee's failure to timely pay any County Payment Obligation. All
interest from said letter of credit shall be payable to Franchisee. The expiration date of the Letter
of Credit must be no less than the Term or if subject to renewal, provide the County with 30 days
advance notice of non-renewal. The Letter of Credit will expire on the date on which the Bank
receives a certificate from the County saying that the Term has expired or this Agreement has
been terminated and Franchisee owes County no money hereunder, or that Franchisee has
substituted an alternative letter of credit or other security document acceptable to County in
County's sole discretion. The form of the Letter of Credit is subject to approval of County in its
sole discretion. The Letter of Credit must be transferable to any successor or assign of tfre
County.

2. Performance Bond - An irrevocable, annually renewable performance bond for the
faithful performance of Franchisee's payment obligations hereunder(the "performance Bond").
The Performance Bond shall be in the amount of fifty thousand dollars ($50,000). The County
shall be authorized to draw, in one or more drawings, on the Performance Bond upon the
occurTence of Franchisee's failure to timely pay any County Payment Obligation in accordance
with the terms hereof.

b. County'Withdrawals - After thirty (30) days following Franchisee's failure to
pay the County an amount owing under this Franchise Agreement plus interest at the rate of
fifteen percent (15%) per annum, the letter of credit or performance bond may be assessed by the
County upon five (5) days'prior written notice to the Franchisee for purposes including, but not
limited to:

: ::
I ' Failure of Franchisee to pay the County sums due under the terms of the

Franchise Agreement;
2- Reimbursement of costs bome by the County to correct Franchise

Agreement violations not corrected by Franchisee, after due notice; and
3- .' Monetary remedies or damages assessed against Franchisee due to breach

of Franchise .!.greement.

The Franchisee shall deposit a sum of money sufficient to restore the letter or bond to the
original amount within thirty (30) days after notice from the County that any amount has been
withdrawn.

38



ARTICLE 12. SERVICE FEES

12.01 Service Fees.

a. Setting Rates, Charges, and/or Floors.

Franchisee understands and acknowledges that in establishing this, and other permissible
Franchise Agreements, the County intends to retain and preserve its ability to allow for
competition in the market place to obtain the best services at the lowest costs for residents and
businesses and choose not to set Service Fees, other than Service Fee floors, for the provision of
Franchise Services pursuant to this Agreement

Franchisee further understands and acknowledges that at present, the County has chosen to
establish Service Fee floors for the provision of Franchise Services pursuant to this Agreement,
but that makes no waranty that it will continue to use the floor rate fee methodology for the term
of this Agreement. The decision of whether to regulate fees, not regulate fees, or continue setting
floor rates rests solely and exclusively with the County. Current Service Fee floors are identified
in Exhibit ??, andmay be adjusted as set forth below.

Notwithstanding the above, the Board of Supervisors may also choose to fully set and regulate
all rates and charges assessed by Franchisee for any and all services and activities it performs or
engages in the Waste Collection Areas pursuant to this Franchise Agreement without the benefit
of Service Fee floors. Furthermore, if the Board of Supervisors determines to regulate the rates
of only some of Franchisee's services and activities, that decision shall not be construed as a

waiver of the County's rights to regulate the rates or charges assessed by Franchisee for services
not so regulated. The process for setting rates, charges, and/or Service Fee floors, is described in
12.01 (d).

b. Service Fee Floors.

The County.currently chooses to employ Service Fee floors. As long as the County chooses to
maintain Service Fee floors, Franchisee will not charge Service Fees for the Franchise Services
under this Agreernent that are less than those Service Fees listed in Exhibit 13.01a, except for
existing AgreementtT, r:, forth below

Existing Agreements. Franchisee may charge Service Fees below those set forth in Exhibit
13.01a to Commercial Customers having Existing Agreements containing Service Fees which
are currently less than those set forth in Exhibit 13.0la, provided that Franchisee fumishes a

copy of the Existing Agreement to the County, the County verifies the Existing Agreement, and
the Existing Agreement is listed in Exhibit 13.01. This exception applies only for the cunent
term of the Existing Agreement, excluding any extensions, renewals, or roll-overs.

c. Annual Service Fee Floor Adjustments

39



The Board of Supervisors will adjust Service Fee Floors upward or downward, in the manner
described below:

1. (cPI Adjustment. commencing on January r,2020 and on the same date
aturually tltercaftcr (the "Atljustment Date"), the portion of the Service F'ee F'loor
rates not associated with tipping fees will be adjusted to account for annual
inflationary increases in an amount equal to the annual percentage change in the
Consumer Price Index (CPD All Urban Consumers, Garbage and Trash Collection
Component. This annual cost of living adjustment (the "COLA" adjustment) shall
be equal to one hundred percent (100%) multiplied by the average of the month to
month change in the CPI for the 12 month period ending nearest, but at least 60
days prior to, the date the COLA adjustment is to take effect.

2' Pass-Through Costs Adjustment At the same time as the CPI Adjustment is
considered the Service Fee Floor rates shall also be adjusted to account for
Franchisee's increased or decreased pass through costs as defined in Section
13.01 d 2 during the Term of this Agreement (including, without limitation,
increases to the Franchise Fee) such that cost changes shall be "passed-through"
to Franchisee's customers in the form of floor rate adjustments.

d. Alternative Service Fee Floor Adjustment

Prior to December 1 of each year any Franchisee who believes the CPI Adjustments
either understates or overstates actual local cost of doing business -uy ,.q"u"rt the Board
of Supervisors consider adjustments to the Service Fee floor using the rate-setting model
described in Section 12.01 e below in lieu of the CPI Adjustment and Pass-Through
Cost Adjustment specified herein. The decision to implement the rate-setting model
described Section 12.0I e below shall be made exclusively and solely by the Board of
Supervisors at a public meeting. As such, the Franchisee requesting application of the
altemative rate-setting model Section I2.0I e should fully substantiaie its reasons for
making the request at the time the request is filed. The Board of Supervisors may also
decide, on its own volition to employ the rate setting methodology described below. If the
Board of Supervisors decides to employ the rate-setting methodology described in
Section 12.0I e on its own volition or at the request of a Franchisee, no rate increases or
decreases will be granted until the County completes its analysis of the cost components
described in Section 12.01 e and the Board of Supervisors acts on the increase or
decrease in rates.

e. Rate Setting. Beginning on January 1,2020 at any time thereafter, the Board of
Supervisors may fix Service Fees, or make Annual Service Fee Floor Adjustments, based on its
review and approval of the following cost components. If the County intends to recommend that
this rate-setting methodology be employed absent a written request described in Section 12.01 d
above, the County shall provide notice to all Franchisees at least 45 days prior to the end of the
calendar year.

40



1. Operating Costs. Operating costs used to determine rates include solid waste
collection, processing, transfer and disposal costs. Operating costs shall include reasonable
salaries and bonus compensation for all offrcers of Franchisee that are actively involved in
the management of Franchisee's business activities. Operating costs shall exclude the
following:

i. Income taxes;
ii. Payments to affiliates of Franchisee other than reasonable

compensation for goods or services rendered;
lll Entertainment expenses;

Fines and penalties;1V

X

2.

an eligible cost for purposes of calculating Franchisee's profit margin. The
following adjustment shall also be considered at any time upon a request by
Franchisee. The Board of S,upervisor$'may alsq (but is not obligated to) act on
its own initiative in the event Franchisee declines to request an adjustment to
its Service Fees, and adjust Franchisee's Service Fees in the manner described
in this Section. Pass-through costs include the following:

i. The Franchise Fee set purgu4nt to this Agreement;
ii. 

Jhe,cosJof any other cost or fee, except for fines and penalties,

,seryice required of Franchisee through this Agreement or change of
terms in this agreement;

iv. Ahy changes in law, regulations, taxes or designated disposal sites
' which change the contractor's expenses; and. v. Fees, surcharges, and other amounts collected by Franchisee as agent

::: .. of the County or other federal, state, or local agency.

3. Allowed Profit. The Franchisee shall be entitled to a reasonable profit on its
operating costs established in the sole discretion of the Board of Supervisors.

4. If, after negotiating the rate setting mechanism in Section 12.01(d),
Franchisee is not satisfied that the rate provides for an adequate profit,
Franchisee may terminate the Agreement upon providing the County 45 days
notice.

5. Special Circumstances Floor Fee Adjustments. The following adjustment shall
also be considered upon a request by Franchisee. The Board of Supervisors may also (but is
not obligated to) act on its own initiative in the event Franchisee declines to request an

4l



adjustment to its Service Fees, and adjust Franchisee's Service Fees in the manner described
below:

The parties acknowledge there may be infrequent extraordinary events which, although they do
not prevent either party from performing and thus do not implicate the Force Majeure provisions
hereof, nevertheless inorease the cost of providing scrvice such that Franchiscc's r-:gmpensation
and the rate adjustment mechanism provided in this Agreement result in Franchisee's suffering
losses which are substantially outside the commercially reasonable expectations of the partiesl
The obligation of the parties in such event is to act reasonably towardiach other in arriving at an
appropriate adjustment in rates. Accordingly, and at its option, the Franchisee may request a
special circumstance rate review should an event or circumstance arise which negatively impacts
the economics of operating pursuant to this agreement and which is in excess of the rate
adjustment resulting from the application of the annual adjustment formula set forth hereinabove.
It is understood that the Franchisee shall have the burden of demonstrating to the reasonable
satisfaction of the County the basis for the request. The County may also initiate aspecial
circumstance rate review at its option.

The rate adjustment after a special circumstances rate review may result in a rate increase, a rate
reduction or no change in rates. All pertinent information must be submitted to Director for
review and subsequent approval by the Board of Supervisors. The costs of a special circumstance
rate review shall be borne by the party requesting such review.

If an increase in cost results from the Altemative Service Fee Adjustment Method whether
initiated by Franchisee or by the Board of Supervisors, at least 6 weeks prior to the
implementation, Franchisee will give written notice of increases to each Customer in a form
satisfactory to the County.

e. Notice of Rate Setting Hearing.

If the Board of Supervisors determines to fix Service Fees, other than adjusting floor rates,
Franchisee shall provide written notice to each rate payer in a form approved iy the County, of
the time, date and place of each hearing set by the Bloard of Supervisois to set rates. Franchisee
shall provide said notice at least ten (10) but no more than sixty (00) days prior to such date and
the expenSe therefor shall be included in the rate base.

At least four (4) months before the effective date of any rate increase (other than one based
solely on a landfill disposal cost increase) proposed by Franchisee, Franchisee shall submit to the
Board of Supervisors a rate application in a form to be determined by the Board of Supervisors,
which shall include proposed collection rates and revenues and operating cost and pass-through
cost projections for the upcoming two-year period, which projections shall have a reasonable
factual basis. Rates shall be set with the intent to reimburse Franchisee for its allowed operating
and pass-through costs and allowed profit. The parties recognize that the Board of Supervisors-
shall use its best judgment and discretion in evaluating Franchisee's projections and rnay make
adjustments, with a reasonable factual basis, in Franchisee's projections of its operating costs and
pass-through costs and in setting rates. By this Agreement, neither the County nor its governing
body or staff agree, guarantee or warrant that such projections or adjustments will be aicurate, 6r
that Franchisee will, in fact, achieve reimbursement of all of its operating costs or pass-through

42



costs, or that Franchisee will achieve its projected profit margin. Franchisee expressly assumes

the risk that its costs may be higher than projected in the rate setting process and that its revenues
may be lower than projected.

12.02 Franchise Fee Payable by Franchisee.

1. Amount. In consideration for County's granting Franchisee the franchise described
in Section 4.01, Franchisee will pay the County the Franchise Fee equal to l\Vo of the Gross
Revenues received from providing the Franchise Services, commencing with revenues billed for
and received after April 1, 2019, but excluding Gross Revgnues received from providing the
Franchise Services pursuant to an Existing Agreement listed in Exhibit 13.01a. Said Franchise
Fee shall satisfy any obligation Franchisee has to pay pursuant to Inyo County Code Chapter
7.08. The County may change the applicable FranchiSe Fee upon at least sixty (60) days' Notice
to Franchisee.

2. Payment. Franchisee will pay the Franchise Fee quarterly, no later than the
fifteenth day of the second month immediately following the Quarter in which Franchisee
rendered Franchise Services, (for example, for the quarter ending on March 31, payment is due
no later than May 15). With payment, Franchisee will additionally provide:

(1) documentation in form and detail satis.factory to the Director showing the
basis for calculating the ftanchise fee, together with additional information
to calculate.or verify the franchise fee that the Director may determine to be

neOessary; and

(2) a representation and warranty as follows: "I represent and warrant by and on

''f T["',::T'lir,*ff:ffi ffi L?"llo"t:i:t'ii:"i'Ji.??]:'f:l''llh
accompanying docurqentation supporting such Franchise Fee are true,
correct and complete."

Documentation and representations and warranties filed by Franchisee are not deemed
conclusive as to the information presented or statements made therein. Franchisee's submission
of documentation and representations and warranties does not preclude the County from taking
additional measures and actions to collect franchise fees actually due and payable.

3. Late Payment Charges. If payment is not received in accordance with subsection
a2, then Franchisee shall pay interest equal to fifteen percent (15%) per annum, or at the
maximum interest rate permitted under California law, whichever is lower, of the total of the
unpaid monthly charges. Said late payment charges shall not be recoverable through rate setting.
Late payments received shall first apply to the late payment charge(s) and then to the outstanding
principal balance of the unpaid monthly charges, with payments made toward the oldest
balance(s) first.

43



Failure to submit payment in full of the franchise fee within ninety (90) days after the due date
shall be an event of Default, unless the director agrees in writing to extend thl time for payment.

4' County Audit. The County may, at its own expense and using a consultant of its
choosing, audit the recut'ds uf Franchisee and Franchisee must provide the County with copies of
records within 2 weeks of the County's request. If the County's audit demonstrates to the
satisfaction of the County that the Franchise Fee paid by Franchisee to the County was
understated, then Franchisee will pay the County:

(1) the amount of the understated Franchise Fee plus the late payment charges
provided in subsection a3 within 30 days following the County's submission
of the results of the audit to Franchisee, and

(2) if the County's audit demonstrates that the Franchise Fee paid by Franchisee
was understated by greater than2%o, the County's Reimbursement Cost to
conduct the audit.

Said costs shall not be recoverable through rate setting

12.03 Franchise Fee Disputes.

a. County's Notice of Dispute. If the County disputes any amount calculated by
Franchisee under Section 12.02, the County will give Franchisee Notice of its dispute together
with any request for additional information, identified with reasonable specificity, with respect
thereto.

b. Franchisee's Response. Within 7 days of receiving the County's Notice, Franchisee
will respond to the County's dispute and supply any requested information. If Franchisee does
not respond within said time, it will be deemed to concur with the County. If Franchisee concurs
or is deemed to concur, it will promptly amend the disputed invoice.

c. Dispute Resolution. If the County disagrees with Franchisee's response and the
County and Franchisee cannot reach agreement during an ensuing 15-day period following the
Franchisee's response, the Parties agree to attend mediation where, each-Party agree to negotiate
in good faith a resolution to the dispute. The mediator shall be mutually ugt.LA, and such
mediator's fee shall be shared equally be the Parties. If, after such mediation, the parties are still
unable to resolve their dispute, each Party may avail itself of any remedies available to such
Party under this Agreement, at law, in equity, or otherwise.

12.04 No Other Fees or Gratuities. Franchisee shall not, nor shall it permit any agent,
employee, affiliate, sub-contractor employed by it, to request, solicit, oi demand, Airectty or
indirectly, any compensation or gratuity for the collection of solid waste otherwise requiied to be
collected under this Franchise Agreement.

44



ARTICLE 13. BREACHES, DEFAULTS, DAMAGES AND OTHER REMEDIES

13.01 Certain Breaches and Damages.

a. Notice and opportunity to correct. The County entered into this Agreement with
Franchisee in part based on Franchisee's demonstrated abilities, service quality, and
responsiveness to Customers' and the County's needs. It is the County's hope to avoid
exercising remedies set fonh in this Agreement whenever possible by working with Franchisee
informally to resolve Events of Default or other failures to satisff the obligations set forth in this
Agreement. Thus, the County may, in its sole discretion, provide written notice to Franchisee of
any Event of Default or failure by Franchisee to satisfy the obligations set forth in this
Agreement of which the County becomes aware prior to pursuing other remedies set forth in this
Agreement. If Franchisee corrects said Event of Default or failure to the satisfaction of the
Director within the number of days provided, then the County shall not pursue additional
remedies for that occuffence

b. Franchisee Reports. In each Quarterly Report, Franchisee will certify to the County
that it has fully and timely met its Performance Obligations during the preceding Quarter. If
Franchisee cannot so certifu, then Franchisee will note those failures in its Quarterly Report and
within 30 days of submitting its Quarterly Report, pay damages listed in Exhibit 14.01 for each
failure occurring after the first 6 weeks following the Commencement Date.

c. County Notice. If the County becomes aware at any time that Franchisee has not
fully and timely met its Performance Obligations then the County may provide Franchisee with a

Notice, in writing, thereof specifying any damages that Franchisee must pay the County in
accordance with Exhibit 14.01 within 10 days of Notice, unless Franchisee contests payment of
damages as provided in subsection d.

d. Procedure for Review of Damage Obligations. Within ten (10) days of the date of
the Notice by County described in subsection c, Franchisee may contest impositlon of damages
by submitting documentary evidence to the County demonstrating why Franchisee does not owe
damages. The County will review Franchisee's evidence and render a written decision to
Franchisee confirming or reversing the imposition of damages within thirty (30) days of receipt
of the evidence. The County's assessment and/or Collectibn of assessed damages-shall not
prevent the County from exercising any other right or remedy, including the right to terminate
this Agreement, for Franchisee's failure to perform the work and services in the manner set forth
in this Agreement.

Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, Franchisee shall be entitled to all
avenues of redress provided hereunder, at law, or in equity. The imposition of such assessed

damages shall be stayed if Franchisee seeks such review.

e. Damages Reasonable. The Parties acknowledge that the County has incurred
considerable time and expense procuring this Agreement in order to secure an improved level of
Collection service quality, accountability, and increased Customer satisfaction. Therefore
consistent and reliable Franchise Service and accountability is of utmost importance to the

45



County' The County has considered and relied on Franchisee's representations as to its quality
of service commitment in entering into this Agreement, and Franchisee's breach of its
Performance Obligations represents a loss of bargain to the County and Customers.

The Parties furl,her recognize that quantified standards of performance and regular reporting to
the County regarding that performance are necessary and appropriate to .nr*i consistent and
reliable Service, and if Franchisee fails to meet its Performance Obligations then the County will
suffer damages (including its Customers' inconvenience; anxiety, and frustration, criticism and
complaint by Customers; potential political pressure; lost County Board and staff time; and loss
of bargain secured through time-consuming and expensive procuremeht) and that it is and will be
impracticable and extremely difficult to ascertain and determine the value thereof. In addition, if
Franchisee fails to fully and timely satisfy its Performance Obligations or in the Event of
Default, the urgency of protecting public health and safety may necessitate, as determined in the
sole discretion of the Director, that the County enter into emergency or short term arrangements
for services without competitive procurement at prices substantially greater than hereunder, and
the monetary loss resulting therefrom is impossible to precisely quantify. Lastly, termination of
this Agreement for Franchisee Default and other remedies provided hereunder 

-are, 
atbest, a

means of future correction and not remedies that make the County whole for past Breaches and
Franchisee Defaults. Therefore, the Parties agree that the liquidated damageslisted in Exhibit
14.01 represent a reasonable estimate of the amount of said damages, considering all of the
circumstances existing on the Commencement Date, including the relationship of the sums to the
range of harm to the County that reasonably could be anticipated and anticipation that proof of
actual damages would be costly or inconvenient. In signing this Agreement, each Party
specifically confirms the accuracy of the statements made above and the fact that each Party had
ample opportunity to consult with legal counsel and obtain an explanation of this liquidated
damage provision atthe time that this Agreement was made.

13.02 Remedies Upon Default.

a. Remedy. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the County has the following
remedies:

1. Termination. The County may terminate this Agreement or any portion of
Franchisee's Performance Obligations only via formal action of the Board of Supervisors at a
properly noticed'meeting during open session. Franchisee shall be given the opportunity to be
heard and to present evidence to support its position regarding the allegations of the Notice
required immediately below.

Prior to that public meeting, the County shall serve Franchisee a Notice specifying that a
particular Event of Default exists, which the Franchisee must cure or the 

-County 
may terminate

the Agreement, and offer to meet with the Franchisee within seven days of said Notice at the
County offices to meet and confer in good faith in an effort to agree on a resolution and cure of
the Event of Default. If the parties are unable to informally resolve the matters set forth in the
Notice, the County may then terminate the Agreement at the public meeting described above:

i. at least 30 days following the date of the Notice, if:

46



a. The Event of Default does not constitute an imminent threat to public
health and safety;

b. Franchisee has not cured the Event of Default, or has not taken, or
diligently continued to take, reasonable steps necessary to commence to
cure the Event of Default which cannot reasonably be cured within 30
days.

n. immediately following the date of the Notice if:
a. County determines that protection of public health and safety requires

immediate termination; or
b. Franchisee fails to maintain insurance, bonds, or other assurances of

performance required under this Agreement.

3. Damages. The County may exercise its remedies of damages (including
damages in accordance with Section 14.01).

4. Equitable Relief. The County may exercise any other available remedies at law
or in equity (including specific performance and injunctive relief). Franchisee acknowledges
that the County's remedy of damages for a breach of this Agreement by Franchisee may be
inadequate for reasons including: the urgency of timely, continuous and high-quality Solid Waste
management service under this Agreement, including collection, transportation and/or transfer
for disposal of putrescible wastes which constitute a threat to public health; and for all of the
reasons set forth in Section 14.0le. Therefore, the County is.entitled to all available equitable
remedies, including specific performance or injunctive relief.

b. Delivery Obligations. Franchisee further acknowledges that the County's remedy of
damages for a breach of Section 7.01 by Franchisee.(Failure to Deliver Materials to Designated
Disposal Facility) may be inadequate and, consequently, that the County is entitled to all
available equitable remedies, including specific performance and injunctive relief.

13.03 Remedies Not Exclusive. 
' 

The County's rights and remedies in the Event of Default
are not exclusive. Exercise of one remedy, including seeking damages, is not an election of
remedies but is cumulative with any other remedies under this Agreement; provided, however, if
the County shall impose damages pursuant to Exhibit 14.01, such damages shall be the
maximum amount of damages-owed by Franchisee for such breach.

13.04 Waivers.

^. County Waiver of Breach. The County's waiver of any breach or Event of Default
will not be deemed to be a waiver of any other breach or Event of Default including those with
respect to the same obligations under this Agreement. The County's decision not to demand
payment of damages will not be deemed a waiver of any Franchisee failure to satisfy any
Performance Obligations. The County's subsequent acceptance of any damages or other money
paid by Franchisee, including damages, will not be deemed to be a waiver by the County of any
pre-existing or concurrent breach or Event of Default.

47



13.05 Governing Law, Jurisdiction, Venue.

a. Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govem the interpretation
of this Agreement.

b. Jurisdiction. The Parties will bring any lawsuits arising out of this Agreement in
California State Court, which will have exclusive jurisdiction over said lawsuits.

c. Venue. Venue will be made and performed in courts sitting in the County. Should
any lawsuit be filed in Federal Court, exclusive venue shall lie in the Elstern District of
California.

d. Other. The site of any other hearing or action, whether arbitration or non-judicial, of
whatever nature or kind regarding this Agreement, shall be conducted in the County.

13.06 Costs. Franchisee agrees to pay to the County the County's Reimbursement Costs
reasonably incurred by or on behalf of the County enforcing timely payment or performance of
Franchisee' s obligations under this Agreement.

13.07 Assurance of Performance.

If Franchisee:

(l) is the subject of any labor unrest (including work stoppage or slowdown, sick-out,
picketing or other concerted job action);

(2) appears in the judgrnent of the County to be unable to regularly pay its bills as they
become due based on, among other things, being or becoming insolvent or bankrupt,
or ceasing to pay its debts as they mature, or making an arrangement with or for the
benef,rt of its creditors, or consenting to or acquiescing in the appointment of a
receiver, trustee or liquidator for a substantial part of its property; or (ii) being or
becoming aparty b a voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy, winding up,
reotganization, insolvency, anangement or similar proceeding instituted by or against
the Franchisee under the laws of any jurisdiction, which proceeding, if involuntary in
nature, has not been dismissed within sixty (60) days; or (iii) taking any action
approving of, consenting to, or acquiescing in any such proceeding; oriiu; being a
party to the levy of any distress, execution or attachment upon the property of the
Franchisee which may substantially interfere with the Franchisee's perfonnance
hereunder; or

(3) is the subject of a civil or criminal judgment or order entered by a federal, state,
regional or local agency for violation of an environmental or tax law;

and the County believes in good faith that Franchisee's ability to timely and fully perform
Franchise Services has been placed in substantial jeopardy, the County may, at its option and in

48



addition to all other remedies it may have, demand from Franchisee reasonable assurances,
including, but not limited to, those provided for under 111 USC Section 365(b)(1)(c), or any
successor provision of the Federal Bankruptcy Code, of timely and full performance under this
Agreement.

If Franchisee fails or refuses to provide reasonable assurances by the date required by the
County, said failure or refusal will constitute an Event of Default.

f3.08 County Right to Perform F'ranchise Services.

a. Events. The County may perform, or contract for the performance of, any or all of
Franchisee's Performance Obligations, including the collection of Solid Waste or any portion
thereof and transportation and delivery to a Solid Waste facility, upon the occrurence of the
following events, determined by County in its sole discretion:

(1) Franchisee, except for the occurrence or existence of an Uncontrollable
Circumstance, fails, refuses or is unable for a period of seventy-two (72) hours to
Collect andlor to transport, Solid Waste to a Solid Waste facility and the Director,
in the exercise of his/her sole discretion, determines there is danger to the public
health, safety or welfare.

i. Franchisee to Cooperote. Franchisee agrees that in such event it will
reasonably cooperate with County. and its third-party contractor to affect
such a transfer of operations,in as smooth and efficient a fashion as is
practicable.

ii. Franchisee to Pay Increased Costs. All costs, fees, rates and other expenses
incurred by the County and/or its third-party contractor that exceed those

ryhl:l would have been incurred by County had no such emergency arisen
shall be the responsibility of the Franchisee, and shall be paid to the
County within thirty (30) days of Franchisee receipt of Notice to so pay.

The County has no obligation to continue providing Franchise Services and may at any time, in
its sole discretion, cease to provide Franchise Services. However, the County's right to provide
Franchise Services including contracting with another Person, will continue until Franchisee can
demonstrate to the County's satisfaction that Franchisee is ready, willing and able to resume
timely and full Franchise Services.

b. Notice. The County may give Franchisee oral notice that the County is exercising its
right to perform Franchise Services, which notice is effective immediately, but must confirm oral
notice with Notice within 24 hours thereafter to extend County performance.

c. Records and Reports. Upon County request, Franchisee will promptly provide the
County with immediate access and/or possession of Records, including those related to routing
and billing.

49



ARTICLE 14. FRANCHISEE'S OBLIGATIONS UPON EXPIRATION OR
TERMINATION

14.01 Pay Outstanding Amounts.

Franchisee will pay the County any County Payment Obligations or other amounts then
accrued and payable.

14.02 Cooperation During Transition.

If Franchisee is not awarded an agreement to continue to provide Franchise Services
following the expiration or termination of this Agreement, Franchisee will reasonably cooperate
with the County and the succeeding Franchisee(s), contractor(s), licensee(s), permittie(s), or
other Person(s) providing Solid Waste Handling Services to assure a smooth, efficient, orderly,
timely and effective transition from Franchise Services to those Solid Waste Handling Services,
including transfer of Records; complete routing information, route maps, and Customer billing
lists, upon request of the County; providing other Records and reports required by this
Agreement; and provide reasonable coordination with the County and any subsequent
Franchisee(s), contractor(s), licensee(s), permittee(s), or other Person(s) with respect to
exchanging Containers. Franchisee will not remove a Container from any Customer's premises
until the earlier of: (1) the date replacement containers are provided to the Customer, oi lZy l
weeks after the expiration or termination of this Agreement. THIS OBLIGATION OF
FRANCHISEE WILL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT.

ARTICLE 15. THE PARTIES

15.01 Franchisee is Indepehdent Contractor.

Franchisee will perform Franchise Services as an independent contractor engaged by the
County and not as officer, agent, servant, employee or partner of the County nor ur a joint
venture with the County. No employee or agent of Franchisee is deemed to be an employee or
agent of the County. Franchisee will have the exclusive control over the manner and means of
performing Franchise Services and meeting its Perfonnance Obligations and over all Persons
performing Franchise Services. Use of the word "direct" in this ,{greement signifies County's
right to require Franchisee's compliance with County directions, but will not be construed to
signify County control over the manner and means of performing Franchise Services. Franchisee
is solely responsible for the acts and omissions of its officers, employees, contractors,
subcontractors and agents, none of which is deemed to be an ofhcer, agent, seivant or employee
of the County. Neither Franchisee nor its officers, employees, contractors, subcontractors and
agents will obtain any rights to retirement benefits, workers compensation benefits, or any other
benefits which accrue to County employees and Franchisee expressly waives any claim it may
have or acquire to said benefits.

50



15.02 Parties in Interest. Nothing in this Agreement, whether express or implied, is intended
to confer any rights on any Persons other than the Parties and their representatives, successors
and permitted assigns.

15.03 Binding on Successors. The provisions of this Agreement will inure to the benefit of
and be binding on the successors and permitted assigns of the Parties.

15.04 Further Acts. Each Party agrees to execute and deliver any instruments and to perform
any acts as may be necessary or reasonably requested by the other in order to give full effect to
this Agreement.

15.05 Actions of the County in Its Governmental Capacity. Nothing in this Agreement is
interpreted as limiting the rights and obligations of the County in its governmental or regulatory
capacity.

15.06 Franchisee's Obligations Performed at Its Sole Expense. Franchisee will perform
Franchise Services solely for the compensation expressly provided for in this Agreement.
Franchisee acknowledges that it will not receive any form of payment or other consideration
from the County for its performance under this Agreement except for the grant of the franchise
under this Agreement. Franchisee will instead look solely to its Customers to compensate
Franchisee for providing all Franchise Services and satisfying its Performance Obligations.

15.07 Parties' Representatives.

^. County Representative. The County Representative is the Director unless otherwise
named by the Board from time to time upon Notice of County Representative to Franchisee. The
County Representative is authorized to act on behalf of the County in the administration of this
Agreement and, unless othefwise specified, may take all actions set forth in this Agreement
except termination, extension, amendment, ind assignment consent, without Board action.

b. Franchisee Representative, The Franchisee Representatives are
as may be changed from time to time upon Notice of Franchisee Representative to the County.
The Franchisee Representative is authorized to act on behalf of Franchisee in the performance
under this Agreement.

15.08 Due Diligence. Franchisee acknowledges that the County may be subject to statutory
fines or penalties for failqre to achieve mandated waste diversion levels and that waste
management is a public health and safety concern. It agrees that it will exercise due diligence in
performing Franchise Services.

15.09 Subcontracting.

Franchisee may not Subcontract any portion of the Franchise Services, including the
provision of Bins and Containers, set forth in this Agreement. Franchisee may engage any
number of Subcontractors providing goods or services that do not comprise Franchise Services
or the provision of Bins and Containers (e.g., billing services, equipment maintenance).

51



Franchisee will not subcontract in a manner that effectuates an assignment of this Agreement,
unless the provisions of this Agreement (including Section 17.01) rilut.d to assignnient are met.

Franchisee must direct the work of Franchisee's Subcontractors. Franchisee is solely responsible
for paying any compensatiou due ur payable to Franchisee's Subcontractors. 'l'he County may
require Franchisee to remove any Subcontractor for good cause. Subcontractors' failureio rutirfy
its subcontracted obligations (including violation of Appficable Law) is a failure by Franchisee
and the County may exercise any or all of the rights and remedies available to the bounty under
this Agreement with respect to Franchisee.

"Subcontractor" includes any Person, including Affiliates, that provides goods or services that
do not comprise Franchise Services or the provision of Bins and 

-Contain"i, 
but are related to the

provision of Franchise Services, whether pursuant to formal, written agreement or merely in fact.
"Subcontract" means any affangement, formal or informal, written oiotherwise, between
Franchisee and a Subcontractor for providing goods or r"*i"*, ,elated ; lh; p;"ision of
Franchise Services.

In its Annual Report, Franchisee will disclose to the County the name of all Subcontractors, the
amount goods or services related to the provision of Franchise Services that each Subcontractor
provides to Franchisee, and a description of Franchisee's relationships to each Subcontractor
(including ownership interests).

15.10 No Use of County Name. Franchisee will not do business as or use a corporate,
partnership, venture or other formal narne, containing the words o'Inyo" or',County'; or implying
County ownership although upon County direction, Franchisee will use the County,, nu-" in iti
public relations signage.

ARTICLE 16. ASSIGNMENT AND AMENDMENTS

16.01 Assignment.

County Assignment. The County may assign this Agreement to a joint powers
authority, a sanitation district or other public entity succeeding to the major portion of the
County's solid waste management rights and obligations. The County -uy ul.o assign this
Agreement to any other Person, with Franchisee's consent, upon the bounty's determination that
the assignee is financially capable of meeting the County's o6ligations under this Agreement.

b. Franchisee Assignment. Franchisee acknowledges that the experience and expertise
of Franchisee are material considerations of the County in enlering into this Agreement with
Franchisee' Franchisee may not Assign this Agreement except upon prior writLn consent of the
County expressed by resolution. Franchisee may not circumveni the County,s Assignment
consent rights in practical effect by securing goods or services from a Subcontractor that would
be itself subject to "assignment," where "subcontractor" is substituted for,.Franchisee', in the
definition of "Assign" in subsection c. Any attempt to assign, or assignment of, this franchise
without the prior written consent of County shall constitute a materiaibreach of this Agreement.

52



c. Assign. "Assign" includes:

(1) selling, exchanging or otherwise transferring effective control of management of
the Franchisee (through sale, exchange or other transfer ofoutstanding stock or
otherwise);

(2) issuing new stock or selling, exchanging or otherwise transferring2}%o or more
of the then outstanding common stock of the Franchisee;

(3) any dissolution, reorganization, consolidation, merge.r, re-capitalization, stock
issuance or re-issuance, voting trust, pooling agreement, escrow arrangement,
liquidation or other transaction which results in a change of Ownership or control
ofFranchisee;

(4) any assignment by operation of law, including insolvency o, U*kruptcy, making
assignment for the benefit of creditors, writ of attachment of an execution, being
levied against Franchisee, appointment of a receiver taking possession of any of
Franchisee's tangible or intangible property;

(5) substitution by a surety corypany providing any perfolmance bond in accordance
with Section I 1.03 of another Person for Franchisee to perform Franchise
Services;

(6)

and

(7) going (whether or not in related or contemporaneous
effect of any such transfer or change of Ownership or

d. Transfers to ESOP. Notwithstanding the above, Franchisee or its shareholders
may, without consent of the County, transfer ownership of Franchisee's capital stock to an
Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP), or to current management employees of Franchisee.

e. Obtaining County Consent. County's consent shall not be unreasonably withheld,
but the County may impose reasonable conditions of approval on any proposed Assignment.
The following conditions must be satisfied prior to County's obligation to consider a proposed
Assignment:

(1) Franchisee shall give County at least ninety (90) days advance written notice of
Franchisee's intent to Assign this Agreement. Such notice shall include at least:

53



a. The name, address, telephone number and contact information of the
proposed Assignee.

b. The nature of the legal entity owning or controlling the proposed
Assignee, including the names, addresses and telephone numbers of all
principals, partners andlor shareholders thereof, as the case may be; and

(2) The proposed Assignee must be shown, by credible and sufficient evidence, to be
qualified by financial condition, background, and experience, to be able to fully
assume and satisfactorily perform all of Franchisee's obligations hereunder
including, but not limited to, the ability comply with AB 939.

(3) Franchisee must not be in default under any of the maierial terms and conditions
of this Agreement

(4) The proposed Assignee must be willing to assume, in writing, all of the
Franchise Obligations.

f. Franchise Transfer Application and Fee. Any application for a franchise transfer
shall be made in a manner required by the Director. The application shall include a transfer fee
deposit in an amount to be set by County, to cover the cost of all direct and indirect expenses,
including administrative expenses incurred by the County, including any consultants and
attomeys, necessary to adequately analyze the application. Such transfer fee shall not exceed ten
thousand dollars ($10,000). County's finally set transfer fee shall be billed to the proposed
Assignee, and supported with evidence of the expenses and,lor costs incurred. Assignee shall pay
any such bill within thifty (30) days of receipt. The transfer fee is separate and distinct from
Franchise Fees, and shall not be iecoverable costs for any Fee setting pulposes.

16.02 Amendments. The Parties may change, modify, supplement or amend this Agreement
only upon written agreement duly authorized and'executed by both Parties. However, wherever
reports, forms, protocols, or other documents are attached to this Agreement as attachments to an
Exhibit,'the County Representative and Franchisee Representative may edit and revise them
upon their agreement or otherwise provided in the related Sections of this Agreement, evidenced
in writing unless this Agreement specifically requires approval by the County Board pursuant to
resolution or otherwise.

ARTICLE 17. NOTICES, WRTTING

17.01 Notices.

a. Manner. The Parties must give Notices at the address under Subsection c, in any of
the following manners:

(1) by e-mail or facsimile promptly followed by delivery described in following
items (2), (3) or (4),

(2) personal delivery to a representative of the Parties, with signed receipt,

54



(3) deposit in the United States mail, first class postage prepaid (certified mail,
return receipt requested), or

(4) deposit with a commercial delivery service that provides delivery verification.

b. Address.

If to County: Solid Waste Superintendent
Inyo County Department of Public Works

Telephone:
Facsimile:
e-mail:

P.O. DrawerN
Independence, Californi a 93 526

(760) 873-7tet
(760) 873-ss99

If to Franchisee

100 Sunland Indian Reservation Rd,
Bishop, CA 93514

With a

Mr

.).,:|

The

Waste
3 Waterway S

Woodlands, 77380

Suite I
cA 93514

above upon written Notice to the other Party

such
communicate with each other under this Agreement in writing
as the following:

17.02 Writing.
(including

(1) reports;
(2) requests,
(3) reviews, comments;
(4) directions, demands, orders;
(5) selections, option exercises, approvals, waivers;
(6) acknowledgments, and certifi cations.

change

55



ARTICLE 18. EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT

18.01 Authority to Execute.

'a. Cuunty. The County warrants that the officers listed below have been duly
authorized by the County to execute this Agreement on behalf of the County.

b. Franchisee. Franchisee warrants that the individuals listed below have been duly
authorized by the Franchisee to execute this Agreement on behalf of the Franchisee.

COUNTY OF INYO:

Title

Date:

Approved as to Form (County Counsel):

By:

Title

Date:

Approved by RiSk

FRANCHISEE:
,./.:

By:

::,jj

"Trt\"'
i,:'>,

Date;

' :.r'.

,i
ri

By:

Title:

Date:

1,.
't:i: ,:".

56



EXHIBIT 1.01: DEFINITIONS

Whenever any term used in this Agreement is defined by the Inyo County Code Chapter 7.08
(the "Code") or Public Resources Code at Sections 40000 et seq. (the "Act"), said dehnitions
shall apply unless the term is otherwise defined in this Agreement. To the extent that definitions
in the Code conflict with definitions in the Act, the Code shall govern the rights and the
obligations of the parties hereunder, to the extent permissible by law.

AB 341 means the Mandatory Commercial Recycling Regulation approved by the Office of
Administrative Law in May 2012, Title 14, California Code of Regulations, Chapter 9.1,
commencing with section 18835; as well as California SB 1018 signed by the Governor in June
of 2012.

AB 939 or the Act means the California Integrated Waste Management Act under California
Public Resources Code at Sections 40000 et seq.

Affiliate or Affiliates means all businesses (including corporations, limited and general
partnerships and sole proprietorships) which are directly or indirectly related to Franchisee by
virtue of direct or indirect Ownership interests or common management, including a business in
which Franchisee has a direct or indirect Ownership interest, a business which has a direct or
indirect Ownership interest in Franchisee and/or a business which is also Owned, controlled or
managed by any business or individual which has a direct or indirect Ownership interest in
Franchisee.

Agreement means this Agreement, including all exhibits and attachments which are
incorporated herein by reference, as this Agreement may be amended and supplemented pursuant
to Section 17.02.

Annual Report means the report described in Section 10.02b.

Applicable Law means all laws, statutes, rules, regulations, guidelines, Permits, actions,
determinations, orders, or requirements of the United States, State of Califomia, County
(including its County Code together with rules and regulations promulgated thereunder and the
County's Integrated Waste Management Plan), the Local Enforcement Agency, California
Highway Patrol, applicable Air Quality Management District, and other regional or local
government authorities, agencies, boards, commissions, courts or other bodies having applicable
jurisdiction, that from time to time apply to or govern Franchise Services or the performance of
the Parties' respective obligations under this Agreement, including any of the foregoing which
concern health, safety, fire, mitigation monitoring plans, building codes, zoning, and further
including:

1. Vehicles:
(i) Section 43000 et seq. the California Health and Safety Code with respect to air

emissions (smog checks);
(iD Section 27456b of the California Vehicle Code with respect to tires;

I



2.

(iii) Section 34500 et seq. of the California Vehicle Code with respect to
documentation through its maintenance log or otherwise of a safety compliance
report issued pursuant to Division 14.8 of the California Vehicle Code as
applicable to each Vehicle, including bi-annual "BIT" inspections conducted by
thc Califurnia Highway Patrol;

(iv) rules and regulations promulgated under the Califomia Vehicle Code with respect
to Vehicle highway lighting, flashing and warning lights, clearance lights, and
waming flags;

(v) rules and regulations of the California Department of Motor Vehicles with respect
to Vehicle registration;

(vi) Vehicle weight limits;
(vii) the appropriate class of drivers' licenses issued by the California Department of

Motor Vehicles;
(viii) Control Measure for Diesel Particulate Matter from On-Road Heavy-Duty

Residential and Commercial Solid Waste Collection Vehicles, 13 CCR 2020 et
seq.;

(ix) 14 CCR 17341,17342,17343 and 17344, with respect to equipment construction,
safety and parking and identification of operating equipment.

Containers:
(D 14 CCR 17314 with respect to maintenance and placement of containers;
(iD 14 CCR 17317 with respect to placing identifying name and telephone number on

containers.

Labor:
O drug and alcohol testing;
(ii) the Occupational Safety and Health Act(29 U.S.C. Section 651 et seq.),including

the Solid Waste Disposal Facility Criteria promulgated by the U.S. BpA on
October 9, l99l (40 CFR, Parts 257 and 258); and the California Occupational
Safety and Health Act (Califomia Labor Code, Division 5, Parts 1-10, Section
6300 et seq.), and rules and regulations of California Division of Occupational
Safety and Health;

(iii) the Immigration Reform and Control Act of l936 (pL.99-603);

Environmental protection :

O CERCLA;
(iD RCRA;
(iii) Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. Section I35l et seq., 42 U.S.C. Section 7401-7642);

and the California Clean Air Act (Health & Safety Code Sections 1251 et seq. arrd,
Health and Safety Code Sections 39000 et seq.);

(iv) California Hazardous Waste Control Act (California Health & Safety Code,
Section 25100 et seq.);

(v) California Hazardous Materials Release Response Plan and Inventory Act
(California Health & Safety Code, Division 2A, Chapter 6.95, Section 25500 et
seq.);

3

4.

ll



(vi) Carpenter-Presley-Tanner Hazardous Substance Account Act (Califomia Health
& Safety Code Section 25300 et seq.);

(vii) Emergency Planning and Community Right to Know Act (42 U.S.C. Section
11001 et seq.);and

5. Miscellaneous:
(D County Lobbyist Ordinance;
(ii) Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Subchapter VI or Chapter 2l of Title 42);
(iii) California Integrated Waste Management Act; and
(iv) Inyo County Code.

Authorized Recycling Agent means a Franchisee the County designates as a provider of Waste
Recycling Handling Services as set forth in Public Resources Code Section 41950.

Bins means metal containers for Collection of Solid Waste with front-end loading vehicles, such
as 3 yard dumpsters.

Board or County Board means the County Board of Supervisors.

Bulky Waste means Solid Waste that cannot be contained within a Residential Customer's Cart,
such as

(1) furniture (including chairs, sofas, mattresses and rugs);
(2) appliances (including refrigerators, ranges, washers, dryers, water heaters, dishwashers,

small household appliances and other similar items commonly known as "white
goods");

(3) large Yard Wastes (including wood waste, tree branches, scrap wood ); and
(4) tires.

Carts means wheeled containers having a capacity of up to 96 gallons supplied by Franchisee
for Collection of Customers' Solid Waste.

C&D Waste means used or discarded construction materials, packaging, and rubble removed
from a premises during the construction or renovation of a structure resulting from construction,
remodeling, repair, and demolition operations on pavements, houses, commercial buildings, and
other structures.

CERCLA means the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensationaud I-iabtli1y 4et
of 1982 (42 U.S.C. $ 9601 et seq.).

Collect, Collection or other form thereof refers to Solid Waste pickups made by Franchisee
under this Agreement.

Commencement Date means the date on the cover of this Agreement.

Commercial or Commercial Premises means a premise that is not Residential, including
premises where business activity is conducted, including offices, retail sales, services,

lll



institutions, wholesale operations, food service, manufacturing and industrial operations, public
property and facilities but excluding businesses conducted upon residential premises that are
permitted under applicable zoning regulations and are not the primary use of the property.
commercial collection Services are described in Section4.0rc(2).

Commercial Set-out Site is defined in Section a.01c(2)(i).

Containers means the toters, carts, cans, bins, vessels, receptacles or other containers from
which Franchisee must Collect Solid Waste, including Bins andRoll-Offs approved by County.

Contract Year means the calendar year, commencing January 1 and ending December 31.

County means the County of Inyo, a political subdivision of the State of California, or any
governmental entity which may hereinafter assume waste management obligations of the
County, including any joint exercise of powers authority or otheisimilar public entity with
which the County participates or contracts with, established to provide solid waste management
services or meet Solid Waste diversion requirements under Appiicable Law. For the purpises of
Indemnities, "County" also means its officers, employees, agents, franchisees, uito-"y.,
administrators, affiliates, representatives, servants, insurers, heirs, assigns and any successor or
successors to the County's interest.

County Code or code means the Inyo county code, including Title 7.

county office Hours means 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. on county working Days.

County Payment Obligations means monetary amounts due and payable to County, or claims
by County for those amounts, including those listed under Sections 13.02 and,l4.0l, any County
Reimbursement Costs, and any amounts accrued and payable upon termination of the Agreement
in accordance with Section 15.01.

County Reimbursement Costs means Direct Costs incurred by the County plus 10.

County Working Days means days on which the County administrative offices are open to the
public.

Customer(s) means the generators (including owners, tenants, occupants and/or persons having
the care or control of any premises within the County) of Solid Waste to which Franchisee ii
required to provide Franchise Services.

Day means calendar day.

Delivery Obligations means Franchisee's obligation to deliver Solid Waste to the Designated
Disposal Facility under Section 7.01.

Designated Disposal Facility means, unless otherwise identified by the County, the Bishop,
Independence and Lone Pine Landfills, located in Inyo County.

lv



I

Direct Costs are actual costs incurred, including staff, equipment, materials, overhead, and other
costs reasonably expended in the performance of an activity, certified by an authorized financial
officer of the Party submitting a payment demand therefor.

Director means the Director of County Department of Recycling & Waste Management or
his/her designee.

Diversion Facility is defined in Section 6.01a.

Divert, Diverted, Diversion or other form thereof is defined in Section 6.01a.

Diverted Recyclables is defined in Section 6.01a.

Event of Default means as follows:

Service Defaults.

a. Missed Collections. Franchisee fails to provide collection services for a
period of more than seven consecutive days, unless the failure is due to
Uncontrollable Circumstances. For example, if franchisee fails to provide
collection services on a Wednesday, an event of default will occur if franchisee
fails to provide collection services by the Thursday of the following week (eight
days thereafter);

b. Breach of Franchise Agreement.

i. Franchisee does not cure its failure to fully and timely perform any of
its obligations under the Franchise Agreement (other than those obligations
specifically listed in subsections (E)(1)(a), (E)(1)(b)(ii) and (iii), (E)(1)(c),
(EXl)(d), (EX2) and (E)(3) of this section); within (1) thirty days following
receipt of notice from the county identifying the failure, (2) a shorter period
determined by the county if required to protect public health and safety, or (3)
a longer period requested by franchisee and accepted by the county in the
county's sole discretion.

ii. Franchisee fails to fully and timely satisfy ten or more of its
obligations under the Franchise Agreement in any twelve-month period or
repeatedly and habitually fails, in the judgment of the county, to satisfy them
after notice from the county identifying the failures, regardless of whether
franchisee subsequently cures a specific instance of failure.

c. Violation of Law. (1) Franchisee materially violates any law (including the
County Code) and does not cure that violation to the satisfaction of county or
applicable regulatory agency within thirty days of the notice, assessment or
determination of that violation; or (2) franchisee repeatedly violates the same or
different laws. Violation of the County Code will be evidenced by notices of
noncompliance with the County Code issued by the local enforcement agency,
Department of Public Works, or code compliance officer. If franchisee is entitled
to and contests any violation by proceedings conducted in good faith, this event of

v



default will not be deemed to have occurred until a final decision adverse to
franchisee is entered. "violates" means any failure to comply with law as
evidenced by notice, assessment or determination of any regulatory agency to
franchisee, whether or not a fine or penalty is included,-assessed, tlviea oi
attached.

2. Performance Assurance Defaults.
a. Failure to Provide Insurance, Bond, or Letter of Credit. Franchisee fails to
provide insurance, performance bond, or letter of credit as required by the
Franchise Agreement.

b. Failure to Provide Assurances of Performance. Franchisee fails to timely
provide assurances of performance as required by the Franchise Agreement.
c. Failure to Pay county. Franchisee fails to fully and timely pay county (1)
more than twice within and calendar year, or (2) within twenty callndar days of
demand by county for payment of moneys owing, or (3) as otlerwise as provided
by the Franchise Agreement.
d' Transfer, Assignment. Franchisee transfers or assigns the Franchise
Agreement without county approval.
e. Seizure, Attachment. Any vehicle, equipment, or other service asset of
franchisee is seized, attached or levied upon (other than a pre-judgment
attachment) so as to substantially impair franchisee's ability to timely and fully
perform solid waste collection services and which cannot be released, bonded or
otherwise lifted within forty-eight hours, excepting weekends and holidays (as
may be defined in the Franchise Agreement).
f. Insolvency, Bankruptcy, Liquidation. Franchisee files a voluntary claim for
debt relief under any applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, debtor relief, or other
similar law now or hereafter in effect, or will consent to the appointment of or
taking ofpossession by a receiver, liquidator, assignee (otherihan as a part ofa
transfer of vehicles, equipment, or other services assets no longer used io provide
solid waste collection services), trustee (other than as security of an obligation
under a deed of trust), custodian, sequestration, administrator (or similar official)
offranchisee for any part offranchisee's operating assets or any substantial part of
franchisee's property, or makes any general assignment for the benefit of
franchisee's creditors, or fails generally to pay franchisee's debts as they become
due or takes any action in furtherance ofany ofthe foregoing.

A court havingjurisdiction enters a decree or order for reliefin respect ofthe
Franchise Agreement, in any involuntary case brought under any bankruptcy,
insolvency, debtor relief, or similar law now or hereafter in effett, or franchisee
consents to or fails to oppose any such proceeding, or any such court enters a decree
or order appointing a receiver, liquidator, assignee, custodian, trustee, sequestrator,
administrator (or similar official) of the franchisee or for any partof the fianchisee's
operating equipment or assets, or orders the winding up or liquidation of the affairs
of the franchisee.

vl



3. Miscellaneous.

a. Fraud, Misrepresentations; Breach of Warranties. Franchisee (1) committed
any fraud or deceit in the procurement of a Franchise Agreement; (2) commits, or
attempts to commit, any fraud or deceit upon the county following execution of the
Franchise Agreement; (3) breaches a warranty in the Franchise Agreement; or (4)
makes a material misrepresentation or false certification in the procurement of a
Franchise Agreement or following execution of the Franchise Agreement or in the
Franchise Agreement. Failure by the Franchisee to deliver solid waste to the
Designated Disposal Facility, under Section 7.01 of this Agreement.

Existing Agreements means those Agreements entered into between Franchisee and a

Commercial Customer prior to the Commencement Date of this Agreement which do not contain
a provision or provisions allowing for amendment in the event of a change in law and which are

set forth in Exhibit 13.01a.

Franchise Fee means the fee described in Section 13.02a.

Franchise Services means all Performance Obligations of Franchisee to Customer under Article
4.

Franchise Area means the geographical area within the County of Inyo

Franchisee means [FRANCHISEE], and any assignee thereof consented to by the County in
accordance with Section 17.01.

Franchisee's Reimbursement Costs means the rate listed on Franchisee's current fee schedule
or, if not listed on the fee schedule, then Franchisee's Direct Costs plus 10%.

Gross Revenues means revenue or compensation in any form derived directly or indirectly by
Franchisee, its Affiliates, subsidiaries, parents or any other entity in which Franchisee has a
financial interest in collecting, transporting, arranging, handling and/or disposing of franchised
Solid Waste generated in the Franchise Area. Gross Revenues does not include revenue from the
sale of Recyclable Materials.

Hazardous Waste means "hazardous waste" as defined in below under Unpermitted Waste.

Holidays means those days of each year when the Designated Disposal Site is closed, plus any
additional days designated by Franchisee as Holidays, with the approval of the County.

Household Hazardous Waste means any Unpermitted Waste generated in small quantities at
Residential premises, excluding any Unpermitted Waste generated in the course of operation of a
business concern at a residence, under Section 25218.1of the California Health and Safety Code.

Indemnities mean all defenses and indemnities under this Agreement.

vll



Industrial Solid Waste means all Solid Waste and semisolid waste which results from industrial
processes and manufacturing operations, except for Unpermitted Waste or Special Waste.

Liabilities includes: liabilities, lawsuits, claims, complaints, causes of action, citations,
investigations, judgments, demands, clean-up orders, damages (whether in contract or tort,
including

(1) personal injury to or death of, at any time, Franchisee's employees, Subcontractors, the
County or the public; and

(2) property damage of Franchisee, Subcontractors, the County or the public),
(3) costs and expenses, (including all costs and expenses of litigation, mediation or

arbitration, attomey fees, whether County's or Franchisee's staff attorneys or outside
attorneys, and court costs),

(4) losses,
(5) fines,
(6) penalties, and
(7) other detriments of every nature and description whatsoever,

whether under State of California or federal Applicable Law; and Liabilities arising from or
attributable to any operations, repair, clean-up or detoxification, or preparation and
implementation of any removal, remedial, response, closure, post-closure- oi other plan,
regardless of whether undertaken due to government directive or aition, such as remediation of
surface or ground water contamination and replacement or restoration of natural resources.

Non-Collection Notice means either:

(2) a 3-part (no carbon required) tag left by Franchisee for Customers at the times, in the
events and in the manner described in Section 4.04 which contains, at a minimum:
a. the date and time it is given,
b. the complete address of the premises,
c. the reason for the non-collection,
d. the name of Franchisee's employee who prepared the notice, and
e. the manner in which materials should be prepared for collection,
f. printed in English and Spanish. Franchisee will leave a hard (cardstock) copy with

the Customer, will retain one copy, and will transmit one copy to the Director on
the next weekday which is not a Holiday.

Notice (or Notify or other variation thereof) means notice given under Section 18.01.

Office or Franchisee's Office means the administrative office of Franchisee and identified by
Franchisee to County.

Office Hours or Franchisee's Office Hours means 8 a.m. to 5 p.m., Monday through Friday.

Own or Ownership or other forms thereof means constructive ownership under the provisions
of Section 3 18(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (26 U.S.C. Section 3 18), as in effect on
the date here, except that (1) I0%o is substituted for 50Yo in Section 318(a)(2)(C) and in Section

vl1l



318(a)(3)(C) thereof; and (2) Section 318(a)(5)(C) is disregarded. Where the Ownership interest
is less than l}Yo, that interest is disregarded and percentage interests is determined on the basis
of the percentage of voting interest or value which the Ownership interest represents, whichever
is greater.

Party and Parties refers to the County and the Franchisee, individually and together.

Performance Obligations means Franchisee's liabilities and obligations under this Agreement

Permits means all federal, State, County, other local and any other governmental unit permits,
orders, licenses, approvals, authorizations, consents and entitlements that are required under
Applicable Law to be obtained or maintained by any Person with respect to Franchise Services.

Person includes any individual, firm, limited liability company, association, organization,
partnership, industry, public or private corporation, trust, joint venture, the United States, the
State, a County (excluding Inyo County), a municipality or special purpose district or any other
entity whatsoever.

Procurement Proceedings means any memorandums, meetings, correspondence, telephone
calls, field trips, draft documents, and County Board sessions with respect to the planning,
development, drafting negotiation and execution of this Agreement.

Prompt, promptly and variations thereof (not capitalized) mean as soon as possible, but not less

than 2 days.

Quarter means any of the 3-month periods identified in Exhibit 10.02a.

Quarterly Reports means reports described in Section 10.02a.

Reasonable Business Efforts means those efforts a reasonably prudent business Person would
expend under the same or similar circumstances in the exercise of that Person's business
judgment, intending in good faith to take steps calculated to satisfy the obligation which that
Person has undertaken to satisfy.

Recyclables means materials that have been separated by the generator from the solid waste
stream prior to disposal or which have been separated from the solid waste stream after disposal
for the purpose of creating raw materials from which new products will be made or for the
purpose of reusing them as a used or reconstituted product. Recyclables includes Yard Waste.

Recycling Handling Services means those same Solid Waste Handling Services as it pertains to
Recyclables.

Refuse means Solid Waste comprised of rubbish, trash and garbage

Regularly-Scheduled Collection Day means Regularly-Scheduled Residential Collection Day
and Regularly-Scheduled Commercial Collection Day.

lx



Regularly-Scheduled Commercial Collection Day is defined in Section 4.01c2(iv).

Regularly-Scheduled Residential Collection Day is defined in Section 4.01c1(iv).

Residential means a premise where individuals dwell or reside, regardless of whether they rent
or own and occupy their dwelling or residence. "Residential premiies" does not include transient
occupancies' No place used primarily for business purposes shall be considered residential.

Residential Set-out Site means the edge of the driveway in front of a Residential premise or, if
there is no accessible driveway, such other location as agreed to between the Residential
customer and Franchisee and specihed in the subscription order.

Roll-offs means Containers designed for disposal of Solid Waste loaded onto and discharged
from tilt-frame trucks or trailers at the Solid Waste generation site by winch or similar means.
Such containers are also commonly referred to as "debris boxes.',

Service Assets means all property of Franchisee used directly or indirectly in performing
Franchise Services, including Vehicles, Containers, maintenance equipment and facilities,
administrative equipment and bffices and related supplies.

service Day means weekdays and Saturday, other than Holidays.

Service Fee(s) means those fees charged to Customers by Franchisee for Franchise Services.

Set-out Site means Set-out Site and Commercial Set-out Site.

Solid Waste means "solid waste" as defined in Public Resources Code Section 40191, except
that "solid waste" does not include abandoned vehicles and parts thereof or dewatered, treated, or
chemically fixed sewage sludge.

Solid Waste Handling Services means "solid waste handling" or "handling" as defined in
Public Resources Code Section 40195 (i.e., the collection, transportation, storage, transfer, or
processing of solid wastes) and solid waste disposal by a solid waste enterprise defined in
Section 40193 of the Public Resources Code, such as residential or. 

"o*rn.rcial 
refuse

collection in packer-type vehicles by haulers whose core business is refuse collection or the
small-scale collection and disposal of residential or commercial solid waste in any type of
truck, trailer or vehicle; and the development and operation of solid waste facilities.

Subscription Orders are described in Section 4.10.

Suspect Categories means race, color, religion, national origin, ancestry, age, physical handicap,
medical condition, marital status, sex, sexual identity, or sexual orientation, poiitital affiliation,
or any other class protected by laws of the State of California or the United Stut., of America.

x



Term is the period beginning on the Commencement Date and ending on the earlier of the
expiration of the Agreement under Section 3.01 or termination of the Agreement under Article
14.

Transfer Station means "transfer or processing station" as defined in Public Resources Code
Section 30200.

Uncontrollable Circumstance(s) means any of the following events (1) riots, war or
emergency affecting the county declared by the President of the United States or Congress of
the United States, the Governor of California, or the board of supervisors; (2) sabotage, civil
disturbance, insurrection, explosion; (3) natural disasters such as floods, earthquakes,
landslides, avalanches, and fires; (4) significant storms, including excessive snow storms; (5)
strikes, lockouts, and other labor disturbances; (6) any change in law, which materially impacts
the rights andlor obligations of either party; or (7) other catastrophic events which are beyond
the reasonable control of franchisee despite franchisee's exercise of reasonable due diligence.

Uncontrollable Circumstances exclude: (1) the financial inability of a Franchisee to satisfy its
obligations under a Franchise Agreement; (2) the failure of a Franchisee to obtain any
necessary permits or the right to use the facilities of any public entity; (3) a franchisee's or
county's breach of obligations under a Franchise Agreement; (4) a Franchisee's inability to hire
adequate numbers of personnel who are competent and skilled in the work to which they are

assigned; (5) the failure of a franchisee to secure patents, licenses, trademarks, and the like
necessary to provide the services; and (6) as to a Franchisee, the failure ofany vehicles,
equipment, or other service assets to perform in accordance with any warranties, unless caused
by Uncontrollable Circumstances.

Unpermitted Waste is means materials that are not solid waste such as:

a. "Hazardous waste" (as defined in Public Resources Code Section 40141), including

Hazardous wastes that are "universal waste" (as defined and listed, respectively,
in 22 CCF. S 66723.9 and $ 66261 .9, such as batteries, thermostats, lamps,
cathode ray tubes, computers, telephones, answering machines, radios, stereo
equipment, tape players/recorders, phonographs, video cassette
players/recorders, compact disc players/recorders, calculators, some appliances,
aerosol cans and certain mercury-containing devises) exempt from the
hazardous waste management requirements of Chapter 6.5 of Division 20 of the
California Health and Safety Code and subject to the universal waste
management requirements of Chapter 23 of Division 20 of the California
Health and Safety Code, and

Household hazardous wastes that result from products purchased by the general
public for household use which, because of their quantity, concentration,
physical, chemical, or infectious characteristics, may pose a substantial known
or potentialhazard to human health or the environment when improperly
treated, disposed of or otherwise managed;

l

ll.

XI



b "Medical waste" regulated pursuant to the Medical Waste Management Act (part 14
(commencing with Section 117600) of Part-9 of Division 104 of the Health and
Safety Code), including, but not limited to, equipment, instruments, utensils, fomites,
laboratory waste (including pathological specimens and fomites attendant thereto),
surgical facilities, equipment, bedding and utensils (including pathological specimens
and disposal fomites attendant thereto), sharps (hypodermic needles, syringes, etc.)
dialysis unit waste, chemotherapeutic waste, animal carcassss, offal and bJdy parts,
biological materials, and other similar materials not rendered non-infectious, non-
pathological and non-biohazardous.

Radioactive waste;

Waste tires in excess of the limitations prescribed in l4 CCR 17355(b) or reduced in
volume as required in 14 CCR 17355(4); and

Ammunition, explosives, or other ordnance.

Any other materials that cannot be disposed of in class III sanitary landfills described
in 27 CCR 20260.

prescribed in Section 5.06 and contained in Exhibit
5.06.

Vehicles means all trucks (including trucks providing Residential and Commercial Collection of
Solid Waste, Bulky Waste, and litter pickup; and field supervisors' and administrators' vehicles),
rolling stock and other vehicles used to provide Franchise Services (including Collection as well
as repair and maintenance), whether owned or leased by Franchisee.

Violates or Violation means any failure to comply with law as evidenced by notice, assessment
or determination of any regulatory agency to Franchisee, whether or not a fine or penalty is
included, assessed, levied or attached.

Yard Waste means any wastes generated from the maintenance or alteration of public,
commercial, or residential landscape including, but not limited to, yard clippings, leaves, tree
trimmings, prunings, brush and weeds.

c

d.

e

f.

Unpermitted Waste Screening Protocol is

xl1



EXHIBIT 2.01: REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

FRANCHISEE:

a. Status. Franchisee is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing
under the laws of the State of California and is qualified to do business in the State of California.

b. Authority and Authorization. Franchisee has full legal right, power and authority to
execute and deliver this Agreement and perform its obligations under this Agreement. This
Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by Franchisee and constitutes a legal, valid and
binding obligation of the Franchisee.

c. No conflicts. Neither the execution nor delivery by the Franchisee of this Agreement, the
performance by the Franchisee of its Franchise Obligations, nor the fulfillment by the Franchisee
of the terms and conditions of this Agreement: (l) conflicts with, violates or results in a breach
of any Applicable Law; (2) conflicts with, violates or results in a breach of any term or condition
of any judgment, order or decree of any court, administrative agency or other governmental
authority, or any agreement or instrument to which the Franchisee or any of its Affrliates is a
party or by which the Franchisee or any of its Affrliates' properties or assets are bound, or
constitutes a default thereunder.

d. No approvals required. No approval, authorization, license, permit, order or consent of, or
declaration, registration or filing with any govemmental or administrative authority, commission,
board, agency or instrumentality is required for the valid execution and delivery of this
Agreement by the Franchisee, except as has been duly obtained from its Board of Directors or
other governing body or Person.

e. No litigation. As of the Commencement Date, there is no action, suit, proceeding or
investigation, at law or in equity, before or by any court or governmental authority, commission,
board, agency or instrumentality pending or, to the best of the Franchisee's knowledge,
threatened, against the Franchisee wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding, in any
single case or in the aggregate, would materially adversely affect the performance by the
Franchisee of its PerforTnance Obligations or in connection with the transactions contemplated
by this Agreement, or which, in any way, would adversely affect the validity or enforceability of
this Agreement or any other agreement or instrument entered into by the Franchisee in
connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

f. Due Diligence. Franchisee has made an independent investigation, examination and research

satisfactory to it of the conditions and circumstances surrounding the Agreement and best and
proper method of providing Franchise Services (including Franchise Service types) and labor,
equipment and materials for the volume of Franchise Services to be provided. Franchisee agrees

that it will make no claim against the County based on any estimates, statements or
interpretations made by any officer, employee, agent or consultant of the County in connection
with the procurement of this Agreement that proves to be in any respect erroneous.

xlll



g. Compliance with Applicable Law. Franchisee has fully complied with all Applicable Law,
including without limitation law relating to conflicts of interest, inlhe course of procuring this
Agreement.

CUUNTY:

a. Existence and Powers: The County is duly organized and validly exists as a political
subdivision of the State of Califomia, with futl legal right, power and auihority to enter into and
perform the obligations under this agreement.

b. Due Authorization and Binding Obligation: The County has duly authorized the
execution and delivery of this agreement. This agreement has been duly executed and delivered
by the County and constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation oithe contractor,
enforceable against the County in accordance with its terms, except in so far as such enforcement
may be affected by bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium and othei laws affecting creditor's rights
generally.

c. No Legal Prohibition: The County has no knowledge of any applicable law in effect on
the agreement date which would prohibit the performance by the Couniy of this agreement and
the transactions contemplated hereby.

d. Information Supplied by the County: The information supplied by the County and all
submittals made in connection with negotiation and award of this ugi".rn"ttt is correct and
complete in all material respects

xlv



EXHIBIT 4.01a: WASTE COLLECTION AREAS

ISEE MAP OR LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE WASTE COLLECTION AREAS
ATTACHED TO THIS EXHIBIT.]

The boundaries of any Waste Collection Areas depicted herein may be changed by action of the
Couaty Board of Supervisors. Such boundary change may include the removal of areas within
the City of Bishop, or otherwise. The County acknowledges that any such action taken by the
County may have the effect of changing Franchisee's Direct Costs which may entitle Franchisee

to a Service Fee adjustment to compensate for the change in such costs. In any such event,
Franchisee shall request a Service Fee adjustment in the same manner by which a request is
made for a Change in Law as set forth in Section 13.01.d.1.iv of this Agreement.

XV



EXHIBIT 4.05e: CUSTOMER COMPLAINT AND BILLING DISPUTE RESOLUTION
PROTOCOL

Franchisee's Customer complaint and billing dispute resolution protocol is attached to this
Agreement.

xvl



EXHIBIT 5.029: SERVICE ASSET INVENTORY

Attached to this Exhibit is an inventory of Service Assets, whether new or used, owned or leased
by Franchisee, including:

(1) maintenance yards and facilities; the Office and any other administrative and customer
service offices,

(2) Vehicles and equipment described by type (i.e., manufacture and model number for cab,
chassis and body; and descriptive notation said as front end loader, compactor etc.),
number, DMV license number.

xvll



EXHIBIT 5.06: UNPERMITTED WASTE SCREENING PRoToCoL

Franchisee will screen all loads of Solid Waste for Unpermitted Waste by causing its drivers to
observe, directly or through mirrors or other mechanism(s), the tipping of Containers into
Vehicles at the point of Collection. Franchisee will employ direci visial inspection where
necessary and appropriate. Franchisee will conduct on-going training of its irivers, mechanics,
dispatchers and other support personnel in Unpermitted Waste t..ognition and safety procedures,
including notification of County as described below. Franchisee *ill "*y in its Vehicles
literature developed by the County pertaining to the proper handling of Unpermitted Wastes.
Such literature will be left by Franchisee with its Customers upon Customer request, upon
identification of Unpermitted waste, or upon request by the county.

Franchisee will additionally comply with the following requirements in handling Unpermitted
Waste that is Hazardous Waste:

(1) Driver will immediately notify its dispatch center ("Dispatch") and take immediate and
appropriate action to contain and isolate said load.

(2) Dispatch will immediately notify the Franchisee's field supervisor.

(3) Dispatch will immediately contact the Environmental Health Division of the County
Health Department, or if those offices are closed, the county Emergency
Communications Center.

(4) Depending on the amount and identity of the Hazardous Waste involved, Franchisee will
at its option either segregate and containerizethe Hazardous Waste in preparation for
manifesting and transport, or contact a permitted Hazardous Waste transport company to
assist therein. Franchisee will ensure that an authorized official of Franchisee is
available in person or by telephone at all times to authorize the expenditure of funds, if
necessary, fot Hazatdous Waste cleanup. Franchisee will transpo.t *y Hazardous
waste it chooses to transport under Applicable Law, including:

(i) the regulations of the Department of California Highway Patrol (Title 13, Code of
Califomia Regulations or ..CCR',),

(ii) regulations of the federal Department of Transportation (DOT) (Title 49, Code of
Federal Regulations),

(iii) regulations of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (Title 40, Code of Federal
Regulations),

(iv) the regulations of the California Occupational Health and Safety Administration
(Title 8, CCR),

xvril



(v) the regulations of the California Department of Toxic Substances Control (Title22,
ccR).

(5) No later than the next County Working Day following its occuffence, Franchisee will
orally notify the Director of the incident and its status and/or ultimate disposition.
Franchisee will give the Director a written incident report within 14 days, including the
following: the date and time of the occurrence, name of driver, description of hazardous
materials, origin of the hazardous material (if identifiable), observations made and
actions taken by Driver and/or Field Supervisor, the status and/or ultimate disposition of
the material, and any additional relevant comments.

At least once per Contract Year, Franchisee will inform its Customers of the locations where
they may deliver Unpermitted Waste for proper management and processing.

Franchisee will make available to the County promptly upon request all Records, including plans

and/or other documents maintained by Franchisee with respect to Unpermitted Waste under
Applicable Law.

Instead of complying with Unpermitted Waste Screening Protocol described in this Section,
Franchisee may give County a copy of an Unpermitted Waste Screening Protocol it has

developed containing procedures under applicable law for handling Unpermitted Waste that is
hazardous waste that is no less stringent than the Protocol under this Exhibit. Upon approval by
the Director, Franchisee's Unpermitted Waste Screening Protocol will replace the Protocol
described in this Section.

xlx



EXHIBIT l0.0la: RECORDS

Franchisee will collect, record, and maintain, at aminimum, the following information,
indicating the date and the day of the week of the event reported. Franchisee will give the
county the following information promptly upon county,i written request.

(1) TONNAGE: Tons of,

Residential and Commercial Solid Waste,
Recyclables,
Bulky Waste, and
C&D Waste.

collected and delivered to the Designated Disposal Facility including

a truck numbers,
o weight of each load (gross,tare, and net), and
a source-jurisdiction allocation or ratio

(2) MONETARY AMOUNTS

service Fees. Service fees charged to and collected from customers.

Subscription Orders. Each Customer's Subscription Order and account service
information (4.10).

Customer Billing. Billing records required by Section 4.09, including Customers, special
Service requests for on-call pickup of excess and Bulky Waste.

Franchisee's Reimbursement Costs for emergency clean up.

Fees payable to County. Including:
(l) financial records, books, accounts, and warranties corroborating the Franchise Fee owed

to County under Section 13.02, including the all documentation required by Section
13.02; and

(2) financial records, books, and accounts corroborating any other County payment
Obligations.

(3) CUSTOMER SERVTCE

Complaint Records including logged complaints for alleged missed collections; failure to
properly replace Containers (a01.c1(iii) and c2(iii)), failure to clean up litter (4.03b),
discourtesy (4.03a), damaged property, collecting outside permitted hiurs (a.01dl), all
including time, date, and manner of resolving complaint.

Requests for Franchise Services, including record of Customers' telephonic, mailed, faxed
or e-mailed requests to commence Franchise Services (a.01c1(i) ana cill;;; discontinue
Franchise Services (a.01c1(ii) and c2(ii)); deliver, repair or replace, o. pi.i up Containers

XX



(4e); change size or number of Containers; or supply locks (4.01e); and any failure to timely
commence or provide any of those Services.

Copies of Notices to Customers, including notice of Holiday or changed schedules

enclosed in Customers' bills (4.01d2 and 4.06) and public education and community
relations materials (4.06).

(4) OPERATTONS

Routing Specifications (5.01).

Service Asset Inventory, (5.029) and Service Asset Documentations (Exhibit 5.02g)

Compliance with Applicable Law, including copies of all violations, tire invoices and

specifications; Vehicle registration, certifications, reports and maintenance logs; drivers'
licenses, training records (including Unpermitted Waste identification and handling), and

drug and alcohol testing; records showing compliance with Federal Immigration and
Control Act of 1986; and approvals, authorizations, and Permits.

Records of Vehicle inspections, including Vehicles' fire extinguisher service records, and
warranty and maintenance recommendations.

Any documentation with respect to insolvency, bankruptcy or liquidation including
records with respect to Service Assets, such as any seizures, attachments or levies.

Container maintenance (4.0 I e).

(5) INSURANCE AND OTHER PERFORMANCE ASSURANCES: Insurance,
performance bonds, letter of credit etc. (Article 11).

xx1



EXHIBIT 10.02a: QUARTERLY REPORTS

For the purposes of the Quarterly Reports, "quarters" is defined as: First euarter consisting of
January, February and March; Second Quarter consisting of April, May andJune; Third euarterconsisting of July, August and September; Fourth Quartir consisting of O"tob"r, November and
December. In the Quarterly Report, Franchisee will include, at a minimum, the following
information:

(1) Summary of Records. A summary of the Records for events (including Unpermitted
Waste spills or other incidents, Customer complaints, Vehicle inspections, Criminal
Activity, or other events) during the previous quarter and a copy of Franchisee,s
complaint log, including missed pickups, Non-Coilection Noticer *a a description of
how each complaint was resolved.

@ Certifications. A certification that Franchisee has met its Performance Obligations
including Delivery Obligations (Section 7.01) for the quarter or, alternatiiely, a
desuiption of those Performance Obligations and Delivery Obligations not met during
the quarter.

(3) Summary of Education Efforts. A summary of education efforts undertaken in that
quarter and copies of all materials distributed to Customers during the euarter,
including community relations materials (4.06a1) and promotional mateiials 1+.OeaZ1.

(4) Diversion Information: any information necessary to meet the reporting requirementsof the Act, including Solid Waste Collection and disposal tonnagei, Rlcyclables
collection and processing tonnages, and the origin thereof.

(5) operational Report: A discussion of Service or operational problems and resolution
thereof or planned therefore, if requested by County.

(6) collection Fee summaries: Fees invoiced and paid, including:

a Service fees charged for each type of service,

o Service fees collected from Customers; and

o Franchise Fees paid to County.

Quarterly Reports may be made on Form l}.}2awhich is attached to this Exhibit.

xxll



FORM 10.02a

INvo CouNrv Fnq,NcrusEE QuanrnRr,y Rrponr
Submitted by: (Franchisee)

FoR rue Ypnn op 20_
n lst Quarter (January, February, March) (due by May 1)

tr 2nd Quarter (April, May, June) (due by August 1)

! 3rd Quarter (July, August, September) (due by November 1)

f] 4th Quarter (October, November, December) (due by February

1. Summary of Records a. Unpermitted Waste Spills

b. Vehicle lnspections:

c. Criminal Activity: 
,,

d. Other Events:

e. Complaint Log:

None n See Attached

None E See Attached

None D, .See Attached

None ! 'See Attached

None ! See Attached

'tr
')
!

2. Certifications I represent and warrant, under penalty.
of perjury, that [FRANCHISEE] has

met its Performance Obligations,
including Delivery Obligations, for
the Quarter noted above. OR,

Name

During the Quarter noted above,

[FRANCHISEE] did not meet all of
its'Performance Obli gations
(including Delivery Obligations) and
will pay to County liquidated
damages for each failure as noted on
the attached sheet.

Name

Title

Signature

3. Summary of
Efforts

Education Such as inserts, mailers, magnets,
flyers, etc.

fl None tr See Attached

4. Diversion Information Information required by the Act,
including Solid Waste Collection and
disposal tonnages, Recyclables
collection and processing tonnages,
and origin, in accordance with
Section 6.01.

! None tr See Attached

5. Collection Fee
Summaries

(fees invoiced and paid)

a. Service fees charged for each
type of service

b. Service fees collected from
Customers

c. Franchise fees paid to County

! See Attached

$

$



EXHIBIT 10.02b: ANNUAL REPORTS

In the Annual Report, Franchisee will include, at aminimum, a collated summary of the
information contained in Quarterly Reports, including reconciliation of any adjustments from
prior Quarterly Reports, and the following information and statements:

(1) Service Asset Inventory. A complete inventory of Service Assets under Section
5.029.

(2) Financial Status Statement. A statement by Franchisee's Chief Executive Officer
either: (i) that in the prior Contract Year there have been no material changes in
Franchisee's financial status or condition, or (ii) describing any material changes in
Franchisee's f,rnancial status or condition during that contract year.

(4) Subcontractors. The names of all Subcontractors, the scope and amount of services or
goods Subcontractors provide to Franchisee, and a description ofFranchisee's
relationships to each Subcontractor (including Ownership interests) (16.09).

Annual Reports may be made on Form 10.02b which is attached to this Exhibit.



FORM 10.02b

INvo CouNrv Fnr,NcrusEn ANNuar, Rnponr ron 20

Submitted by: (Franchisee)

(Due by February 15)

1. Total information
contained in Quarterly
Reports for the year

tr See Attached

...,i::::.:i..

.':t'l '

2. Service Asset Inventory :.2:
t.:,1.1-

-,tL., Ll Sge Attached

3. Financial Status
Statement

, .,:'
',:.:

,. .,.. :'...
...:.::1r,.:)

";. "

.....4...,...:.:,:.:..,.

.1?

I represent and warrant, under
of perjury, that in the prior
Year there have been no
changes in
financial status or condition.

Name

Title (CEO or

I warrant, under penalty
of perjury, the prior Contract
Year, those

status or
listed attached sheet

which is labeled "Material Changes to
CHISEEI's Financial Status or

" have occurred.

Title (CEO or Principal)

Signature

../1 r:.::.rt, :!...
' i,. ),;:, .:

':.,:.:
:l aj

5. Su
'1ra''

of all Subcontractors, the
and amount of Franchise

other services, or goods
provide to franchisee,

a description of Franchisee's
relationships to each Subcontractor
(including Ownership interests)
(16.0e).

n None ! See Attached



EXHIBIT 13.01a: SERVICE FEE FITOORS

Franchisee will not charge Customers Service Fees that are less than those identified below:

COMMERCIAL BIN SERVICE - AREA A & B
Size l/xWeek ?xWeek 3/xWeek
2-yard $97.15 $169.63 $244.73
3-yard $145.38 $254.30 $367.26
Syard $185.37 $324.02 $460.25
6-yard $278.13 $486.04 $690.55

4/xlVee\

$323.38

$48s.24

$s99.72

$899.59

v78.34
$542.98

$620.s5

$685. l9
$788.62

v78.34
$478.34

5/xWeek

$400.41

$600.62

$739.20

$1,108.79

6/xWeek Ex Pfu Delivery

$479.07 $49J1 $36.30

$718.60 $74.39 $36.30
$875.91 $94.40 $36.30

$1313.78 $141.64 $36.30

******************:**'|(***********,F****,f**********************************:i*********************************

RESIDENTIAL CURBSIDE CART SERVICE _ AREAS A & B

RESIDENTIAL CURBSIDE SERVICE (CUSTOMER O}YNED CONTAINER) _
AREA B - Cartago, Alabama Hills, Olancha, Danvinn Keeler
30-40 Gallon Container(per month)

7 &lor2cans 3-cans 4-cans 5:caqq 6-cans
$46.73 $63.94 $84.66 $103.63 $t22.sg

** **** * *** ** * ****** *{< *;t****i* *** *********** * * *** *** **** *:* ** * * t ****** ** *** *******:t*** *** **:* *** *** *i{,i**:r*** * *

96 Gallon

I Cart

64 Gallon

1 Cart

ROLL OFF BIN SERVICE
Size Area
2Oyard Bishop

Big pine

Independence

Lone Pine

Olancha

Round Valley

Starlite

30 yard Bishop

Big Pine

Independence

Lone Pine

Olancha

Round Valley
Starlite

Monthly Rate Each Extra Cart
$31.37 $21.61

Monthlv Rate only I cart oer household

$ 28.24

Full Rate Per Bin* Compactor Roll-Off
$27s.37 $323.20

$323.20 $387.85

M00.77 $46s.41

M6s.41 $s30.06

$568.84 $633.48

$323.20 $387.85

$323.20 $387.85

$413.70

v78.34
$555.91

$620.55

$723.98

$413.70

$413.70



13.01a (continued)

*For first l4-day use period. Service includes: delivery, rental & service (landfill fees
additional).
Full Rate applies after first l4-day period.

Hauler may offer a discount of up to 5Yoto all commercial customers paying in advance or
within 30 days of invoice.
All commercial contract proposals must clearly delineate rates both

. ,.1.:::.: . ,:'

before'and after any discount
is applied.

312912019



EXHIBIT 14.01: COMPENSATORY AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

Compensatory Damages. If the County in its sole discretion chooses not to exercise its right to
terminate this Agreement when Franchisee does not deliver Solid Waste to the Desig-nated
Disposal Facility under Section 7.01, then the Franchisee will pay the County within l0 diys of
request the following amounts:

(i) The County Reimbursement Costs to provide necessary persons for monitoring of
Franchisee's compliance with said delivery requirements, including followlng
Franchisee's vehicles on Service routes; and

(iD The County's Reimbursement Cost of enforcing or securing specific performance
of Franchisee's delivery obligation; and

(iii) For each ton of Solid Waste collected by Franchisee that Franchisee delivers to a
facility or site other than the Designated Disposal Facility ("Undelivered Tons',), as
demonstrated by weigh bills at said other facility or site, reports by any monitoring
PartY, or such other evidence as may be deemed satisfactory by the County, the curren-i
tipping fee. The County may estimate the number of Undelivered Tons based on prior
disposal records, Customer lists, or other means.

Liquidated Damages.

Within l0 days of County assessment, Franchisee will pay the following liquidated (or
compensatory) damages for each of the corresponding breaches determined by County. County
may assess damages for each instance of breach, even if Franchisee subsequently remedies that
breach. (Franchisee nevertheless might have the opportunity to cure the bieach before it
becomes an Event of Default.)

References in the chart below to "per incident per day" refer to the first occuffence and then
continued occuffence on successive days. For example, failure to clean up spillage would result
in liquidated damages on the day of the spillage and each following iay until co*ected.
Franchisee must pay damages regardless of whether or not it subsequently cures its breach.

The following is a schedule of liquidated damages for breaches of this Agreement.

ESCRIPTION OF BREACH

ailure to properly cover materials in Collection vehicles
rprevent littering of highways or streets.

ailure to clean up spillage or litter caused by Franchisee
t.03b, c)

DAMAGES

Up to $500 per failure over six (6) during any calendar year

Up to $300 per failure per location.



ailure to maintain or timely submit complete Reports
rd/or documents to the County (such as Quarterly and
nnual Reports [0.02], Financial Reports [0.03], Route
laps and Route Changes [5.01a and b], Service Asset
wentory 15.0291, Hazardous Waste Screening Protocol

, or Insurance certificates or 11

lilure to perform any other Performance Obligation
rder this Agreement.

Up to $300 per failure

Up to $100 per failure.

..::::a

':.4..

,al. ,

,: .'

')'



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

n Consent X Departmental !Correspondence Action

fl Scheduted Time , I Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

2t
n Pubtic Hearing

I lnformational

FROM: Recycling & Waste Management

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: April9,20i9

SUBJECT:
Consideration of Solid Waste Collection and Hauling Floor Rate lncrease for Residential and Commercial

Service for Permit Areas A & B of Inyo County.

D E PARTME NTAL KE C OMMENDATI O N :
Request your Board approve a floor rate increase for residential, commercial, and roll-off service as

described in attached rate chart.

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:
In June 2017 as a result of converling the gate fee structure at the Bishop landfill to a weight based system,

your Board approved a rnajor adjustment in the collection and hauling floor rate charged by the permitted

haulers. Rates have not been reviewed since that date.

At this week's meeting, your Board will be considering a hauler franchise agreement. One of the terms in

that agreement calls for an automatic rate adjustment on an annual basis. This floor rate adjustment is

proposed in order to establish a new base rate prior to implementing the agreement.

The adjustrnent was calculated using the formula included in the franchise agreement. It revises the hauling

porlion of the curent rate based on the garbage and trash collection component of the consumer price index

as calculated by the Bureau of Labor Statistics, Since the effective date of the last rate increase this index

has increasedby 6.5%.

The new recommended rates are attached as Exhibit A. The rate review includes both commercial and

residential services. If approved, the floor rate for residential collection would increase from a monthly

charge of $30.15 to $31.37. The most common commercial charge is a 3 yard bin collected once a week.

That charge would be revised upward from $139.70 to $145.38. This represents a 4%o increase for

consumers. The rates for all other seryices have also been increased accordingly.

As set forth in the Inyo County Code Section 7.08.l50 "Charges", the Board of Supervisors shallapprove a

fair and equitable rate schedule for waste hauler charges.

AL TIVE.I:
Your Board could choose not to grant an increase in the floor rate. If the franchise agreement is approved as

written, this would necessitate a more drastic floor rate increase next year. It should be noted that the haulers

are not bor"rnd to charge the floor rate and have the ability to increase rates at any time. However, this would

be a deparlure from the traditional role of the floor rate.

Your Board could also authorize a lower floor rate than recommended.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEME NT:
None



FINANCING:
There are no costs associated with an increase in the floor rate, however, additional revenues are expected to
accrue to the enterprise fund through the franchise fee.

DE (Not to be signed until all approvals are received)

s/zt 7

COUNTY COUNSEL: AGREEMENTS, CONTMCTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS

(Must be reviewed and approved by county counsel prior to submlssion to the board clerk.)

N/AApproved Date_
AUDITOR/CONTROLLER: ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the auditor-

controller prior to submisslon to the board clerk.)

Approved: N/A Date

PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the director of personnel

services prior to submission to the board clerk.)

N/AApproved Date-

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR:

APPROVALS



TECOPA

w8

AREA D

WB

STOdPIPE
wEl-s

C$'nON

AREA E

FURNACE
CREEK

P!NE

LF

AREA C

FA{AJIT.IT

AREA G

AREA F

BtslloP

AREA A

BIG PINE

urrLe

vll8

TRANSFER STATION
LANDFILL
WASTE BINS

vAlfr
JUNCNON

INYO COUNTY
INTEGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT

WASTE COLLECTION AREAS

TS
LF
WB

NOT TO SCALE



EXHIBIT A
MINIMUM CHARGES FOR WASTE HAULING SERVICES

AREAS A & B
INYO COUNTY

Effective June 1.2019

COMMERCIAL BIN SERVICE-AREA A & B
Size l/xWeek 2lxWeek 3/xWeek

2-yard $97.15 $169.63 5244.73

3-yard $145,38 $254.30 $367.26
4-yard $ 18s.37 $324.02 $460.25

6-yard $278. 13 $486.04 $690.55

ROLL OFF BIN SERVICE
Size Area

2)yard Bishop

Big Pine

Independence

Lone Pine

Olancha

Round Valley

Starlite

5/xWeek 6/xWeek Ex P/U

$400.41 5479 .07 $49 .71

$600.62 $718.60 s74.39

9739.20 $875.91 $94.40

$1.108.79 $1,313.78 $141.64

4/xWeek

$323.3 8

$485.24

$599.72

$899,s9

Deliverv

$36.30

$36.30

$36.30

$36.30

***** ************ **** *******************{i *******+*+1(:*******'}****x* **********d.************************+*+,

RESIDENTIAL CURBSIDE CART SERVICE - AREAS A & B

96 Gallon Monthlv Rate Each Extra Cart

I Cart $3 I .37 $21 .61

64 Gallon Monthly Rate only I cart ner household

I Cart g 28.24

RISIDENTIAL CURBSIDB SERVICE (CUSTOMER OWNED CONTAINER) _

AREA B - Cartago, Alabama Hills, Olancha, Darwin, Keeler

30-40 Gallon Container (Per month)

| &lor2cans 3-cans 4-cans 5-cans 6-cans

$46.?3 $63,94 $84.66 $103.63 $122.s9

*****1.****+**:t ****'***************+***********.1.****{.****+*********************************+**************

Full Rate Per Bin* Compactor Roll-Off

s275.3'1 $323.20

$323.20 $387.8s

$400.77 $46s.41

$46s.41 $530.06

$s68.84 $633.48

s323.20 $387 8s

s323.20 $387.85

30 yard Bishop

Big Pine

independence

Lone Pine

Olancha

Round Valley

Starlite

$413.70

s478.34

$5s s.91

$620.s5

$723.98

$41 3.70

$413.70

$4'.78.34

$542.98

$620.ss

$685. I 9

$788.62

s418.34

$478.34

*For first l4-day use period. Service includes: delivery, rental & service (landfill fees additional).

Full Rate applies after first I 4-day period.

These are the minirnum allowable rates to be charged.

Hauler may otl'er a discourrt of up to 5% to all commercial customers paying in advance or within 30 days of invoice.

All commercial contract proposals must clearly delineate rates both before and after any discount is applied.

Special collection services not specified above shall be negotiated between the customer and the franchised waste hauler

3/27/2019



COMPARISON OF CURRENT TO PROPOSED RATES

CURRENT COMMERCIAT BIN SERVICE - AREA A&B

Size 1/xWeek 2/xWeek 3/xWeek 4/xWeek

2-yard s93.3s s162.64 5234.92 s310.s1
3-yard s139.70 5243.52 s:SZ.Ss 546s.92
4-yard 5177.28 53lr..r-1 5442.68 5s77.27
6-yard S26s.99 5466.67 5664.1-8 S86s.92

5/xWeek

s384.se
ss76.88

s71.1..87

51.,067.79

6/xWeek

5460.18
5690.27

Ss43.89

51,265.75

Ex P/U

546.67

s6s.8s
$88.64

s132.9e

Deliverv

s34.oe

Sg+.og

s34.oe
S34.oe

PROPOSED

Size

2-yard

3-yard

4-yard
6-yard

l/xWeek
$97.1 s

$ 14s.3 8

$18s.37

$278. I 3

2/xWeek

$169.63

$2s4.30

s324.02

$486.04

3/xWeek

s244.73

s367.26

$460.2s

$690.ss

4/xWeek

$323.38

s48s.24
$s99.72

$899.s9

5/xWeek

$400.41

$600.62

s139.20

$1,108.79

6/xWeek

$479.07

$718.60

$87s.91

$ 1,3 13 .78

Ex P/U

s49.7r
$74.39

$94.40

$ 141.64

Deliverv

$36.30

$36.30

$36.30

$36.30

CHANGE

Size

2-yard
3-yard
4-yard

6-yard

CURRENT RESIDENTIAL

PROPOSED RESIDENTIAT

CHANGE

i/xWeek 2/xWeek 3/xWeek 4/xWeek 5/xWeek 6/xWeek Ex P/U Deliverv

s3.80 s6.ee se.81 512.87 s1s.S2 s18.Se s3.03 52.22

ss.68 s10.48 51,4.72 s1s.32 523.73 528.33 S+.Sa 52.22

s8.0e 512.s2 517.s7 522.4s 527.33 532.02 Ss.76 52.22

s12.1s s1s.38 526.37 s33.68 s41.00 548.02 Sa.0+ 52.22

s30.1s
S31.37

51..22



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

!Consent filDepartmental lCorrespondenceAction

n Scheduled Time for ! Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

^1! Public Hearing

n lnformational

FROM: Clint G. Quilter, County Administrator

FOR THE BOARD MEETING: April 9, 2019

SUBJEcT: Continuation of declaration of existence of local emergency

D E PARTM E NTAL REC O MME NDATIO N :
Request Board discuss and consider staff's recommendation regarding continuation of the local emergency known as
the "Here lt Comes Emergency" that was proclaimed in anticipation of run-off conditions from near-record snowpack
posing extreme peril to the safety of property and persons in lnyo County.

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:
During your March 28, 2017 Board of Supervisors meeting your Board took action to approve Resolution 2017-15
proclaiming the existence of a local emergency, which has been named the Here lt Comes Emergency, in anticipation of
run-off conditions from near-record snowpack posing extreme peril to the safety of property and persons in lnyo
County and which are likely beyond the control of the services, personnel, equipment and facilities of the County of
lnyo. During yourJune 27,2017 meeting, your Board took action to amend Resolution 2017-15 to recognize thatthe
County has moved from the Preparedness stage to the Response stage, and to include new damages and impacts that
have occurred in the operationalarea.

ln light of the massive amount of runoff that is occurring due to the unprecedented snowpack, the recommendation is that
the emergency be continued on a biweekly basis and that Resolution 2017-15 be updated as necessary, until further
evaluation of conditions are completed and staff makes the recommendation to end the emergency.

ALTERNATIWS: NIA

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: NI^

FINANCING.. N/A

D EP ARTM ENT H EAD SIG N ATU RE :

COUNTY COUNSEL:

N/A

AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be
reviewed and approved by county counsel prior to submlssrbn to the board clerk.)

Approved: Date_
AUDITOR/CONTROLLER:

N/A

ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the auditor-controller pior to
submlsslon to the board clerk.)

Approved:_Date_

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR

N/A

PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the director of personnel seruices prior to
submissrbn to the board clerk.)

Approved:_Date_
/

APPROVALS

(Not to be signed until all approvals are {- -t



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COTINTY OF INYO

!Consent ffiDepartmental lCorrespondenceAction

n Scheduled Time for n Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

3b
n Puolic Hearing

fl lnformational

FROM: Clint G. Quilter, County Administrator

FOR THE BOARD MEETING: April 9, 2019

SUBJECT: Continuation of declaration of local emergency

D E PARTM E NTAL REC O MM E N DAT I O N :
Request Board discuss and consider staff's recommendation regarding continuation of the local emergency known as
the "Rocky Road Emergency" that was proclaimed as the result of flooding, mud, and rock landslides and deep snow
drifts over portions of lnyo County caused by an atmospheric river weather phenomena that began January 3,2017
and continued throughout February.

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:
During your February 7,2017 Board of Supervisors meeting your Board took action to approve Resolution 2017-04
declaring a local emergency, which has been named The Rocky Road Emergency, and was the result of an atmospheric
river weather phenomena that began January 3,2017 and caused flooding, mud, and rock landslides and deep snow
drifts over portions of lnyo County. Since the circumstances and conditions relating to this emergency persist, your
Board directed thatthe continuation of the declaration be considered on a biweekly basis. On March 7,2017, your Board
amended Resolution 2017-04 to further extend the continuation of the emergency and also add language to include
additional damages that occurred in the latter half of January and into February.

ALTERNATIWS: NIA

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: NtA

FINANCING: NIA

DEPARTM ENT H EA D SIG N ATU RE: 01-t- t1

COUNTY COUNSEL:

N/A

AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be
reviewed and approved by county counsel prior to submisslon to the board clerk.)

Approved: Date_
AUDITORYCONTROLLER:

N/A

ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the auditor-controller prior to
submission to the board clerk.)

Approved:_Date_

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR:

N/A

PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the director of personnel sevices prior to
submlsslon to the board clerk.)

Approved:_Date_

c
-<l

APPROVALS

(Not to be signed until all approvals are



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

f] Consent ffi Departmental ICorrespondence Action

n scheduted rime ! Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Qnly
AGENDA NUMBER

3t
fl Puotic Hearing

n lnformational

FROM: Recycling & Waste Management

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: April9,2019

SUBJECT: Hearing to consider adding late fees to delinquent gate fee account and approval of a gate fee policy

D E PARTM E NTAL RE C OMMENDATI O N :

Request your Board 1) conduct a hearing to consider adding a late fee in the amount of 1.5Yo per month to gate fee

accounts over 30 days delinquenl 2) approve the proposed late fee effective June 1, 2019;3) adopt the resolution

authorizing late fees; and 4) approve the attached Gate Fee Account Policy.

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:

Since the ir-rception of gate fees at the lnyo County landfills the Waste Management Depattment has offered in-house gate

fee accounts to businesses and individuals. Since the vast rnajority of account holders pay their bills on time no formal

policy regarding gate fee accounts was ever established. Unforfunately, a few accounts have recently become delinquent'

Since there is no policy regarding delinquent accounts, there is little the department can do to collect past due fees.

Therefore, it is requested that your Board approve late fees on delinquent gate fee accounts and approve a policy

regarding gate fees.

Department staff is recommending a late fee of 7 Yzo/o per month on any account 30 days or more past due. In order to

impose this fee it is required that your Board conduct a hearing and receive input both in favor and in opposition to the

fee. At the conclusion of the hearing if your Board wishes to enact the fee it will be necessary to adopt the attached

resolution.

Staff has also developed an overall policy regarding gate fees. The proposed policy is attached as Attachment A. It is

recommended that your Board approve the Gate Fee Policy so that the department and the public have clear guidelines

regarding accounts. In addition to reiterating the late fee charges, the policy allows the departrnent to suspend accounts

for nonpayment and close accounts in the case of habitual offenders, The policy also authorizes the department to take

actions to collect gate fees either through a collection agency or the coutts.

ALTERNATIVES:

Your Board could choose not to establish a late fee or approve of fee other than what is recommended by staff. Your
Board is also able to modiff the recommended gate fee policy. Without a late fee and policy the Solid Waste Enterprise

Fund is subject to losing revenues.

FINANCING:

There is no cost to the County to implement a late fee. If adopted as recommended, the new policy is likely to modestly

enhance revenues and improve cash flow in the department.



Agenda Request
Page 2

DEPARTMENT H EAD SIGNATURE:
(Not to be signed until all approvals are

COUNTY COUNSEL

CI 00u^40'o^-

AGREEMENTS, CONTMCTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (MUSI bE

reviewed and approved by county counsel pior to submisslon to the board clerk.)

Approved 3t28/q
ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Musl be reviewed and aiproved by the auditor-controller prior to

submission to the board clerk.)

Approved

AUDITOR/CONTROLLER:

N/A

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR:

N/A

PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the director of personnel services prior to

submission to the board clerk.)

Approved:-Date-

APPROVALS



ATTACHMENT A

Gate Fee Account Policy

1. Persons disposing of solid waste at lnyo County ("County") waste facilities shall pay the
required gate fees prior to waste disposal or shall have made payment arrangements with the
Department in accordance with the gate fee payment options set forth herein.

2. ln addition to cash, County may also accept business checks, personal checks, money orders
and cashier's checks as payment for gate fees.

3. Any person that disposes waste at a County waste facility and is subject to payment of gate
fees may apply for a gate fee account with the lnyo County Recycling and Waste Management
Department ("Department"). Any person applying for a gate fee account shall complete the
Department's gate fee application and an authorization for a credit check. The completed
application and credit check authorization must be delivered to the Department. The Director
may determine if a person is qualified to dispose of waste on credit, based on that person's
credit history and the amount of waste that person plans to dispose at County waste facilities.

The Director may deny credit to unqualified applicants, set appropriate credit limits for
unqualified applicants, or require thei payment of a security deposit for unqualified applicants.
The security deposit shall not exceed the Director's reasonable estimate of the applicant's
anticipated usage in a one month period. Actual usage will then be monitored on a monthly
basis until a 12-month history is established; the security deposit may be adjusted following this
12-month period, if necessary. No credit shall be extended prior to the Director's approval of the
gate fee account application. Gate fee account procedures shall be as follows:

a. The Department may send a monthly statement of gate fees charged to each person with a
gate fee account. The statement will indicate the amount due the County. Statements shall be

due as of the statement date.

b. Persons with a gate fee account, that have not received a statement by the 1Stn of any month,

may call the Department to verify their account's activity for the previous month.

c. All payments on gate fee accounts shall be made payable to the "lnyo County Waste
Management" and shall be mailed or delivered to the address indicated on the statement.

d. Any statement for a fee charged to any person shall become delinquent thirty (30) days after
the statement date.

e. Upon delinquency, the account privileges of the person with the gate fee account shall
become suspended and no additional charges may be made to that account until the delinquent
amount due has been paid.

f. Upon delinquency, a penalty in the amount of one and one half (1.5%) of the delinquent
amount shall be added to the account per month.

g. Partial payments may be made and shall be accepted, but partial payments shall not remove
a gate fee account from a delinquent or suspended status.



h. Suspended gate fee account privileges may be reinstated upon the receipt by the Department
of full payment of all monies due and the approval of the Director.

i. lf the Director determines at any time that any person holding a gate fee account has allowed
the gate fee account privileges of that person to remain suspended for a period of thirty (30)

days or has had two (2) suspensions in any twelve (12) month period, the Director may revoke
the gate fee account privileges of that person or require the posting of a security deposit.
Should the Director determine in his or her discretion to accept the posting of a security deposit
in lieu of the revocation of the user's gatefee account privileged, the amount of this security
deposit shall be set at the user's highest monthly balance from the preceding 12 months of
usage.

j. Persons desiring to close a gate fee account must notify the Director in writing. Gate fee
accounts may be closed only after the Director has determined that all necessary charges have

been applied to the account and all charges have been paid.

4. Anyone may post an advance payment of required gate fees at any time. Such advance
payments may be applied to any accrued gate fees until the advance payment has been

exhausted. A person may replenish or increase the amount of the advance payment at any

time. Upon request, the Director shall refund any portion of such advance payment which has

not been applied to accrued gate fees.

5. Any check returned unpaid is subject to a $25 returned check fee'

6. State law authorizes the County to bring legal action to collect delinquent charges, therefore,

in addition to the actions described above; the County may pursue collection of unpaid amounts

using any authorized means to include referralto a collection agency and/or court action.



RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
OF THE COLINTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AMENDING THE SCHEDULE
OF SOLID WASTE SERVICE CHARGES (GATE FEES) TO INCLUDE LATE FEES FOR

COTINTY GATE FEE ACCOUNTS

WHEREAS, per Government Code Section25823 the Board of Supervisors may
make and enforce all necessary and proper regulations for the use of disposal facilities not in
conflict with the Constitution and the laws of the State; and

WHEREAS, Section 7.10.080 of the Inyo County Code requires that the Board of
Supervisors establish fee schedules and regulations governing the collection offees for the

use of the facilities at any county operated landfill or disposal site; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has conducted a duly-noticed public hearing

regarding certain proposed solid waste management service charges (gate fees) in accordance

with Government Code Section 66018 and other applicable laws; and

WHEREAS, based on the testimony presented at the public hearing as well as the oral

and written staff reports also presented to the Board in connection with the hearing, the

Board finds and determines that the service charges (gate fees) set forth in this Resolution

will not exceed the County's reasonable costs of providing the services for which the fees are

charged and that the manner in which those costs are allocated to the fee payers bears a

reasonable relationship to the payers' benefits received from the services.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the County

of Inyo as follows:

Effective June 1, 2019, any Gate Fee account becomes delinquent 30 days

following the statement date.

In addition to those gate fees previously adopted, effective June 1,2019, upon

delinquency a penalty in the amount of one and one half (1.5%) of the

delinquent amount shall be added to the account per month.
The rate schedule as herein specified is effective until changed by resolution

of this Board of Supervisors.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, State of
California, this 9th day of April20Ig,by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT

Chairperson
INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

1

2

a
J



ATTEST. Clint Quilrer
Clerk of the Board

by
Darcy Ellis, Assistant



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

E Consent [l Departmental f]Conespondence Action

n Scheduled Time for I Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

ba-

! Public Hearing

! lnformational

FROM: Inyo County Planning Department

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: April 9,2019

SUBJECT: Workshop on current status of Short-Term Rentals in Inyo County and Implernentation of
the County's Short-Term Rental Ordinance.

RECOMMENDATIOM

Receive a presentation from staff regarding the status of short-term rentals in Inyo County,
approximately one year after the Planning Department began to accepting applications; and

Provide direction to the Planning Department on Short-Term Rental policy, and any elements that
may require review or revision.

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:

Background

Until the implementation of the County's short-term rental ordinance in 2018, the Inyo County Code
did not directly address short-term rentals and staff had operated off a 2006 finding by the Board of
Supervisors that short-term rentals were not an allowed use in the County's residential zones, and were
considered zoning violations. In the years between 2006 and 20L6 short-term rentals became more of
an issue in the County, the State and the entire country, with the increasing popularity of renting
properties in single family zoningdistricts, through on-line services.

From October 2016 through May of 2017 the Planning Department made a series of presentations to
the Board of Supervisors and the Planning Commission, providing background and research on the
issues of short-term rentals and receiving direction on starting to develop policy around them. Between
June 19, 2017 and July 6, 2017, Planning Department staff conducted a series of community
workshops to collect input from the County populace. These workshops occurred in Bishop, Big Pine,
Independence, Lone Pine and Tecopa. Starting in August of 2017, the Planning Department worked to
take the information collected from the community as well as input from the Planning Commission and
Board of Supervisors, and formulated a draft ordinance, which was refined, frnalized and adopted in
February of 2018. Two types of permits were addressed in the ordinance: Hosted Short-Term Rental
permits, where the owner of a property is the host, and resides in the rented residence while renting
rooms within the house to guests; and Non-Hosted Short-Term Rental permits, where the renter has

use of an entire residence, and the property is managed by a property manager. The Planning
Department began accepting permit applications on April 20fi,2018, and the first permit was issued on
May 29n,2018.

a

a



Agenda Request
Page2

Current Status Report

Attached to this Agenda Request Form is a report on the state of short-term rentals in Inyo County as

of today. The workshop will summarize the findings of the report. The report will cover the following:

o Numbers and statistics relating to issued permits for short term rentals in the County. Currently
there are 30 distinct properties that are permitted for short-term rental in the County, 16 of them
hosted and 14 of them non-hosted.

o Numbers and statistics relating to code enforcement of non-permitted short-term rentals in the
County. The Planning Department has issued 31 Notices of Violation and 30 of the 3l are

either now in compliance or on a path towards compliance.

e A look at staff time spent on short-term rental code enforcement as well as outside contract
services that could be available to the County for Code Enforcement.

o A review of staff implementation of the permitting process.

o A review of the complaint process for permitted short-term rentals and the statistics for
complaints received on permitted short-term rentals.

o A review of a survey of current short-term rental permitees on the uses of their residences prior
to use as a short-term rental and also their comments on the permitting process.

o Planning Department staff comments on issues with implementation of the code in its current
form.

NEXT STEPS: A form of this presentation will be given to the Planning Commission on Apil}4,2017 and
input from the Commission gathered at that time. If required, the Planning Department will return to the
Board with answers to any questions raised by this report and workshop, and draft development policy, if so

directed by the Board

OTHERAGENCY INVOLVEMENT: Inyo County Treasurer/Tax Collector, Inyo County Assessor, Inyo
County Environmental Health Department and Inyo County Building and Safety.

FINANCING: General fund resources are utilized for this review and for the code enforcement portion of
our short-term rental ordinance implementation. Short-term rental permits are subject to permit fees on a
cost recovery basis.



Agenda Request
Page 3

DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE:
(Not to be signed until all approvals are received)

Date:

Attachment: Status of Short Term Rentals in Inyo County Report, Dated April 3, 2019

L ' i [eor]

COUNTY
COTINSEL:

AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION
AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by county counsel prior to
submission to the board clerk.)

AUDITOR/CONTR
OLLER:

ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved
by the auditor-controller prior to submission to the board clerk.)

PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the
director of personnel services prior to submission to the board clerk.)

PERSONNEL
DIRECTOR:

APPROVALS



Status of Short Term Rentals in lnyo County

Prepared April 3, 2019

Background

ln February 20L8, the lnyo County Board of Supervisors passed an ordinance allowing for short-
term rentals to be permitted within the County. Two types of permits were addressed in the
ordinance: hosted short-term rental permits, where the owner of a property is the host, and
resides in the rented residence while renting rooms within the house to guests; and non-hosted
short-term rental permits, where the renter has use of an entire residence, and the property is

managed by a property manager. The Planning Department began excepting applications for
short-term rentals on April 20,20L8.

Additionally, with the passage of the ordinance, the Planning Department also has the authority
to issue Notices of Violation to unpermitted short-term rentals. After an initialgrace period to
encourage compliance, the Planning Department began code enforcement on non-permitted
short-term rentals in late July, 2018.

This evaluation of the current status of short-term rentals in the County will address:

o Numbers and statistics relating to issued permits for short term rentals in the County

o Numbers and statistics relating to code enforcement of non-permitted short-term
rentals in the County

o A look at staff time spent on short-term rental code enforcement as well as outside
contract services that could be available to the County for code enforcement.

o A review of staff implementation of the permitting process.

o A review of the complaint process for permitted short-term rentals and the statistics for
complaints received on permitted short-term rentals.

o A review of a survey of our current short-term rental permittees on the uses of their
residences prior to use as a short-term rental and also their comments on the
permitting process.

o Planning Department staff comments on issues with implementation of the code in its
current form.

Permits lssued for Short-Term Rentals

The Planning Department has issued 29 hosted permits and 14 non-hosted permits. The County
ordinance, as passed, requires applicants for non-hosted permits to first have a hosted permit.
Of the 29 hosted permits, 13 were obtained solelyforthe purpose of obtaining a non-hosted
permit, and the applicant has no intent to utilize these hosted permits except as a stepping
stone to obtaining the non-hosted permit, therefore, there are 30 distinct short-term rental
units permitted to rent in the County (15 hosted and 14 non-hosted) since the adoption of the
ordinance in February 2OL8. There are 3 operators who have both an active hosted short-term



rental and a non-hosted shortterm rental. A list of all of the approved short-term rentals is

Attachment A to this report. Maps of the locations of these short-term rentals are attachments
B through F.

Currently the Planning Department has 6 short term rental permits that are being processed. Of
these, 2 already have obtained their approval for the hosted permits, and 4 of the permits are

still pending. All 6 of these non-hosted permits are obtaining the hosted permit solely for the
purpose of obtaining the non-hosted permit. The Planning Department also has t hosted
permit that is being processed that is not associated with a non-hosted rental.

A Breakdown of Permits by Community

Communitv Total Permits

Bishop area

Bishop Outskirts
Wi lkerson/Sta rlite/40 Acres/Aspendell

Big Pine

Lone Pine

Alabama Hills

Tecopa

6

6

Hosted

3

2

Non-Hosted

3

4

3

8

5

1

L

3

3

0

2

5

3

7

The Planning Department has also looked at the contentiousness of the permits that have been
permitted. Of the 30 rentals,4 have had 2 or more neighbors contactthe Planning Department
by phone or mail or speak out at the Planning Commission during the permit process. These

calls related to short-term rentals in West Bishop, McLaren, Aspendell and the Alabama Hills.

Two additional short-term rentals have had 1 neighbor each that has voiced significant levels of
concern (both of these were by mail). For the remaining 24 there have been no significant
objections raised by neighbors. Some of the hosted permits did have general concerns about
short-term rentals expressed on the comment line of their Neighborhood Agreement Form, but
because those comments were not project specific, and did not go into any depth, they were
not included in those with complaints.

Enforcement of Non-Permitted Short-Term Rentals

The Planning Department has issued 3L Notices of Violation via certified mailto property
owners who have an unpermitted short-term rental operating on their property. Because of
substantial initial numbers, enforcement has happened in 3 waves. Unpermitted short-term
rentals in the greater Bishop and Big Pine areas were notified in July and August of 2018; along
the southern 395 corridor in October and November of 2018 and in the areas east of the Owens

Valley in February 2019. With each successive wave, previous checked areas were back-checked

for updated status of the previous Notices of Violations as well as checked for any new
unpermitted short-term rentals that had begun advertising in the previously checked areas.



The current status of the 31 Notices of Violation is as follows

o 9 responded to the Notice of Violation and indicated that they were closing their rental,
which was later verified. Those that closed fell into 3 categories: Operators who felt that
the County's process was too onerous or costly; Operators who were just experimenting
and this helped finalize their decision not to pursue short-term rentals; and operators
who were in an R2 zone where short-term rentals were not permitted.

o 5 operators or property owners never responded, but subsequent research by staff
showed that their operations were no longer active.

o 1"L submitted applications for short-term rental permits.

. 2, from the last wave of enforcement, have been in communication with the Planning
Department and are in the process of getting applications in.

o 3 were exempt from our Short-Term Rental Ordinance. 2 of these were in an RV park

where a CUP allows for nightly rental of the spaces. The third was operating as a long-
term rental, actually catering to month-to-month rentals, and modified its online
advertising to make this clearer.

r f. is still an ongoing matter, as the certified letter sent to the address in the tax records
was returned.

While putting together this report, 5 more possible unpermitted short-term rentals were
identified, and research and, if appropriate, Notices of Violation will be sent out this month

Staff Time for Enforcement of Code and Contract Services

As of Febru ary 2019, Staff has spent approximately 100 hours on code enforcement, and the
billable rate for an Associate Planner is approximately S50 per hour, so this represents about

SS,0OO investment by the County in initial enforcement. Future staff time for enforcement is

estimated at 10-20 hours per quarter, or 5500 to S1,000 per quarter in staff time expense.

Several services provide short-term rental code enforcement services to municipalities.
Planning Department staff contacted three of these firms. The firms were Harmari, by LTAS

Technologies, lnc.; LODGINGRevs; and Host Compliance. All of these companies provide

unpermitted rental detection, and the access to a website where information on permitted and

unpermitted rentals is gathered so it can be viewed in various formats. Other services they
provide are: oversight of the application process (for very simple processes...basically form and

fee collection); mailing of letters and robocalling for enforcemen! use of computer analysis to
predict transient occupancy tax for a rental for use in tax collection compliance; and providing a

complaint hot-line. Almost all of these services would be automated. Host Compliance is

currently being used by the Town of Mammoth Lakes, and is currently merging with another
company, STR Helper by Bear Cloud Software. Staff received proposals from allthree of these
companies



A summary of pricing estimates that were given for lnyo County:

Harmari - 52,500 for first year, and then S1,250 for each following year

LODGINGRevs - S1,000 initial fee and then 5300 per month (or 53,600 per year)

Host Compliance - 52,640 per year for Address ldentification, $1,320 per year for
Compliance Monitoring ($3,960 per year total)

These plans, while different in the details, all will identify rentals, sort them into permitted and

unpermitted and then provide data on both that is accessible online. For the prices above,
enforcement would still be on the County. Services for application acceptance and enforcement
did not seem to cover the County's process.

ln general, the Planning Department found that these services would be very valuable to a

municipality with hundreds to thousands of rentals, but costs were not justified for the small

amount of rentals in lnyo County, especially given the amount of enforcement responsibilities
that would still be on staff even with the implementation of one of these programs.

4 pages of the 38 page Host Compliance proposal are included to give a flavor of what these
companies offer as Attachment G

The Permitting Process

Often owners interested in getting a short-term rental contact the Planning office either via
phone or stopping by the front counter. Staff will generally do the following:

o Provide an application

o Provide a hand-out that goes through all of the requirements for a hosted or non-hosted
permit

o Discuss with the potential applicant the differences between hosted and non-hosted
permits and which is applicable to them.

o Review the zoning of the potential applicant's property and make sure short-term
rentals are permitted on their property.

o Review the items that need to be submitted that are sometimes troubling to applicants,
particularly the site/parking plan and the house rules.

Once an application is received, the process is slightly different for the two types of permits.

Hosted Short-Term Rentals

L. Review the application and make sure all elements required are present

2. Route the application to 3 other departments for review: Environmental Health
Department, Assessor's Department, and the Building and Safety Department. Staff
requests 10 business days for this review.



3. Within a week of receiving the application, the planner in charge of a project will
provide the applicant with the Neighborhood Agreement Form, after utilizing GIS to
identify the addresses of all properties within 300' of the project property.

4. Thoroughly review the application for compliance with the short-term rental code.

5. lf any deficiencies are noted by either the project planner or from the review by other
departments, the applicant is sent an lncomplete Application Letter, and elements that
need to be provided or fixed are described in the letter.

6. The applicant must also provide the completed Neighborhood Agreement Form to the
Planning Department, on which they have obtained signatures and possibly comments
from their neighbors. The applicant is required to obtain as many signatures as possible.

lf a property is vacant, or no resident is present, the applicant must note that in the
comments. The form specifies that the applicant must make a diligent effort to obtain a

signature. Staff has considered 3 attempts at different days and different times of day to
be an adequate effort. Staff has allowed, on a limited basis, applicants to forego getting
a signature if they have reason to believe that the attempt could result in verbal or
bodily harm. All signatures not obtained must be fully documented as to why on the
form. lf the form is not deemed complete it will be returned to the applicant for
completion.

7. Once the application and the Neighborhood Agreement form are complete, an approval
letter is drafted and signed by the director. The approval letter can include conditions of
approval which would be based on issues raised by County staff or on the Neighborhood
Agreement Form.

8. After the project is approved, a letter is sent to all of the property owners within 300

feet to let them know a short-term rental has been approved within 300 feet of their
property and giving them the emergency contact information for the host and at least

one additional contact. A letter is sent, at the same time, to the applicant and includes
their obligations in the event of a complaint and also in the event that any contact
information changes.

Non-Hosted Short-Term Rentals

L. Review the application and make sure all elements required are present.

2. Route the application to 3 other departments for review: Environmental Health
Department, Assessor's Department, and the Building and Safety Department. Staff
requests 10 business days for this review.

3. Thoroughly review the application for compliance with the short-term rental code.

4. lf any deficiencies are noted by either the project planner or from the review by other
departments, the applicant is sent an lncomplete Application Letter, and elements that
need to provided or fixed are described in the letter.

5. Before proceeding any further with a Non-Hosted Permit Application, the associated

Hosted Permit must be obtained. Originally Planning Department staff allowed the



Hosted and Non-Hosted permits to run through both processes concurrently, as long as

it was evident that the hosted permit process was completed first, but because this
resulted in some confusion among neighbors as they were being notified by the two
different methods for the two different processes, at around the same time, staff now
will only proceed with the Public Hearing for a Non-Hosted Permit once the Hosted
Permit is approved.

6. Prepare a Planning Commission Staff Report for the project, including descriptions, Code

compliance, General Plan compatibility, CEQA compliance and other relevant
information for the Planning Commission to utilize in their evaluation of the project.

7 . Provide proper notification of the public hearing in front of the Planning Commission.
This includes a notification in the lnyo Register and mailing of notices to all property
owners within 300'.

8. Staff then presents the project to the Planning Commission for their approval or denial.
The Planning Commission may also approve with conditions.

9. After the Planning Commission meeting, staff prepares a Notice of Decision, which
provides the applicant a written record of the decision of the Planning Commission and

lets the applicant know the appeal policies.

10. To date, all Non-Hosted Short Term Rental permits have been exempt from CEQA and it
is anticipated that will predominately be the case. After approval a Notice of Exemption
from CEQA is filed with the County Recorder.

9. After the project is approved, a letter is sent to all of the property owners within 300
feet to let them know a short-term rental has been approved within 300 feet of their
property and includes the emergency contact information for property manager. A
letter is sent at the same time to the applicant and contains their obligations in the
event of a complaint and also in the event that any contact information changes.

Complaints Against Permitted Short-Term Rentals

lf an applicant receives a complaint about their short-term rental, the County Code obligates
them to notify the Planning Department of the complaint. Failure to do so could result in
revocation of the permit. lf the applicant receives a complaint, they may have to demonstrate
what they are doing to prevent future complaints. Failure to address a complaint or a pattern of
complaints can result in revocation of the short-term rental permit.

At this time, the Planning Department has only been made aware of 2 complaints against a

permitted short-term rental. Both complaints were against the same rental. The L't complaint
was about a guest's car alarm that went off at 9:45 p.m. lt took the neighbor about L5 minutes
from the neighbor contacting the emergency contact to the operator being able to contact the
renters. By the time the operator contacted the renter the alarm had been stopped. On the
following day, the neighbor contacted the Planning Department and pointed out that the
operator was required to contact the Planning Department, which had not happened yet. A
standard letter was sent to the operator reminding them of their obligation to notify the



Planning Department of any complaint that arose out of this incident. The second complaint
was that a tenant, on their own accord, wheeled the trash can out to the street, where strong
winds blew the lid of the trash can open and scattered paper products around the
neighborhood. The operator properly notified the County of the complaint and also arranged
for a dumpster to be put on the property, so that there would be not trash at any time out on

the street. The operator arranged the dumpster pro-actively and provided paperwork
documenting the dumpster rental to the County.

Survey of Operators of Permitted Short Term Rentals

Staff contacted all applicants who now have been awarded short-term rental permits in the
County. Of the 30 short-term rentals permitted to operate in the County, staff obtained
responsesfrom the operators of 24of the rentals (21 individuals, asthere are 3 operators of
both hosted and non-hosted rentals). The following questions were asked:

1. Did you stop operating as a long-term rental in order to operate as a short-term rental?

2. Have you ever operated this property as a long-term rental?

3. Did you purchase or construct this property with the intent of operating it as a short-
term rental?

4. Do you live in the residence you rent or on the same property?

5. Do you have any comments, negative or positive, about the process you had to go

through to obtain your short-term rental permit?

And following is a summary of the results of this survey

L 5of the 24rentals (21o/ol surveyed had been used asa long-term rental immediately
prior to operating as a short-term rental

2. 11- of the 24 rentals (460/ol surveyed had been used as a long-term rentalat some point.

A side note, 4 of the people who had responded thot their residence had been

used for a long-term rentol went on to say that the renters were month-to-month
like the traveling nurses thot work at Northern lnyo Hospital and thot they would
still rent to those "medium-term" renters ogoin if the opportunity came up.

3. 4 of the 24 rentals (L7%) surveyed indicated that they purchased or constructed the
residence with the intent of operating it as a short-term rental.

4. 16 of the 24 rentals (670/0) surveyed indicated that they lived on the same property as

the rental. Conversely , 8 of 24 rentals (33%l lived off site.

5. The responses to question 5 varied, but the main highlights are listed below (if a
comment was received multiple times, that number of times is indicated in a

parentheses after the comment):

o No comment other than very happy with the whole process (7)



. lt does not make sense that they had to get a hosted permit to get a non-hosted
permit (3)

o Did not like having to go door to door to the neighbors (2)

o The form should not be called a Neighborhood Agreement form when its purpose is

acknowledgment and not agreement. (2)

o The 300' radius to get signatures is too large. Covers properties that are on other
streets that seem unaffected by the rental. (2)

o The combined permit fee for the hosted plus non-hosted seems a bit too expensive.
(21

o lt's fine that the County is regulating this, but there should be some sort of
regulation of the campers living in the Buttermilks that are living for free and making
a mess too.

r The process seems overly bureaucratic, and while that might be required, more
explanation of why the applicant is doing what they are doing would be nice.

o While hosted rentals should be permitted, non-hosted rentals should not be

permitted. The operator should be in the house.

o lt would be nice if the taxes could come out automatically with AirBnB and then the
operators would not have to send them in separately to the Tax Collector.

Copies of the raw survey results are Attachment H

Planning Department Staff Recommendations for Modifications to the Code

Two items seem to be the most troubling while implementing this code:

The form that the applicants for Hosted Short-Term permits must obtain signatures on is
called the "Neighborhood Agreement Form". This name is specified in the lnyo County
Code. The instructions on the form attempt to make clear that signing the form is an

acknowledgment that a short-term rental is being applied for and that the signer can

then comment as appropriate. Many applicants have encountered that the neighbors
are often confused, and some have refused to sign because they see the word
"Agreement" in the title of the form and they are unwilling to agree (usually because

they have general concerns about short-term rentals as a concept). Staff would
recommend that the language in the Code be changed and then the name of the form
be changed to something more like "Neighborhood Acknowledgement Form".

The need to obtain a hosted permit prior to obtaining a non-hosted permit is another
element that may not be showing the results as intended. The intent was to create a

form of residency requirement, because the possessor of a hosted short-term rental
permit must be in residence when the short-term rental is in use; however, the hosted
rental need not ever be used. An out of County home-owner can first obtain a hosted

a

o



short-term rental permit, and bind themselves to being in the residence when the
property is used as a hosted short-term rental. They then obtain the non-hosted short-
term rental permit, operate under this permit, and never utilize the hosted permit.
There are currently 3 approved non-hosted permits to second home owners who do not
reside permanently in the County. All 3 of these were respondents to the survey and 2
of the 3 indicated that they were glad for the short-term rentals as they provide them
with enough income to continue to own a second home in lnyo County.

Attachments

o Attachment A - List of Permitted Short Term Rentals

o Attachment B - Map of Permitted Short Term Rentals in lnyo County

o Attachment C - Map of Permitted Short Term Rentals, Bishop Area

o Attachment D - Map of Permitted Short Term Rentals, Big Pine Area

o Attachment E - Map of Permitted Short Term Rentals, Lone Pine Area

o Attachment F - Map of Permitted Short Term Rentals, Alabama Hills

o Attachment G - Portions of Proposal from Home Compliance for Short Term Rental

Monitoring

r Attachment H - Short Term Rental Survey (Survey of Existing Permittees)



Attachment A

Permitted Short Term Rentals

Communitv
Alabama Hills/Lone Pine

Wilkerson/Bishop
Alabama Hills/Lone Pine

lie f 1e
Tecopa

Big Pine

Lone Pine

Lone Pine

Lone Pine

Bighop

Lone Pine

Bishop

!lshop
Alabama Hills/Lone Pine

Sta rlite/Bishop
Lone Pine

Bishop

Bishop

Bishop

40 Acres/Bishop
Alabama Hills/Lone Pine

Lone Pine

Big Pine

Lone Pine

40

Alabama Hills/Lone Pine

Starlite/Bishop
Alabama Hills/Lone Pine

Aspendell/Bishop
Lone Pine

Addresss
480 Thundercloud Lane

29 Quail Lane

260 Tuttle Creek Road

136 Elmcrest Drive

io srnt"i noiJ
107 Elmcrest Drive

2?s N Mt: Whitlel Dglve

19L Kellogg Street
104 Lasky Lane

2505 Dixon Lane

551 West Whitney Portal Road

2327 Longview Drive

305 Mt. Tom Road

201 Dominy Road

313 Apollo Circle

301 S. Mt. Whitney Drive

595 Brockman Lane

324 Mclaren Lane

2483 Sunrise Drive

100 Hardy Road

1090 Shahar Avenue

637 E. Muir St.

171 Flower Avenue

560 West Bush Street, #B

140 Hardy Road

1055 Shahar Avenue

304 Altair Circle

1575 Indian st{lst Irty"
200 Sierra Summit Drive

650 School Street

Business Name/Description
Gorgeous retreat amidst stunning rock formations

Cozy & Serene Eastern Sierra Getaway
Alabama Hills Mount Whitney Retreat

Trudie Millerburg's Tavern

Villa Anita

Quiet Creekside House

Ultra Basecamp! Mt. Whitney Room

Sierra Getaway
J&J Meadows

Peaceful-Views of Sierra-Artisan Home

Million Dollar Views and lndoor Pool

Sunny Room with Privat Entry and Private Bath

Peaceful, with Mountain Views and Ponds

Bright and Spacious 3 Br Retreat in Nature
Eastern Sierra, Buttermilk Country, Bishop

Lkiane & Niko's Eastern Sierra Getaway

The Baby Boomers Tiny House Dream Lodge

Cute West Bishop Cottage

Western Lodge

Raven Creek Rental

4 Acre Alabama Hills Mt Whitney Relaxing Getaway

Cory!.uirCottqge lllqwl - Pet Friendly

Big Pine Cottage Hideaway

Mt. Whitney View Home!

Trinity Creek

Newly Remodeled Home on 5 Acres in Alabama Hills

Non-Hosted lBishop climbing, skiing, hiking with a view cottage

Non-Hosted a Hills Chalet with stunn vtew5

Non-Hosted ummit in Aspendell

Non-Hosted Spanish Bungalow in Little Hollywood

Type
Hosted

Hosted

Hosted

Hosted

Hosted

Hosted

Hosted

Hosted

Hosted

Hosted

Hosted

Hosted

Hosted

Hosted

Hosted

Hosted

Non-Hosted

Non-Hosted

Non-Hosted

Non-Hosted

Non-Hosted

Non-Hosted

Non-Hosted

Non-Hosted

Non-Hosted

Non-Hosted

Operator
William (Doue) Kari

Erin Elliott

Sarah McCabe & Jaime Lopez-Wolters

Tru9ie Millerburg
David Aaron Smith

Andrea Kramer

Robert Huizar

George Castaneda

lov Burgner

lasmine Beaghler

lenifer Castaneda

Rose Curran

Gisela Huntley
Setsuko Hayata

Nikolai & Debora Barbieri

Nikolas Athanasiou & Liane Herrick

Charisse Rudolph

Kim Moberly
Laura Gleason

William Stewart

Diane & Michael Campbell

Robert Huizar

Robert Steele

lenifer Castaneda

Pau!& Pam Payne

Setsuko Hayata

Daniel and Tracy David

Kennon and Melanie Sheldon

Andrew Wilson
lessica Ary



Attachment lJ

Map of Permitted Short Term Rentals in lnyo Gounty

?,NE S, N',TSA, FSA,
r-" .*. -t i 1-

U

p

METI

I

I Non-Hosted Rentals

Hosted Rentals

County Boundary

Legend

eE
2

a

.$

sP"

PA

'7

t
4?

.:-

P+2,,,n$t

4#o

I

I

I

P ine {_

l&u.!tain

I
an

k,

o

.t

tLm

I

l

tn
h
!

ir.T
-.-t 1i I

1..

._lz-
i

I
7

19 I

J

(n
t

^*.r:'..
2

i-r:'

Content may not refl-ect

Geog raph ic, tn
. w^offiord GEBCO NOAA. ln

Miles
01020 40 60 80



ALIAUIUIIEIIL \-

Map of Permitted Short Term Rentals, Bishop Area

(lI
(.]

c-
U.\

niafK€

Keci;qti $1

Gr.cr'e.5t

0rl

E Pine $:
I

[{ay Sr

I

F
Sierra Si F.il

I

l
ti

Bisfrop

Dixon Ln

n
J
c,
6
E
Ll

-.p
co

t0t st

..rre Dr
4g

=v)

N
cn*davr Dr

AL)

o
lI

g
J
I
<{

,lr,orti Fo,'l *t-<fioP {''ar'*

NU
;$j g6p6=llgrry* # :i":j rr'--

J

l]

(a

,-, d

- -.- -!r It"

o^u ''

.l

Z
Eishop Paiute

ln dian
Reservation

=(n:t*
7

s
u,
z

I
Taoccse Ln

',ry !.ine gt"

tf ., ' 
i.9-a ''

rl
f: o)
ICqE
€0-
l,:tr

, .,. i,9

C
J
G

!r
.,. G

o-
t-r)

Ex t:
J

G
G
il
rY L!

rc
llr
c0 ffirise Ln

a
6

tJ,6e :*'t\ay Long'.'ie'Qt i

content may not ,"tr""t ruii*??3uL[r"pni"'. .r,."n, tlp policy. sourbes -:lfiit
6e-6d'rabfricf 

-Esn. Garmin. HERE. UNEP-WCMC USCSJ ruRSn. ESA. METI, NRCAN,
GEBCO, NOAA, increment P Corp. Fi:hc'pr

City of Bishop Boundary

Non-Hosted Rentals

Hosted Rentals

tr
o

Legend

Ultderircco Ln

10 0.25 0.5 '1.5 2
Miles



Map of Permitted Short Term Rentals, Big Pine Area
Attachment L,

Miles

National
, NRCANMSA,

S

(/}lu
E

I
t!,
{1}

Pine Rd ,l lul

Terrace

,,,,]

I

c Rd

Ba[er Creek Rd
ul
E..o
(J

Baker Creek Rd
L

ai,
z

Center $t

$chool St
_, -.:.

.. t:..
: ._..- ..---t:"

N ct> |

W crocker AYe
s
o-

l

I

1

6l
;1(at
q)r

3

q9
o8

Cornell $t F
o(d

$
tl$o

-K

s)
6o
(,a

l

lContent may

E Non-Hosted Rentals

O Hosted Rentals

Legend

q'\

0 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.8



ALLAUIIIICIIL.D

Map of Permitted Short Term Rentals, Lone Pine Area

Statha$\'{a'l

_Rd
.q@"'

eql '

C,,onn r,

o

I

I

Lone Prne

N

A

Natio
NRCA
e Plne

Avc

. $+'d 
-

I
got\\

q^oalcng cassrdY

nbt'reflect Nat
Geographic, Esri, Garmin, H
GEBCO, NOAA, increment P

Lsbkefr

9

'o

..r tr

I

Content may

b

c
z

E i.lountarn \(evr St

OU'

E lt'-o st

raph

t Lsusi St

=I

c

g

z

F Posl St

*g

.rdnt
USGS

z

.l)

.t
o
"€

'J.i 
Bus'

&

g

E

F

map

St

ic's policy Sources nal
N

cu
E

Tt.
Lain

N

Leg

ffi
o

end

Non-Hosted Rentals

Hosted Rentals

EP-WCMC NASA, ESA, ME
Re*rva!im

Miles
0 0.15 0.3 0.6 0.9 1.2



ALLAUIUII€IIt T

Map of Permitted Short Term Rentals, Alabama Hills

Thundercloud d4 Pa!,ne Rd N

A
o

o

Sunsel Dr

,rrff'
Ararafta 

O,

t

q

0a

I

Ooonanynr

/.̂A/d^

'6;

a^

Content may not reflect National Geographic's current map policy. Sources National
Geographic, Esri, Garmin, HERE, UNEP-WCMC, USGS, NASA, ESA, METI, NRCAN,
GEBCO, NOAA, increment P Corp.

eg

@

o
Non-Hosted Rentals

Hosted Rentals

L end

Miles
0 0.15 0.3 0.6 0.9 1.2



Attachment G

Affordable modular pricing tailored to lnyo County's needs

Mobile Registration $s,ooo /yr

Add ress ldentification $z,6q0 lVr

Compliance Monitoring it,rzo lvr

Rental Activity Monitoring $t,t60 lvr

2417 Dedicated Hotline Sr,os6 lvr

Note: Above pricing ossumes 88 short-term rental listings and based in IJSD. Host Compliance would be happy

to discuss olternative SOWs, contract terms, contract durations and pricing structures if that would be of
interest.4_.

HOST COMPLIANCE

R
-e#>
"*-\

tfr



Address ldentification: Get weekly reports on lnyo Gounty's short-term rental
activity incl. complete address information and screenshots of all identifiable STRs

e i g I https:rlapp.klipfolio"com.ldashl:r:arri

IiApF nSrGd nHotTori5 nEE$dsbct' nFiC t}rctunml tltlcDoltinqftrffEl t}l{CRaerocVID-!
a*Ef,Ooet", E=

ClNaTmcadidet Dicoopur CltcMA2016 bro15ofi.riE ClicuPlrn DRqls Dwld s

.:,#; fty Oo$b.dr (norlrrr. "

Kr (lipfolio

343
STR Properties in or near Jurisdiction

t32
sTR ListinEs in or n€ar Jurisdiction Added Last Month

95.39/o
sTR Properties in or n€ar Jurisdiction successfully

ldenttfled

:!

ri

:

l

i1:

t

I'
in

l1

ri

f

,:

Listings Funnel

*'!:I-'

I eiF@r v*d;s,#bri-91
I * ldF osd'r!'s$. isl
n @+ n Bffi* in .' 6i rrd@ l!*j
I ffiFSs6{ tnr@$e teH f/Sffi l*rj
I ffrf& stur3& ewitd r d.'!4!s{r33}

Listing Types Listings I Month

o ()

:*@ryF,ljM$e

&a-{Fqwtfialdryh*n*sF

B€drooms / Bathrooms Breakdown

()
lsEbh' !€rg t

a
I

I blxi*1y!{ql.*.1

Minimurn Rental Nights Dlstributlon (g/oJ ldentified sTR Properties in Jurisdiction /

I]*,ffi ial+l
lrwsr i63i:

r "'d'Re Month
1rffiffid

'r --.- 
r' r

-l!#ffiill)
l -'M+8ft:ttoj I III

"4'HOST GOMPLIANCE
26



Address ldentification: Complete listing information and
screenshots of all identifiable STRs

tut n X
M3kh$prcpeqlGtB x

C Oifrane.ve(stronrentalspr.con r,.,':1.,:.t,','..: '",,.'.,-., 1"t O. f F 9
ii': tppt Slvd tor Tcpis i E CA! --, e'. In.:o.. t Dlr Il! hb( 3 ,t. t 1r.ctr clF code - \t F(

i3;
EI

go*lCodpliance

13733 Heidi Way, Truckee, CA, United
States

a

rrBt. 32r5r9566.n?CAA:

ffi;InrruffiH ili:l i+a ..r - -:"a; :l !r "i."

t4dli:t'rt Dt,1J,rr

Aror"r ,, j

: r;'r 9:r,:r).t:: jj: 1. arr;_"+i:a!::i. r:l: :i:

i! ir:ll- . li llil 3l

lri: ta :: l

! ,.*,, ,. r.," . u,r:

fdlrEd Forerv l*iig x

Q Qrfranera:alcrr€ntii:prcon :,::.,:..::.i',ii L:,:t;1.. i't1:,:r:::-t:)'it. l::,ltr.a;l]C\'"r..r q * E g g 
'& i

iii:pp' Svtd F6tlq:,c .::: EtAl -l-&ol'ft:ai. lrBrk tEr.b.. I $r Dd..oe tapriodrrilf lc "

:l :. 1 !Jt.. l:
!L:,]':r,-l D''i'jriri ilir:,:i,:t:i :;;: l: -!

trX

rin:

H6rCo.p,dnce r,rnqrrD

Lrsrn€ hrolsfc€Fared

Scree^5io! lBi. lurrrr{d

.ri-1:1.:-;:!r::::i:

:ar arr i'::: :!!F, !i{

r.* ;::-':

&cdrnreu, Lasi 12 Dlorlhl

En;ns:e<. l.5r 1! Mrnihr

!:.tt:

!:1 l-

:,rk,l:r: ) li-:l!.rr

.:, 1+ e i:: a :ri_arir:a::,,.r:':::{.:914 4il
-."1: )taiati,

ii i lt:\.iu)/ \eJ Sinr,

€l : ri:(irr,irleij st!/!

flrar il.jtia" F.rvi:i'-ai iri ir::tLr (-

fi'rimrr Si.rlrolNqh*)

Mnr Se.Frng laF:iv {: ojP:npl+r

-:i :l::i:. - t:: ::,.1:li

:
:

\ir:i-

.f iIl\1.t, lllfrf',trr* ielll
.jr,;".,rt: :.:r, ., jil

EE

ir rtir.r ::: r,: |'rr!i rir::ia,,\

tilililillNi

I ! )1.1 tta't'rtd :\?ii:

3 l rJa ifir'riifl jlri

J r..f i r:rr-1, 1.: i rJrlll:b!,iir i:li, ri t.r:i

a iii,l' a:,.'lr t rl';: tiii)ri;!i'i i' !i Aitrl !

*
HOST COMPLIANCE

27



Benefits to using Host Compliance's services

d Ensures fair, continuous and consistent compliance monitoring and
enforcement

d Frees up valuable staff time that can be focused on higher-value added
a ctivities

d Minimizes noise, parking and trash violations

d Minimizes the impact on local law and code enforcement agencies as

complaints are first handled by our 24/7 hotline and routed to the
appropriate property owner before further enforcement actions are
triggered

d Maximizes Inyo County's tax and permit fee collections

d REVENUE POSITIVE - in most cases, the additional permitting fees
alone pays for Host Compliance's services several times

d Requires NO up-front investment or complicated lT integration
-> we can be up and running in a couple of weeks

d 6 MONTH UNCONDITIONAL MONEY BACK GUARANTEE!

1
HOST COMPLIANGE

33



Attachment H

Short Term Rental Survey
Conducted March 22nd through March 2g'^,zOLg

Questions Asked:

1. Did you stop operating as a long term rental in order to operate as a short term rental?

2. Have you ever operated this property as a long term rental?

3. Did you purchase or construct this property with the intent of operating as a short term rental?

4. Do you live in the residence you rent or on the same property?

5. Do you have any comments, negative or positive, about the process you had to go through to

obtain your short-term rental permit.

Laura Gleason, NH-STR-2018-03 (H-STR-2018-081

1. Yes, I rented the rental for 6 months on a month-to-month basis prior to renting it as a short-

term rental. The long-term renters really tore the place up. They had a dog. lt seems like the

short-term renters don't get a chance to do too much damage and anything gets caught quickly

2. Never rented as a long-term rental other than the 6-month period described in the last answer.

3. No, originally the residence was my primary residence, but I relocated to the central coast.

4. No, I operate the property as a non-hosted rental and live on the Central Coast, but my mom

helps and also lives in West Bishop

5. Happy with how everything went. I had a Zoning Violation and I wasn't as happy about that

process, but I had no issues with the permitting process.

Jenifer Castaneda, H-STR-2018-18 & NH-STR-2018-09

7. No for both properties

2. The Non-Hosted rented was rented in the past for a few months, to a transient work crew.

3. No, for both properties.

4. Yes for the hosted rental, and no for the non-hosted rental.

5. One thing that was bothersome was the form we took around for signatures for the hosted

permit looks like they are approving it and should say that they are acknowledging it.

Deborah Barbieri, H-STR-2018-25

t. No

2. No

3. No, this is my primary residence. The kids moved out, so now they are renting the kid's room as

a short-term rental. We have owned the house for 20 years

4. Yes

5. I have no problem with the process we had to go through, but it drives me crazy that we have to

go through all of this process, meanwhile the people are living for free in the Buttermilks and

making a mess that we, the taxpayers, are going to have to clean up. Also the 300' radius

seemed a little far to go for notifying.



William Stewart, NH-STR-2018-04 (H-STR-2018-091

1. Prior to getting a permit, I operated as both a short term and long term rental. The long term

was just month-to-month for traveling hospital workers, usually at 2-3 months at a time. I would

still rent to them if the opportunity presents itself.

2. n/a

3. No

4. I live on same property but in a separate residence.

5. lt seems unfair to do both Host and No Host permits when I have no plans to use the hosted

permit.

Diana Campbell, NH-STR-2018-05 (H-STR-2O18-101

1-. Yes,. We did operate as a long term rental. But we wanted to be able to use the house again, so

going to a short-term rental allowed us to get some income and use the house for ourselves.

2. Yes

3. No

4. No

5. We really liked how the process got the neighbors involved. Also seemed well thought out, with

looking at parking, looking at how many can stay and all the other things to regulate

appropriately.

Bob Steele, NH-STR-2018-08 (H-STR-2018-171

1,. No, not as a long term rental. My mom and grandma lived there prior to it being a short-term

rental. lt was a good way to keep the house and keep it in the family after they had to move.

2. Yes it has in the past (like 25 years ago).

3. No, the house out back is what we are renting, but we purchased the property from my parents

as our primary residence.

4. Yes

5. Sf .0OO seems a bit pricey. [the amount for a hosted plus a non-hosted application deposit]. I

have no issues on taxes. Over 200 people have rented and they love it. They use restaurants and

store and do a lot of business in Big Pine.

Hari Nam S. Elliott, H-STR-2018-02

1-No
2. We have rented to Seasonal BLM Workers in the past.

3. No, we bought house because they really liked it. lt was a bigger house then we needed.

4. Yes

5. We did not like reaching out to neighbors initially, but it went better than we thought, and by

the end we kind of liked the opportunity. You should make it clearer how an applicant deals with

a neighbor who won't sign.



Trudie Mllerburg, H-STR-2018-05

t. Yes, I rented to an elderly man for 2.5 years, and then rented it to someone who used it when

moving to the area, for about 8 months, and before that to a couple moving out from Georgia,

also for about 8 months,

2. n/a

3. No

4. Yes

5. I have stopped operating. I found that amount of work was too much for what it cost. Also, my

brother died. And amount of time for the business property taxes is too much.

Getting signatures for people within 300', seemed like it was capturing too large of an area. A

couple neighbors each way seems more reasonable.

Charisse Rudolph, NH-STR-2018-01 (H-STR-2018-031

1,. No

2. No

3. Yes

4. Yes, I live on the property.

5. No comments on the process. lt seemed good. Actually I do have one comment. I did not like

that I had to pay for the hosted and non-hosted permits when solely operating as a non-hosted

Andrea Kramer, H-STR-2018-11

L. No

2. I have rented in the past to long term renters. They were 1 year lease minimum.

3. No, originally just as a residence.

4. Yes

5. I am against Non-Hosted renters. I think it hurts long-term rentals. I am upset about the non-

hosted rental across the street [which at this time is unpermitted]. Also, the curfew at 9:00

when all others are 10:00 seems strange. Posting regulations in the house she lives in seems

ridiculous. I should just have to distribute the rules through airBnB. The area has a ton of
parking. I would rather my guests be able to park on the street, because there is plenty of room

at her end of the street.

Yvette Castaneda, H-STR-2018-13

1. No

2. No

3. No

4. Yes

5. Thought the whole process was handled really well. Some signatures were hard to get, but that
just took some time. The County was fair and the process seemed good.



Robert Huizar, H-STR-2018-12 & NH-STR-2018-06

1.. No for both

2. Yes for both

3. Yes, the Hosted

4. Yes for the hosted and No for the non-hosted

5. From a Layman's point of view....it seems a little too much bureaucracy. But it might make

sense, so maybe a guide of why an applicant has to do what he has to do. Some people get a bit

outraged because they don't understand the process. So maybe an explanatory document.

Jasmine Beaghler, H-STR-2018-15

1,. No

2. No

3. No

4. Yes

5. Mostly the process was good and smooth. Staff was really good. I did not like the going to all of
the neighbors. That made the process lengthy and seemed a little excessive.

Kim Moberly, NH-STR-2018-02 (H-STR-2018-06)

t. Yes, I rented it out for about 3 months. Rented for a few months to some people who were

looking for a home to buy, and then to someone else from Mammoth for a few months, then for
Toiyabe temporary employee (a few months). I got these long-term renters from Coldwell

Banker.

2. Yes

3. No

4. No

5. Grateful that we have a process. The County helped guide me through the process. I did not like

having to get the signatures of the neighbors as I felt unliked by my neighbors. Also we need to

make it clear that the signature is not an agreement but an acknowledgment. People felt they

had a power over me because they could withhold a signature. Also I needed help from

someone, and I paid people to help me by going door to door with the signature sheets.

And rew Wi I son, N H-STR-20 t8-I7 ( H-STR-2018-30)

1. No

2. No

3. No

4. No, used to be primary residence

5. I did not understand the need for the hosted permit while reading the info online. Also seems

there is some confusion generally in the processing of the two permits.



Paul Payne, NH-STR-2O18-10 (H-STR-2018-191

L. No

2. No

3. No

4. Yes, we have been there about 15 years. We go to Highlands RV Park when renting, and I play a

lot of golf then.

5. Was glad the law legitimized this. Glad we are doing enforcement. lt appears to be working well

Glad taxes are being captured. And it seems to diversify the base. Our property doesn't rent

often because it is at the high end, but we like it that way. Only use 3 bedrooms just to limit the

impact (it's a 4 bedroom home). We have purposely limited the number of people. We would

like to rent once a month....that hasn't even happened. We may sell house. lt will depend on

how short-term rentals do over the summer. We have really been thrilled with the guests we've

had and getting to meet a very diverse group of people. On balance the public outreach, the

form of the code, it all was very good. Lots of protections of the neighbors, while allowing

people to have their businesses.

Jaime Lopez-Wolters, H-STR-2018-04

1. No

2. No

3. No

4. Yes, it is a hosted rental.

5. We applied on first day. The communication and clarity were good. The process was reasonably

expeditious. Actually liked that they had to talk to their neighbors (initially we were a little

hesitant). Glad we have an ordinance to allow for this.

Tracy Davi d, N H -STR-20 L8-1.4 ( H -STR-2018-261

L, NO

2. No

3. No, originally we were going to live in little house and then rent the main house as a long-term

rental. However, decided to switch after we finished building the little house.

4. Yes, in main house on property.

5. Seemed like a little too much money for the permit (non-hosted), but otherwise it seems great.

Really liked everyone lworked with.

Joy Burgner, H-STR-20L8-L4

t. No

2. No

3. Yes, I was at least considering the possibility when I was purchasing this house.

4. Yes, she is on the property part time, and another family member full time.

5. Staff was very nice and the process was reasonably easy and fair. Ryan was particularly good to

work with. Wish if we could have the taxes taken out by AirBnB directly, vs. having to send them

in to the Tax Collector.



Jilf Hayata, H-STR-2018-23 & NH-STR-2oL8-L2

t. No, for both

2. No, for both

3. Yes, for the non-hosted on Shahar

4. Yes for hosted, no for non-hosted

5. Felt process was easy. Staff was very nice and helpful.

Rose Curran, H-STR-20!.8-2O

1. No

2. No

3. No, just was her house before deciding to do the short-term rental

4. Yes, it is hosted

5. lt's all good. Wish there weren't taxes, but of course they make sense. lncome includes TOT

taxes, has concerns how it impacts personal income tax. ln general the short-term rental is

working for me and is allowing an income stream while I am disabled from an injury.

Each respondent was asked if they were OK with their answers being included in a public document and

all agreed to that.



#3aA

TLRR Licensing: lvanpah-Control
115kV Project

Project Overview

lnyo County Board of Supervisors
April 9,20L9

J s()u il il r.rN c^t rr (irtNt,\
Energy for What's Ahead"" EDISON"



Project Purpose and Need
. The lvanpah-Control Transmission Line

Rating Remediation (TLRR) Project will
enhance the safety of Southern
California Edison's (SCE's) sub-
transmission system, controlled by the
California l ndependent System Operator
(cAtso).

. The project will follow California Public
Utility Commission (CPUC) safety
standards and include remediation
activities such as replacing existing
structures with taller structures and
increasing cond uctor (wire) ground
clearances.

Energy for What's Ahead'" 2



Project Location

. The entire l-C project spans three counties and more than 358 miles, L1.6 miles of
which are in lnyo County.

. The project has north-south and east-west segments.

. The north-south portion is located within unincorporated San Bernardino,
Kern, lnyo and Mono counties, between the cities of Bishop and Ridgecrest.

. The east-west segments are located within the city of Barstow and
unincorporated Kern and San Bernardino counties.

o ffiost project construction will take place in existing rights-of-way to minimize
environ menta I im pacts.

Energy for What's Ahead'" 5



l-C Project: Full View

J FDISOY

O "-Li-i-

TLRR
fva tpafu C on trol Segn eu ts

Scal@t r - l15tvCt@rtg;
ContoLc66tlaiwe{nyoteh
Cdrhl+laireof,nyotm

S€gmt2- l1sftvCieiE:
f.,aFJq/ofecRaadohrg

S.gm.t3" tlSftVCbqrB:
KraG-Cat{6tcr
ffib
C@a[ritd-9ag! 2-Tddb

Sogffir4 - 115tV Ctu6:
h.anpah-Boldaoolt#-
D6n Sding-MsnlEh PN

I Sgbtd*rc

Energy for What's Ahead'" 4



l-C Project: lnyo County Detail

Divbon Creek

Coso Junclion

A Substations

r lvanpah€ontrol Proie€t

Ill Srarc Bounoary

Counlies

I Hisroriccenters o.-:--.!--i*
li

I orr#,ii un-r"e"
PATUTe SHOSltOuE

{9
eitJ

F,RFSNO
cour{TY

,. - ;t,"Lonei ..j

::.
INYO

COUNTY
Plne 5'4

DeathValley
NalionalPa*

' , -i".1

, r'.. ..
:, 1

lrei!9r
Furnace
Creek

Vtslic
Cartago

* o"Tlncha"

d,
Chim Lake

Valley';,r.
Walls '1.

i,:
,,: (

5Energy for What's Ahead'''



Timeline

. May 2OL9*: SCE plans to file the project application with
the California Pu blic Utilities Commission (CPUC).

. May 20t9z Notices regarding the filing will be posted at
key points along the route and copies of the notice will
run in area papers.

. 2Q-4Q2019: lf approved by the CPUC and BLM SCE

will put the project to bid and engage the construction-
phase contractor.

. 2O2l-2024: Anticipated l-C Project construction phase.

SCE can provide more specific information about timing of the lnyo County portion
of the project once the contractor is engaged and develops construction plans.

*NOTE: SCE may need to conduct some repairs in advance of licensing which could impact project scope.

Energy for What's Ahead'" 6



Potentia I Project Activities

df
'Et

d
*q Prior to construction, crews will be in the area performing

survey work and testing. Once construction begins, crews may
be performing the following work in your area:

iffi L. Replacing existing structures with steel poles

2. Replacing conductors (wires) and associated infrastructure
on portions of existing transmission lines

Before and After Simulotion

6. Maintaining or improving access roads in and around construction

7. Scheduling temporary street closures, as needed, for safety

8. Use of helicopters is anticipated for parts of this project

3. Scheduling temporary power outages during construction

4. Establishing temporary construction staging areas for crews
and construction equipment, including crane and helicopter
pads

5. Trimming or removing vegetation, when necessary, in and
around construction

1Energy for What's Ahead'-



a
. Email us regarding the l-C project: lClnfo@sce.com

. Visit the l-C Project webpage: www.sce.com/lCproject

. Arrange for a presentation with an SCE Government Relations Manager

uestions?

San Bernardino County Jennifer Cusack

calvin.rossi@sce.com

calvin.rossi@sce.com

jen n ifer.cusack@ sce.com
Juan.m.lopez@sce.com

lnyo County

Kern County

Cal Rossi

Cal Rossi

Government Relations
Manager

Project County EmailAddress

Energy for What's Ahead" 8



taz*

California Public Utilities Commission

Presentation to the lnyo County Board of Supervisors

SCE lvanpah-Control Project

April 9,2019



lntroduction to the CPUC

I CPUC regulates a number of utility sectors:
. lnvestor-owned electric utilities, natural gas,

telecommunications, water, railroad, rail transit, and
passenger tra nsportation com pa nies

. CPUC does regulate SCE, but not LADWP

I Under CPUC General Order L3L-D, the CPUC must
approve SCE's application for Permit to Construct
before this project can move ahead.

I CPUC is the CEQA Lead Agency for the l-C Project



Coordination with BLM

l-C Project will have concurrent NEPA and CEQA review

r BLM is the NEPA Lead Agency for the l-C Project
I BLM will issue a new ROW Authorization for the l-C

Project where it is on federal land
. The NEPA process will be handled separately. No
joint CEQA/NEPA document will be prepared

. There will be frequent interaction/planned
coordination milestones between CPUC and BLM to
ensure consistency



CPUC Process and Roles

I CEQA Unit Project Manager, Billie Blanchard
o Aspen Environmental Group - Consultant Team support for CEQA

prepa ration

r Administrative Law Judge assigned after project filing
' Conducts Proceeding and prepares draft decision after Final EIR is

issu ed

r Commissioner assigned at project filing
r Full 5-member Commission

. Votes on project approval or denial

' Proposed project or alternative selection with any approval



CEaA and the CPUC Process

CEQA Process

Applicolion Review qnd
Deemed Complete

Public Scoping ond
Environmenlol Review

Drqfl EIR lssued

Ulilily Files
Applicolion qnd

PEA

Proposed Decision

Commenis on
Froposed Decision

CPUC Proceeding

nro
Prolesls to Applicolion Filed

n
Response to Prolests

n
Pre-Heqring Conference

n
Scoping Memo
m

Testimony

-

Evidenliqry Heorings

ffi

Comments on Drqft EIR (45 doy
review period)

re
Finol EIR Prepored

Briefs



.... -
b CPUC's Pre-F ili ng Process

I CPUC has defined a "Pre-Filing Process" to
streamline the permitting of transmission facilities.

I For the l-c Project, CPUC conducted pre-filing
activities between October 2018 and March 2019:

' Outreach to Counties, DOD facilities, pe rmitting agencies

' Team site visit and meetings with interested agencies
o Outreach to Native American tribes

' Review and comment to SCE on draft application materials



Tentative CEaA Sched u le

CEQA / CPUC Process Step Approximate Schedule

Pre-Filing Process:

Review Draft Proponent's Environmental Assessment

SCE Files Application and PEA

CEQA Scoping - Public Scoping Meetings

AB52 Consultation with Native American Tribes

Prepare Draft EIR

Release Draft EIR

Public Workshops

Release Final EIR

CPUC Decision

Octobe r 2OL8 -
April 2OL9

Late May 2Ot9

August - September
20L9

November 2019 -
ongoing

Octobe r 2OL9 -
June 2O2O

June 2020

July 2020

October 202O

December 2O2O

Project Construction (if approved) 2021 - 2024



Contact lnformation

o Billie Blanch ard,
CPUC Project Manager for lvanpah-Control Project

o Email : Billie. Blanchard@cpuc.ca.gov

o Telephone: (916) 823-4799



Thank you for the opportunity to present
the CPUC's CEQA Process

uestions?q



State of Galifomia-Transportation Agency EDMUND G. BROWN Jr., Governor

DEPARTMENT OF CALIFORNIA HIGHWAY PATROL
469 South Main Street
Bishop, CA 93514
(760) 872-51 50
(800) 735-2929 (TT/TDD)
(800) 735-2922 (Voice)

March 22,2019

File No.: 825.12965.127 68

@
tr35

::*1 *.
:.:i< iw

Inyo County Board of Supervisors
P O DrawerN
Independence, CA 93526

Dear Board of Supervisors:

The enclosed report is submitted pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section25180.7

(Proposition 65). The report documents information regarding the illegal discharge (or

threatened illegal discharge) of hazardous waste, which could cause substantial injury to the

public health or safety. The report is submitted on behalf of all designated employees of the

Department of California Highway Patrol.

Sincerely,

GUEZ, Captain

Bishop Area

Enclosure

:!:
f?l

rl5
drl#4J#

3+ f"f,f*a I-e
\ r,tjI 
'*fi'I

aJ-

l'r Iffi --:
a*l'

r,l
(ir

'x ::: L,

'' 
"-" l'-

-l

ffiSafe$, Service, and Security An Internationally Accredited Agency



STATE OF CALIFORNIA

DEPARTIVIENT OF CALIFORNIA HIGHWAY PATROL

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS INCIDENT REPORT
CHP 4O7E (Rev. 3-15) OPI 062 Refer to HPM 84.2, Chapter 2

?'za'unt
COLLISION REPORT

Yes uur,,raen9825-2019-00074 n ruo

OES CONTROL NUMBER

oES-19-1932
NO. EXPOSED/
DECONNED

NO.
INJURED

NO.
KILLED

LININCORPORATED
CITY JUDICIAL DISTRICT

INYO
0 0 0

0 0 0 Inyo
COUNTY NCtC

9825
INCIDENT TIME

1535 HOURS

TIME CALTRANSiCOUNTY ROADS NOTIFIED

1537 HouRS

TIIVlE O,E.S, NOTIFIED

l8l6 HOURS

DRIVER'S LICENSE NUMBER

190183223

STATE

NV
VEH. YEAR

2002 Kw/TRAC/YELLOW
MAKE LICENSE NUMBER

898 I 54P
VEH. YEAR

2009 WES TERN/TRAILER/WHI TE

MAKE LICENSE NUMBER

09866PT
VEH. YEAR MAKE LICENSE NUMBER

BUSINESS PHONE

VEHICLE TYPE

25 32

CA NUMBER

UN
NUMBER

1202

DOT HAZARD
CLASS

3

QUANTITY RELEASED
(LBS., GAL., ETC.)

IOO GAL

EXTENT OF RELEASE

Outside vehicle Liquid

PHYSICAL
STATE STORED

coNTAtNER CAPACTTY /LBS., GAL., ETC.)

100

CONTAINER MATERIAL

Aluminum/Aluminum alloys
UN
NUMBER

DOT HAZARD
CLASS

QUANTITY RELEASED
(LBS., GAL., ETC.)

EXTENT OF RELEASE PHYSICAL
STATE STORED

coNTAtNER CAPACTTY rLBS., GAL., ETC.) CONTAINER MATERIAL

SURROUNDING AREA

Open land

Vehicle fuel system

EOUIPMENT TYPE INVOLVED

PRIMARY CAUSE OF INCIDENT

Violation

HAZMAT CASUALTIES

AGENCY PERSONNEL

OTHERS

INCIDENT DATE (MMIDDIYYYYJ

03t21/2019
INCIDENT OCCURRED ON

sR-168
MILEPOST INFORMATION

NAME 

'FIRSI 
MIDDLE, L/.ST)

RICHARD MARION BELL
STREET ADDRESS

24 4TH STREET
CIry/STATEZIP CODE

MCGILL, NV. 89318
HOME PHONE

HAZMAT IDENTIFICATION SOURCES (CHECK ALL THAT APPLY)

I On-site fire services f] Chemtrec

! Private info source ! Poison Control Center

I Off-site fire services ! Safety Data Sheet

I On-site non-fire services ! Placards/Signs

I Otf-site non-fire services ! Shipping papers

! Computer software I Emergency Response Guidebook

n Chemist ! No reference material used
Other

CHEMICAL/TRADE NAME

DIESEL FUEL
CONTAINER TYPE

Vehicular fuel tank
CHEMICAL/TRADE NAME

BY NONE

HAZMAT PLACARDS DISPLAYED

! Yes XNo
STATE HIGHWAY RELATED

[] Yes nNo
AT INTERSECTION WITH

oR East of WYMAN CREEK ROAD

GPS COORDINATES

LArruDE 37.415017' ror'rctruoe - I I 7 .9 65286'
STATE

STATE

NV
STATE

CARRIER NAME

PONDEROSA DAIRY
REGISTERED OWNER N SAME AS DRIVER

PONDEROSA DAIRY
o\ NER,S ADDRESS n SAME AS DRTVER

9OO EAST MECCA ROAD, AMARGOSA VALLEY, NV 89020
VEHICLE IDENTIFICATION NUMBER

lxKwDB0x02R880658
DOT NUMBER

80891 I
PHYSICAL STATE
RELEASED

Liquid
LEVEL OF CONTAINER

Above ground
PHYSICAL STATE
RELEASED

OTHER HAZARDOUS MATERIALS VIOLATIONS (NON.C AU SATIVE)

DID \A/EATHER CONTRIBUTE TO CAUSE OR SEVERITY OF INCIDENT?

CONTAINER TYPE LEVEL OF CONTAINER

PROPERry USE PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

State
RELEASE FACTORS

Collision/Overturn
HAZMAT CONFIRMED

[] Yes nNo
CITATION ISSUED OR COMPLAINT TO BE FILED

! Yes E tto X Not determined Yes n ruo

n Otner Code violation

! other cause Yes X tto weernen Clear
ELEMENTS (OUTLINE THE FOLLOWIAIG OA/A CHP 556. INCLUDE ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AS A/ECESSARU

I Sequence of events ! Evacuation details I Cleanup actions X CHP On-scene Personnel (name, rank, tD

! Road closures I Environmental impact I Actions of other agencies number' function' exposure, hours)

COMPLETE THE FOLLOWNG

x] lncident Action Plan I Site Safety plan I Proposition 65 Letters: County Health/County Board of Supervisors
DATE AND TIME SCENE DECLAREO SAFE BY WHOM (NAME, TITLE AND AGENCV

HOURS

PREPARER'S NAME, RANK, AND ID NUMBER

L.BROWNING, SGT. 012768

DATE

03/22/2019

REVIEWER'S NAME, RANK, AND ID NUMBER

Destroy Previous Editions An lnternationally Accredited Agency

DATE

Chp407E_05 1 5.pdf



Commissioners
Eric Sklar, President

Saint Helena
Jacque Hostler-Carmesin, Vice President

McKinleyville
Russell E. Burns, Member

Napa
Peter S. Silva, Member

Jamul
Samantha Murray, Member

Del Mar

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
Gavin Newsom, Governor

Fish and Game Commission

Melissa Miller-Henson
Acting Executive Director

P.O. Box 944209
Sacram ento, C A 94244-2090

(e16) 653-489e

Hi,9l3iH33:, # zta

Wildlife Heritage and Conservation

Since 1870

March 22,2019

This is to provide notice that the proposed regulatory actions relative
in section 362,364,364.1 and 708.6, identified in Title 14, California
appeared in the California Regulatory Notice Register on January 11

Commission's teleconference meeting on May 16,2A19.

!..-t
a?t
:F.4 F- -'.":

t'=t:r" i
7l r,r!

{*)
6 r.l

5F t'ft--r1 E.F

]"-ql'i
'4.d

'{ . e

ffigsfiffis"
fuhch t-'r

uedEb the

:3
i '':.

TO ALL INTERESTED AND AFFECTED PARTIES

to "Mamm
Code of
,2019, may contin

The purpose of the continuation is to allow for additional public review of associated California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) documents for bighorn sheep and elk (SCH #s 2018112036 and
2018112037) as filed with the State Clearinghouse on February 19,2019. Please note that information
in the original notice remain the same, including regulatory text, associated documents and noticed
dates of the public hearings related to this matter.

At the Commission's April 17,2019 meeting in Santa Monica, staff will recommend continuing public
review of the CEQA documents for bighorn sheep and elk.

NOTICE lS NOW GIVEN that, if the staff recommendation to continue public review of the CEQA
documents for bighorn sheep and elk is approved, any person interested may present statements, orally
or in writing, relevant to the proposed regulatory actions at the Commission's teleconference hearing on
Thursday, May 16,2019, at 8:00 a.m., or as soon thereafter as the matter may be heard, in the
Commission's conference room, 1416 Ninth Street, Room 1320, Sacramento, California or at one of
three California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) offices: Arcata Field Office,5341 Ericson
Way, Arcata, CA 95521, CDFW Fairfield Regional Office,2825 Cordelia Road, Suite 100, Fairfield, CA
94534, and CDFW San Diego Regional Office, 3883 Ruffin Road, San Diego, CA92123.

Written comments are requested before the April 17,2019 meeting; however, to be considered during
preparation of the adoption hearing materials, comments should be submitted no later than May 3,2019,
at the address given below, or by emailto FGC@fgc.ca.gov. Any written comments mailed or emailed to
the Commission office must be received before 12:00 noon on May 1 0,2019 after which any comments
must be received at the May 16,2019 teleconference hearing. lf you would like copies of any
modifications to this proposal, please include your name and mailing address in your correspondence.
Mailed comments should be addressed to California Fish and Game Commission, PO Box 944209,
Sacramento, CA 94244-2090.

Jon D. Snel
Associate Government Program Analyst

California Natural Resources Building
1416 Ninth Street, Room 1320, Sacramento, California 95814


	part 1
	part 2
	part 3

